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Facilities
1 Trustpower Baypark (Arena, Stadium & BayStation)
1 Adam Centres for High Performance
3 Community Centres
4 Sports Centres
5 Aquatics Facilities
8 Community Halls
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These facilities are operated by Bay Venues, a Tauranga City Council organisation.
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OUR YEAR IN NUMBERS

OUR YEAR IN SERVICE DELIVERABLES

REVENUE

$23.10m
( 26% below budget)

EBITDA

*

R
D

PART TIME STAFF:

120

CASUAL STAFF:

103

90%

Overall Customer Satisfaction

92%

$3.14m
Aquatics & Learn to Swim:

$4.23m
Sports Facilities:

$1.34m
$2.06m

Events & Catering:

$7.57m

249,909

VISITORS

1.5m

Visitors to our
Community Centres & Halls

193,841

*

Visitors to our
Indoor Sports Facilities

219,420

to our facilities

$1.13m

( 30% below budget)

289,826

Visitors to Other Facilities**

R
D

43

SCHOOLS IN POOLS
(Water Safety)

Number of Sporting &
Aquatic Tournaments

12

128

92%

Conferences, Trade Shows,
Exhibitions, Concerts and other
events at Trustpower Baypark.

94%
Overall satisfaction with our staff

T
F
A

Visitors to Trustpower
Baypark (Arena & Stadium)

Other User Fees**:

Overall satisfaction with the facility

Overall satisfaction with the service

Visitors to our
Aquatic Facilities

TCC Renewal Funding:

T
F
A

( $2.9m below budget)

124

$3.26m

Clubfit & Other Memberships:

-$2.89m
FULL TIME STAFF:

584,898

TCC Community Operating Grant:

Participants in Bay
Venues Led Activity
Programmes^

63,591

Schools Joined

Adults & Senior

3,368

Child/Youth

Children
Participated
In Lessons

86,283
9,817

HEALTHY SCHOOL
LUNCHES

465,649
total lunches
supplied (started
Oct 2020)

Pre-School

159,691
Total

* Excludes TCC Debt Servicing and TCC Rehabilitation expense funding
**Includes BayStation and Merchandise.

* All facilities were impacted by nationwide COVID-19 Level 4 restrictions in August 2021, and further restrictions up to April 2022.
** Including BayStation, Clubfit and University of Waikato Adams Centre for High Performance.
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A YEAR IN REVIEW

A YEAR IN REVIEW

they help us with all the little things we need or to make life
easier’’ and ‘’the facilitators really helped to ensure our day ran
smoothly. They were really accommodating and kind’’.

A Year in Review
Nā tou rourou nā taku rourou
ka ora ai te iwi
With your food basket and my food basket,
the people have thrived
Resilience through change
The year ending 30 June 2022 was a year of substantial
change and substantial challenge for Bay Venues, but we are
proud of how the organisation and its people have showed
ongoing resilience in continuing to serve our community.
The year was the first full year for our new Board and
our new CEO, Chad Hooker, started in November 2021.
It was also a year in which the operating environment
was extraordinarily challenging with much of the year
impacted by Covid related restrictions and managing staff
and customer vaccination mandates. Notwithstanding
this, we managed to maintain our service levels in most
venues, which is testament to the hard work and tireless
commitment from our team.

R
D

Other positives throughout the year include the increasingly
strong relationships we have built with Tauranga City Council
(TCC), mana whenua and other key partners We are also
delighted and proud to report that we have become a Living
Wage employer to help attract and retain staff.
On the facilities front, we commenced a major upgrade
of Greerton Aquatic & Leisure Centre which will provide a
much improved facility for the community.
Unsurprisingly, as a result of the Covid enforced restrictions,
Bay Venues performed poorly in financial terms in FY22 (1
July 2021 to 30 June 2022) running at a deficit of $2.9M
(against a budget of breakeven)
However, as business returns to more normal trading
conditions we are heartened to see events and activity
returning to our venues. We launched a refreshed strategy
for the organisation and both the Board and senior
management are excited about the future.
Our Purpose
Bay Venues is the kaitiaki of our strategic network of
community facilities here in Tauranga Moana and we aspire
to provide ‘The Best Venues for the Bay’. Every day we

4
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To encourage higher utilisation and participation, the new
Bay Venues website platform highlights venues available to
hire and activities taking place within them. Since launching
the new Bay Venues site in October 2021 engagement and
customer interaction has drastically improved.

connect our community through exceptional experiences
that take place within the 24 facilities we manage on behalf
of Tauranga City Council. We strive to unite our community
with the delivery of amazing activities and events that
enhance the social, cultural, and economic wellbeing of
Tauranga Moana.
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Our People
Our people have faced extreme challenges over the last year,
and although challenges have been felt by all workers across
Aotearoa, the Events and Leisure industry that we are proudly
part of has felt them acutely. From staff shortages, operating
under different alert levels, and simply not being able to
host the events and activities that are our passion – we’ve
experienced it all. However, what we are most proud of is
our people’s resilience during all of this, always keeping the
customer and community at the forefront of what we do.
Our employee numbers have varied throughout the financial
year as we rode the wave of different Covid alert levels.
However, at the end of year we have seen a stabilisation
of these numbers and we now look to ensure that we are
resourced to deliver to our region across all areas of our
business. While it has been difficult, we seek to acknowledge
a number of significant ‘wins’ in the people space, including
the creation of a new mission, vision, purpose, a new set of
values created by a cross section of the organisation, and
we became a Living Wage employer – the cornerstones of
creating an organisation worth belonging to.
Our Customer & Community Experience
Bay Venues has a strong focus on the customer and our
communities’ experience. In FY22 we introduced a new,
real-time customer sentiment tool that has allowed us to
survey a wider pool of customers throughout the year. It
was pleasing to see that we maintained a 90% customer
satisfaction rating again this year, significantly ahead of our
85% target.
// We maintained
Customers recognise the value
of our facilities and programmes
providing comments such as
‘’we in Tauranga are so fortunate
to have these lovely community
halls’’, ‘’your staff... are amazing,

a 90% customer
satisfaction rating
again this year,
significantly ahead of
our 85% target //

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022 BAY VENUES LTD

Our Community Facilities
As kaitaki of Tauranga’s community facilities our role is to look
after and enhance our existing assets. In collaboration with
Ngai Tukairangi Trust, the unveiling of He Pou Rarama based
at the Mount Hot Pools has enhanced the cultural experience
of facility visitors and passers-by. The 50-year-old Greerton
Aquatic & Leisure Centre continues to be a valued community
facility and is currently undergoing a refurbishment to address
long-standing issues which will significantly improve the level
of service and increase its appeal to the wider community.
The growth in Pickleball has been supported by the install of
specific court lines at both Trustpower Arena and the Mount
Sports Centre.

R
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Our community focus was acknowledged when we received
the Recreation Aotearoa National Aquatic Innovation
Award for the ‘Keep Me Safe’ child supervision policy, which
highlights parental responsibility around water. We continue
to deliver existing activities
to a high standard such as
// We received the
water safety lessons with over
Recreation Aotearoa
3,300 primary aged students
attending 4-5 hours of vital
National Aquatic
water skills lessons this year.
Innovation Award for
Over 60 teachers surveyed
the ‘Keep Me Safe’
reported 96% amazing
child supervision
satisfaction with the overall
policy, which highlights programme. Likewise, over
parental responsibility 9,300 visits were recorded
attending the popular Tumble
around water //
Time preschool programme
based at Trustpower Arena and QEYC.

In other areas where gathering limits were not as prohibitive,
such as at Clubfit gyms and BayStation, we saw a downturn
but managed to trade at reduced levels with the fourth
quarter seeing an upturn as the region returned to an Orange
Traffic Light setting.
We took advantage of
when we could operate and
highlights include our catering
service to the Women’s
Cricket World Cup hosted at
the Bay Oval, our ongoing
service of the Healthy School
Lunches programme during
the most difficult periods,
and seamlessly transitioning
between the various stages
of the Traffic Light System in
presentation of our facilities.

// The fourth quarter
saw the start of
normal business
resuming with a
swing from almost
no activity to a rush
for time and space as
events and activities
recommenced //
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Our network of community facilities is home to so many
diverse user groups – sport, recreation, support services, arts
& culture, education, religion, exercise and more. Our team
endeavour to work collaboratively with existing and new user
groups to enhance the wellbeing of people in Tauranga, and
beyond.
Our venues host an extensive range of events and
consequently the last twelve months has been a very difficult
time. Constant uncertainty has been a significant challenge
for those organising events; they have needed to regularly

react to the requirements of the various regulations in place
to mitigate the effects of Covid. Our team spent many hours
working with event organisers repositioning activity for a time
when they could operate with confidence.

Events and associated activities had delivered a positive
financial result in the previous twelve months with the help
of the wage subsidy, but in the absence of this assistance
the financial impact of long periods of gathering restrictions
was significant. We were fortunate to be able to provide our
facilities to enable core essential service providers such as
the DHB and Envirowaste to operate, realising a small but
valuable cash flow.
The fourth quarter saw the start of normal business resuming
with a swing from almost no activity to a rush for time and
space as events and activities recommenced. The pipeline for
our next financial year is very healthy and our facilities are in
demand well into the future.
Our Financial Sustainability
FY22 was a challenging year from a financial perspective
with a full year EBITDA deficit of $2.9m (against a breakeven
budget).
Total operational revenue of $20.2m was $4.1m behind
budget, $3.3m of the deficit was from Events Facilities and
Associated Activities with covid related restrictions meaning
we were unable to host major events for most of the year.
Aquatic Facilities were able to remain open however volumes
were also restricted, resulting a revenue deficit of $0.8m
against budget.
On a positive note, significant cost reductions were targeted
in response to revenue impacts, and we were able to deliver
$1.2m total expense savings against budget.

BAY VENUES LTD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
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Our capital programme for FY22 was underspent due to
disruptions across the construction sector, resulting in a
renewals capital spend of $3.1M, $3.6M less than budget. The
most significant of the delays was the upgrade of Greerton
Aquatic Centre, which is now underway and scheduled for
completion in mid 2023.
Looking Forward
With the worst of the pandemic now appearing to be
behind us we are able to forward plan with some certainty
to maximise event and activity bookings across our network
of community facilities. Event bookings are strong over the
next 12-18 months, along with growth in the region driving
increased participation in sport and recreational activities we
are facing increasing demand for space within our venues.
This is a good problem to have, but will mean at times the
need to prioritise bookings at peak times. The pipeline of
event bookings also bodes well for our Catering and AV
business units that are heavily reliant on event bookings to
drive revenue.
We will increase our focus on maintaining and improving
our assets. Our aging network of community facilities will
need increased investment in renewals alongside plans to
build new facilities to cater for the growth of the city. We are
working closely with TCC to ensure that appropriate funding
is allocated so we can look after what we’ve got and cater
for the future. This will include a review of our pricing to
ensure it is appropriate. In the short term we are scheduled
to complete the refurbishment of the Greerton Aquatic and
Leisure Centre in late 2022 while we are also planning a
significant maintenance closure at Baywave in early 2023.
The completion of the Baypark Master Plan will guide future
development opportunities for this site well into the future.
A wider venue strategy will be finalised in FY23 to provide
a cohesive plan for investment and improvements going
forward.

R
D

HIGHLIGHTS

With the launch of a refreshed organisational strategy and
values having been completed at the end of FY22 we now
need to embed these within the business. A new structure
for the organisation’s Executive Team is well advanced and
will be followed by investing in leadership development
for our key people leaders. Staff recruitment and retention
will continue to be an ongoing challenge in the year ahead
and we are working on initiatives around remuneration,
career development and culture to help us to attract and
retain good people. A proactive health and safety culture,
an increasing emphasis on sustainability and improved
enhanced reporting are other key focus areas for the year
ahead.
Despite the challenges of Covid, Bay Venues is well
positioned to meet the needs of our local community into
the future.
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We take this opportunity to thank our Board for their
ongoing service and also to thank the senior executive
team and all our staff for the work that they do for Bay
Venues and our Tauranga Moana.

Simon Clarke, Chair

Chad Hooker, CEO

Keep Me Safe award
Bay Venues was awarded the Recreation Aotearoa 2021 Aquatic
Innovation Award for their ‘Keep Me Safe’ pool supervision rules. Since
the 2020 implementation of ‘Keep Me Safe’, a campaign designed to
encourage caregivers to take ownership of their child’s safety in and
around the water, there has been a 38% decrease in wet rescues across
all aquatic sites. A critical incident that occurred at the Mount Hot Pools
in January 2020 was the catalyst for making change to the pool
supervision rules. The success of implementing ‘Keep Me Safe’ is due
to the buy-in of multiple business units all collaboratively working
together to ensure there is consistency and repetitive reinforcement,
aided by some standout marketing collateral to drive the message
home to parents. The volume and calibre of the other nominees made
this award even more prestigious.
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Water Skills For Life programme
More than 3,300 primary school-aged children from a dozen schools across the city took part in the Water Skills For
Life programme with BaySwim this year, with each student attending between four and five hours of lessons that
taught them vital water safety and survival skills. “The skills learnt are invaluable to our tamariki who live and play in
and near the ocean,” Shelley Blakey, Principal of Arataki School, said. Treena Korzelius from Selwyn Ridge Primary
School commented: “I am really happy with what you offer our students, having a mixture of both structured and fun
water safety lessons.” Katie McKenzie, also from Selwyn Ridge, added: “Wearing the life jackets for deep water survival
was definitely a highlight.” Meanwhile, Natasha Hoskin from Greenpark School praised the “fun, engaging lessons” and
said she enjoyed “watching our kids develop confidence in the water”. Of the 62 teachers surveyed, more than 90 per
cent reported “amazing satisfaction” with the overall programme, the facilities, and the water safety content. For Te
Kura o Matapihi, the BaySwim programme was a “life saver” after it had to cancel its own swimming classes due to the
school pool needing repairs. Tumuaki Hira Hona said: “We would like to express a heartfelt thank you to the BaySwim
team at the Baywave venue.”
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HIGHLIGHTS

HIGHLIGHTS

Launch of New Strategy and Values

Tumble Time
Tumble Time has become part of the weekly routine
for many young families in the Tauranga community,
with 9,300 visits to the preschool programme this year.
Play is a cornerstone of Sport New Zealand’s Physical
Literacy Approach and is described as being “a crucial
part of physical, cognitive, social/emotional and spiritual
development for young people”. Sport New Zealand says
young people must have access to enriched and varied
playful experiences within their local environments, as
individuals and with others. There should be a variety of
play types and it should be sensory rich, with physical
movement and a sense of an escape from realism. The
Tumble Time team work hard each week to create such
an environment at Trustpower Arena and Queen Elizabeth
Youth Centre, with trampolines, moon hoppers, scooters,
trikes, bikes, and balls. There is balancing and gymnastic
equipment, obstacle courses, mega blocks, monkey bars,
and so much more. Josh Bates has brought his daughter
Liliana to Tumble Time since she was about 8 months old
and said she has gone “from strength to strength” and
“absolutely loves it”. “The big benefits we’ve seen is her
being able to interact with lots of other kids, be social,
go on lots of toys and climbing equipment that we don’t
have at home, and it’s really safe. The first time she’s ever
been on a trampoline was here.” He said Tumble Time has
given Liliana an opportunity to grow her confidence and
develop social skills. “She can take risks and if she crashes,
it’s safe … there’s lots of options for her to climb and
explore, get a bit of independence.”

R
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He Pou Rarama
A culturally significant artwork that tells the
story of the four sacred springs of Mauao was
unveiled at the entrance of Mount Hot Pools
this year. He Pou Rarama, by local artist Tiare
Dickson, has a commanding presence outside
the popular venue, day and night. The pou
was crafted from corten steel and has been
laser cut to reveal coloured acrylic which
glows with the assistance of LED lighting.
Dickson said the kōrero of the four springs –
Waipatukākahu, Ruarapapari, Te Puna Waitapu,
and Te Kawa Waipuna – is meaningful to all iwi
and hapū connected to Mauao, “so everyone
will feel involved in this work”.
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In June this year Bay Venues launched the organisation’s
new strategy and values. This inaugural event marked the
beginning of a new chapter for Bay Venues, with community
the main focus and a vision to be “The Best Venues for the
Bay”. As chief executive Chad Hooker explained to those
gathered, Bay Venues’ mission is to be the kaitiaki of Tauranga’s
strategic network of community facilities. The organisation’s
new purpose, he said, is to connect the community through
exceptional experiences. This will be achieved by maximising
events and activities, looking after and enhancing assets, and
leveraging and building the organisations capability. Behind
this strategy sits four key values – Manaakitanga (Service),
Whakawhanaungatanga (Relationships), Kaitiakitanga (Caring),
and He Toi Tangata (Excellence). These values will lie at the
heart of Bay Venues and its future direction.

R
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Event Resurgence
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As Aotearoa opened back up again after months of
Covid-19 lockdowns and traffic light restrictions, the
events industry quickly sprang back to life and this
resurgence meant a busy fourth quarter for Bay Venues.
There were 45 events (nearly double the 2021/2022
average) held at Trustpower Baypark during this period
and over 65,000 people came through the doors. There
was the Bay of Plenty Wedding Show, 7 Days Live, and the
Urban Dance youth hip hop competition. Realty Group
held three different events at Trustpower Baypark – the
EVES annual conference, the EVES annual awards evening,
and the Bayleys annual awards evening. They were
delighted with the end result and the contribution of the
Bay Venues events team. “I know that without the world
class experience and professionalism from everybody at
Baypark these events would not have been the success
they were,” event organiser Kristin Bainbridge said. She
said the catering was “super impressive” and the level of
customer service “impeccable”.

BAY VENUES LTD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE & EXPENSES for the Year ended 30 June 2022
Note

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY for the Year ended 30 June 2022

Actual 2022
($000’s)

Budget 2022
($000’s)

Actual 2021
($000’s)

Revenue
Balance as at 1 July 2020

Share Capital
($000’s)

Retained
earnings
($000’s)

Revaluation
Surplus
($000’s)

Other
Reserves
($000’s)

Total Equity
($000’s)

84,232

(24,556)

36,505

333

96,514

-

1,494

-

-

1,494

User Revenue

2

16,605

21,261

18,687

Other Revenue

3

60

155

148

TCC Operational Grant

2

3,256

2,916

2,887

TCC Debt Servicing Grant

2

452

452

1,285

Surplus or Deficit for the Year

-

-

2,309

-

2,309

TCC Renewal Funding

2

3,142

6,782

3,433

Revaluation Adjustment on Disposal

-

-

-

-

-

Rehabilitation Expense Funding

2

324

-

197

Tax on Revaluation Gain

-

-

(680)

-

(680)

COVID19 Wage Subsidy

2

38

-

1,046

Transfer to Trustpower Reserve

-

(200)

-

200

-

-

(200)

1,629

200

1,629

Balance As At 30 June 2021

84,232

(23,262)

38,134

533

99,637

Balance As At 1 July 2021

84,232

(23,262)

38,134

533

99,637

-

(4,076)

-

-

(4,076)

-

-

7,976

-

7,976

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(1,806)

-

(1,806)

-

(200)

-

200

-

-

(200)

6,170

-

6,170

84,232

(27,538)

44,304

733

101,731

Total Operational Revenue
Expenditure
Employee Expense
Administrative Expense

R
D

Consulting & Governance Expenses
Operating Expenses (incl. COGS)
Repairs & Maintenance Expense
Rehabilitation Expense

Profit/Loss on Disposal
Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

T
F
A
23,877

31,566

27,683

4

13,430

13,982

12,329

8

1,132

1,442

1,256

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax

R
D

Comprehensive Income

5

984

638

677

6,458

7,489

6,492

845

782

869

Other Comprehensive Income

324

-

197

Surplus or Deficit for the Year

3

-

17

7

615

637

671

5,756

6,089

5,717

29,547

31,059

28,225

Surplus/(Deficit) Before Tax

(5,670)

507

(542)

1,595

-

2,036

(4,075)

507

1,494

7,976

-

2,309

(1,806)

-

(680)

6,170

-

1,629

2,095

507

3,123

Surplus/(Deficit) After Tax

Surplus or Deficit for the Year

6

Total Operating Expenditure

Income Tax Benefit

Comprehensive Income

9

Surplus or Deficit for the Year

Revaluation Adjustment on Disposal
Tax on Revaluation Gain

Transfer to Trustpower Reserve

Total Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax
Balance as at 30 June 2022

T
F
A

Summary of significant accounting policies and the accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Other comprehensive Revenue & Expenses
Gain on Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation
Tax on Revaluation

Total Comprehensive Income
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION as at 30 June 2022

STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS for the Year ended 30 June 2022
Note

Actual 2022
($000’s)

Actual 2021
($000’s)

ASSETS

Note

Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents

10

733

399

Inventories

11

368

401

Debtors & Other Receivables

12

Total Current Assets

1,349

Grants Received

2,149

Dividend Received
Cash Received from Other Sources

15

3,425

2,613

Intangible Assets

13

325

727

Property, Plant & Equipment

Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

R
D

Employee Entitlements

Creditors & Other Payables

Borrowings UoW Adams Centre Loan
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Deferred Tax

Total Non-Current liabilities
Total Liabilities
Net Assets
EQUITY

T
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14

Total Non-Current Assets

Borrowings

Cash Received from Customers

796

Other Non-Current asset

133,489

126,348

137,239

129,688

139,136

131,837

1,057

1,163

17

5,943

3,086

18

1,000

1,000

8,000

5,249

18
9

20,537

18,273

8,886

8,675

29,423

26,948

37,423

32,197

101,713

99,640

19

84,232

84,232

Retained Earnings

20

(28,218)

(23,261)

Other Reserves

22

733

533

Revaluation Reserves

21

44,966

38,136

101,713

99,640

Summary of significant accounting policies and the accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

17,467

17,578

6,812

8,652

11

43

156

178

-

-

24,446

26,451

(13,534)

(12,595)

(6,775)

(9,283)

(615)

(671)

(97)

(13)

(21,021)

(22,562)

3,425

3,889

6

78

6

78

(4,550)

(4,540)

(812)

(743)

(5,362)

(5,283)

(5,356)

(5,205)

7,764

7,662

7,764

7,662

(5,500)

(6,500)

2,264

1,162

Net Increase / Decrease in Cash Held

333

(154)

Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

399

552

732

398

Payments to Employees
Payments to Suppliers
Interest Paid

R
D

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash flows from investing activities

Share Capital

Total equity

Goods & Services Tax (net)

Goods & Services Tax (net)

16

2021
($000’s)
Actual

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

1,897

Non-Current Assets

2022
($000’s)
Actual

Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

T
F
A
24

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment
Transfer to Depreciation Investment

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Borrowings

Repayment of TCC Borrowings
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Bank Overdrafts at the End of the Year

10

Summary of significant accounting policies and the accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Simon Clarke – Director
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Date

Jeremy Curragh – Director

Date
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES

for the Year Ended 30 June 2022

for the Year Ended 30 June 2022

1.1 ENTITY STATEMENT
Bay Venues Limited is a Council Controlled Organisation
(CCO) as defined in Section 6 of the Local Government
Act 2002. The company is wholly owned by Tauranga City
Council. The company is registered under the Companies Act
1993 and is a reporting entity for the purposes of the Financial
Reporting Act 1993.
The primary objective of Bay Venues Limited is to provide
goods and services for the community or social benefit,
rather than making a financial return. Accordingly, Bay
Venues Limited, as part of the Tauranga City Council group,
has designated itself as a Public Benefit Entity (PBE) for
financial reporting purposes.
The financial statements of Bay Venues Limited are for the
year ended 30 June 2022. The financial statements were
authorised for issue by Bay Venues Limited Directors on 21st
September 2021.
1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements have been prepared on the going
concern basis and the accounting policies have been applied
consistently throughout the period.

R
D

The financial statements of Bay Venues Limited have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 1993, the Financial Reporting Act 1993
and the Local Government Act 2002, which includes
the requirements to comply with New Zealand generally
accepted accounting practice (GAAP).

Measurement base
The financial statements have been prepared on historical
cost basis, modified by the revaluation of land, plant and
buildings.
Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in New Zealand
dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars ($000). The functional currency of Bay Venues
Limited is New Zealand dollars.
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1.3 REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is recognised at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable.
Sale of Goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
product is sold to the customer.
User Fees & Charges
User fees and charges are
recognised on the basis of actual services provided. Any fees
and charges received in advance are recognised as unearned
income.

T
F
A

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Tier 2 PBE accounting standards on the
basis that Bay Venues Limited is not publicly accountable and
expenses are between $2 million and $30 million. However,
Bay Venues Limited will not be taking advantage of all Tier
2 exemptions. These financial statements comply with PBE
standards.
The accounting notes set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements.

Standards, amendments, and interpretations issued that are
not yet effective
Standards, amendments, and interpretation issued that are
not yet effective will have a minimal impact on the entity.

Grant Income
Grant income is recognised upon entitlement, as conditions
pertaining to eligible expenditure have been fulfilled.

initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination, and at the time of the
transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit.

1.6 LEASES

Inventories (such as spare parts and other items) held for
distribution or consumption in the provision of services
that are not supplied on a commercial basis is measured
at cost, adjusted when applicable, for any loss of service
potential. The loss of service potential of inventory held for
distribution is determined on the basis of obsolescence.
Where inventories are acquired at no cost or for nominal
consideration, the cost is the current replacement cost at the
date of acquisition.

(i) Operating Lease
An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer
substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
leased item to the lessee.

Inventory held for use in the production of goods and
services on a commercial basis is valued at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. The cost of purchased inventory is
determined using the first in first out (FIFO) method.

Deferred tax is recognised in the surplus or deficit for the
period, except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination, or to transactions recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as
expenses in the surplus or deficit on a straight line basis over
the lease term.
1.7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Revenue is classified as exchange and non exchange.
Subsidised income received is recognised as non exchange
revenue.

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held on call with banks and other short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

1.4 BORROWING COSTS

1.8 DEBTORS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred.
1.5 INCOME TAXATION

Income tax expense is the current period movements in
relation to deferred tax only.
Deferred tax is the amount of income tax payable or
recoverable in future periods in respect of temporary
differences and unused tax losses. Temporary differences
are differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable surplus.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at balance date. The measurement of
deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the group expects to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences
or tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred tax is not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the
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1.10 INVENTORIES

R
D

Debtors and other receivables are included at their net
realisable value after deduction of a provision for doubtful
debts.
1.9 IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets are assessed for objective evidence of
impairment at each balance date. Impairment losses are
recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Receivables
Impairment is established when there is objective evidence
that Bay Venues Limited will not be able to collect amounts
due according to the original terms of the debt. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter into bankruptcy and default on the payments are
considered indicators that the asset is impaired. The amount
of the impairment is the difference between the assetís
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted using the original effective interest
rate. For debtors and other receivables, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
surplus or deficit. When the receivable is uncollectable,
it is written off against the allowance account. Overdue
receivables that have been renegotiated are reclassified as
current (that is not past due). Impairment in term deposits is
recognised directly against the instrumentís carrying value.

T
F
A

Inventories held for distribution or consumption in the
provision of services that are not supplied on a commercial
basis are measured at cost adjusted for any loss of service
potential.
The amount of any write down for the loss of service
potential or from cost to net realisable value is recognised in
the surplus or deficit in the period of the write down.
1.11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant, and equipment is shown at cost or valuation,
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Revaluation
Land, buildings and Plant are revalued with sufficient
regularity to ensure that their carrying amount does not
differ materially from fair value and at least every three years.
All other asset classes are carried at depreciated historical
cost. Revaluations of property, plant, and equipment are
accounted for on a class of asset basis.
The net revaluation results are credited or debited to
other comprehensive income and are accumulated to an
asset revaluation reserve in equity for that class of asset.
Where this would result in a debit balance in the asset
revaluation reserve, this balance is not recognised in other
comprehensive income but is recognised in the surplus or
deficit. Any subsequent increase on revaluation that reverses
a previous decrease in value recognised in the surplus or
deficit will be recognised first in the surplus or deficit up to
the amount previously expensed, and then recognised in
other comprehensive revenue and expenses.
The most recent valuation was performed by Quotable
Values on Buildings & Land only, with the valuation being
effective as at 30 June 2022.
Additions
The cost of an item of property plant and equipment is
recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future

BAY VENUES LTD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
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Intellectual property development

economic benefits or service potential associated with the
item will flow to Bay Venues Limited and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably.
Costs incurred subsequent to initial recognition are
capitalised only when it is probable that future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the item will
flow to Bay Venues Limited and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

Disposals
Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount of the asset. Gains
and losses on disposal are included in the surplus or deficit.
When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in
the asset revaluation reserves in respect of those assets are
transferred to retained earnings.

R
D
Estimated
useful life
(Years)

Depreciation
Method

Operational Assets
Buildings & Improvements

1-100

SL

Plant and Equipment

1-100

SL

Computer Equipment

3-10

SL

Office Furniture & Equipment

1-20

SL

4.5-10

SL

Motor Vehicles
1.12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software Acquisition and Development
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software.
Costs associated with maintaining computer software are
recognised as an expense when incurred. Staff training costs
are recognised as an expense when incurred.
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Amortisation
rates

Acquired Computer
software

3-10 years

10% - 33.3%

Property, plant and equipment value in use is depreciated
replacement cost for an asset where the future economic
benefits or service potential of the asset are not primarily
dependant on the assetís ability to generate net cash inflows
and where the entity would, if deprived of the asset, replace
its remaining future economic benefits or service potential.
The value in use for cash generating assets and cash
generating units is the present value of expected future cash
flows.

T
F
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Depreciation
All assets are depreciated over their expected useful lives.
Depreciation is provided on a straight line (SL) basis, at
rates calculated to allocate the asset cost less estimated
residual value over the estimated useful life. When assets are
revalued, depreciation rates are overridden by the new annual
depreciation rates to accurately reflect the useful life of the
asset.
CLASS OF ASSET
DEPRECIATED

Estimated
Useful Life

1.13 IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

In most cases an item of property plant and equipment is
initially recognised at its cost. Where an asset is acquired at
no cost, or for a nominal cost, it is recognised at fair value as
at the date of acquisition.
Work in progress is recognised at cost less impairment and is
not depreciated.

CLASS OF INTANGIBLE
ASSET

For revalued assets the impairment loss is recognised against
the revaluation reserve for that class of asset. Where that
results in a debit balance in the revaluation reserve, the
balance is recognised in the surplus or deficit.
For assets not carried at a revalued amount, the total
impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.
The reversal of an impairment loss on a revalued asset is
credited to other comprehensive income and increases the
asset revaluation reserve for that class of asset. However,
to the extent that an impairment loss for that class of asset
was previously recognised in the surplus or deficit, a reversal
of the impairment loss is also recognised in the surplus or
deficit.
For assets not carried at a revalued amount the reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit.
1.14 CREDITORS AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors and other payables are recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost.
1.15 BORROWINGS
Borrowings are initially recognised at their fair value. After
initial recognition, all borrowings are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method.

Other reserves
This reserve relates to the Trustpower naming rights reserve.

Long term employee entitlements
Employee entitlements are those entitlements that are due
to be settled beyond 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employee renders the related service, such as long
service leave and retirement gratuities. The calculations are
based on:

• the present value of the estimated future cash flows.

R
D

Superannuation schemes
Obligations for contributions to KiwiSaver are accounted
for as defined contribution superannuation schemes and
are recognised as an expense in the surplus or deficit when
incurred.

Annual leave and long service leave, expected to be settled
within 12 months or balance date, are classified as a current
liability. All other employee entitlements are classificed as a
non current liability.
1.17 PROVISIONS

Bay Venues Limited recognises a provision for future
expenditure of an uncertain amount or timing when there is a
present obligation, (either legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that expenditures will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

1.16 EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS

• Retained Earnings

Equity is measured as the difference between total assets and
total liabilities. Equity is disaggregated and classified into the
following components.
• Share Capital
• Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Reserve
• Other reserves

1.19 GOODS & SERVICES TAX
All items in the financial statements are exclusive of goods
and services tax (GST) with the exception of receivables and
payables, which are stated with GST included. When GST is
not recoverable as input tax, it is recognised as part of the
related asset or expense.

T
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• likely future entitlements accruing to staff, based on years
of service, years to entitlement, the likelihood that staff will
reach the point of entitlement, and contractual entitlement
information; and

1.18 EQUITY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022 BAY VENUES LTD

The revaluation reserve will be realised when the assets within
the class of property, plant and equipment to which the
surplus relates to, are retired or disposed of.

A liability and an expense are recognised for bonuses where
Bay Venues Limited has a contractual obligation or where
there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless Bay
Venues Limited has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after balance date, or if
the borrowings are expected to be settled within 12 months
of balance date.

Short term Employee Entitlements
Salaries, wages and annual leave, that are due to be settled

Property revaluation reserves
This reserve relates to the revaluation of property, plant, and
equipment to fair value.

within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employee renders the related service, are measured at
nominal values based on accrued entitlements at current
rates of pay.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive
of GST.
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to
the Inland Revenue Department (IRD) is included as part of
receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.
The net GST paid to, or received from the IRD, including GST
relating to investing and financing activities, is classified as an
operating cash flow in the statement of cash flows.
1.20 BUDGET FIGURES

The budget figures are those adopted by Bay Venues Limited
and approved by Tauranga City Council in its 2021/22 Annual
Plan. The budget figures have been prepared in accordance
with NZ GAAP and are consistent with the accounting
policies adopted by Bay Venues Limited for the preparation of
the financial statements.
1.21 CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
In preparing these financial statements, Bay Venues Limited
has made estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
These estimates and assumptions may differ from the
subsequent actual results. Estimates and assumptions are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations or future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
disclosed below:
Property revaluations
Note 14 provides information about the estimates and
assumptions exercised in the measurement of revalued land
and buildings, and equipment.

BAY VENUES LTD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
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1.22 EXPLANATION OF MAJOR VARIANCES AGAINST BUDGET

NOTE 5: CONSULTING & GOVERNANCE EXPENSES

Note 27 provides explanations of major variances against budget.

2022
($000’s)
Actual

NOTE 2: REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE AND NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
2022
($000’s)
Actual

2022
($000’s)
Budget

2021
($000’s)
Actual

Non‑Exchange
TCC Operational Grant

97

97

93

Consulting

637

249

279

Director Fees

206

243

260

TCC Shared Services

21

22

20

23

26

25

984

637

676

2022
($000’s)
Actual

2022
($000’s)
Budget

2021
($000’s)
Actual

2,385

3,472

2,461

991

1,013

977

2,916

2,887

Tax Advisory

452

452

1,285

Total Consulting Governance Expenses

TCC Renewal Funding

3,142

6,782

3,433

Aquatics

3,238

4,325

3,846

Indoor Facilities

1,344

1,565

560

-

-

120

201

239

208

324

-

197

38

-

1,046

11,995

16,279

13,582

Childcare
Memberships
Rehabilitation Expense Funding
COVID‑19 Wage Subsidy
Total non‑exchange
Exchange
Memberships

R
D

T
F
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NOTE 6: OPERATING EXPENSES

Cost of Goods Sold
Electricity
Insurance
Other*
Events Expenses
Marketing

R
D

1,860

2,166

2,094

7,572

10,324

10,068

2,449

2,797

1,939

11,881

15,287

14,101

23,876

31,566

27,683

2022
($000’s)
Actual

2022
($000’s)
Budget

2021
($000’s)
Actual

Rental

39

43

28

Plant and Equipment

Dividends

11

43

43

Motor Vehicles

-

-

-

Sponsorship

10

69

77

Total Other Revenue

60

155

148

Events and Catering

Other User Fees and Charges
Total Exchange

Total Exchange and Non‑Exchange

Total Operating Expenses

T
F
A

NOTE 7: DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Buildings and Improvements *
Intangibles

Office Furniture and Equipment

Total Depreciation & Amortisation Expense

Salaries and Wages

2022
($000’s)
Budget

2021
($000’s)
Actual

12,800

13,505

11,722

Defined Contribution Plan Employer Contributions (KiwiSaver)

261

-

289

Other Personnel Expense

369

477

318

Total Employee Expenses

13,430

13,982

12,329
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485

407

2,143

2,113

5

30

202

371

346

332

6,458

7,489

6,492

2022
($000’s)
Actual

2021
($000’s)
Actual

2,926

2,912

147

153

747

552

1,865

2,030

71

70

5,756

5,717

NOTE 8: ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2022
($000’s)
Actual

NOTE 4: EMPLOYEE EXPENSES
2022
($000’s)
Actual

490

2,216

*Other Operating Expenditure includes such items as: (i) Cleaning (ii) Rates (iii) Recoverable Expenses

NOTE 3: OTHER REVENUE

Interest Received

2021
($000’s)
Actual

Audit Fees

3,256

TCC Debt Serving Grant

2022
($000’s)
Budget

Operating Lease Costs

2021
($000’s)
Actual

95

124

Other Administrative Expenses

1,038

1,132

Total Administrative Expenses

1,133

1,256
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NOTE 11: INVENTORIES

NOTE 9: INCOME TAX EXPENSE / (BENEFIT)
Actual
2022
($000’s)

Actual
2021
($000’s)

A) Operational Surplus /(Deficit) before Taxation

(5,670)

(542)

Held for Distribution Inventories

Prima Facie Taxation at 28% (2021: 28%)

(1,588)

(152)

Chemicals at Cost

1,159

1,246

(2,042)

(2,219)

875

(911)

-

-

(1,595)

(2,036)

-

-

(1,595)

(2,036)

(1,595)

(2,036)

Nondeductible Expenditure
Non Taxable Income
Deferred Tax Adjustment
Recognition of Buildings Tax Base
Tax expense

Actual
2022
($000’s)

Actual
2021
($000’s)

13

10

Held for Commercial Inventories
Merchandise at Cost

130

172

Food & Beverages

225

219

Total inventory

368

401

Components of Tax Expense
Current Taxation
Deferred Taxation Expense/(Benefit)

B) Deferred Tax Asset (Liability)
Property,
Plant and
Equipment
($000’s)

R
D

Balance at 30 June 2020

(20,119)

Charged to Surplus or Deficit

1,335

Charged to Other Comprehensive Income

(680)

Balance at 30 June 2021

charged to surplus or deficit

Charged to Other Comprehensive Revenue
and Expense
Balance at 30 June 2022

(19,465)
(179)

T
F
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Employee
Entitlements
($000’s)

196

Other
Provisions
($000’s)

26

Tax Losses
($000’s)

9,865

Total
($000’s)

(10,032)

(1)

727

-

-

-

(680)

172

25

10,592

(8,675)

(6)

1,752

2,037

1,595

Trade Debtors
Accruals

Prepayments

R
D

Total Debtors & Other Receivables

Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions
Receivables from Exchange Transactions

T
F
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Total Debtors & Other Receivables

(1,806)

-

-

-

(1,806)

(21,450)

199

20

12,345

(8,886)

NOTE 10: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Actual
2022
($000’s)

Actual
2021
($000’s)

556

1,114

31

79

(17)

(25)

269

181

839

1,349

67

1,275

772

74

839

1,349

2022
Gross
($000’s)

Impairment
($000’s)

2022
Net
($000’s)

2021
Gross
($000’s)

Impairment
($000’s)

2021
Net
($000’s)

479

-

479

891

-

891

Aged Receivables: 31-60 days

67

(13)

54

207

(12)

196

Aged Receivables: 61-90 days

2

-

2

4

(3)

1

Past due > 90 days

7

(3)

4

13

(11)

2

556

(17)

539

1,114

(25)

1,089

Trade & Related Parties Debtors
Actual
2022
($000’s)

Actual
2021
($000’s)

Cash at Bank

713

377

Cash in Hand

20

22

733

399

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents

NOTE 12: DEBTORS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Provision for Doubtful Receivables

(24)

28

There is no write down of inventory during the year. No inventory is pledged as security for liabilities (2021 $nil).

The carrying value of cash at bank or till floats approximates their fair value. There is no restriction on their use.

Not Past Due

Total

FAIR VALUE
Debtors and other receivables are non interest bearing and receipt is normally 30 day term. Therefore, the carrying amount of
debtors and other receivables approximates to their fair value.
IMPAIRMENT
An impairment of $16,805 was provided for doubtful debt at 30 June 2022 (2021: $25,554 ).
No debtor is pledged as security for liabilities (2021: $nil)
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(147)

(1,543)

(1,543)

As at 30 June 2021

443

727
443
727

As at 30 June 2022

325
325

There are no restrictions over the title of intangible assets. No intangible assets are pledged as security for liabilities.
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(5,863)

-

(5,863)

(218)

(2,064)

126,347

1,062

125,286

501

2,315

17,108

104,387

178

7,722

4,802

2,920

66

1,261

1,414

(3)

(2,925)

(2,920)

(5)

-

(2)

R
D

(5,609)

-

(5,609)

(71)

(747)

(1,865)

(2,926)

-

Cost
Reval
($,000’s)

2,500
111,018
18,519
3,574
566
136,177

2,942
139,119

2022
Revaluation
($,000’s)

1,525
6,453
(1)
7,977

7,977

T
F
A
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975

Total

Work in Progress

Sub Total

131,446

1,234

130,212

473

2,750
Motor Vehicles

19,729
Office Furniture & Equipment

106,285
Plant & Equipment

Buildings & Improvment

Land

At cost & valuation

Bay Venues Limited
As at 30 June 2021

2020
Cost /
Valuation
($,000’s)

(5,852)

-

(5,852)

(148)

(1,512)

(4,192)

-

-

2020
Accum
Depn
($,000’s)

125,594

1,234

124,360

324

1,239

15,537

106,285

975

Opening
Book
Value
($,000’s)

8,335

4,081

4,254

287

1,636

1,318

1,014

-

2021
Asset
Additions
($,000’s)

(4,328)

(4,254)

(74)

(41)

(7)

(26)

-

-

2021
Asset
Disposals
($,000’s)

(5,564)

-

(5,564)

(70)

(552)

(2,030)

(2,912)

-

Current
Depn
($,000’s)

2,309

-

2,309

-

-

2,309

-

-

Revaluation
2021
($,000’s)

132,211

1,062

131,149

719

4,379

17,777

107,299

975

Cost
Reval
($,000’s)

Work in Progress: additional work is shown within the New Assets column and any capitalised assets are shown in Assets Disposed column.

132,210

(1,396)

(147)

Total

As at 1 July 2020

R
D
(1,396)

1,062

Carrying Amounts

1,396

Work in Progress

Balance as at 30 June 2022

153

(1,396)

131,149

Balance as at 1 July 2021

(1,243)

Subtotal

Amortisation Charge

T
F
A
(153)

719

Balance as at 30 June 2021

(1,243)

Motor Vehicles

Exchange Differences

4,379

Balance as at 1 July 2020
-

2,122

Office Furniture & Equipment

Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment
-

2,122

(669)

Work in Progress

(2,912)

-

17,777

-

107,299

-

Disposals

Plant & Equipment

2,122

-

Buildings & Improvements

2,122

Additions

-

Balance as at 1 July 2021

-

2,122

975

2,122

-

Balance as at 30 June 2021

975

(4)

255

Land

(4)

255

At cost & valuation

Balance as at 30 June 2022
(5,863)

-

(5,863)

(218)

(2,064)

(669)

(2,912)

-

2021
Accum
Depn
($,000’s)

(5,634)

-

(5,634)

(71)

(289)

(2,811)

(2,534)

-

2022
Accum
Depn
($,000’s)

126,347

1,062

125,285

500

2,315

17,108

104,387

975

2021
Closing
Book
Value
($,000’s)

133,485

2,942

130,542

495

2,826

16,632

108,092

2,500

2022
Closing
Book
Value
($,000’s)

185

Current
Depn
($,000’s)

Work in Progress
1,686

185

Bay Venues Limited
As at 30 June 2022

Disposals
1,686

2022
Asset
Disposals
($,000’s)

Additions

2022
Asset
Additions
($,000’s)

Balance as at 1 July 2020
Total
($,000’s)

Opening
Book
Value
($,000’s)

Cost
Computer
Software
($,000’s)

2021
Accum
Depn
($,000’s)

NOTE 13: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2021
Cost /
Valuation
($,000’s)

NOTE 14: PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES

for the Year Ended 30 June 2022
for the Year Ended 30 June 2022
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VALUATION

NOTE 15: OTHER INVESTMENTS – NON CURRENT PORTION

Land & Buildings
Land is valued at fair value using marketbased evidence based on its highest and best use with reference to comparable land
values. Adjustments have been made to the “unencumbered” land value where there is a designation against the land or use of
the land or the use of the land is restricted because of reserve or endowment status. These adjustments are intended to reflect
the negative effect on the value of the land where an owner is unable to use the land more intensively.
Specialised buildings are valued at fair value using Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) because no reliable market data is
available for such buildings.
Depreciated replacement cost is determined using a number of significant assumptions. Significant assumptions include:
• The replacement asset is based on the replacement with modern equivalent assets with adjustments where appropriate for
obsolescence due to overdesign or surplus capacity.
• The replacement cost is derived from recent construction contracts of similar assets and Property Institute of New Zealand
cost information.
• The remaining useful life of assets is estimated.

T
F
A

• Straightline depreciation has been applied in determining the depreciated replacement cost value of the asset.

Non specialised buildings (for example, residential buildings) are valued at fair value using market based evidence. Market rents
and capitalisation rates were appplied to reflect market value.
The building valuation was performed by a registered independent valuer, Mairi Macdonald of the firm Quotable Value Limited,
and the valuation is effective 30 June 2022.

R
D

Restrictions
Bay Venues Limited does not own any of the land that Building and Improvements are located on, except for a house at Miro
Street. All land is owned by Tauranga City Council, with some of this land being reserve land. As such there are restrictions on
both use and disposal of these Buildings and Improvements.
There is no restriction on the other classes of asset in the account and no amount of any property, plant and equipment was
pledged as security for liabilities.
Plant
The approach utilised is a “fair” or “equitable” value which is reflected as market value for the existing use. Market value being
defined as the estimated amount for which an asset should exchange on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a
willing seller in an arms length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently
and without complusion.
Generally values have been calculated utilising either a comparable sales approach or on a depreciated replacement cost basis,
whichever was more appropriate. Depreciated replacement cost is defined as the gross current replacement cost reduced by
factors providing for age, physical depreciation and technical and functional obsolescence taking into account the assets total
estimated useful life and anticipated residual value.
The age of each asset has been established utilising:

Actual
2022
($000’s)
Related Party Investments
Depreciation Investment

3,425

2,613

Total Other Investments – Non-Current Portion

3,425

2,613

Bay Venues Limited transfer funds to Tauranga City Council to be held in a depreciation reserve to fund future renewals capital
for Bay Venues Limited.
NOTE 16: EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENT LIABILITIES

Accrued Pay
Annual Leave
ACC Employer Contribution
Payroll Taxes

R
D

Total Employee Entitlements

NOTE 17: CREDITORS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Income in Advance

Trade & Other Payables

• Research;

Actual
2022
($000’s)

Actual
2021
($000’s)

169

190

711

613

T
F
A

Accrued Expenditure

70

91

107

269

1,057

1,163

Actual
2022
($000’s)

Actual
2021
($000’s)

625

605

493

384

4,810

1,984

17

21

Deposits & Bonds
Other Payables
GST Payable

Total Creditors & Other Payables

1

-

(3)

93

5,943

3,087

Payables from Non Exchange Transactions

1,816

1,041

Payables from Exchange Transactions

4,127

2,046

5,943

3,087

Total Creditors & Other Payables

• Data provided;

Actual
2021
($000’s)

• Onsite assessment;

Trade and other payables are non interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 day terms, therefore the carrying value of
trade and other payables approximates their value.

• Assessment based on the assets being combined with other fixtures.

There is a liability calculated by ASB Bank for our Credit Card Clearing account $14,255 (2021: $19,603).

The most recent plant valuation was undertaken by Forbes Valuation, on behalf of Quotable Value Limited during May 2021,
and the valuation is effective 30 June 2021.
WORK IN PROGRESS
The total amount of property, plant, and equipment in the course of construction is $2,942,543 (2021 $1,061,328).
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NOTE 18: BORROWINGS

NOTE 21: REVALUATION RESERVE
Actual
2022
($000’s)

Actual
2021
($000’s)

University of Waikato Adams Centre for High Performance

1,000

1,000

Net Revaluation Gains

Total Current Portion

1,000

1,000

Balance at 30 June

Loan from Tauranga City Council

20,537

18,273

Total Non-Current portion

20,537

18,273

Current Borrowings

Balance at 1 July

Non-Current Borrowings

T
F
A

TCC has agreed to guarantee the University of Waikato Adams Centre for high performance loan on the terms contained in the
agreement.
FINANCE COSTS
Tauranga City Council charge interest at 3%. (2021 : 3.5%)

R
D

NOTE 19: SHARE CAPITAL

Fully Paid Ordinary Shares

Balance at Beginning of Financial Year
Reclassification of Capital

Closing Balance of Ordinary Shares Issued

1,629
38,134

Actual
2022
($000’s)

Actual
2021
($000’s)

Naming Rights

733

533

Total reserves

733

533

R
D

Bay Venues Limited has no contingent liabilities at 30 June 2022 (2021: nil).
Bay Venues Limited has no contingent assets at 30 June 2022 (2021: nil).

Bay Venues Limited has no contingent rent recognised during the year. (2021: nil).

Actual
2022
($000’s)

Actual
2021
($000’s)

84,232

84,232

-

-

84,232

84,232

NOTE 24: RECONCILIATION OF NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX TO NET CASHFLOW FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Actual
2022
($000’s)

Actual
2021
($000’s)

(4,075)

1,494

3,953

5,734

552

(685)

34

(56)

Movement in Employee Entitlements

(105)

(266)

Movement in Trade and Other Payables

2,952

(283)

(97)

(13)

210

(2,036)

3,424

3,889

Net Surplus / (Deficit) from Statement of Comprehensive Income

• No ready market for these shares so recognised at cost.

Depreciation/Amortisation + Loss on Disposal + Reval Gain

• Shares have no par value.

Add/(Deduct) Movements in Working Capital

• Bay Venues Limited also holds $18,000,000 uncalled shares of $1 per share.

Movement in Trade and Other Receivables

• 84,232,000 ordinary shares at $1 per share are fully paid out and carry the right to dividends per share.

Movement in Inventories

NOTE 20: RETAINED EARNINGS
Actual
2022
($000’s)

Actual
2021
($000’s)

Accumulated Funds

Balance 30 June 2022
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The Naming Rights reflects the Trustpower naming rights arrangement for Trustpower Baypark.

Add/(Deduct) Non Cash Items

Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

36,505

44,966

• Fully paid ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry the right to dividends.

Transfer to Trustpower Reserve

38,134
6,832

NOTE 23: CONTINGENCIES

University of Waikato charge interest to the value of 55% of the total rental fee for the High Performance Centre.

Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year

Actual
2021
($000’s)

NOTE 22: OTHER RESERVES

SECURITY
Tauranga City Council (TCC) loan is unsecured.

Balance at 1 July

Actual
2022
($000’s)

Movement in GST Payable
Movement in Deferred Tax Asset
Net cash inflow/(Outflow) from operating activities

(23,943)

(24,555)

(4,075)

1,494

(200)

(200)

-

-

(28,218)

(23,261)
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NOTE 25: CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND OPERATING LEASES CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments represent capital expenditure contracted for at balance date but not yet incurred.
Actual
2022
($000’s)
Elevated Work Platform

Actual
2021
($000’s)

58

-

Catering Combi Oven

-

39

Healthy School Lunches Plumbing & Drainage

-

10

58

49

Total capital commitments

NOTE 26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related party disclosures have not been made for transactions with related parties that are within a normal supplier or client/
recipient relationship on terms and condition no more or less favourable than those that it is reasonable to expect the
Company would have adopted in dealing with the party at arm’s length in the same circumstances.
Related party disclosures have also not been made for transactions with Council (such as funding), where the transactions
are consistent with the normal operating relationships between the entities and are on normal terms and conditions for such
transactions.
Actual
2022
($000’s)

Actual
2021
($000’s)

1,095

1,070

203

256

Transactions with Key Management Personnel
Salaries and other Short Term Employee Benefits

OPERATING LEASES AS LESSEE

Directors Fees and Travel

The Company leases equipment in the normal course of its business for a range of terms from 1 – 60 months. The future
aggregate minimum lease payments payable under non cancellable operating leases are as follows:

T
F
A
Actual
2022
($000’s)

R
D

Not Later than One Year

Later than One Year and Not Later than Five Years
Later than Five Years

Total Non Cancellable Operating Leases

OPERATING LEASES AS LESSOR

Total Full Time Equivalent Personnel
Actual
2021
($000’s)

72

74

146

214

-

-

218

288

Later Than One Year and Not Later Than Five Years
Later Than Five Years
Total Non Cancellable Operating Leases

1,326

8

7

Key management personnel include the Board of Directors, Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Commercial Manager,
Venues & Programmes Manager and Human Resources Manager, Strategic Marketing and Communications Manager.
Directors fees and travel excludes meeting costs such as catering. Due to the difficulty in determining the full time equivalent
for all Directors, the full time equivalent is taken as one.

R
D

NOTE 27: EXPLANATIONS OF MAJOR VARIANCES AGAINST BUDGET
Explanations for major variations from the Company’s budget figures in the 2021-22 Financial Statements are as follows:
Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense

User Revenue was $4.7m below budget due to Covid related restrictions impacting Events & Catering, Healthy School Lunches,
Clubfit and Aquatics.
TCC Renewal Funding was $3.6m below budget mainly due to the Greerton Renewals project completion being delayed until
FY23.

The Company provides leased office spaces in the normal course of its business. Signed lease agreements are in place for
periods from 12 to 180 months.

Not Later Than One Year

T
F
A
1,298

Operational Expenses were $1.0m lower than budget, and Employee Expenses were $0.6m lower than budget, as expenses
were minimised where possible throughout the year.

Actual
2022
($000’s)

Actual
2021
($000’s)

497

461

1,239

925

460

581

2,196

1,966

NOTE 28: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial Instrument Categories

Actual
2022
($000’s)

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Loans & Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents

No contingent rents have been recognised during the year (2021: nil).

Actual
2021
($000’s)

Debtors and Other Receivables
Total Financial Assets

733

399

43

1,090

776

1,489

510

404

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
Creditors and Other Payables
Borrowings – UoW Adams Centre Loan
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1,000

1,000

Borrowings – TCC Loan

20,537

18,273

Total Financial Liabilities

22,047

19,677
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Financial Instrument Risks
Bay Venues Limited complies with Tauranga City Councils policies to manage the risks associated with financial instruments.
Bay Venues Limited is risk averse and seeks to minimize exposure from its financial instruments. Bay Venues Limited complies
with Tauranga City Councilís established Council approved Liability Management and Investment policies. These policies do
not allow any transactions that are speculative in nature to be entered into.

Actual
2022
($000’s)
Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Debtors and Other Receivables

(a) Market Risk
Fair value interest rate risk

Total Financial Assets

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest
rates. All current borrowings are from Tauranga City Council. The interest rates are fixed annually on 1 July each year.

Creditors and Other Payables

Cash flow interest rate risk
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Bay Venues Limited only borrows, or invests, with Tauranga City Council.
Currency risk

T
F
A

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates.

1,090

776

1,489

404
1,000

Brrowings – TCC Loan

20,537

18,273

Total Financial Liabilities

22,047

19,677

T
F
A

NOTE 29. EMPLOYEES RENUMERATION EXCEEDING $100,000

Actual
Number of Employees

It is Bay Venues Limitedís policy to manage foreign currency risks arising from contractual commitments and liabilities that are
above $20,000 by entering into forward foreign exchange contracts to manage the foreign currency risk. This means that Bay
Venues Limited is able to fix the New Zealand dollar amount payable for the delivery of these events.
(b) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligations to Bay Venues Limited, causing the company to incur a loss.
In the normal course of business, Bay Venues Limited incurs credit risk from accounts receivables only.

$140,001 - $150,000

The carrying value of financial instruments in the Statement of Financial Position reflects their credit risk exposure. The
exposures are net of any recognised provisions for losses on these financial instruments. No collateral is held.

$170,001 - $180,000

(c) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that Bay Venues Limited will encounter difficulty raising liquid funds to meet commitments as they fall
due. Prudent liquidity management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an adequate amount
of committed credit facilities, in Bay Venues Limited case, via funding through Tauranga City Council. Bay Venues Limited
mostly manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cashflow requirements.

399

43
510

$110,001 - $120,000

R
D

733

1,000

Brrowings – UoW Adams Centre Loan

Bay Venues Limited purchases events from overseas event promotors, which require it to enter into transactions dominated in
foreign currencies. As a result of these activies, exposure to currency risk arises.

Bay Venues Limited complies with Councils Treasury Policy which permits a minimum credit rating of A for registered banks
and other organisations. At 30 June 2022 all financial instruments were held with the New Zealand registered trading banks
which are rated AA

Actual
2021
($000’s)

R
D

$120,001 - $130,000

$130,001 - $140,000

$150,001 - $160,000
$160,001 $170,000

$180,001 - $190,000

$190,001 - $200,000

2022

2021

5

2

1

2

3

-

1

-

1

2

-

1

1

-

-

-

1

-

$200,001 - $210,000

-

1

$260,001 - $270,000

1

-

$360,001 - $370,000
Total Employees

-

1

14

9

Remuneration includes paid and payable at 30 June 2022.
NOTE 30: EVENTS OCCURING AFTER BALANCE DATE
There were no significant events after the balance date.
NOTE 31: COVID-19 IMPACT DISCLOSURE
During August 2021 all of New Zealand moved into Alert Level 4. In September Auckland moved to Alert Level 3, while the rest
of the country moved to Alert Level 2. In December the country moved to the Traffic Light system. Bay of Plenty was under Red
Traffic light settings from January 2022 to April 2022, which required capacity limits on venues resulting in lowered patronage
at community facilities such as the swimming pools, gyms, and use of community halls, and Trustpower Arena. Limits on
gatherings were enforced, meaning medium to large events were not possible under the Red setting.
In April 2022 the Bay of Plenty dropped to the Orange Traffic light setting allowing business to return to normal for the
remainder of the financial year.
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STATUTORY DISCLOSURES
NATURE OF BUSINESS

Activity

Target

Health and Safety

Declining trend in facility related
incidents measured from previous
year.

FY22 saw a 19% decrease in facility related
incidents on the prior year.

Asset Management
Performance

Rated on zero major service
disruptions under 4 hours due to
asset maintenance or operational
deficiencies.

We had one significant service disruption in
FY22, resulting in Greerton Aquatics Centre
being closed for longer than 4 hours.

There have been no changes to the nature of the business of the company.
CHIEF EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION
Total Remuneration Paid or Payable

2022

2021

$260,001 – $270,000

1

-

$360,001 – $370,000 *

-

1

*Includes one off payment and accrued annual leave

Status

Overall survey average for FY22 was 69.0%,
up from 63% prior year.

Directors during the year and directors fees paid and accrued were as follows:
Appointed
Date

Director

Resigned
Date

Nick Lowe

01/07/17

N/A

Gareth Wallis

10/05/21

N/A

Simon Clarke (Chair)

01/07/21

N/A

Julie Hardaker (Deputy Chair)
Adam Lynch
Jeremy Curragh

01/07/21

N/A

R
D
01/07/21

N/A

01/07/21

N/A

Director
Fees 2022

Travel and
Accommodation
2022

Director
Fees 2021

Travel and
Accommodation
2021

33,000

-

32,420

-

-

-

66,000

-

-

T
F
A
-

-

33,000

-

-

30,250

-

-

There were no Director Remuneration benefits paid in excess of $100,000.
DONATIONS

There were no donations made by the company during the period.
INTEREST REGISTER

Staff Engagement

Improve staff survey results over
previous year as measured by average
variance percentage across all key
teams surveyed.

Customer Satisfaction

85% of respondents in customer
survey/s are satisfied or higher with
the overall customer experience
received.

1,598 survey responses received. 1,445 rated
their overall experience as Satisfied or Very
Satisfied, equating to 90% of respondents.

Community Outputs

Provide 13 points of evidence
required by TCC as per SOI
Schedule 3.

Schedule provided to TCC separately.

Financial Sustainability

Achieve budgeted EBITDA.
Non-funded network achieves
positive result at NPBT (net profit
before tax) level to help subsidise the
funded network.

FY22 EBITDA result -$2.9M, significantly below
budget due to Covid related restrictions on
business throughout the year. The non-funded
network did not achieve a positive result.

Strategic Plan
Implementation Plan

85% of FY22 actions from strategic
implementation plan (listed in
section 4 as key areas of focus for the
2021/2022 year) are completed.

Achieved 14 out of 16 (88%) actions from
the FY22 strategic implementation plan.

-

41,250

There have been no disclosures of self interest during the year.

Commentary

R
D

We moved to a new survey platform in 2021,
‘AskYourTeam’. This meant the categories and
questions asked were quite different, hence
making it difficult to directly compare results
vs 2020.

T
F
A
Traffic Light Status Key
On track and remaining so
Off track and needing further monitoring
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FINANCIAL

21/22 Actual
($,000’s)

21/22 Budget
($,000’s)

20/21 Actual
($,000’s)

20,282

24,332

22,964

2,385

3,472

2,461

Gross Profit

17,898

20,861

20,503

Less Operating Expenditure

20,789

20,860

19,359

EBITDA Surplus

(2,891)

1

1,144

Revenue
Less Cost of Goods Sold

T
F
A

Notes:
• Includes TCC Operational Grant, excludes TCC funding for depreciation, debt servicing and renewals.
• Excludes expenditure related to depreciation and debt servicing.

• Revenue includes user fees and charges, other sundry revenue earnt and COVID-19 wage subsidy & Leave Support
Scheme.
• Operating expenditure includes costs relating to employees, administration, marketing, governance, normal business
operations and repairs and maintenance.

R
D

• Details on the results and variances to budget are reported within the Annual Financial Statements and notes.
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BOPLASS Chair’s Report
In 2021/22, BOPLASS has continued to focus on joint procurement opportunities with specific
attention given to benefits that can be derived through inter-regional collaboration. Several new
opportunities were identified by collaborative groups working across BOPLASS, Waikato and
Manawatū-Whanganui regions in order to help deliver services as efficiently and cost-effectively as
possible.
Inter-regional opportunities have increased as a result of the shared coordination between the LASSes.
The board recognises the different strategic strengths and directions of each LASS and, at this stage,
BOPLASS is able to assist other LASS with joint procurement. This ultimately provides benefits to all
participating councils, including BOPLASS, through better outcomes being achieved by aggregating
volumes.
BOPLASS has also worked closely with the other LASS to determine opportunities for BOPLASS councils
to utilise services developed, or being developed by other LASS, with both Co-Lab (Waikato LASS) and
MW LASS having services that can be offered to the other LASS councils on a commercial basis.
BOPLASS has continued to ensure that appointed vendors remain competitive and return best value
to our shareholders. Through managing tenders for several of the larger contracts and negotiating
supplier terms and conditions, substantial cost savings have been achieved, along with improved
service delivery. Some of the procurement highlights this year have been:








Mail services
Courier services
RATs purchasing
Staff wellbeing platform
Infrastructure insurance
Cyber insurance
Aerial imagery

The newly appointed supplier for postal services will result in substantial savings and improved service
delivery across BOPLASS, Co-Lab, MW LASS, and Hawke’s Bay councils. The contract also provides
significant sustainability and efficiency benefits. This has been a great example of good outcomes and
efficiencies achieved through collaboration across multiple regions, as opposed to individual councils
endeavouring to manage separate processes.
In conjunction with the postal services tender a separate procurement process was managed for
courier services across the three regions. Following extensive analysis, the BOPLASS recommendation
for councils to participate in the ACC syndicated courier agreement will result in all councils achieving
heavily discounted rates that could never be achieved by councils on an individual basis. Once again,
councils across multiple regions will achieve savings through the interLASS collaborative approach.
There has been a high level of collaborative activity across councils within health and wellbeing over
the last year, with BOPLASS supporting a number of collective projects. An almost unexpected
highlight was a joint procurement project run by BOPLASS to secure collective purchasing of Rapid
Antigen Tests (RATs) on behalf of BOPLASS, Co-Lab and MW LASS councils. The volume of the collective
order resulted in heavily reduced pricing, discounted shipping, and priority service.
The BOPLASS Health & Safety group also successfully established a preferred supplier agreement for
a collective staff wellbeing portal, which has a strong focus on helping to support staff and their
families during and after the tumultuous covid disruptions faced by many people. This project also
covered the Co-Lab and MW LASS councils with all participating councils across the three regions
eligible for the discounted pricing.
BOPLASS Limited
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Although international insurance markets have had restricted capacity, the strength of BOPLASS’
relationships with London underwriters and Lloyds syndicates, and the ongoing work in obtaining
accurate and quality information from councils, again resulted in the collective insurance programme
achieving very competitive rates and continuing to maintain good cover for all councils.
BOPLASS added particular value to the renewal of councils’ cyber insurance policies this year with local
government being classed as a high-risk client and insurers initially declining cover for some of our
councils. BOPLASS was able engage with councils to provide further information to the underwriters
and, through leveraging the strength of the greater group, coverage was reinstated for all BOPLASS
councils.
Good work has continued with the collective aerial imagery programme this year with aerial imagery
captured across the eastern BOP, Tauranga and Gisborne regions. Three tenders were undertaken
over this period with two separate providers appointed.
There has been a change around the governance table in 2021/22, with John Holyoake from Western
BOP District Council being welcomed to the Board and Miriam Taris retiring as Western BOP District
Council Chief Executive and BOPLASS director. On behalf of the Board, we wish to acknowledge the
significant contribution Miriam Taris made to the company during her tenure and thank her for the
assistance and support she provided to BOPLASS.
BOPLASS has continued to deliver considerable value to the shareholding councils for a modest
investment. We would like to thank the various individuals within all of the councils who have
supported and assisted with the progress of the company to date.

Craig O’Connell
Chair
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Company Directory

Nature of Business

Shared Service Provider

Registered Office

91 Willow Street, Tauranga 3110

Telephone:

+64 7 577 7342

Email:

contact@boplass.govt.nz

Website:

https://www.boplass.govt.nz

Incorporation Number

2074873

Incorporation Date

14 January 2008

IRD Number

98-965-361

Directors

Miles McConway
Craig O’Connell
Fiona McTavish
Gareth Green
Geoff Williams
Martin Grenfell
John Holyoake
Nedine Thatcher-Swann
Russell George
Stephanie O’Sullivan

Shareholders

Bay of Plenty Regional Council
Gisborne District Council
Kawerau District Council
Opotiki District Council
Rotorua Lakes Council
Taupo District Council
Tauranga City Council
Western Bay of Plenty District Council
Whakatane District Council

Auditor

Audit New Zealand

Bankers

ANZ Bank

Solicitors

Cooney Lees and Morgan
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Statement of Intent and Performance
The company has complied with section 64 of the Local Government Act 2002 (LGA) and has had the
Statement of Intent for 2022-2025 and associated budget formally adopted by the directors by
resolution on 29 June 2022.
Performance Targets 2022-2025
To ensure the company continues to operate effectively in both governance and management terms
over the next three years the targets are to:
Targets 2022-2025

How

Measure

Ensure supplier agreements are
proactively managed to maximise
benefits for BOPLASS councils.

Manage and/or renegotiate
existing contracts.

Contracts are reviewed annually to
test for market competitiveness.
New suppliers are awarded
contracts through a competitive
procurement process involving two
or more vendors where applicable.

Investigate new Joint Procurement
initiatives for goods and services
for BOPLASS councils.

Procure from sources offering
best value, service, continuity
of supply and/or continued
opportunities for integration.

A minimum of four new
procurement initiatives
investigated. Initiatives provide
financial savings of greater than 5%
and/or improved service levels to
the participating councils.

Identify opportunities to
collaborate with other LASS in
Procurement or Shared Service
projects where alliance provides
benefits to all parties.

BOPLASS to regularly engage
with other LASS to identify
and explore opportunities for
further inter-regional
collaboration.

Quarterly reporting on engagement
and a minimum of one new
collaborative initiative undertaken
annually.

Further develop and extend the
Collaboration Portal for access to,
and sharing of, project information
and opportunities from other
councils and the greater Local
Government community to
increase breadth of BOPLASS
collaboration.

Increase usage of the
Collaboration Portal by
providing support and training
material for new and existing
users.
Proactively market the
benefits to councils.

Number of listed projects to
increase by 5% per year.
Number of active users to increase
by 5% per year.

Communicate with each
shareholding council at
appropriate levels.

Meeting with members of
Executive Leadership Team.

At least one meeting per year.

Ensure current funding model is
appropriate.

Review BOPLASS expenditure
and income and review
council contributions and
other sources of funding.

Performance against budgets
reviewed quarterly. Company
remains financially viable.

BOPLASS Limited
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Statement of Intent and Performance continued
The following is a report of performance against targets set in the Statement of Intent for 2021/24.
Target 2021/22

Result

Ensure supplier agreements are
proactively managed to maximise
benefits for BOPLASS councils.
Manage and/or renegotiate existing
contracts.
Contracts are reviewed annually to
test for market competitiveness.
New suppliers are awarded
contracts through a competitive
procurement process involving two
or more vendors where applicable.

Achieved

Narration
Contracts negotiated and/or renewed for:
Zoom Video Conferencing Services – Renewed group
enterprise agreement. Zoom video conference
services continue to provide BOPLASS councils with
centralised account management and shared
infrastructure.
Enterprise contract renegotiated and renewed. No
alternative providers.
GIS software and services –
FME
Geocortex Essentials & Geocortex Analytics
X-Tools
NZ Archaeological Association
RetroLens
Contracts renegotiated and renewed – no alternative
suppliers
Print Media Copyright Agency (PMCA) – a collective
contract providing savings for all BOPLASS councils has
been renewed with PMCA for councils’ print and
media copyright services.
Sole NZ provider of print and media copyright services.
Health & Safety Management Software – BOPLASS
manages a collective agreement for H&SMS across
BOPLASS and Waikato councils. A change of
ownership with the incumbent supplier saw a decline
in service levels and BOPLASS engaged with the
supplier to address the service shortfalls or seek an
alternative supplier. Given the number of councils
under the collective agreement, improvements were
quickly undertaken by the vendor and improved
service levels established. Project still ongoing.
Media Monitoring Services – BOPLASS continues to
manage a collective media monitoring service with
Isentia that provides automatic monitoring and
reporting of broadcast, print and social media based
upon council requirements. The single BOPLASS portal
provides substantial savings to councils while also
providing a significant reduction in internal resource
requirements.
Service to be put to tender in 2022-23.

BOPLASS Limited
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ESRI Enterprise Licensing Agreement – Core GIS
software used in all BOPLASS councils. BOPLASS
Enterprise Agreement renewed at no increase in cost
to councils.
No alternative provider in NZ.
n3 (previously known as GSB) – Purchasing group
membership negotiated by BOPLASS. Councils
achieving significant savings on membership costs and
trade pricing through the group scheme. Agreement
renewed for another year at same rates.
Sole NZ provider.
Health and Safety Training provider – BOPLASS
renewed the collective agreement with Vertical
Horizonz for H&S training across the BOPLASS
councils. The agreement provides tailored training and
discounted rates. (WLASS have aligned their contract
dates with BOPLASS, providing for opportunities to
procure collectively at the end of the new contract
term.)
Standards NZ – BOPLASS has renewed the agreement
with Standards NZ for discounted access to the full
Standards catalogue at significantly reduced pricing
for all BOPLASS councils.
No alternative provider in NZ.
Inter-Council Network (ICN) – Review, redesign and
renegotiation of suppliers and services – the ICN is a
shared service high-capacity fibre network connecting
the majority of BOPLASS councils. A review of ICN
contracts was undertaken to deliver further cost
reductions, along with the addition of new links for
councils. Kordia were appointed to replace Vocus. The
resultant contract will provide an improvement in
service levels and financial savings for all participating
councils. Migration of services to Kordia has been
initiated.
MFDs (Photocopier/printers) – Due to the variable
print volumes through Covid lockdowns and the
subsequent high level of working from home,
BOPLASS negotiated with our incumbent provider to
extend the current agreement for a further 16
months. The Variation Agreement included benefits
such as retaining existing equipment, providing
flexibility through the pandemic disruption, and
further discounts to print rates.
A full tender will be undertaken in 2022 when councils
should have an improved understanding of volumes
and requirements.

BOPLASS Limited
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IPWEA Membership - The Institute of Public Works
Engineering Australasia (IPWEA) agreement was
renewed in 2021 to provide a single BOPLASS portal to
allow all constituent councils to access the full IPWEA
online catalogue at heavily reduced pricing. The
standards are used by all councils for a variety of
engineering purposes. The collective agreement
provides for unrestricted access for all councils at a
significantly lower cost than under individual
arrangements.
No alternative provider in NZ.
Investigate new Joint Procurement
initiatives for goods and services for
BOPLASS councils.
Procure from sources offering best
value, service, continuity of supply
and/or continued opportunities for
integration.
A minimum of four new
procurement initiatives
investigated. Initiatives provide
financial savings of greater than 5%
and/or improved service levels to
the participating councils.

Achieved

The new procurement initiatives which have been
investigated during the year are as follows:
Postal Services – Joint procurement for councils’ mail
services resulted in DX Mail being appointed as
preferred supplier. The BOPLASS-led process covered
BOPLASS, Co-Lab, MW LASS and Hawke’s Bay councils.
Savings for all councils will be substantial, particularly
for councils with high volumes of urban mail. The
contract also provides sustainability and efficiency
benefits for councils.
Courier Services – In conjunction with the Postal
services tender a process was managed to identify
opportunities for savings with courier services across
the BOPLASS, Co-Lab and MW LASS councils. BOPLASS
engaged with DIA and ACC to facilitate access to the
ACC syndicated contract for courier services. This
provides a substantial saving for all councils over their
incumbent providers and the alignment with the mail
provider offers efficiencies within council mailrooms.
Infrastructure Insurance – Given the current restricted
capacity in the international insurance markets,
councils’ insurance is only provided on a 12-month
term and all placements need to be procured
annually. This involves identifying and negotiating
with alternative markets every year and often
undertaking placements through different insurers.
Negotiations for councils’ infrastructure insurance
were undertaken in late 2021 through direct
engagement with London underwriters and Lloyds
syndicates. Very good outcomes were achieved for all
councils – both in insurance rates and the cover
achieved. Insurance markets remain cautious about
the risk they are prepared to write but have
confidence in the BOPLASS programme due to the
quality of information provided and our historical
relationship.

BOPLASS Limited
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My Everyday Wellbeing – Staff online wellbeing
platform used extensively across local government.
Negotiated for BOPLASS councils to be treated as a
single entity. Added Co-Lab and MW LASS councils
into same enterprise membership. Negotiated 12month subscription providing savings to the collective
group.
Rapid Antigen Tests (RATs) – BOPLASS engaged with
other LASS and CCOs to aggregate volumes to
leverage improved pricing. Several RATs orders were
placed on behalf of BOPLASS, Co-Lab, MW LASS and
council CCOs. The volume of the collective order
resulted in heavily discounted pricing and priority
service.
GIS Training – BOPLASS coordinated specialised GIS
ArcPro training across the BOPLASS councils, providing
substantial savings through the collective training and
also helping to bring all councils up to similar skill
levels.
High-Volume Print – The benefits of councils
collaborating in high-volume print services are being
investigated. Councils currently use a variety of
solutions ranging from in-house commercial print
equipment/print rooms to outsourced models.
Investigation still under action.
Cyber Insurance – The renewal of councils’ cyber
insurance policies was facilitated by BOPLASS through
a collective programme. Insurers have become much
more selective in their placements and local
government are viewed as a high-risk client. BOPLASS
were able to bring Berkshire Hathaway Specialty
Insurance onto the programme who thoroughly
analysed councils’ IT systems and security. Despite an
initial rejection of cover for some councils, BOPLASS
was able to provide further information to the
insurers, resulting in the collective approach being
reinstated and all councils able to secure cover at a
reduced cost.
Cyber cover is an annual agreement that requires
going to market every year.
Aerial Imagery – As part of the BOPLASS regional
imagery programme, three tenders were run for
orthophotography services this year. Separate contracts
were awarded to AAM NZ for the eastern BOP region
and TCC interim flying programmes. The flying and
imagery for TCC included specific requirements for the
capture of high growth areas. A separate procurement
process was undertaken for Gisborne District Council
with the contract awarded to Aerial Surveys.
BOPLASS Limited
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Achieved

BOPLASS has led several interLASS projects this year
or worked together with other LASS to develop interregional benefits:














BOPLASS to regularly engage with
other LASS to identify and explore
opportunities for further interregional collaboration.
Quarterly reporting on engagement
and a minimum of one new
collaborative initiative undertaken
annually.

Waste Operator Licencing Data System
Courier Services
Mail Services
H&S Management System
H&S training providers
Occupational Health Services
Rapid Antigen Tests purchasing
Staff Wellbeing Portal
Regional Contractor Database
Risk Management Practices
Collaborative Policy Development
Insurance Renewals Standardisation
Debt Recovery Services

BOPLASS continues to work closely with MW LASS and
Co-Lab with the LASS leads aiming to meet on a
quarterly basis. Several joint procurement projects have
been completed and further opportunities identified.
Projects being undertaken by other LASS are offered to
BOPLASS councils on a commercial basis.
Further develop and extend the
Collaboration Portal for access to,
and sharing of, project information
and opportunities from other
councils and the greater Local
Government community to
increase breadth of BOPLASS
collaboration.

Achieved

Continued promotion of the MahiTahi Collaboration
Portal has seen a 10.5% increase in registered users
with numbers increasing from 388 to 429.
On-boarding and training material has been helpful in
creating a smooth transition for any new members.

Increase usage of the Collaboration
Portal by providing support and
training material for new and
existing users.

Working with the DIA, the MahiTahi Collaboration
Portal now includes secure areas to support Local
Transition Groups working collectively on the Three
Waters project.

Proactively market the benefits to
councils.

Regional Software Holdings Limited are migrating the
regional sector Special Interest Groups to be hosted in
a similar collaborative environment as the MahiTahi
Collaboration Portal. Technical aspects of the
migration are being supported by BOPLASS.

Number of listed projects to
increase by 5% per year.
Number of active users to increase
by 10% per year.
Communicate with each
shareholding council at appropriate
levels.
Meeting with each Executive
Leadership Team.
At least one meeting per year.

BOPLASS Limited
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Projects continue to be added to the MahiTahi
Collaboration Portal, increasing from 53 to 88 this year.

Not
achieved

BOPLASS continues to regularly engage with our
constituent councils, senior management and
shareholders to ensure opportunities continue to be
developed to the benefit of all stakeholders.
Formal meetings with all council executive teams were
unable to be completed this year. Staff absences, travel
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restrictions and increased workloads meant not all
councils could be covered.
See Covid Disclosure p. 47.
Ensure current funding model is
appropriate.
Review BOPLASS expenditure and
income and review council
contributions and other sources of
funding.
Performance against budgets
reviewed quarterly. Company
remains financially viable.

Achieved

The sources of BOPLASS funding and the viability of the
funding model are regularly reviewed with financial
reporting provided to the BOPLASS Board.
Council contributions levied.
Contributions received from activities producing
savings.
Vendor rebates collected.
Monthly and quarterly performance reviewed.
Financial statements reported and reviewed at Board
meetings.
Financial position year end 30 June 2022: $6,244
surplus.

MahiTahi Local Government
Collaboration Portal

A portal for registration of council
projects, collaboration opportunities
and identification of potential project
partners. Also includes collaboration
areas for staff to engage with their
peers within other councils.

BOPLASS Limited
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Statement of Intent and Performance continued
The following is a report of performance against targets set in the Statement of Intent for 2020/21
and is provided for comparative purposes.
Target 2020/21

Result

Ensure supplier agreements are
proactively managed to maximise
benefits for BOPLASS councils.
Manage and/or renegotiate existing
contracts.
Contracts are reviewed annually to
test for market competitiveness.
New suppliers are awarded
contracts through a competitive
procurement process involving two
or more vendors where applicable.

Achieved

Narration
Contracts negotiated and/or renewed for:
Video Conferencing Services – Canon video
conferencing infrastructure was moved from a Canon
managed service to a BOPLASS hosted service. This
provided further cost savings to councils and
acknowledged the global move from vendor hosted
video conferencing solutions to cloud-based
technologies, e.g. Zoom, Teams.
ESRI Enterprise Licensing Agreement – Core GIS
software used in all BOPLASS councils. BOPLASS
Enterprise Agreement renewed. No increases in cost
to councils.
No alternative provider in NZ.
GIS software and services –
FME
Geocortex Essentials & Geocortex Analytics
X-Tools
NZ Archaeological Association
RetroLens
Contracts renegotiated and renewed – no alternative
suppliers
Health and Safety Training provider – BOPLASS has
renewed the collective agreement with Vertical
Horizonz for H&S training across the BOPLASS
councils. The agreement provides tailored training
and discounted rates. (WLASS have aligned their
contract dates with BOPLASS, providing for
opportunities to procure collectively at the end of the
new contract term.)
Print Media Copyright Agency (PMCA) – a collective
contract providing savings for all BOPLASS councils
has been renewed with PMCA for councils’ print and
media copyright services.
Sole NZ provider of print and media copyright
services.
Treasury Staff Briefings – BOPLASS coordinated
presentations and workshops with senior NZ
economists to better inform councils on the financial
outlooks for local communities and the national
economy. The workshops are provided at no cost to
BOPLASS councils and have proven to be particularly

BOPLASS Limited
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valuable given the current international and local
economic challenges.
Aerial Imagery – As part of the BOPLASS regional
imagery programme a contract for orthophotography
was awarded to AAM NZ Ltd on behalf of TCC and
WBOPDC. The flying and imagery included specific
requirements to capture high growth areas.
N3 (previously known as GSB) – Purchasing group
membership negotiated by BOPLASS. Councils
achieving significant savings on membership costs
and trade pricing through the group scheme.
Agreement renewed for another year at same rates.
Sole NZ provider.
Media Monitoring Services – BOPLASS continues to
manage a collective media monitoring service with
Isentia that automatically monitors and reports on
broadcast, print and social media based upon council
requirements. The single BOPLASS portal provides
substantial savings to councils while also providing a
significant reduction in internal resource
requirements. Council agreement to renew for
another year. Same rates negotiated.
Service to be put to open tender in 2022.
Zoom Services – Renewed group enterprise
agreement. Zoom video conference services continue
to provide BOPLASS councils with centralised account
management and shared infrastructure.
Enterprise contract renegotiated and renewed. No
alternative providers.
Standards NZ – BOPLASS has renewed the agreement
with Standards NZ for discounted access to the full
Standards catalogue at significantly reduced pricing
for all BOPLASS councils.
No alternative provider in NZ.
Investigate new Joint Procurement
initiatives for goods and services for
BOPLASS councils.
Procure from sources offering best
value, service, continuity of supply
and/or continued opportunities for
integration.
A minimum of four new
procurement initiatives investigated.
Initiatives provide financial savings
of greater than 5% and/or improved
service levels to the participating
councils.

BOPLASS Limited
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Achieved

The new procurement initiatives which have been
investigated during the year are as follows:
Waste Operator Licencing and Data System – An ROI
was undertaken by BOPLASS on behalf of all the
BOPLASS and Waikato councils for a data
management system and administration services to
support the development of a region-wide waste
operator licencing and data service. The collective
approach to the ROI provided savings to all councils
and garnered significant attention from suitable
vendors due to the size of the aggregated
opportunity.
The ROI process will be followed by a closed RFP.
Skin Scans / Mole Mapping – BOPLASS explored
opportunities for a collective contract to enable
councils to offer a subsidised rate to their staff for
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mole mapping. A provider has not yet been
appointed as the project has expanded to investigate
health insurance options across the BOPLASS group
of councils.
Infrastructure Insurance – Councils infrastructure
insurance was placed into the London markets in late
2020 through direct engagement with the London
underwriters and Lloyds syndicates. Exceptional
outcomes were achieved for all councils – both in
insurance rates and the cover achieved. Due to a
continued unprecedented level of international
natural disaster claims, insurance markets have
become extremely cautious about the risk they are
prepared to write. The high standard of the
information being provided by BOPLASS councils and
our historical relationships with the international
markets have proven to be a strength for us at
renewal time.
Securing councils’ insurance cover requires a new
procurement process to be undertaken every 12months and includes investigating, or engaging with,
alternative markets.
GIS Technical Support – The majority of core GIS
software used within councils is now procured
through collective BOPLASS agreements. On behalf of
the councils BOPLASS undertook procurement to
appoint a Regional Technical Advisor to be used as a
shared resource and provide technical support across
all BOPLASS councils. Eagle Technology were
appointed under a discounted enterprise agreement.
In addition to the cost savings, the service helps
facilitate further sharing of information and expertise
across the GIS teams.
Website Quality Assurance – BOPLASS has
established a collective agreement for website
quality assurance. Monsido is the incumbent provider
to several BOPLASS councils and discounted pricing
has been negotiated, dependent on the number of
councils participating.
This project is still under action.
IPWEA Membership – BOPLASS engaged with the
Institute of Public Works Engineering Australasia on
behalf of our constituent councils to establish a single
BOPLASS portal to allow all councils to access the full
IPWEA online catalogue at heavily reduced pricing.
The standards are used by all councils for a variety of
engineering purposes. The collective agreement
provides for unrestricted access for all councils at a
significantly lower cost than under individual
arrangements.

BOPLASS Limited
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Courier Services – BOPLASS has led a procurement
process across the three North Island LASS and
Hawke’s Bay councils for the appointment of a
courier services provider.
Identify opportunities to collaborate
with other LASS in Procurement or
Shared Service projects where
alliance provides benefits to all
parties.

Achieved

Debt Recovery Services – Additional BOPLASS councils
have moved to the shared service established by MW
LASS. As an inter-LASS service this negates duplication
across the regions and provides cost-effective
specialised local government debt recovery services.
Insurance Renewals Standardisation – BOPLASS led a
project across the three North Island LASS to develop
scorecards to assist councils with the preparation of
accurate and timely renewal data for their annual
insurance renewals. The scorecards help councils
identify the required standards and any potential
gaps in their processes. They will be used across all
LASS participating in our collective insurance
programme – BOPLASS, MW LASS and WLASS –
ensuring a consistent and best-practice approach to
renewal processes, ultimately assisting in achieving
the best outcomes.
Inter-LASS meetings – A number of procurement
projects are underway covering multiple LASS and
leveraging benefits of aggregated volumes.
Collaboration across the regions drives greater
efficiencies and often allows projects to be better
resourced. BOPLASS has been working particularly
closely with MW LASS and Waikato LASS and this
group meet on a quarterly basis. BOPLASS has
recently provided information to South Island
councils that are investigating collective
opportunities.
Waste Operator Licensing and Data Collection –
BOPLASS is leading a joint BOPLASS/WLASS project to
establish a cross-regional entity to administer
licensing conditions on behalf of territorial
authorities. The entity will also manage and collect
waste data to assist councils in preparing detailed
waste assessments and identification of priority
waste management and minimisation actions.
BOPLASS is leading the associated procurement
exercises and is also engaging with other councils
interested in participating in the project. The project
includes continued engagement with MfE and
WasteMINZ to ensure that the proposed approach is
aligned with national strategies.
Waste Minimisation Fund Application – On behalf of
the BOPLASS and WLASS councils, BOPLASS has
submitted an application to the MfE Waste
Minimisation Fund to support the development of
collective projects across the two regions.

BOPLASS Limited
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Occupational Health Services – BOPLASS has renewed
the agreement with Waikato Occupational Safety
Services for discounted occupational health services
across the BOPLASS councils. This agreement is now
undertaken in conjunction with WLASS.
Cross Council H&S audits and Safety Performance
Indicators – Waikato LASS and BOPLASS have
collectively developed H&S projects to support best
practice and shared learnings across councils in the
greater region. The projects assist in identifying skills,
processes or procedures that can be shared across
the regions.
Courier Services – BOPLASS coordinated activity
across the central North Island councils to establish
confirmed participation in joint procurement for the
appointment of a courier services provider.
Insurance Forum – BOPLASS hosted and coordinated
an insurance forum to cover key insurance topics in
local government. The forum was well attended by
councils from throughout the upper and central North
Island.
Further develop and extend the
Collaboration Portal for access to,
and sharing of, project information
and opportunities from other
councils and the greater Local
Government community to increase
breadth of BOPLASS collaboration.

Achieved

Increase usage of the Collaboration
Portal by providing support and
training material for new and
existing users.
Proactively market the benefits to
councils.
Number of listed projects to
increase by 10% per year.
Number of active users to increase by
20% per year.
Communicate with each shareholding Achieved
council at appropriate levels.
Meeting with each Executive
Leadership Team.
At least one meeting per year.

BOPLASS Limited
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Active promotion of the MahiTahi Collaboration Portal
over the last 12 months has resulted in a 71% increase
in the number of local government users with 161 new
members joining.
The increased membership is primarily a result of
ongoing development of on-boarding and training
material. Additionally, non-member councils have
been proactively contacted to highlight the benefits
and encourage participation.
Five additional projects added to the MahiTahi
Collaboration Portal, increasing from 48 to 53 lodged
projects.
RSIP Redevelopment – The Regional Sector
Information Portal is a collaboration tool used by
regional and unitary councils. The RSIP Portal has
been migrated to be hosted by BOPLASS on the same
platform as the MahiTahi Collaboration Portal.
BOPLASS continues to regularly engage with our
constituent councils, senior management and
shareholders to ensure opportunities continue to be
developed to the benefit of all stakeholders.
In addition to these regular meetings, the BOPLASS
chair and CE undertook a roadshow to directly engage
with executive staff across all shareholding councils.
These meetings were used to provide an update on
BOPLASS initiatives and to gain further insights into
additional collaboration opportunities. New
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opportunities in both shared services and procurement
were identified through these workshops.
Ensure current funding model is
appropriate.
Review BOPLASS expenditure and
income and review council
contributions and other sources of
funding.
Performance against budgets
reviewed quarterly. Company remains
financially viable.

Achieved

The sources of BOPLASS funding and the viability of the
funding model are regularly reviewed with financial
reporting provided to the BOPLASS Board.
Council contributions levied.
Contributions received from activities producing
savings.
Vendor rebates collected.
Monthly and quarterly performance reviewed.
Financial statements reported and reviewed at Board
meetings.
Funding model reviews were undertaken by the board
during the 2020-2021 financial year with two changes
undertaken to ensure the continued financial viability
of the organisation:
 A one-off $50,000 contribution to the BOPLASS
aerial imagery programme received from LINZ was
retained as income in advance to assist with
funding the BOPLASS aerial imagery programme
over the next five years.
 The BOPLASS Board approved for a CPI
adjustment to be included with council annual
contributions.
Financial position year end 30 June 2021: $15,970
surplus.

BOPLASS Limited
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PART TWO – ACCOUNTABILITY STATEMENTS

Statement of Financial Position

Building Blocks
BOPLASS Ltd has been built on a
number of principles and activities
and these are the building blocks
of our success.
You will find examples in text
boxes scattered through the
document.

BOPLASS Limited
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Statement of Responsibility
The following pages 26-48 outline the financial statements and notes for year ended
30 June 2022 for BOPLASS Limited.
The directors believe that proper accounting records have been kept that enable, with reasonable
accuracy, the determination of the financial position of the company and facilitate compliance of
the financial statements with the Financial Reporting Act 1993.
The directors consider that they have taken adequate steps to safeguard the assets of the
company, and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. Internal control procedures are
also considered to be sufficient to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability
of the financial statements.
The directors are pleased to present the financial statements of BOPLASS Ltd for the twelve
months ended 30 June 2022.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors:

Signed:

Craig O’Connell – Chair

Date:

Signed:

Martin Grenfell – Director

Date:

BOPLASS Limited
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Audit Report

BOPLASS Limited
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Audit Report Continued

BOPLASS Limited

Item 11.1 - Attachment 2

Annual Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2022

24

Page 48

Ordinary Council meeting Attachments

3 October 2022

Audit Report Continued
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Financial Statements – Statement of Financial Position
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - AS AT 30 JUNE 2022
BOP LASS Ltd
BOP LASS LTD

Notes

ASSETS - CURRENT
Bank accounts and cash
Short Term Investments
Debtors and Other Receivables
Prepayments

2021/22
Actual

10
10
11
12

2020/21
Actual

370,585
550,000
135,006
116,891

368,717
800,000
229,189
80,129

1,172,482

1,478,035

9,340
22,762

12,478
1,882

32,101
1,204,584

14,360
1,492,395

262,870
31,070
858,574
0

277,852
17,572
1,151,145
0

Total Current Liabilities

1,152,514

1,446,569

TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL ASSETS less TOTAL LIABILITIES

1,152,514
52,070

1,446,569
45,826

(46,932)
99,002

(53,176)
99,002

52,070

45,826

Total Current Assets
ASSETS - NON-CURRENT
Intangible Assets
Plant and Equipment

13
14

Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES - CURRENT
Creditors and Accrued Expenses
Employee Costs Payable
Income in Advance
Borrowings

15
16
17
18

EQUITY
Accumulated Deficits
Share Capital

19
19

TOTAL EQUITY

The notes and Statement of Accounting Policies form part of these financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors:
Signed:

Craig O’Connell – Chair

Date:

Signed:

Martin Grenfell – Director

Date:
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Financial Statements – Statement of Financial Performance
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE - FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
BOP LASS LTD

Notes

REVENUE
Council Contribution
Project Revenue
Interest Revenue
Other Income
Total Revenue
EXPENSES
Depreciation and Amortisation
Employee Related Costs
Directors Costs
Finance Cost
Other Expenses

2020/21
Actual

306,140
1,632,054
9,425
50,000
1,997,619

306,139
1,193,000
6,200
0
1,505,339

298,672
1,254,599
9,281
173
1,562,725

4
5
6
7
8

7,355
312,989
18,000
0
1,647,109

5,650
284,800
21,000
500
1,193,389

5,065
256,642
16,871
0
1,260,024

1,985,454
12,165

1,505,339
0

1,538,602
24,123

5,921

0

8,153

6,244

0

15,970

9

Surplus/(Deficit) after tax

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/22
Budget

2
2
3
2.5

Total Expenses
Surplus/(Deficit) before tax
Income Tax Expense/(Benefit)

2021/22
Actual

The notes and Statement of Accounting Policies form part of these financial statements.
Explanations of major variances against budget are provided in note 25.

Media Monitoring

A shared media monitoring portal
provides councils with improved
visibility of community feedback
through monitoring of press and
social media.

BOPLASS Limited
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Financial Statements – Statement of Cashflows
STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS - FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
BOP LASS LTD

Notes

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Council Contribution
Other Revenue
Project Revenue
Interest Revenue
Tax Paid - RWT (net)
Goods and Services Tax (net)
Total Cash Provided
Employee Related Costs
Payments to Suppliers
Interest Paid
Tax Paid - RWT (net)
Goods and Services Tax (net)
Total Cash Applied
NET CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/22
2020/21
Actual
Actual

306,140
50,000
1,439,315
9,425
0
(8,669)
1,796,211
(299,491)
(1,722,774)
0
3,019
0
(2,019,246)
(223,035)

298,672
173
1,212,330
9,281
8,424
0
1,528,880
(275,171)
(1,187,494)
0
0
(28,740)
(1,498,446)
37,475

CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Investments
Purchase of Plant and Equipment
Purchase of Intangibles
Total Investing Cash Applied
NET CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

250,000
(25,096)
0
224,904
224,904

3,090
(521)
0
2,569
2,569

CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Loans
Repayment of Loans
NET CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
CASH AT END OF THE YEAR

0
0
0
1,869
368,716
370,586

0
0
0
40,045
328,671
368,716

10

The GST component of operating activities reflects the net GST paid and received to and from the Inland Revenue
Department. The GST component has been prepared on a net basis, as the gross amounts do not provide meaningful
information for financial purposes.
The notes and Statement of Accounting Policies form part of these financial statements.
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Entity Information for the Year Ended 30 June 2022
LEGAL NAME
BOPLASS Limited stands for Bay of Plenty Local Authority Shared Services.
TYPE OF ENTITY AND LEGAL BASIS
BOPLASS Limited is incorporated in New Zealand under the Companies Act 1993.
COMPANY’S PURPOSE
BOPLASS Ltd is based in Tauranga and is a joint venture between nine councils formed to provide
shared services.
STRUCTURE OF COMPANY’S OPERATIONS INCLUDING GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS
The company is owned and controlled by the nine councils and comprises a Board of ten directors who
oversee the governance of the company. A Chief Executive is responsible for the day-to-day operations
of the company and reports to the Board, with two other staff supporting the Chief Executive in
delivering against the company’s objectives. The Board is made up of nine Chief Executives from
participating councils and one independent director. Refer Statutory Disclosure note page 46 for list
of councils.
MAIN SOURCE OF THE COMPANY’S CASH AND RESOURCES
Annual operating contribution received from each of the nine councils and project commissions are
the main source of funding.
OUTPUTS
As per the Statement of Intent and Performance.

All of Government (AoG)
Procurement

BOPLASS takes into account and
supports opportunities available
through All of Government
purchasing arrangements.

BOPLASS Limited
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Statement of Accounting Policies
Statement of Accounting Policies for the Year Ended 30 June 2022
ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED:
BASIS OF PREPARATION
The Board has elected to apply PBE SFR-A (PS) Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting – Accrual
(Public Sector) on the basis that the company does not have public accountability (as defined) and has
total annual expenses less than $2 million.
All transactions in the financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. The
financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars ($) and all values are rounded to the nearest
dollar. The functional currency of BOPLASS Ltd is New Zealand dollars.
The financial statements are prepared on the assumption that the company will continue to operate
in the foreseeable future.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
There have been no changes to accounting policies during the reporting period.
GOODS AND SERVICES TAX
The company is registered for GST. All amounts in the financial Statements are recorded exclusive of
GST, except for debtors and creditors which are stated inclusive of GST.
REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Contributions received from the nine shareholder councils are BOPLASS Limited’s primary source of
funding for the 12 months ended 30 June 2022.
Council contributions are recognised as revenue when they become receivable unless there is an
obligation to return the funds if conditions of the contributions are not met. No such obligation is
attached to the council contributions received for the twelve months ended 30 June 2022.
Project revenue is recognised when the sale of goods or services is sold to the customer.
Interest revenue is recorded as it is earned during the year.

BOPLASS Limited
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EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS
Wages, salaries, and annual leave are recorded as an expense as staff provide services and become
entitled to wages, salaries and leave entitlements.
Performance payments are recorded when the employee is notified that the payment has been
granted.
Superannuation contributions are recorded as an expense as staff provide services.
ADMINISTRATION, OVERHEADS AND PROJECT EXPENDITURE COSTS
These are expensed when the related service has been received.
LEASE EXPENSES
Lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
BANK ACCOUNTS AND CASH
Bank accounts and cash comprise cash on hand, cheque or savings accounts, and deposits held at
call with banks.
DEBTORS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Debtors are initially recorded at the amount owed. When it is likely the amount owed (or some
portion) will not be collected, a provision for impairment is recognised and the loss is recorded as a
bad debt expense.
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and equipment is recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
For an asset to be sold, the asset is impaired if the market price for an equivalent asset falls below its
carrying amount. For an asset to be used by the company, the asset is impaired if the value to the
company in using the asset falls below the carrying amount of the asset.
Depreciation is provided on a diminishing value basis over the estimated useful life, at the same rate
as is allowed by the Income Tax Act 1994.

BOPLASS Limited
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The useful lives for associated depreciation rates of other assets have been estimated using the
diminishing value basis as follows:
Office equipment

5 years

20%

Computer equipment/ICN

4 years

25%

Mobile Phone

3 years

67%

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. Costs associated with maintaining computer software are
recognised as an expense when incurred.
The carrying value of an intangible asset with a finite life is amortised on a diminishing value basis over
its estimated useful life, at the same rate as is allowed by the Income Tax Act 1994. This charge is
recognised as an expense.
The useful lives for associated amortisation rates of major classes of intangible assets have been
estimated using the diminishing basis as follows:
2021 Computer Software

2 years

50%

2020 Computer Software

2 years

50%

CREDITORS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
Creditors and accrued expenses are measured at the amount owed.
EMPLOYEE COSTS PAYABLE
A liability for employee costs payable is recognised when an employee has earned the entitlement.
These include salaries and wages accrued up to balance date and annual leave earned but not yet
taken at balance date. A liability and expense for long service leave and retirement gratuities is
recognised when the entitlement becomes available to the employee.
INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS
Loans & Borrowings are recognised at the amount borrowed from the lender.
Interest costs and interest accrued are recognised as an expense when incurred.

BOPLASS Limited
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INCOME TAX
Tax expense is calculated using the taxes payable method. As a result, no allowance is made for
deferred tax. Tax expense includes the current tax liability and adjustments to prior year tax liabilities.
BUDGET FIGURES
The budget figures are derived from the Statement of Intent as approved by the Board at the beginning
of the financial year. The budget figures have been prepared in accordance with Tier 3 standards, using
accounting policies that are consistent with those adopted by the Board in preparing these financial
statements.
COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST.
EQUITY
Equity is measured by the value of total assets less total liabilities.
TIER 3 PBE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS APPLIED
BOPLASS Ltd has applied Tier 3 Accounting Standards in preparing its Financial Statements to:



Property, plant and equipment to show intangible assets separate from property, plant &
equipment.



Debtors and prepayments reported separately.

Print Services

A collective contract with FujiFilm
for photocopiers and printers has
delivered significant savings to the
group. It has also provided a
common
technology
platform
supporting the development and
delivery of further shared services.
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Notes to Financial Statements
NOTE 2: COUNCIL CONTRIBUTION / PROJECT REVENUE

Notes
Core Revenue
Council Contribution
Project Revenue
Rebates
Aerial Photography Revenue
Video Conferencing Revenue
Revenue - ICN
Recoveries
Collaboration Portal Revenue

*
**
***
****
*****
******

TOTAL CORE AND PROJECT REVENUE

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/22
2020/21
Budget
Actual

2021/22
Actual
306,140
306,140

306,139
306,139

298,672
298,672

3,188
688,275
26,145
142,596
735,151
36,700
1,632,054

2,500
300,000
30,500
135,000
680,000
45,000
1,193,000

7,878
468,937
40,562
125,237
576,285
35,700
1,254,599

1,938,194

1,499,139

1,553,271

*

Rebates for Services contracted by BOPLASS Ltd are received from NZ Post Ltd and a final from CSG.

**

Aerial Photography revenue is offset by Aerial Photography expenditure paid by BOPLASS Ltd on behalf of
the councils. Refer to note 8.

***

Video Conferencing Revenue is offset by Video Conferencing expenditure.

****

ICN Revenue is offset by ICN expenditure.

*****

Recovery Revenue is offset by recovery expenditure refer to note 8. This is the recovery of BOPLASS project
or procurement costs incurred on behalf of the participating councils.

******

Collaboration Portal Revenue is offset by Collaboration Portal expenditure.

NOTE 2.5: OTHER INCOME

Notes
Other Income
LINZ Grant
Reimbursement

2021/22
Actual

*

TOTAL OTHER INCOME
*

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/22
2020/21
Budget
Actual

50,000
0

0
0

0
173

50,000

0

173

A one-off $50,000 contribution to the BOPLASS aerial imagery programme received from LINZ.

NOTE 3: INTEREST REVENUE

Notes

2021/22
Actual

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/22
Budget

2020/21
Actual

Core Revenue
Interest Revenue - Current account
Project Revenue
Interest Revenue - Aerial Trust account

640

200

73

8,784

6,000

9,208

TOTAL INTEREST REVENUE

9,425

6,200

9,281

BOPLASS Limited
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NOTE 4: DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Notes
Core Expenditure
Intangibles
Plant and Equipment

*
**

TOTAL DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
*

Intangibles refer to note 13.

**

Plant and Equipment refer to note 14.

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/22
Budget

2021/22
Actual

2020/21
Actual

3,138
4,217

5,000
650

4,415
650

7,355.2

5,650

5,065

NOTE 5: EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS

Notes
Core Expenditure
Salary and Wages
Superannuation
Direct Personnel Overheads
TOTAL EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/22
Budget

2021/22
Actual
271,338
18,813
22,837
312,989

*
**

261,500
0
23,300
284,800

2020/21
Actual
211,649
16,863
28,130
256,642

*

Superannuation includes employer contributions to Kiwisaver.

**

Direct Personnel Overheads include ACC, Fringe Benefit Tax, staff training costs and other staff support costs.

NOTE 6: DIRECTORS COSTS

Notes
Core Expenditure
Directors Costs (Fees & Travel)
TOTAL DIRECTORS COSTS
*

*

2021/22
Actual
18,000
18,000

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/22
2020/21
Budget
Actual
21,000
21,000

16,871
16,871

Craig O'Connell is the only independent paid Director, commenced February 2015. The other nine Directors are
the Chief Executives of participating Councils and do not receive any remuneration from BOPLASS.

Insurance

Collaboration with insurance has
provided improved service levels
and substantial premium savings
for all councils.

BOPLASS Limited
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NOTE 7: FINANCE COST

Notes
Core Expenditure
Interest on Borrowings
TOTAL FINANCE COST

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/22
Budget

2021/22
Actual

*

0
0

2020/21
Actual

500
500

0
0

* Interest on Tauranga City Council loan refer to note 18.

NOTE 8: OTHER EXPENSES

Notes
Core Expenditure
Audit Fees
Administration Expenses
Consultancy
General Costs
Insurance
Loss on Disposal of Asset

Project Expenditure
Aerial Photography
Video Conferencing
Inter Council Network (ICN)
Recoveries
Collaboration Portal Opex
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

2021/22
Actual

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/22
Budget

2020/21
Actual

*
**
***

21,277
14,814
8,250

20,700
17,300
5,300

26,831
14,204
7,600

****

5,320
9,860
0
59,521

10,200
9,500
0
63,000

7,464
9,453
0
65,552

*
**
**
***
****

688,275
26,145
108,582
742,601
21,985
1,587,588
1,647,109

300,000
28,670
129,600
646,000
26,119
1,130,389
1,193,389

468,937
45,238
115,574
545,221
19,499
1,194,469
1,260,021

Core
*

Audit Fees for 2022 are $21,277

**

Administration Expenses

*** Consultancy includes tax advice for both 2021 and 2022
**** Accommodation & Travel, Bank Fees, Conferences, General Expenses, Health & Safety, Legal, Subscriptions
Project
*

BOPLASS Ltd has a contract for aerial photography on behalf of the councils. This expenditure is offset from the
revenue received from the councils. BOPLASS Ltd is acting on behalf of the councils.

**

ICN Expenses. This expenditure is offset from the revenue received from the councils. BOPLASS Ltd is acting on
behalf of the councils.

*** Recoveries - This expenditure is offset from the revenue received from the councils for project work.
**** Collaboration Portal Opex - to assist in accelerating growth of shared service strategies and projects throughout
local government in New Zealand by increasing visibility of councils’ opportunities to collaborate.

BOPLASS Limited
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NOTE 9: INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Notes

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/2022
2020/21
Actual
Actual

Components of tax expense
Current Tax Expense
Adjustments to current tax in prior years
Tax Expense
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
Net surplus (deficit) before Taxation*
Tax calculation @ 28%
Plus/(Less) Taxation effect of:
Non-deductible Expenditure
Imputation credit adjustment
Non-taxable (income)/expenditure
Prior Period Adjustment
Group loss offset
Tax Losses not recognised
Deferred tax adjustment
TOTAL INCOME TAX EXPENSE

0
5,921
0
5,921

0
0
0
0

12,165
3,406
0
278,706
0
(278,436)
5,921
0
0
(3,676)
5,921

3,602
1,009
0
215,060
0
(214,931)
0
0
0
(4,605)
(3,467)

Tax losses of $1,540 are available to carry forward and offset against any future taxable income

Joint Procurement

The procurement of services or
products by two or more councils,
from
an
external
provider
regardless of whether the service
is paid for through BOPLASS or
individually
by
participating
councils.

BOPLASS Limited
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NOTE 10: BANK ACCOUNTS, CASH AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
BOP LASS Ltd
Notes
Cash at Bank - Current account
Cash at Bank - Aerial Trust account
Term Deposit 182 days @ 2.00% Maturing 10 October 2022
Term Deposit 180 days @ 0.90% Maturing 09 August 2021
Term Deposit 182 days @ 1.60% Maturing 05 September 2022

2021/22
Actual
361,609
8,976
300,000
0
250,000

2020/21
Actual
16,759
351,958
300,000
250,000
250,000

920,585

1,168,717

TOTAL BANK ACCOUNTS AND CASH

NOTE 11: DEBTORS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
BOP LASS Ltd
Notes

2021/22

2020/21

Actual

Actual

Debtors – Other
Goods and Services
Accrued Revenue
Tax (Payable) / Receivable
TOTAL DEBTORS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

3,457

78,993

22,999

14,330

100,609

124,906

7,941

10,960

135,006

229,189

Debtors are non-interest bearing and receipt is normally 30-day terms. Therefore, the carrying figure of debtors
approximates their fair value.

NOTE 12: PREPAYMENTS

Notes

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/22
2020/21
Actual

Actual

Under 1 Year

116,891

80,129

TOTAL PREPAYMENTS

116,891

80,129

Coalition of the
Willing

BOPLASS councils work within
an opt-in principle, meaning
projects initially advance with the
willing and active participants.

BOPLASS Limited
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NOTE 13: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes
Computer Software
Cost
Cost at beginning of Year
Current Year Additions
Current Year Disposals
Cost Balance at Year End
Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment
Cost at beginning of Year
Amortisation Expense
Impairment Losses
Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment Balance at Year End
Carrying Amounts
Cost at beginning of Year
Carrying Amount at Year End

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/22
2020/21
Actual
Actual

79,174
0
0
79,174

79,174
0
0
79,174

(66,696)
(3,139)

(62,281)
(4,415)

(69,835)

(66,696)

12,478
9,340

16,893
12,478

Amortisation Expense was at varying rates between 15% to 60%.
No impairment losses have been recognised for intangible assets.

NOTE 14: PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes
Office and Computer Equipment
Cost
Cost at beginning of Year
Current Year Additions
Current Year Disposals
Cost Balance at Year End

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/22
2020/21
Actual
Actual

4,516
25,097
0
29,613

3,995
1,737
(1,216)
4,516

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
Cost at beginning of Year
Depreciation Expense
Impairment Losses
Loss on Disposal of Asset

(2,635)
(4,217)
0
0

(1,919)
(650)
0
(65)

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment Balance at Year End

(6,852)

(2,634)

Carrying Amounts
Cost at beginning of Year
Carrying Amount at Year End

1,882
22,762

859
1,882

*

Office equipment has been depreciated over its life (5 years).
Computer equipment has been depreciated over its life (4 years). Mobile Phone (3 years).
Asset Additions
*

Inter Council Network – BOPLASS manages a high-speed fibre-based wide-area network which used to be
managed and maintained by multiple service providers. The move towards maintaining this inhouse has resulted
in various bits of equipment and consultancy expenses being recognised as an asset that will be depreciated
over 4 years.

BOPLASS Limited
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NOTE 15: CREDITORS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Notes
ANZ Business Credit Card
Creditors
Accrued Expenses
Goods and Services Tax Payable
Retentions

*

TOTAL CREDITORS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/22
2020/21
Actual
Actual
3,887
176,315
25,497
0
57,172

2,909
235,997
17,941
0
21,005

262,870

277,852

ANZ Business Credit Card facilities were arranged primarily to pay international accounts for software to reduce the
fees charged and to improve expense processes and reporting.
Creditors are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms. Therefore, the carrying value of creditors
and other payables approximates their fair value.
* Accrued Expenses relates to Audit Fees of $24,537 and FBT $960 that have been accrued for the 2022/23 financial
year.

NOTE 16: EMPLOYEE COSTS PAYABLE

Notes
Accrued Salaries and Wages
Annual Leave
PAYE
TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS PAYABLE

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/22
2020/21
Actual
Actual
7,295
11,222
12,553
31,070

7,979
1,002
8,591
17,572

NOTE 17: INCOME IN ADVANCE

Notes
Income in Advance
TOTAL INCOME IN ADVANCE

*

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/22
2020/21
Actual
Actual
858,574
858,574

1,151,145
1,151,145

* Income in advance that relates to 2022/23 financial year:
$759,348 is for aerial photography;
$49,999 is for Proof of Concept budget for OpsCom Projects
$33,257 Solid Waste;
$10,266 is for the Geospatial Web project;
$3,109 is for NZ Archaeological Association membership fee
$2,595 is for standards NZ license

BOPLASS Limited
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NOTE 18: BORROWINGS

Notes

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/22
2020/21
Actual
Actual

Maturing in Under 1 Year
TOTAL BORROWINGS

0
0

0
0

BOPLASS Ltd has a reciprocal borrowing arrangement with Tauranga City Council which allows for the borrowing of
funds and placement of excess funds. The current loan balance as at 30 June 2022 is $NIL. Interest is accrued during
each interest period.
This loan facility is still available to BOPLASS Ltd.
Interest is calculated at current market rates. The loan from Tauranga City Council is unsecured.

NOTE 19: EQUITY

Notes
Share Capital
Balance at beginning of Year
Fully Paid up Shares
Balance at Year End

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/22
2020/21
Actual
Actual

99,002
0
99,002

99,002
0
99,002

Accumulated Surpluses/(Deficit)
Balance at beginning of Year
Surplus/(Deficit) after Taxation

(53,176)
6,244

(69,146)
15,970

Balance at Year End

(46,932)

(53,176)

Share Capital - As at 30 June 2022, share capital comprised of thirty-one Ordinary Shares and twenty-two Non-Voting
Shares.
The holders of the ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, are entitled to one
vote per share at meetings of the Company and rank equally regarding the Company's residual assets.
Dividends - No dividends have been paid or are proposed by the Company.

NOTE 20: CONTINGENCIES
BOPLASS Ltd have no contingencies at year end and that there were no contingencies for prior year.

NOTE 21: EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER BALANCE DAY
No events have occurred since balance date for BOPLASS Ltd.

BOPLASS Limited
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NOTE 22: STATEMENT OF COMMITMENTS

Notes

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/22
2020/21
Actual
Actual

Capital Commitments
TOTAL CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

0
0

0
0

This statement represents extraordinary or exceptionally large commitments for that type of expenditure within the
normal course of business, which have been contractually entered. As at balance date, BOPLASS Ltd has no large
commitments of this nature.
BOPLASS Ltd has a contractual agreement with AAM Limited and Aerial Surveys Ltd to provide aerial photos for the
councils. This is treated as an operational expense in the BOPLASS Ltd accounts.

OPERATING LEASES AS LESSEE

Notes

BOP LASS Ltd
2021/22
2020/21
Actual
Actual

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years
TOTAL OPERATING LEASES AS LESSEE

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

The expense of $108,582 for the Inter Council Network is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance refer to
note 8. Participating councils are invoiced by BOPLASS Ltd on a quarterly basis to recover the costs of the Inter Council
Network. The pricing is reviewable not less than annually and adjustments are to be made for market trends and for the
number of councils participating.
BOP LASS Ltd
RECOVERY OF OPERATING LEASES PAYMENTS FROM PARTICIPATING
COUNCILS

Notes

2021/22
Actual

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years
TOTAL OPERATING LEASES AS LESSOR

2020/21
Actual
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

Video Conferencing
Distance and travel time are a
significant cost. BOPLASS has
assisted councils to implement
video conferencing to make
activities more efficient.

BOPLASS Limited
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NOTE 23: RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related-party disclosures have not been made for transactions with related parties that are within a normal supplier or
client / recipient relationship on terms and conditions no more or less favourable than those that it is reasonable to
expect the company would have adopted in dealing with the party at arm's length in the same circumstances.
Related party required to be disclosed
Tauranga City Council provided accounting services to BOPLASS Ltd during the financial year to 30 June 2022 free of
charge. An estimated value of the accounting services provided for the year is $15,000.

NOTE 24: STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST STATEMENT OF INTENT
The Equity Ratio is a good indicator of the level of leverage used by a company. The Equity Ratio measures the
proportion of the total assets that are financed by stockholders and not creditors.
The calculation of equity ratio is:
2022: 4.32% (2021: 3.07%)

NOTE 25: EXPLANATIONS OF MAJOR VARIANCES AGAINST BUDGET
Statement of Financial Performance

BOP LASS Ltd
Variance against Budget

Other Income (Note 2.5)

Land Information New Zealand provided funding which was
unexpected at the time of budget

Aerial Photography Revenue and Expenditure (Note 2)

Suppliers have been able to complete more work then
expected as a result revenue and expenses have increase
proportionally

Collaboration Portal (Note 2)

Collaboration Portal revenue and expenses have decreased
proportionally through various cost saving activities

ICN Expenditure (Note 8)

ICN expenditure has decreased due to the capital
recognition of $25,097 which will be depreciated over 4
years. (Note 14)

Video Conference Revenue and Expenditure (Note 2)

Fewer video conference services purchased, decreasing
expenditure and revenue against budget.

Recoveries and Projects – Recoveries (Note 2)

Project timing is often impacted by reprioritisation of
workstreams and effects the Project Recoveries and
Expenditure. Both the expense and revenue remained
proportional.

Interest Revenue (Note 3)

Increasing interest rates have has resulted in the increase
we see in bank interest.

BOPLASS Limited
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NOTE 26: BOPLASS CONTRACTUAL OFFSETTING REVENUE & EXPENDITURE TRANSACTIONS
BOP LASS Ltd 2021/22
Expenditure

Net Operating
Surplus/(Deficit)

306,140

0

306,140

640
50,000

0
0

640
50,000

0
0
0

7,355
271,338
18,813

(7,355)
(271,338)
(18,813)

Refer to note 4.
Refer to note 5.
Refer to note 5.

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

22,837
18,000
14,814
21,277
8,250
9,860
5,320
5,921

(22,837)
(18,000)
(14,814)
(21,277)
(8,250)
(9,860)
(5,320)
(5,921)

Refer to note 5.
Refer to note 6.
Refer to note 8.
Refer to note 8.
Refer to note 8.
Refer to note 8.
Refer to Note 8.
Refer to Note 9.

Total

356,780

403,785

(47,005)

Projects
Aerial Photography

688,275

688,275

0

Interest Revenue related to
Aerial Photography

8,784

0

8,784

Canon Video Conferencing

26,145

26,145

(2,525)

Inter Council Network

142,596

108,582

34,014

ESRI Enterprise Licence
(Recoveries)

374,500

370,800

3,700

Other Recoveries

360,651

371,801

(11,151)

Revenue
Core
Council Contribution

Interest Revenue
Other Income –
Reimbursement
Depreciation &
Amortisation
Salary and Wages
Superannuation
Direct Personnel
Overheads
Directors Fees & Costs
Administration Expenses
Audit Fees
Consultancy
Insurance
General
Tax Expense

BOPLASS Limited
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Explanation
BOPLASS Ltd receives funds from nine
councils to fund administrative costs
not related to projects. Includes CPI
Adjustment.
Refer Note 3.
Refer Note 2.5.

Participating councils are invoiced by
BOPLASS Ltd and AAM Ltd is paid as
percentages of the work on the
project are completed.
Bank interest received on the
BOPLASS Ltd Aerial Photography Trust
account. Refer to Note 3.
Councils pay BOPLASS Ltd an amount
charged by Canon plus an
administrative fee for BOPLASS Ltd
maintaining a service and
maintenance contract on behalf of the
councils.
Participating councils are invoiced by
BOPLASS Ltd on a quarterly basis to
recover the cost for the Inter Council
Regional Network Platform. ICN
revenue includes recovery of other
operating expenditure - ICN, interest
on borrowings - ICN loan and BOPLASS
Ltd administration fees.
BOPLASS charges an administration
fee for management of the software
purchase and recoveries.
Includes recovery and administration
fees for ad-hoc projects.
…/ continued
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3,188

0

3,188

36,700

21,985

14,715

Total

1,640,838

1,587,589

53,249

Overall Total

1,997,619

1,991,375

6,244

Collaboration Portal

Rebates earned by BOPLASS from CSG
Technology and NZ Post Ltd.
The Portal is to assist in accelerating
growth of shared service strategies
and projects throughout local
government in New Zealand by
increasing visibility of councils’
opportunities to collaborate.
Membership Revenue lower than
expected.

BOP LASS Ltd 2020/21
BOP LASS Ltd 2020/21
Revenue

Expenditure

Net Operating
Surplus/(Deficit)

Core
Council Contribution
Interest Revenue
Other Income – Reimbursement
Depreciation & Amortisation
Salary and Wages
Superannuation
Direct Personnel Overheads
Directors Fees & Costs
Administration Expenses
Audit Fees
Consultancy
Insurance
General
Tax Expense

298,672
73
173
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
5,065
211,649
16,863
28,130
16,871
14,204
26,831
7,600
9,453
7,464
8,155

298,672
73
173
(5,065)
(211,649)
(16,863)
(28,130)
(16,871)
(14,204)
(26,831)
(7,600)
(9,453)
(7,464)
(8,155)

Total

298,918

352,285

(53,367)

Projects
Aerial Photography
Interest Revenue related to Aerial Photography
Canon Video Conferencing
Inter Council Network
ESRI Enterprise Licence (Recoveries)
Other Recoveries
Rebates
Collaboration Portal
Total

468,937
9,208
40,562
125,237
374,500
201,784
7,878
35,700
1,263,806

468,937
0
45,238
115,574
370,800
174,421
0
19,499
1,194,469

0
9,208
(4,676)
9,663
3,700
27,363
7,878
16,201
69,337

Overall Total

1,562,724

1,546,754

15,970

BOPLASS Limited
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Statutory Disclosures
as per section 211 (1) of the Companies Act (1993)
NATURE OF BUSINESS
There has been no change in the nature of the business of the company during the year.

DIRECTORS APPOINTED
Under the Shareholder Agreement directors are appointed by the constituent councils. Directors and
their dates of appointment are as follows:
Independent director

Craig O’Connell

26 February 2015
Chair from 16 March 2016

Kawerau District Council

Russell George

14 January 2008

Bay of Plenty Regional Council

Fiona McTavish

30 June 2018

Western Bay of Plenty District Council

Miriam Taris

1 July 2014
until 18 July 2021

John Holyoake

19 July 2021

Rotorua Lakes Council

Geoff Williams

1 July 2013

Whakatane District Council

Stephanie O’Sullivan

19 November 2018

Tauranga City Council

Martin Grenfell

3 September 2018

Taupo District Council

Gareth Green

26 July 2016

Gisborne District Council

Nedine Thatcher-Swann

13 March 2017

Opotiki District Council

Aileen Lawrie

10 August 2010
until 26 July 2022

Miles McConway

16 August 2022

INTEREST REGISTER
There have been no disclosures of self-interest during the period.
DIRECTORS REMUNERATION
In February 2015 the Board appointed an independent director. The independent director receives
remuneration and is reimbursed for related expenses. No remuneration had been paid to other
directors.
DONATIONS
There were no donations made by the company during the period.
BOPLASS Limited
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Additional Disclosures
Impact of COVID-19
BACKGROUND
Given the current environment caused by the impact of COVID-19, many local government
organisations face an unprecedented level of uncertainty about the economy, future revenue and
asset and liability values. We have remained cognisant of this potential impact on both BOPLASS and
our shareholding councils in the preparation of the BOPLASS financial statements.
We have taken a number of measures to monitor and mitigate the effects of COVID-19, such as
health and safety measures for our people (e.g. social distancing and working from home) and
continuing to engage with our suppliers and our constituent councils through video conferencing.
The impact on our business and results has not been significant and, based upon our experience to
date, we expect this to remain the case. As we operate predominately in the delivery of back of
office services, during COVID-19 we have found increased demand for some of our collaborative
solutions, and we expect this to continue.
ASSUMPTIONS
While there is always a possibility of some form of commercial implication for BOPLASS, the risk is
considered to be very low as the company remains focused on delivering cost-savings and collective
benefits to the councils – services of key importance to our shareholders.
Despite the impact of COVID-19 on much of the New Zealand economy, there has been no change in
the nature or capacity of the company’s business during the 2021-22 financial year and we don’t
expect this to change in the future. The company has remained on target with the delivery of all
projects, with BOPLASS staff able to continue to operate effectively while working remotely during
the various government imposed alert levels.
Travel restrictions, lockdowns, and working from home meant that less face-to-face meetings were
undertaken in the 2021-22 year, and this resulted in the performance target of meeting with each
executive team not being achieved. We accept this under the circumstances and plan to complete
engagements early in the new financial year.

BOPLASS Limited
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Despite the lockdown periods BOPLASS was able to continue with all financial reporting and
reporting against performance indicators. Governance meetings were held, and regular engagement
continued with shareholding councils.
The BOPLASS financial statements have been prepared with the judgement and assumption that
COVID-19 has not, and will not, have an adverse impact on the organisation’s workstreams or the
level of engagement from our shareholding councils. Therefore, when preparing the financial
statements there has been no material adjustments made to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the current or future financial years.


BOPLASS has minimal assets, and the value of those assets will not be impacted by COVID-19.



There has been no impact from COVID-19 on the company’s liquidity and we don’t expect there
to be future change.



Project revenue is generated directly by councils’ participation in collective contracts or projects.
The core BOPLASS principle remains in place that the company will not enter into supplier
contracts or commitments without first gaining agreement and financial commitment from
participating councils.



Letters of Support have been provided to BOPLASS by our shareholding councils, providing
financial surety for the current and future financial year.



The level of business for BOPLASS will continue as forecast and may, in some circumstances,
create further opportunities.



BOPLASS current and future performance targets will not be adjusted as a result of COVID-19.

Based on the circumstances described above, the financial statements have been prepared on the
assumption that any impacts on BOPLASS from COVID-19 are minimal and the company will continue
to operate as a going concern.
We will continue to follow the various government policies and advice, while at the same time doing
our utmost to continue our operations in the best and safest way possible without jeopardising the
health or wellbeing of our staff.

BOPLASS Limited
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Tauranga Art Gallery Trust (TAGT) is incorporated
under the Charitable Trusts Act 1957 as a not-for-profit
entity, established to deliver and operate a public art
gallery to serve residents of Tauranga, the Western
Bay of Plenty, and visitors to the region. TAGT has
charitable status with the Inland Revenue Department.
This report has been completed in accordance with
our Tauranga City Council Statement of Intent and the
Local Government Act 2002, which requires that TAGT
report to Council on a six-monthly and annual basis.
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Chair’s Report
The 2021–2022 financial year was like no other.
We commenced the period with a roar as Shannon Novak’s far-reaching
exhibition, developed in solidarity with the LGBTQI+ community, launched across the
Gallery and several other Tauranga Moana venues. Novak’s bold and multi-coloured
artworks spanned the Gallery’s walls, floors, ceilings and skylights—and even spilled
out into Wharf St—setting the stage for an ambitious exhibition involving 17 additional
contributors working across painting, film, text, photography and documentary
practice. Even as the three-week COVID lockdown suspended visitation at the tailend of the exhibition, Novak had already achieved his goal of engaging over 50,000
people in high-exposure sites across Tauranga, both raising awareness of and building
relationships with the rainbow community in the Bay.
Despite unprecedented obstacles stemming from this period of COVID,
including disrupted material supply chains and production schedules, the Gallery
forged ahead with its visual art programmes. Its next major sculpture commission
by Tauranga artist Darcell Apelu was unveiled in late-November. Co-developed with
Supercut Projects as a lead visual arts project for the Tauranga Arts Festival, Apelu’s
work took the form of a colossal tower and a terraced fountain. Her monumental
sculpture was fabricated anew from the ground up and both delighted audiences
and issued a strong challenge and bold confrontation of the legacies of colonisation.
These challenging themes were further developed in neighbouring solo-exhibitions by
celebrated photographer Bruce Connew and The Moral Drift, an interactive project
led by Fraser Crighton, Lachlan Kermode and Malcolm Richards.
While we entered 2022 with Tauranga City having evaded another full
lockdown, it’s clear looking back that the more prolonged impacts of the pandemic
were only beginning being to be felt. The second half of the financial year was marked
by less dramatic yet lingering hindrances to the Gallery’s momentum, with low innercity visitation being reflected in Gallery attendance figures and restrictions reduced
our capacity to host events. Like all businesses, sickness spread through the Gallery
staff and household contacts, causing months of interruptions to staffing and the
workflow. The Gallery team are to be applauded for keeping the doors open to the
public throughout the first half of 2022.
While the second half of the financial year was marked by uncertainty, it was
heartening to see the Gallery continue to deliver quality collection-focused exhibitions
showcasing the work of Edward Bullmore and Robin White respectively. Our much
anticipated Miles Art Awards was launched online, with 2022 Supreme Award going
to Hannah Valentine for her sculpture Anytime (make it happen). The Gallery also
launched a new series of solo-shows focused on local emerging artists, with soloexhibitions by recent Toi-Ohomai graduates Rolph Hediger and Aniterewa Robertson.
The Gallery’s resilience was further demonstrated through its focus on offsite and outreach initiatives. Our virtual reality exhibition Terminus continues to tour
Aotearoa, having been presented in Whangarei Art Museum (17 December 2021),
alongside the new Hundertwasser Art Centre, and currently being presented at
Hastings Art Gallery.
Excluding off-site initiatives and associated programmes, the Gallery finishes
Q4 at 27,814 on-site visitors, 70% of our year-end target. Importantly however, once
outreach programmes, off-site exhibitions, and touring exhibitions are added, the
Gallery has nonetheless achieved a much higher level of engagement both within
Tauranga and nationally than through-the-door attendance records capture:
Tauranga-based programmes
27,814 Gallery visits
864 Education outreach programmes
53,858 Visitors to off-site exhibition
82,536 People reached at Tauranga venues
Touring exhibitions (Terminus)
12,499 Whangarei Art Museum
7,332 Hastings Art Gallery (through to 20 June)
19,831 National visitors
Total attendees to Tauranga Art Gallery programmes
102,367

6
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Staff
We continued as a Board to proactively provide governance and support to the
Director, as the Gallery has adapted continuity plans and worked to minimise
disruption to our programmes. As detailed above, this year has certainly been
challenging for the staff. However, the Gallery has nonetheless continued to build a
strong leadership team.
The appointment of experienced Melbourne-based, New Zealand-born
curator Serena Bentley to the role of Curator/ Exhibitions Manager is a coup for
Tauranga. As the addition of Sammy-Rose Scapens, who has joined the team as
Education Manager, bringing further passion and drive to this high-performing
team. Finally, the addition of Megan Cleverley, who joined the Gallery as Business
Development Manager, bodes well for enabling the Gallery to self-generate further
funds over the coming years.

Governance and Financials
The Trust, in keeping with its principles of maintaining high standards, undertook an
independent review of its governance procedures and activities. In May the Trustees
also welcomed Anthony Campbell who joined the Board as an Intern.
Tauranga Art Gallery Trust owns our site, the Gallery building, a collection
of art works in addition to other Gallery assets. For the period under review the total
revenue was $1,525,834 (compared to $1,292,988 last year). Expenses were $1,492,417
(compared to $1,308,065 in 2020/2021), resulting in a surplus for the year of $33,417
(after depreciation).
Other key numbers:
•
•
•
•
•

Assets: $1,469,651
Non-Current Assets (property, plant and equipment) $13,728,507
Total Assets $15,198,157
Liabilities $297,729
Total assets less total liabilities (net assets) $14,900,428

The Gallery has performed exceptionally well across the majority of its nonfinancial measures. However, success comes at a cost. In order to enable the Gallery
to continue to have a greater impact in Tauranga through its innovative programmes,
we face challenges to balance the budget in the long term. TAGT continues to
investigate and determine its best strategic options to future proof the Gallery so that
long term fiscal and operational capability is assured. Financial sustainability remains
a key focus over the coming years.

Thanks
The Friends of the Art Gallery continue to be enthusiastic and committed
supporters of the Gallery and their contributions and involvement in Gallery
activities is most appreciated.
The Trust also greatly appreciates the continued support of the Tauranga Art
Gallery Foundation and all its various funders, exhibition sponsors, supporters and of
course, our artists. Without this continued support we would not be able to provide
the exciting exhibitions and programmes that have become the hallmark of the
Tauranga Art Gallery. Thank you to you all.

Rosemary Protheroe,
Chair, Tauranga Art Gallery Trust

7

Item 11.1 - Attachment 3

Page 79

Ordinary Council meeting Attachments

3 October 2022

Year in review

Item 11.1 - Attachment 3

Page 80

Ordinary Council meeting Attachments

3 October 2022

Telly Tuita, from left: Summer
Death, Autumn Famine, Winter
Conquest,War in Spring, all 2020,
digital photographic prints.
Courtesy of Bergman Gallery,
Auckland/ Rarotonga. Photo
Stephen Cleland
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Tauranga Art Gallery Trust
(TAGT) was established
in 2005 to manage and
operate Tauranga Art
Gallery Toi Tauranga (TAG),
ensuring sound governance
and financial management.
TAG creates exceptional
art experiences that
engage, inspire, challenge,
and educate, through
exhibitions, public
programmes, and events.
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Director’s introduction
2021–22 is a year where the Gallery triumphed through strategic partnerships. Against all
odds, three major new commissions were realised through fruitful partnerships.
Most recently, we were thrilled to partner with Supercut Projects and Tauranga City Council to
enable Sara Hughes’ Midnight Sun to be extended around the perimeter of our building. The resulting
260m2 lightbox artwork, which will be in place for two years, has been warmly received. Utilising
printing technologies, Hughes produced an expansive colourful painting. The addition of specially
designed lighting has also improved the quality of the public spaces surrounding our building in the
evening hours, which has already resulted in a discernable decrease in anti-social behavior.
Our earlier Darcel Apelu commission was also initiated in partnership with Supercuts, enabling
the Gallery to achieve greater scale of ambition with the resulting sculpture than it could on its own.
And of course, our previous exhibition with Shannon Novak, which centred around a large-scale multicoloured floor installation, not only required us to partner with the LGBTQI+ community and our valued
corporate sponsor, Cooney Lees Morgan, but also demonstrated the much greater reach the Gallery
can achieve through partnering with additional off-site venues.

Stakeholders
In such turbulent times, stakeholder relationships can be put to the test. Much like business, the art
scene is a ‘contact sport’. While art openings and associated talks and events can seem like a luxury, as
the pandemic restricted our ability to stage such public forums, and in some instances even prevented
an artist from attending their own exhibition, it was clear that something vital was lost. Regardless
of the medium, art must be experienced in the flesh, and as good as virtual forums are they are no
substitute for the discourse, debate, and discussion that results from experiencing art in the flesh. As
restrictions eased in 2022 the anticipation for resuming opening events and discussions was palpable,
culminating in a packed-out Atrium to greet Robin White’s public talk in June. We greatly appreciate the
continued support of our valued supporters over this time, and we look forward to building momentum
in our events and programmes over the coming year.
We were pleased to partner with Tauranga City Council in completing our cost benefit analysis
work with Fresh Info. This piece of research allows the Gallery to better express the value of our
activities to Tauranga City. The next step is to utilise these metrics as a template for increasing our
capacity to be even more impactful in the years to come, for the benefits of Tauranga residents, the
vitality of Tauranga City, and of course the talented local, national and international artists that we have
the privilege of working with across the year.
A benefit of the turbulent year has been strengthened relationship with our primary stakeholder,
Tauranga City Council. Productive meetings have continued with our valued TCC advisors and
supporters. The addition of new opportunities for myself, as well as the CEOs for fellow CCOs Bay
Venues and Tourism Bay of Plenty to participate in Council Senior Lead Team meetings, workshops and
events, has also been greatly appreciated. While each CCO still retains its autonomy and uniqueness,
it seems that productive conversations for shaping the culture of Tauranga have never been so fluid,
which bodes well as the city enters large-scale developments.

Te Manawataki o Te Papa
Looking to the coming financial year, we are excited to be part of the quickly developing Te Manawataki
o Te Papa civic precinct. Conversations with lead architects and planners are progressing at pace and
we remain focused on the opportunities that this development affords for the Gallery to continue to
increase its audience engagement and impact in Tauranga.

Stephen Cleland, Director
Tauranga Art Gallery Toi Tauranga
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2021-22 Highlights

101,503

Visitors to programmes
27,814 Gallery visits
53,858 Visits to Defending Plurality off-site projects in Tauranga
19,831 Visits to Tauranga Art Gallery touring exhibitions

18

Exhibitions
12 Gallery-based exhibitions
4 off-site projects across the city
2 off-site touring exhibitions

40

Bay of Plenty artists exhibited

3

Major commissions
Shannon Novak installation
Darcell Apelu, lead sculpture commission for the Tauranga Arts Festival
Sara Hughes commission

13

Events
Including openings and stakeholder events for the Friends of
Tauranga Art Gallery and the Tauranga Art Gallery Foundation
12
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Visitor Surveys
Gender

Where do you reside?

Other 3%

Western
BOP
10%

Not specified 6%

Rest of NZ
34%

Female 59%
Male 32%

Tauranga 54%

International 1%
No answer 2%

Ethnicity

How was your visit?

NZ European /
Pakeha
66%
Highly
Satisfied
77%

Maori 9%

Good
20%

Poor 1%
No answer
1%

Not
specified
4%

Pacifika 1%
Other 12%

Asian 8%
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Exhibitions

14
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Installation view: City of Tomorrow:
Gavin Hipkins and Natalie Guy,
2022,Tauranga Art Gallery.
Photo: Stephen Cleland
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Jaime Jenkins, Bell Tower (blue),
2020, stoneware ceramic sculpture.
Miles Art Awards, Tauranga Art
Gallery. Photo courtesy of the artist
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Goodbye Bay of Plenty:
Robin White Prints from
the Tauranga Art Gallery
Collection
09.04—14.08.22
Dame Robin White (Ngati
Awa/Pakeha) is recognised
as one of New Zealand’s key
painters and printmakers. This
collection-focused exhibition
provided an overview of our
holdings of Robin White’s work,
from her early regionalist style
screenprints to works influenced
by her Pacific travels. It was also
timed to coincide with the major
touring retrospective Robin
White: Something is Happening
Here, which opened in May at
Te Papa Tongarewa Museum of
New Zealand and co-developed
with Auckland Art Gallery Toi o
Tamaki, for which the Gallery has
lent four additional works.

3 October 2022

Andrew Beck:
Soft Filter
04.06—30.10.22

Gavin Hipkins and Natalie
Guy: City of Tomorrow
04.06—23.10.22

Soft Filter was a new large-scale
commission for the Gallery’s
atrium by Tauranga-raised artist,
Andrew Beck. Beck’s highly
experimental photographs are
produced by exposing large
sheets of light sensitive paper
in the darkroom. In the resulting
images the familiar becomes
oddly alien and concepts of
realism and abstraction merge,
allowing us to see every day
phenomena with new eyes.

City of Tomorrow brought
together photographic artist
Gavin Hipkins and Taurangaborn sculptor Natalie Guy,
who each contend with the
early aspirations of modern
architecture. The exhibition also
featured Hipkins’ The Homely
II, a 35-metre-long band of
photographic prints described as
‘a post-colonial Gothic novel’.
Project Partner: City Gallery
Wellington

Project Partner: TECT

Edward Bullmore:
Chair about to fly
02.05—29.05.22
This exhibition featured a tight
selection of the Edward Bullmore
(1933–1978) artworks gifted
to the Tauranga Art Gallery in
2006 by his widow, Jacqueline
Bullmore. Considered one of
Aotearoa’s earliest Surrealist
visual artists, Bullmore
challenged the constraints of
New Zealand’s predominantly
nationalist art canon of the
time, with his Surrealist fusion
of the New Zealand landscape
and the human form, and it was
not until he traveled to Europe
and England that he achieved
success as an artist.

Anitarewa Robertson:
Window-framebook-brick
18.06—23.10.22
The second in a focused
series of emerging artists’
projects, Tauranga Art Gallery
was pleased to present the
first public solo exhibition by
Tauranga artist, Anitarewa
Robertson. Robertson uses
found and discarded materials to
create sensitive and tactile works
that bridge drawing, painting,
collage, craft, and sculptural
installation. In this exhibition,
these materials embodied a
‘lived’ experience beyond the
physical, and the innate histories
of the ephemera she collects
provided a rich starting point
for her work.

17

Item 11.1 - Attachment 3

Page 89

Ordinary Council meeting Attachments

Rolph Hediger:
For Theirs Is The
Kingdom Of Heaven
04.02.21—12.04.22
For Theirs is the Kingdom of
Heaven is an ongoing project
that started at the beginning
of 2021. Hediger presented a
collection of interviews and
portraits of various people
from all walks of life, including
doctors, artists, the mentally ill,
the homeless, priests, people
suffering from addiction, the
sick, the disabled, immigrants,
and the elderly. The individuals’
unique features disappeared,
highlighting commonalities
between sitters that might not
be evident at first.

In the Wake:
Rena 10 years on
6.11.21—3.04.22
In the Wake: Rena 10 years on
was a group exhibition timed
to coincide with the 10-year
anniversary of the worst
environmental disaster to be
witnessed in Aotearoa.
This focused presentation of
six projects both surveyed
selected artists’ responses
to the event and presented
poignant reflections on the
larger impact of the global
shipping industry. Each artwork
invited us to consider other
background factors in the Rena
disaster which continue to play
out in culture today, not least
of which the tension between
the contemporary port as major
element of a coastal city’s
infrastructure and enviromental
concerns.
Supported by: BayTrust

The Miles Art Awards
04.02—15.05.22
This biennial exhibition was an
opportunity for local artists to
submit their artworks for the
seventh installment of Tauranga’s
premier art award, generously
supported by The Venetta Miles
Trust. The finalists’ works were
displayed in a curated exhibition
with guest judge Aaron Lister
(Senior Curator at City Gallery
Wellington) selecting winners in
numerous categories.
Supported by: Venetta Miles
Trust, Tauranga City Council,
BOP Times, The Incubator, The
Friends of Tauranga Art Gallery

3 October 2022

Darcell Apelu:
A Death Of Prosperity
27.11.21—17.04.22
A Death of Prosperity was
a sculpture by local artist
Darcell Apelu (Niue/NZ
European). Occupying ‘prime
real estate’, Apelu’s sculpture
is both a satirical monument to
colonisation and a functioning
fountain. Developed for the
Tauranga Arts Festival by
Supercut Projects in partnership
with TAG and funded by CNZ.
Project partners: Te Tuhi,
Tauranga Arts Festival,
Supercuts, CNZ, TECT

The Moral Drift
23.10.21—23.01.22
The Moral Drift was an
interdisciplinary project
developed by a collective of
investigative researchers.
It brought together Fraser
Crichton—a Te Whanganuia-Tara based researcher and
documentary photographer,
Malcolm Richards—a survivor
of abuse in care at the
former Lake Alice Child and
Adolescent Unit, and Lachlan
Kermode—a Research Fellow at
the international human rights
agency Forensic Architecture.
Together they investigated a
partial history of Aotearoa’s state
care system, uncovering a legacy
of abuse and the resiliency of the
survivors who continue to seek
justice today.
Principal Exhibition Partner:
Holland Beckett

Bruce Connew:
A Vocabulary
23.10.21—23.01.22
Over several years,
photographer and artist Bruce
Connew roamed the many
memorials and gravestones of
Aotearoa’s colonial wars to seek
out the texts on these testaments
to folly: A vocabulary of
colonisation. Depicting remnants
of memorials scattered across
mostly Te Ika-a-Maui North
Island, the exhibition sought to
interact with residual memory,
what is misremembered or not
remembered, and to contend
with the Imperially inflected
histories scattered across
Aotearoa.
Touring Partner: Te Uru Gallery,
Auckland
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Manawatia Takatapui /
Defending Plurality
Ongoing
Developed by artist and activist
Shannon Novak, the artistcurator made space for others
in the rainbow community.
Parts of the exhibition centred a
range of LGBTQI+ practitioners
from Aotearoa, with a particular
focus on rainbow BIPOC that
may or may not identify with the
LGBTQI+ acronym, including
but not limited to Takatapui
and MVPFAFF+. Indivisibilidad/
Indivisibility, 2021 by Tamaki
Makaurau-based activist Eliana
Rubashkyn and Shannon Novak
remains in Tauranga Art Gallery’s
elevator.
Principle Exhibition Partner:
Cooney Lees Morgan
Offsite exhibition venues:
Baycourt, Bayfair, The Incubator
Creative Hub, The Kollective,
Our Place Magazine

19
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Touring exhibitions
Terminus: Jess Johnson & Simon
Ward toured to Whangarei Art
Museum 18.12.2021—19.03.2022
and Hastings Art Gallery
30.04—24.10.2022.
With their pioneering use
of virtual reality, artists Jess
Johnson and Simon Ward have
created a mysterious universe

of alien architecture populated
by humanoid clones and cryptic
symbols. Johnson’s drawings are
transformed from analogue into
digital, animated by Ward and
enriched with input from developer
Kenny Smith and sound composer
Andrew Clarke to create a virtual
realty quest; a choose-your-own
adventure into the technological.

20
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Community outreach highlights

Squiggla Family Fun Day
25.06.2022
Our first Squiggla Family Day
was run in partnership with
Chartwell Trust. We held three
booked-out sessions teaching
the principles of abstract art to
people of all ages.

NCEA Level 1 & 2 Folio
Exhibition 2021–2022
16.12.2021—16.01.2022
This popular annual exhibition
was staged in our Gallery
Education Studio. For current
secondary school students it
provided an opportunity to
view folio boards created by the
region’s leading NCEA students,
and general visitors were also
provided a glimpse of the next
generation of promising artists.

Bite-sized lunchtime
talk series
Throughout the month of
June, the Gallery hosted three
lunchtime floor talks aimed at
developing new audiences
from the CBD.
• Toi Ohomai Course Leader
and award-winning printmaker,
Nicol Sanders-O’Shea spoke
about Robin White’s printmaking
techniques
• Stephen Cleland spoke on the
Robin White exhibition, Goodbye
Bay of Plenty
• Serena Bentley and Sara
Hughes spoke on Sara
Hughes’ major public
artwork, Midnight Sun

Matariki Star Hunt
June 2022

Sara Hughes public
artwork Midnight Sun
21.06.2022

For Matariki we held our second
Star Hunt, which was geared to
both introduce younger visitors
to the Matariki constellation
and provide an innovative way
for children to engage with the
exhibitions.

The Gallery partnered with
Supercut Projects and Tauranga
City Council to realise this largescale long-term public artwork.
Midnight Sun launched at the
Gallery on Winter Solstice.
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Education

22
Squiggla Workshop, Tauranga Art Gallery,
June 2022. Photo: Stephen Cleland
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Education Highlights

7,367

Total participants in programmes, including:

5,498

Tamariki Attended ELC
(Enriching Local Curriculum) programmes

40

Outreach visits to schools across BOP
Engaging 864 students

49

TAG Art Studios for Children workshops:
Involving 610 participants

35

Unique schools partipated in programmes

920

Teachers and supporters
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Education programmes

It has been another busy and productive year for the Education team. Despite significant
challenges faced due to the COVID-19 pandemic—including the slow return of school groups
as Alert Levels were eased—we have both performed well across our existing programmes and
developed exciting new initiatives along the way.
A highlight of the year was the programme developed for the exhibition Unseen, by artist Gabby
O’Connor. The tactile qualities of this installation allowed us to engage a broad range of learners and
community members, from early childhood learners to the elderly. The artist’s interests in both science
and art also enabled us to develop links with broad curriculum foci.
The Education programme experienced significant disruption across the year. Throughout the
period many confirmed school groups cancelled or rescheduled their visits due to sickness in teachers
and pupils. In 2022 severe sickness also struck staff within the department and the broader Gallery
whanau, resulting in further cancellations due to staff shortages. A combined total of 2,793 student
bookings needed to be cancelled or rescheduled over the year. Understandably, as a result this year
we fell short of our 7,500 target, reaching 4,634 participants for Gallery-based programmes from 35
schools in Tauranga and the Western BOP. These class visits were accompanied by 920 teachers and
supporters, and a further 864 tamariki were reached through our new outreach programmes, totaling
6,418 participants. On balance, the team has done exceptionally well to reach this number given the
significant disruptions experienced.
In addition to the above programmes, we continued to partner with Toi Ohomai Institute of
Technology to host a series of workshops introducing pathways into higher learning for secondary
school students. Three workshops involving 76 participants were hosted at the Gallery and received
positive feedback from both participating schools and the Toi Ohomai tutors alike.
We hosted 49 TAG Art Studios for children, adults and families, with 610 participants across
the year. While some scheduled Family Fun Days holiday programmes and Drop-in Sessions were
interrupted, in partnership with Chartwell Trust the Gallery successfully staged its first ‘Squiggla’ event,
which proved extremely popular for the 126 participants across a single day.
Finally, in additional to the above figures, we organised the following initiatives which contribute
to the grand total of 7,367 participants across all our programmes:
•
•
•
•
		

1 x Early Childhood Education group, 9 participants
2 x Tertiary groups: 33 participants
1 x TAG Art studios for Adult workshops: 9 participants
6 x Community groups: 86 participants
Total 137

Our free ArtBus service for schools throughout Tauranga and the Western Bay of Plenty
continues to be an asset to the programme, enabling all learners to access our programmes. This service
was generously supported by Western Bay of Plenty District Council.
Early Childhood Education (ECE) continues to be an ongoing area of development for the
Education Team. We plan to ramp up our ECE programme significantly in the 2022–23 year, with two
focused ECE programmes in development and exciting relationships forming in the sector.
Looking forward, we are also pleased to have renewed our ELC contract with the Ministry of
Education, which comes into effect in the 2022-23 financial year. The Gallery last held this contract
in 2019 and has absorbed the impacts of this lost revenue through additional fundraising for the past
three years. While this new contract only covers a portion of the funding required for our Education
programmes, securing the contestable funding reflects well on the quality of our programmes and
opens more opportunities to develop new and exciting initiatives over the coming years.
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Squiggla Workshop, Tauranga Art Gallery,
26
June 2022. Photo: Stephen Cleland
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Performance Report
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Darcell Apelu, A Death of Prosperity
2021/22, Tauranga Art Gallery.
Photo: Erin Cave
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2022 Performance report - Tier 3
Tauranga Art Gallery
For the year ended 30 June 2022
Prepared by KPMG Tauranga
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Compilation report
Tauranga Art Gallery
For the year ended 30 June 2022
Compilation Report to Tauranga Art Gallery

Scope
On the basis of information provided and in accordance with Service Engagement Standard 2 Compilation of Financial
Information, we have compiled the financial statements of Tauranga Art Gallery for the year ended 30 June 2022.
These statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies described in the Notes to these financial
statements.

Responsibilities
Tauranga Art Gallery is solely responsible for the information contained in the special purpose financial statements and have
determined that the Tier 3 PBE Accounting Standards Framework used is appropriate to meet your needs and for the purpose
that the financial statements were prepared.
The financial statements were prepared exclusively for your benefit. We do not accept responsibility to any other person for the
contents of the financial statements.

Disclaimer

T
F
A
DR

We have compiled the financial statements of Tauranga Art Gallery for the year ended 30 June 2022 in accordance with the
limited procedures agreed in our letter of engagement dated 7th July 2017.
Our procedures use accounting expertise to undertake the compilation of the financial statements from information provided to
by you. The compilation is limited primarily to the collecting, classifying and summarisation of financial information supplied by
you. Our procedures do not involve verification or validation procedures. No audit or review has been performed and
accordingly no assurance is expressed. We have not attempted to verify the accuracy or completeness of the information and
therefore neither we nor any of our employees or agents accept any responsibility for the accuracy of the information from
which the special purpose financial statements have been prepared.
These financial statements have been prepared at your request for your purpose only and neither we nor, any of our employees
or agents accept any responsibility on any ground whatsoever, including liability in negligence, to any other person.
KPMG
Level 2
247 Cameron Road
Tauranga
Dated:
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Entity Information
Tauranga Art Gallery
For the year ended 30 June 2022
Legal Name of Entity
The Tauranga Art Gallery Trust

Entity Type and Legal Basis
The Tauranga Art Gallery Trust (Trust) is a charitable trust formed in 1998 and is registered as a charitable entity under the New
Zealand Charities Act 2005. The Trust also has charitable status with the Inland Revenue Department.

Registration Number
CC38535

Entity's Purpose or Mission
The primary objective of The Tauranga Art Gallery Trust is to develop and manage a public art gallery for the community, rather
than making a financial return.

Entity Structure

T
F
A
DR

The Trust is controlled by the Tauranga City Council and is a Council Controlled Organisation as defined in section 7 of the Local
Government Act 2002.
The Trust comprises a Board of 8 Trustees who oversee the governance of the Trust, a Director who is responsible for the day to
day operations of the Trust and reporting to the Trustees, as well as 6 full time, 6 part time and 14 casual staff who support the
Director in delivering against the Trust’s objectives. The Trustees are appointed by the Tauranga City Council.

Main Sources of Entity's Cash and Resources

An operating grant received from the Tauranga City Council is the Trust’s main source of income. The Trust also has a
Community Service Contract with the Western Bay of Plenty District Council and had a 3-year Contract for Service with the
Ministry of Education to provide Learning and Education Outside the Classroom (LEOTC) programmes to local schools.

Physical Address
108 Willow Street, Tauranga, Tauranga, New Zealand, 3110

Postal Address
108 Willow Street, Tauranga, Tauranga, New Zealand,3110

Contact details
Corner of Wharf and Willow Streets
Box 13255, Tauranga 3141 | New Zealand
Phone 07 578 7933
email: accounts@artgallery.org.nz
www.artgallery.org.nz
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Statement of Financial Performance
Tauranga Art Gallery
For the year ended 30 June 2022
'How was it funded?' and 'What did it cost?'

NOTES

2022 ACTUAL $

2022 BUDGET $

2021 ACTUAL $

1,027,334

Revenue
Funding from Local and Central Government

1

1,244,284

1,243,912

Non-government grants, sponsorship and donations

1

125,495

135,865

51,162

Interest, dividends and other investment revenue

1

8,914

12,000

11,406

Other revenue

1

Total Revenue

147,142

296,403

203,087

1,525,834

1,688,180

1,292,988

Expenses
Volunteer and employee related costs

2

725,758

841,608

633,500

Advertising and marketing

2

35,611

50,500

36,169

2

6,292

6,300

6,292

152,422

145,032

145,538

569,706

637,830

485,462

2,628

4,000

1,105

1,492,417

1,685,270

1,308,065

33,417

2,910

(15,077)

Lease expense

T
F
A
DR

Depreciation and amortisation

Costs related to providing goods or service
Special Projects
Total Expenses

2

Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year

Other Comprehensive Revenue & Expense
Property, plant and equipment revaluations

1,889,392

-

3,012,569

Total Other Comprehensive Revenue & Expense

1,889,392

-

3,012,569

1,922,809

2,910

2,997,492

Total Comprehensive Revenue and Expense

Explanation of major variances against budget are provided on Note "13.Explanations of Major Variances to budget"
For and on behalf of the Trustees:
______________________________
Deputy Chair
Date:

______________________________

Chair

Date:
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This statement has been prepared without conducting an audit or review engagement, and should be read in conjunction with the attached
Compilation Report.
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Statement of Financial Position
Tauranga Art Gallery
As at 30 June 2022
NOTES

30 JUN 2022

30 JUN 2021

Assets
Current Assets
Bank accounts and cash

3

594,638

534,339

Debtors and prepayments

3

14,224

49,773

Inventory

3

7,063

5,713

Term Deposits

3

853,726

641,469

Other Current Assets

3

Total Current Assets

-

6,800

1,469,651

1,238,094

Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment

13,728,507

11,975,839

Total Non-Current Assets

13,728,507

11,975,839

15,198,157

13,213,933

Total Assets

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

T
F
A
DR

Creditors and accrued expenses

4

225,325

Employee costs payable

4

72,404

63,145

297,729

236,314

297,729

236,314

14,900,428

12,977,619

Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Total Assets less Total Liabilities (Net Assets)
Accumulated Funds

173,169

Capital contributed by owners or members

5

1,000,000

1,000,000

Accumulated surpluses or (deficits)

5

6,033,121

5,999,704

Reserves

5

Total Accumulated Funds
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7,867,307

5,977,915

14,900,428

12,977,619
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Statement of Cash Flows

Tauranga Art Gallery
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Donations, fundraising and other similar receipts
Funding from Central and Local Government
Receipts from non-governmental sources for providing of goods or services
Interest, dividends and other investment receipts
GST
Payments to suppliers and employees
Total Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing and Financing Activities

Receipts from sale of investments
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment
Payments to purchase investments
Cash flows from other investing and financing activities
Total Cash Flows from Investing and Financing Activities

2022

2021

201,304
1,243,925
152,886
6,011
(239)
(1,316,000)
287,887

53,321
1,027,334
161,177
15,170
1,694
(1,171,680)
87,016

0
(15,302)
(212,257)
(27)
(227,586)

0
(64,605)
(14,895)
0
(79,500)

60,301

7,516

534,339
594,638
60,299

526,827
534,343
7,516

T
F
A
DR

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash

Bank Accounts and Cash

Opening cash
Closing cash
Net change in cash for period

36
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Statement of Accounting Policies
Tauranga Art Gallery
For the year ended 30 June 2022
Basis of Preparation
The entity has elected to apply PBE SFR-A (PS) Public Benefit Entity Simple Format Reporting - Accrual (Public Sector) on the
basis that it does not have public accountability and has total annual expenses equal to or less than $2,000,000. All transactions
in the Performance Report are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. The Performance Report is prepared under the
assumption that the entity will continue to operate in the foreseeable future.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)
The entity is registered for GST. All amounts are stated exclusive of goods and services tax (GST) except for accounts payable
and accounts receivable which are stated inclusive of GST.

Grants
Council, government and non-government grants are recognised as revenue when the funding is received or receivable unless
there is an obligation to return the funds if conditions of the grant are not met (“use or return condition”). If there is such an
obligation, the grant is initially recorded as a liability and recognised as revenue when conditions of the grant are satisfied.

Sale of goods

T
F
A
DR

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are sold to the customer.

Sale of services

Revenue from the sale of services is recognised when the services are provided to the customer.

Donated assets

Revenue from donated assets is recognised upon receipt of the asset, if the asset has a useful life of 12 months or more and the
value of the asset is readily obtainable and significant.

Entrance fees
Entrance fees are not charged, any revenue in the form of admission donations is recognised upon receipt of the donation.

Venue hire
Fees charged for events or venue hire are recognised upon attendance at the event or at the time of venue hire. Refundable fees,
paid in advance of an event or venue hire are recognised as liabilities until the time of the event or venue hire, at which time they
are recognised as revenue. Non-refundable deposits are recognised as revenue at the time of receipt.
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Statement of Accounting Policies

Interest and dividend revenue
Interest revenue is recorded as it is earned during the year. Dividend revenue is recognised when the dividend is declared.

Employee related costs
Wages, salaries and annual leave are recorded as an expense as staff provide services and become entitled to wages, salaries
and leave entitlements.
Performance payments are recorded when the employee is notified that the payment has been granted.
Superannuation contributions are recorded as an expense as staff provide the services and become entitled to the
contributions.

Advertising, marketing, administration, overhead and fundraising costs
These costs are expensed when the related service has been received.

Lease expense

T
F
A
DR

Lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Bank Accounts and Cash

Bank accounts and cash in the Statement of Cash Flows comprise cash balances and bank balances (including short term
deposits) with original maturities of 90 days or less.

Debtors

Debtors are initially recorded at the amount owed. When it is likely the amount owed (or some portion) will not be collected, a
provision for impairment is recognised and the loss is recorded as a bad debt expense.

Inventories
Inventories are initially recorded at cost. Goods held for sale are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and their selling
price. Goods for use or distribution are subsequently measured at cost and written down if they become obsolete.
When inventories are sold, exchanged or distributed, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expense is recognised when the goods are
distributed or the related service is rendered.
The amount of any write-down of inventories and all losses of inventories is recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Statement of Accounting Policies

Investments
Investments comprise term deposits with banks. Bank deposits are initially measured at the amount paid. The carrying value of
bank deposits maturing within 12 months approximates their fair value. If it appears that the carrying amount of the investment
will not be recovered, it is written down to expected recoverable amount.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Land is measured at fair value and buildings are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation. All other asset classes
are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Land, buildings and artwork are revalued with sufficient regularity to ensure that their carrying amount does not differ
materially from fair value. A revaluation is undertaken at least every three years with the most recent being 30 June 2022.
Revaluation movements are accounted for on a class-of-asset basis.
The net revaluation results are credited or debited to other comprehensive revenue and expense and are accumulated to an
asset revaluation reserve in equity for that class of asset. Where this would result in a debit balance in the asset revaluation
reserve, this balance is not recognised in other comprehensive revenue and expense but is recognised in the surplus or deficit.
Any subsequent increase on revaluation that reverses a previous decrease in value recognised in the surplus or deficit will be
recognised first in the surplus or deficit up to the amount previously expensed and then recognised in other comprehensive
revenue and expense.

T
F
A
DR

Donated assets are recognised upon receipt of the asset if the asset has a useful life of 12 months or more and the current value
of the asset can be readily obtainable and significant. For an asset to be used by the Trust, the asset is impaired if the value to
the Trust in using the asset falls below the carrying amount of the asset.
Depreciation is provided on a straight line (SL) or diminishing value (DV) basis, at rates that will write the asset off over their
useful lives. The useful lives and associated depreciation rates of major classes of assets is unchanged from prior year and
estimated as follows:
Rate

SL and/or DV

N/A

N/A

Land

N/A

N/A

Building

1.0% - 2.0%

SL

Building Improvements

1.0% - 33.3% / 20%

SL/DV

Office equipment

4.0% - 30.0%

DV

Exhibition Equipment

6.6% - 40.0%

DV

Computer Equipment:

20.0%

DV

Tools and Workshop Equipment

10.0%

DV

Intangibles

20.0% - 50.0%

DV

Artworks

Creditors and accrued expenses
Creditors and accrued expenses are measured at the amount owed.

2022 Performance report - Tier 3

Tauranga Art Gallery

Page 10 of 17

39
39

Item 11.1 - Attachment 3

Page 111

Ordinary Council meeting Attachments

3 October 2022

Statement of Accounting Policies

Employee costs payable
A liability for employee costs payable is recognised when an employee has earned the entitlement.
These include salaries and wages accrued up to balance date and annual leave earned but not yet taken at balance date. A
liability and expense for long service leave and gratuities are recognised when the entitlement becomes available to the
employee.

Loans
Loans are recognised at the amount borrowed from the lender. Loan balances include interest accrued at year end that has not
yet been paid.

Provisions
The Trust recognises a provision for future expenditure of uncertain amount or timing when there is a present obligation as a
result of a past event, if it is probable that expenditure will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

Income Tax

T
F
A
DR

Tauranga Art Gallery is wholly exempt from New Zealand income tax having fully complied with all statutory conditions for these
exemptions.

Budget figures

The budget is approved by the Board at the beginning of each financial year.

The budget figures have been approved in accordance with Tier 3 standards, using accounting policies that are consistent with
those adopted by the Board in preparing these financial statements.

Tier 2 PBE Accounting Standards applied
The trust has not applied any Tier 2 PBE accounting standards in preparing these financial statements.

Changes in Accounting Policies
There have been no changes in accounting policies. Policies have been applied on a consistent basis with those of the previous
reporting period.
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Notes to the Performance Report
Tauranga Art Gallery
For the year ended 30 June 2022
2022

BUDGET 2022

2021

1,203,925

1,203,912

969,992

-

-

3,472

1,203,925

1,203,912

973,464

40,000

40,000

53,870

359

-

-

1,244,284

1,243,912

1,027,334

17,500

1. Analysis of Revenue
Funding from Central and Local Government
Tauranga City Council
Operating Grant
Collections
Total Tauranga City Council
Western Bay of Plenty District Council
MSD COVID-19 Wage Subsidy
Total Funding from Central and Local Government
Non-government grants, sponsorship and donations
Exhibition Sponsorship

75,304

62,500

Artbus Sponsorship

25,000

20,000

1,050

Admission Donations

11,735

28,000

19,686

Other donations

T
F
A
DR
-

-

2,000

500 Club / Contemporary Corporate Donations

Donation of art works (non- cash)

5,000

5,000

2,000

FoTAG Donations

4,569

12,000

3,100

1,759

1,200

1,613

916

1,200

1,236

-

5,000

-

1,212

965

2,977

Other Sponsorship In Kind
TECT Cheque

Grants Other (Non Ed/Exh related)
Donations Other
Total Other donations

Total Non-government grants, sponsorship and donations
Interest, dividends and other investment revenue

13,455

25,365

12,926

125,495

135,865

51,162

8,914

12,000

11,406

Other revenue
Education programme revenue

34,296

82,500

59,736

Events and exhibitions

69,632

130,603

42,429

Exhibition Touring Income

10,000

19,500

37,037

Retail Sales

22,464

42,000

42,201

Venue hire

5,504

18,800

12,602

Sundry Income

5,245

3,000

9,082

147,142

296,403

203,087

Total Other revenue
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Notes to the Performance Report

2022

BUDGET 2022

2021

709,015

797,526

617,276

-

23,682

-

6,905

3,000

10,437

2. Analysis of Expenses
Volunteer and employee related costs
Salaries and wages
Employee Superannuation contributions
Recruitment and HR costs
Staff travel

1,530

4,200

958

Staff training

4,175

7,000

1,962

Other Employee related costs

4,133

3,900

2,868

-

2,300

-

725,758

841,608

633,500

Advertising Print Media

4,320

9,000

9,679

Advertising Radio, TV

4,998

-

4,165
2,249

Contractor expenses
Total Volunteer and employee related costs
Advertising and marketing

Digital Media

2,658

6,000

Marketing and advertising Other

2,016

11,000

891

13,852

17,000

14,305

Graphic Design
Large Format M&M

T
F
A
DR

Total Advertising and marketing
Lease expense
TCC Car Park Lease

7,768

7,500

4,880

35,611

50,500

36,169

3,200

3,204

3,200

TCC Transformer Site Rental

3,092

3,096

3,092

Total Lease expense

6,292

6,300

6,292

Costs related to providing goods or services
Accounting and payroll administration
Administration expenses
Audit fees
Building and maintenance
Consultants and legal
Cost of goods sold

7,725

6,000

3,700

89,834

98,003

65,339

27,600

25,020

16,281

134,091

151,839

155,243

8,133

12,000

19,588

20,805

27,038

21,484

Education expenses - Art bus

23,458

40,000

28,444

Education program expenses

12,192

26,750

10,072

Interest Expense
Insurance
Venue Hire
Collection expenses
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1

-

-

24,111

24,000

23,450

90

7,000

1,353

1,200

2,400

2,035
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Notes to the Performance Report

2022

BUDGET 2022

2021

Event and exhibition expenses
Exhibition Catalogue
Exhibition Contractors
Exhibition Misc Expenses
Artist Exhibition Fee
Fundraising Expenses
Graphics Production Exhibitions
Licencing Fees

-

18,375

17,712

31,514

1,750

2,120

1,434

300

1,169

25,255

19,160

17,690

86

3,000

86

4,625

11,025

15,678

550

1,700

550

Materials Exhibition

79,158

64,950

19,133

Miles Art Awards Expenses

12,139

34,368

13,155

Opening Exhibition/TAG Event expenses

4,440

7,770

400

Artist related expenses

8,040

7,820

2,235

Paint

2,368

7,475

9,541

-

9,600

5,796

4,276

7,000

11,589

14,607

13,000

327

8,840

31,600

21,832

Rydal Art Prize Expenses
TAG Events Supplies and Facilities
Touring Costs Exhibitions
Freight
Staff Travel Costs

T
F
A
DR

Total Event and exhibition expenses

Total Costs related to providing goods or services

3. Analysis of Assets
Bank accounts and cash
BNZ Oncall account
BNZ Operational Account
Credit card

Total Bank accounts and cash

908

100

477

220,467

217,780

138,473

569,706

637,830

485,462

2022

BUDGET 2022

2021

556,484

-

499,415

38,154

-

34,924

646

-

(2,661)

595,285

-

531,679

47,582

Debtors and prepayments
Debtors

8,117

-

Prepayments

1,014

-

-

Interest Accrued

5,094

-

2,190

14,224

-

49,773

7,063

-

5,713

-

-

6,800

153,726

-

641,469

Total Debtors and prepayments
Inventory
Inventory
Other current assets
Assets Available for Sale ex Quikbooks
Investments
Term deposits

All investments are fixed interest investments deposited with a maturity date of 12 month or less.
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Notes to the Performance Report

2022

BUDGET 2022

2021

4. Analysis of Liabilities
Creditors and accrued expenses
Accounts Payable

64,052

-

78,508

Accruals

70,254

-

40,681

Business Credit Card
GST
Income in Advance
Total Creditors and accrued expenses

(646)

-

2,661

13,354

-

13,593

78,312

-

37,726

225,325

-

173,169

Employee costs payable
Holiday Pay Accrual

47,584

-

46,395

Salary Accruals

24,820

-

16,750

Total Employee costs payable

72,404

-

63,145

2022

BUDGET 2022

2021

5. Accumulated Funds
Accumulated Funds
Opening Balance

T
F
A
DR

Opening Balance Adjustment
Reserves

Accumulated surpluses or (deficits)
Total Accumulated Funds
Total Accumulated Funds

12,977,619

-

9,980,127

(1,889,392)

-

(3,012,569)

1,889,392

-

3,012,569

1,922,809

-

2,997,492

14,900,428

-

12,977,619

14,900,428

-

12,977,619

2022

BUDGET 2022

2021

6. Breakdown of Reserves
Reserves
Land Revaluation Reserve

3,630,060

-

3,401,060

Building Revaluation Reserve

3,727,998

-

2,385,276

Collection Revaluation Reserve
Total Reserves
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-

191,579

7,867,307

-

5,977,915
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Notes to the Performance Report

2022

BUDGET 2022

2021

7. Operating Lease Commitments
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals payable:
Less than one year
Between one and five years
More than five years
Total Non-cancellable operating lease rentals payable:

3,413

-

3,413

987

-

4,400

-

-

-

4,400

-

7,813

8. Significant Grants and Donations with Conditions not Recorded as a Liability
No such revenue noted in 2022 Financial year (2021: Nil)

9. Related Parties
Related party disclosures have not been made for transactions with related parties that are within a normal, supplier or
client/recipient relationship on terms and conditions no more or less favourable than those that it is reasonable to expect the
Trust would have adopted in dealing with the party at arm’s length in the same circumstances.

T
F
A
DR

There are no related party transactions to disclose in 2022 and no related party transactions disclosed in 2021.

10. Events After the Balance Date

There were no events that have occurred after the balance date that would have a material impact on the Performance Report
(Last year - nil).

11. Ability to Continue Operating

The entity will continue to operate for the foreseeable future.

12. Contingencies

There are no contingencies or guarantees as at balance date 30 June 2022 (2021 nil)
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Depreciation expense

Depreciation expense

(129,290)

7,597,700

-

4,018,000

58,593

(6,697)

-

-

1,583

63,706

22,802

(7,245)

-

-

-

30,047

62,109

(8,441)

-

-

12,791

57,759

EXHIBITION
EQUIPMENT

COMPUTER
EQUIPMENT
WEBSITE
INTANGIBLE

2022 Performance report - Tier 3
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Artworks are stated at market value as determined by an independent valuer. The most recent valuation was performed by Art + Object, effective 21 June 2021.

6,500

(722)

-

-

-

7,223

TOOLS AND
WORKSHOP

7,223

(799)

-

-

-

8,022

TOOLS AND
WORKSHOP

Land and buildings are stated at fair value as determined by an independent valuer. The most recent valuation was performed by Quotable Value Ltd effective 30 June 2021.

Carrying amount at 30 June 2022

1,342,722

-

1,296

6,382,972

229,000

-

Capitalised Work in Progress

Revaluation

-

3,789,000

57,759

(5,989)

-

-

7,287

56,461

EXHIBITION
EQUIPMENT

30,047

(10,426)

-

-

1,050

39,423

COMPUTER
EQUIPMENT
WEBSITE
INTANGIBLE

T
F
A
R
D
OFFICE
EQUIPMENT

BUILDINGS AND
IMPROVEMENTS

LAND

(6,485)

63,706

(121,838)

6,382,972

-

-

-

1,999

68,192

OFFICE
EQUIPMENT

3,789,000

Additions / (Disposals)

Carrying amount

Carrying amount 1 July 2021

Carrying amount at 30 June 2021

1,678,374

-

52,270

4,774,166

BUILDINGS AND
IMPROVEMENTS

1,289,000

-

Capitalised Work in Progress

Revaluation

-

2,500,000

LAND

Additions / (Disposals)

Carrying amount

Carrying amount 1 July 2020

Tauranga Art Gallery
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Performance Report continued

1,962,800

-

317,670

-

-

1,645,130

ARTWORKS

1,645,130

-

45,195

-

2,000

1,597,935

ARTWORKS
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13,728,503

(152,395)

1,889,392

-

15,670

11,975,837

TOTAL

11,975,837

(145,537)

1,116,467

-

64,606

9,044,199

TOTAL
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Note 18: Explanation of
Variances to Budget

2021–22
Actual $

2021–22
Budget $

Variance
$

Variance Explanation

Central & Local
Government

1,244,284

1,243,912

372

This slight increase to budgeted revenue
results from the Gallery receiving an MSD
wage subsidy for a casual employee who
couldn’t work one week due to COVID-19

Non-government
grants,
sponsorship and
donations

125,495

135,865

(10,370)

While some revenue streams exceeded
targets, including ArtBus sponsorship ($5k),
and Exhibition sponsorship ($13k), other
areas fell below targets, including admission
donations (-$16k), FoTAG sponsorship (-$7k)
and other reduced sponsorship, resulted in a
net 10.4k loss

Interest and
Dividends

8,914

12,000

(3,086)

Minor difference due to decrease in interest
rates and consolidating term deposits

Other Revenue
(incl. Venue Hire)

147,141

296,403

(149,262)

A range of factors contributed to lost
revenue, including low visitation, canceled
education programmes, low retail turnover,
and reduced venue hire. While Sundry income
was up $2.2k, $62k, revenue from events and
exhibitions were down by $30k, resulting in a
net increase of $32k. Touring income below
due to disrupted scheduling.

Volunteer and
employee related
costs

725,758

841,608

(115,850)

This surplus is due to staff resignations and
some positions not yet being filled.

Advertising and
marketing

35,611

50,500

(14,889)

Fewer campaigns were developed for the
reduced exhibition programme.

Building &
Maintenance

134,091

151,839

(17,748)

Electricity was below budget by $13k. Lift
expenses were higher than budget by $14K
due to minor repairs and general building
maintenance. HVAC, IT and security were
below budget by a combined total of $23k due
to timing of repairs & maintenance, resulting in
a net figure of $17k below budget

Education

35,650

66,750

(31,100)

Education programme expenses were below
budget due to canceled school visits.

Venue Hire

90

7,000

(6,910)

Below budget due to less venue hires due to
COVID restrictions

Event & Exhibition
Expenses

137,298

108,150

(29,148)

Over budget in exhibition contractors,
materials, artist fee, touring costs, staff travel
but under in graphics, freight, opening event
& TAG event costs, paint, license fees, etc.
Resulting in a net figure of $2,687

Revenue

Expenses
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Dame Robin White speaking at
Tauranga Art Gallery, July 2022
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speaking at
y, July 2022

Financial Sustainability
Performance Targets

Gross revenue
Expenditure
Working Capital Ratio
Interest expense as percentage of
total revenue
New debt
Percentage of revenue from
external sources

TARGET

ACTUAL

$1,688,180
$1,685,270
5.24

$1,525,834
$1,492,417
4.94

0%
$0

0%
$0

20%

21%
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Innovative Art Experiences
Objective

Strategies

Performance Target

St

He Tauranga
Auaha
To be an
anchorage of
innovation and
creativity

*As a result of COVID-19 the number of
visitors taking part in TAG art programmes
were less than previous years. With the
borders remaining closed until 2021/2022,
visitation targets are accordingly
conservative.

Total Gallery visitation is not less than
40,000 in the financial year 2021/2022, with
a slow build up over the following two years
anticipated to restore pre-COVID-19 visitation
of 60,000+.

●

TAG is a
destination for
both city
visitors and
residents,
providing
the opportunity
for all to learn
about and
experience art.

●

Develop an SROI (Social Return on
Investment) assessment and strategy, to
better calculate our economic impact and
strategically raise our ROI.

Achieve a high level of customer satisfaction.

At least an 80% ‘highly satisfied’/positive
visitor response rating.

●

Diverse audiences attend exhibitions.

Ethnicity of visitors is captured in our visitor
survey forms. Increased efforts made to reach
a broad demographic in our communication
channels.

●

Stage an annual signature event, attracting
visitors to the Gallery and the city centre.

Present at least one signature exhibition/
event annually, with that event attracting
not less than 8,500 visitors (including
online engagement).

●

Extend TAG’s national reputation as
an art destination.

Investigate options for a regular national
event attracting visitors to the city.

●

Traffic Light Status Key
50

●

Target achieved
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●

Target started and will be achieved by Dec 2022

●

Target not achieved
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2021/22 Results

●

The Gallery achieved 27,814 visitors during this financial year, 70% of our target,
and a reduction of 34% or 14,205 visitors on previous year. Factors include
a period of closure for 23 days (Aug/Sept COVID-19 lockdown), associated
impacts of canceled inner-city events, such as the Jazz Festival and Tauranga
Arts Festival, and canceled Education programmes.

on

ch

3 October 2022

Including off-site exhibitions in Tauranga, the Gallery exceeded these targets
by 42,536.

●

A Cost Benefit Analysis for the Gallery was produced by FreshInfo,
demonstrating that the Gallery returns $1.20 of value to every $1 received.

●

The Gallery finished the year with 77% highly satisfied and a further 20% of
those surveyed providing positive feedback (p.13)

●

This data is now captured on both our Visitor Surveys and Education sign in
sheets (see p.13)

●

8,109 visitors attended the exhibition Defending Plurality at the Gallery between
23 Jul – 7 Nov. Over 50,000 visited additional exhibition venues in Tauranga
Moana: Tauranga Art Gallery, Baycourt, The Incubator, Bayfair & TECT.

●

Planning for a new national event is underway, which has included
strengthening the curatorial department with the appointment of a Curator/
Exhibitions Manager in 2022, to support the Director with realising a more
ambitous exhibition programme. Further groundwork for this large-scale event
will be completed in late-2022.
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Non-financial
Performance Measures*

People and Performance
Objective

Strategies

Performance Target

St

He Tauranga
Haumaru: To be
anchored in safe
development.

Create a culture of support and staff
wellbeing.

Development and implementation of
a workplace equity plan that includes
sustainable steps to support pay parity,
living wage and diversity matters.

●

Implement a staff survey with the view of
continually improving and developing HR best
practice.

●

Professional development is offered to staff in
line with their position descriptions.

●

The Maori Engagement Strategy
development will include considerations
for staff training and support in; tikanga, te
reo Maori, and their appropriate application
within the TAG environment.

●

As part of the Maori Engagement Strategy
development, TAG/TAGT will engage in
meaningful discussions and partnerships with
tangata whenua.

●

Develop a healthy workplace culture, where
staff feel safe and connected.

●

TAGT will take all
practical steps
to ensure our
people are valued,
supported
and feel safe,
Excellence and innovation: Ensure staff are
connected
adapting skills to meet changing demands.
and healthy.

TAG values culture and diversity and where
people of all ages and backgrounds are
included, feel safe, connected and healthy.

*The Non-financial measures were set out in our 2021/22 SOI, as submitted to Tauranga City Council in February 2021

Traffic Light Status Key
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●

Target achieved
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●

Target started and will be achieved by Dec 2022

●

Target not achieved
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2021/22 Results

●

Working wage achieved for all staff, with a minimum 3% increase to
higher-waged staff. Productive conversations initiated with TCC to review
remuneration levels for staff in next financial year.

●

MyTeamPulse introduced to assist with monitoring the health of the Gallery
work culture.

●

All staff participated in full-day ISL (Institute of Strategic Leadership) workshop.
Further professional development opportunities offered across team.

●

Some initial work completed to develop a new Maori Engagement Strategy;
however further work required to complete this strategy in late 2022.

●

Strong relationship maintained with Huria Marae iwi.
TAGT is actively working with TCC to recruit a new mana whenua board
member and to complete a Maori Engagement Strategy by late-2022

●

As above, new tools invested in to monitor and improve staff culture. Wellbeing
policies developed with full staff participation throughout.

3 October 2022
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Stakeholder Engagement
Objective

Strategies

Performance Target

St

He Tauranga
Matarau: To be
an anchorage for
diversity

Investigate new ways to provide art
experiences within the city through
partnerships with key stakeholders.

Deliver not less than one off-site exhibition in
collaboration with another community group.

●

Collaborate with other organisations to create Partner with not less than one other
and promote art opportunities in Tauranga.
organisation per calendar year to develop and
promote an event or education programme.

●

Through the use of technology and digital
platforms, provide alternative art experiences
in order to grow audiences and enable
greater access to the visual arts.

Develop an annual marketing plan and
social media strategy which includes artistgenerated content.

●

Deliver at least one exhibition per calendar
year which is focused towards online
experiences and new media.

●

Visitation to the TAG website and social
media engagement increases annually.
Report trends in digital engagement to
TCC in our reporting.

●

Increase presence of te reo through TAG
website, social media posts, printed material,
and exhibition texts.

●

Partner with TCC to offer increased
opportunities for staff to learn te reo Maori.

●

TAG is inclusive
and promotes
partnerships with
tangata whenua,
values culture and
diversity and
where people
of all ages and
backgrounds are
included, feel
safe, connected
and healthy.

Increase use of te reo Maori through our
Maori Engagement Strategy.

Traffic Light Status Key
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●

Target achieved

Item 11.1 - Attachment 3

●

Target started and will be achieved by Dec 2022

●

Target not achieved
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n
p.

●

Offsite projects realised at Bayfair, Baycourt, The Historical Village,
and The Kollective.

nd

●

Achieved as above, with additional education programmes developed in
partnership with Toi Ohomai Institute of Technology.

●

Shannon Novak produced a full page artwork in Our Place magazine, as part of
the extended marketing plan for Defending Plurality.

●

Virtual reality exhibition Terminus toured to two venues in Aotearoa in 2021-22.

●

Our digital engagement this year has produced mixed results.

l,

3 October 2022

Website traffic to artgallery.org.nz has dropped from 109,018 page views in
2020-21 to 95,085 page views in 2021-22 (-13,933/ -12%), most likely resulting
from reduced exhibitions across the year and the Communications and Marketing
Manager role being vacant for periods of the year. Our website requires upgrades
to increase its functionality and interactivity, which will be scoped and budgeted
in the 2022-23 year
In contrast, social media activity has increased in the 2021-22 year:
Facebook
Page reached 51,271 times, an increase of 11,792 (23%)
Monthly likes average: 280/ month, an increase of 403 across the year (12%)
Instagram
Page reached 21,036 times, in increase of 17,144 (81.5%)
Profile visits: 5,079, an increase of 660 (13.6%)
Our average engagements for both the website and socials has increased by
29,999 hits.

●

Bi-lingual introductory texts produced for Gallery exhibitions, with te reo being
actively incorporated into education programmes and communication channels.

●

9 staff attended TCC’s Cultural Connections course in late-2021. Waiata and
karakia incorporated into weekly staff meetings.
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Financial Sustainability
Objective

Strategies

Performance Target

St

He Tauranga
Whaihua:
To be anchored
in economic
sustainability

Gross revenue target achieved and forecast
expenditure is contained
within the approved budget.

Budget is met.

●

Financial management is supported by
appropriate systems and controls.

External accountant performs monthly
checks on financial processes.

●

Compliance with TAGT Audit Committee
Policy, Audit NZ requirements and approved
general accounting practices.

●

Prudent management and accountability
exercised by TAGT to determine the
appropriate fiscal actions and cost-effective
options to meet needs.

Invest in Business Development role in order
to identify and grow new diverse revenue
streams for TAG over the next three years.

●

TAG continues to generate income from
sources other than Council and explores
new funding mechanisms.

Revise and implement new TAGT funding
strategies annually.

●

TAGT will pursue
opportunities to
secure funding
and manage all
funds with
prudence and
care with a
commitment
towards being
financially
sustainable.

Build relationships with all TAG Entities,
including the TAG Friends and TAG
Foundation.

●

Not less than 20% of TAGT operating
expenditure will be provided from sources
other than Council funds.

He Tauranga
Haukaha: To be
an anchorage of
great shelter

Maintenance & CapEx programme.

TAGT to develop its Building Maintenance &
CapEx strategy.

Achieve a diversity of revenue generation,
from benefactors, sponsors, build external
partnerships and secure grants.

Not less than 20% of TAGT operating
expenditure will be provided from sources
other than Council funds.

●
●

●

Traffic Light Status Key
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●

Target achieved
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●

Target started and will be achieved by Dec 2022

●

Target not achieved
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2021/22 Results

●

The Gallery recorded small surplus of 37k at the end of financial year, albeit with
some anomalies across key budget lines due to COVID disruptions.

●

KPMG contracted to administer monthly accounting reports.

●

Significant delays experienced with completing audits, due to delays with
Audit NZ. However, the Gallery has fulfilled its obligations to schedule.

●

Megan Cleverley was appointed as Business Development Manager, January
2022.

●

As above, BDM appointed to develop and strategise new revenue generating
activities.

●

3 October 2022

13 events staged across the year which actively involved FOTAG and Foundation
members. Monthly meetings conducted with FOTAG members, and quarterly
meetings completed with the Foundation.

The Gallery secured 20% of its 2021-22 funding from sources other than TCC.

●
●
●

A detailed CapEx strategy has been
developed in dialogue with the Foundation

As above.
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Innovative Art Experiences
Objective

Strategies

Performance Target

St

Ensuring TAG
is seen as a
destination for
both visitors and
residents

Maintain good working relationships with
TCC staff and elected members, observing
the ‘no surprises’ principle.

Regular meetings with TCC & elected
members as mutually agreed.

●
●

Work collaboratively with TCC Events team
and TCC city-wide events strategy.

Participate in TCC’s strategic process for a
city-wide events strategy.

●

TAG offers a wide range of exhibitions and art
experiences that are inclusive and to engage
with diverse audiences.

Deliver not less than 12 exhibitions and other
art experiences (including online projects)
that cover contemporary and historical
content, and feature a range of cultural
perspectives.

●

TAG delivers an active education programme
to school groups

Not less than 7,500 students attend our
education programme annually.

●

Work collaboratively with TCC and other
CCOs on the development of a new CCO
draft Statement of Intent template.

●

TAG education programme reaches diverse
TAG education programme reaches diverse
communities, especially through the provision communities, especially through the provision
of an ArtBus for school groups.
of an ArtBus for school groups.
Funding is raised to support the ArtBus.

●

Continue to identify and expand reach of
programmes to schools that for a variety
of reasons struggle to attend our exhibitions,
including initiating off-site outreach
programmes.

●

Deliver 12 offsite education outreach visits in
the first year (2021-2022).

●
●

Ethnicity of students is recorded on teacher
evaluation forms.

Traffic Light Status Key
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●

Target achieved
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●

Target started and will be achieved by Dec 2022

●

Target not achieved
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●
●

Monthly meetings scheduled with key TCC advisers. TAG Director participated
in TCC SLT meetings.

●

TAG actively participated in many strategic discussions, with a focus on the
Civic Precinct planning.

●

TAG delivered 18 exhibitions in 2021-22.

●

5,498 students participated in our education programmes across year, with
pandemic-related interruptions and sickness resulted in the cancellation
and postponement of 120 classes/ 2,793 student bookings. A total of
7,367 individuals were recorded across the Gallery’s extended education
programmes in the period.

●

35 unique schools from across the BOP participated in the Gallery’s education
programmes.

●

Achieved—through WBOPDC funding additional revenue generation. Further
private funding provided through an Acorn donation of $7.5k towards the
ArtBus this financial year.

●

The Gallery delivered outreach programmes to 40 classes in schools across the
Bay of Plenty.

●
●

Achieved, as above.

3 October 2022

TAG worked with the other CCOs and TCC to revise its 2022-23 SOI.

Based on 4,634 students:
European 63.7%
Maori 21.9%
Pacifika
2.9%
Asian 6.4%
Other 4.3%
Not recorded 0.8%
See p.13
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Infrastructure and Facilities
Objective

Strategies

He Tauranga Taiao TAGT to continue to work towards gaining a
To be anchored in sustainability accreditation.
environmental
sustainability

TAGT will take all practical steps to ensure
health and safety policies and procedures are
adopted as per statutory requirements.

Work collaboratively with TCC management
team re the development of a Civic Hub.

Performance Target

St

TAGT to investigate the viability of installing
solar power on the roof of the Gallery and
annually reviews power consumption.

●

TAGT investigates ways of reducing its waste
by recycling and/or reusing materials as
appropriate.

●

TAGT encourages staff to explore alternative
sustainable travel options.

●

Health and Safety Policy and operational
procedures meet statutory requirements and
best practice standards of reporting.

●

Monthly H&S staff meetings held to identify
risks or concerns, with required actions
promptly conveyed to all staff.

●

H&S performance provided as part of the
Director’s Report at Board meetings

●

Participate in TCC’s strategic process/
strategy group relating to the Civic Hub
discussions.

●

Traffic Light Status Key

●

Target achieved

●

Target started and will be achieved by Dec 2022

●

Target not achieved
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●

General power consumption continues to be monitored as part of the Gallery’s
budgeting, the viability of investing in larger solar power infrastructure has been
deferred due to the turbulent post-COVID environment.

e

●

The Gallery is investing in new software and hardware in order to reduce its
reliance on paper printing across various workflows, including timesheets and
administration.

e

●

Shower facilities and secure bike storage is available onsite to encourage staff
to cycle to work.

●

New H&S Policy developed, with Employsure adopted to strengthen H&S
reporting and best practice guidelines.

●

The TAG H&S committee continue to meet monthly, with incidents and nearmisses captured and recorded and behavioral activity captured in community
captured.

●

H&S reports included in Director’s Report at TAGT monthly meetings.

●

TAGT Chair Rosemary Protheroe joined a steering group for the Civic
development. TAG Director and other board members involved in detailed
planning discussions across the year.

d

3 October 2022
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Thank you!
Principal Funder

Annual Strategic Partners

Project Partners
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Tauranga Art Gallery Trust
Chair: Rosemary Protheroe
Deputy Chair: Steven Farrant
Trustee: Emma Gardiner
Trustee: Wayne Werder
Trustee: Ciska Vogelzang
Trustee: Alan Withrington
New trustees:
Trustee: Zara Stanhope
Intern Trustee: Anthony Campbell

Tauranga Art Gallery
Director: Stephen Cleland
Business Development Manager: Megan Cleverley
Curator/ Exhibition Manager: Serena Bentley
Education Manager: Sammy-Rose Scapens
Gallery Services Manager: Jillian Peck
Exhibition Technician: Jamie Coxon
Registrar: Amaria Kee-Huaki
Public Programmes Manager: Monique Barnett
Schools Liaison: Isabelle Mathys
Educator: Fiona Wilcock
Educator: Angie Ogilvy-Clark
Retail Coordinator: Rana Collett
Accounts Assistant: Christine Driscoll
Front of House Coordinator: Leiona Tupou
Front of House Team/ Casuals: Andrea Keast,
Asher McMahon, Ava Hampton, Callum Harnor,
Jo Tindling, Katarina Sorstedt, Melissa McDonald ,
Nathaniel Sage, Sophia Burton

Tauranga Art Gallery
Supported by Tauranga
City Council
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Cnr Wharf & Willow Sts
Tauranga
+64 7 578 7933
artgallery.org.nz

Follow us:
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Main Beach, Mount Maunganui

Whataroa Waterfall, Ōtanewainuku Forest

annual repoRt
TO 30 JUNE 2022

TĀPOI TE MOANANUI Ā TOI | TOURISM BAY OF PLENTY
(WESTERN BAY OF PLENTY TOURISM AND VISITORS TRUST

Bobby’s Fresh Fish Market, Tauranga

Mataatua, Whakatāne
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Kia ora koutou katoa,
I’m pleased to present the Tāpoi Te Moananui ā Toi | Tourism Bay of Plenty (TBOP) 2021/2022
Annual Report. Despite the ongoing COVID-19 challenges that have continued to impact domestic
and international travel this year, it has been immensely satisfying to see our team consistently
striving to implement our guiding strategy - Te Hā Tāpoi | The Love of Tourism.
As tourism around the globe resets and rebuilds, our role as a Destination Management
Organisation (DMO) and our goal to lead and support a regenerative visitor industry have been
increasingly validated. It’s become obvious that the COVID-19 environment we’re now operating in
requires a new approach to tourism that better serves communities and visitors and their wellbeing,
in addition to the economic benefits tourism has traditionally been hailed for. As such, TBOP
acknowledges that we have an inherent responsibility to walk the talk as we continue to support and
pursue sustainable environmental strategies across our coastal region.
As we’ve been navigating the COVID-19 pandemic and its ongoing effects, we’ve been focused on
providing support and upskilling opportunities for local tourism operators whilst running marketing
campaigns that have primarily been targeting domestic visitors. As soon as the phased New Zealand
border reopening dates were confirmed, we reignited our international trade activity; this involved
reconnecting with travel sellers in key markets and educating them on current product offerings. The
recent maritime border opening has heralded the return of cruise for the 2022-23 summer season.
We’re thrilled to finally be able to welcome back international manuhiri.
As part of the Government’s COVID-19 recovery fund, TBOP received a one-off three-year funding
boost from the Ministry of Business, Innovation and Employment (MBIE). Our strategic planning has
enabled us to use this funding to fast-track some projects, support product development, and create
compelling domestic marketing campaigns, and this work will continue into the financial year ahead.
Horticultural Provenance is one of the four pillars of our region’s Place DNA® and we’ve made
significant gains in this area by partnering with passionate locals who are leading the activity
associated with this focus area. An ever-increasing collective of restaurateurs, food and beverage
producers, foodie fans and others are regularly meeting to discuss new ideas to elevate the region’s
food offering and story. Our inaugural four-day regional Flavours of Plenty Festival was successfully
held in April 2022 and plans are afoot to extend this to a 10-day festival next April.
We also launched The Green Room | Te Rūma Kākāriki in May 2022. This exciting initiative aims to
encourage the Coastal Bay of Plenty’s visitor sector to work towards a zero carbon and regenerative
future. Each 12-week programme is managed by Tourism Bay of Plenty, provided by Tourism
Industry Aotearoa (TIA), and is funded by Toi Moana Bay of Plenty Regional Council. We’re expecting
100 organisations from across our region to complete this programme during its first two years.
Four Regional Events Fund activities were successfully held in the past 12 months, including. Polo in
the Bay and the Mount Festival of Multisport. Other events, such as the AIMS Games and Tauranga
Arts Festival, had to be postponed due to COVID restrictions and new dates have been set for the
next reporting period. These events are being funded by the Government’s Regional Events Fund
(REF), supported by an additional $200,000 contribution from our collaboration with the Tauranga
Energy Consumer Trust (TECT).
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The popularity of our region amongst New Zealand travellers continued to hold in the face of strong
domestic competition as COVID-related international border restrictions significantly reduced
overseas travel options throughout most of the reporting period. Our domestic visitor market has
actually grown during the pandemic, with domestic visitor spend up 15% in the 2021-22 reporting
period compared to the 2018-19 year (pre-COVID). However, this does not reflect the ongoing
detrimental impact that our international border closure has had on segments of our local tourism
sector. The frequent reoccurrence of domestic COVID-related restrictions over the past year,
including regional alert level differences and gathering capacity limits, also affected the consistency
of this domestic visitor spend.
One of our key areas of focus for the next 12 months will be marketing to international manuhiri and
welcoming them back. International visitor numbers to our region have been slowly increasing since
New Zealand’s border started reopening in April, but as a coastal destination, the full impact of this
long-awaited change will only be realised in the upcoming summer months. However, we’re
expecting this border change will be publicly evident when we welcome the first cruise line of the
2022/2023 season to the Port of Tauranga on 16 October. Approximately 103 cruise ships are
currently scheduled to dock in Tauranga next season, ending a two-and-a-half-year hiatus. In
preparation, we’re considering the sector’s potential contribution across the four wellbeing areas
(economic, social, cultural, and environmental) and the actions TBOP can take to pursue the best
outcomes for our region. TBOP is also currently supporting operators to get their tourism offerings
up and running to meet market demand and standards.
I would like to acknowledge Oscar Nathan for his strong leadership and direction as Tumuaki |
General Manager of TBOP. His positivity, objective analysis and solutions-based approach to the
current economic climate has helped keep TBOP on track, while the organisation’s staff realignment
has enabled a greater ability to deliver real outcomes.
Our industry operators are the real heroes though, to whom we owe a great deal of gratitude for
their resilience and persistence in the face of so many ongoing challenges. While we hope that the
upcoming summer season will prove fruitful, thanks to the return of international manuhiri, we’re
well aware that labour shortages and inflationary pressures are causing further significant difficulties
and these are unlikely to be easily resolved, at least in the short-term.
I would like to thank my trustee colleagues for their strong governance and the TBOP team for their
unwavering commitment as we navigate this period of unrest and uncertainty. Ngā mihi mahana kia
koutou katoa.
We are only as good as the sum of all our parts, and central to our success is the collaboration we
enjoy with our key stakeholders. So, it’s imperative that I must also thank tangata whenua and our
funding partners Tauranga City Council, Western Bay of Plenty District Council, Whakatāne District
Council, Ministry of Business, Innovation and Employment (MBIE), and Bay of Plenty Regional
Council Toi Moana.

Manaaki Whenua, Manaaki Tāngata, Haere whakamua.
The most important things are place, people, and progress.

Laurissa Cooney
Chairperson
Tāpoi Te Moananui ā Toi | Tourism Bay of Plenty
30 June 2022
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Kia ora koutou,

The past 12 months have presented fresh opportunities and challenges for the tourism industry as
we face the ongoing economic, social, and environmental impacts of COVID-19.
Thankfully, the Coastal Bay of Plenty’s appeal as a favoured domestic holiday destination has
continued to hold. Despite the ever-changing issues facing our visitor economy, we incurred only a 3
per cent drop in domestic visitor spend this year compared to the year ending June 2021, which
equated to a 15 per cent increase compared to the YE June 2019 (i.e., pre-COVID). This comes at a
time when visitation and visitor spend in some of our neighbouring regions have been in decline.
As an organisation, we’ve remained vigilant in delivering our key functions to meet our performance
measures. We’ve learnt to be flexible and responsive to the realities of operating despite COVID, as
we’ve worked to support our sector and local operators. This has included finding innovative ways to
maintain ‘top-of-mind’ awareness as a domestic destination of choice whilst also encouraging New
Zealanders to do more, stay longer, and spend more in our region.
This has highlighted the relevance of our Te Hā Tāpoi | The Love of Tourism strategy. Taking a
regenerative view of the broader Coastal Bay of Plenty region and the destination management
issues we face has not only positioned us well in the face of uncertainty but has also enabled us to
better identify and partner on the kaupapa that genuinely resonate with our key funders and the
host communities we serve.
While our Te Hā Tāpoi | The Love of Tourism Strategy 2020-2023 has continued to guide us
strategically, the year ending June 2022 required a much more tactical and adaptive approach to
prioritise and deliver programmes across our main work areas. We have subsequently celebrated a
number of successes this year including:
o
o

o

o
o

o

The successful launch and delivery of the Flavours of Plenty community and brand, and its
inaugural festival (7-10 April 2022).
Launching the Matariki Dish Challenge to share the region’s innovative cuisine stories during
the most culturally significant time in our nation’s calendar and to celebrate Aotearoa New
Zealand’s first public holiday to mark this occasion.
The commencement of a two-year integrated cycleways programme, adopting a trail-by-trail
approach and using print and online resources to promote the region’s ever-expanding cycle
trails network to users of all ages and abilities.
The launch of The Green Room | Te Rūma Kākāriki programme to reduce carbon and waste
emissions across the local tourism sector.
The establishment of the Tauranga Cruise Working Group, featuring key stakeholders
(private and public) that are focused on the sustained return and improvement of the cruise
visitor experience.
Proactive support of a local hapū in confirming an MOU with an award-winning tourism
operator.
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None of the aforementioned initiatives would have resulted in drawing visitors to the region,
however, without the essential support of our strategic destination marketing plan. This plan saw us
prioritising digital, online campaigns (our Sure to Make You Smile banner) to stimulate domestic
tourism during the second half of 2021 as COVID-related regional lockdowns eased. Then, as the
international border phased reopening dates were announced in early 2022, we ramped up our
overseas marketing activity to once again ensure our place as a front-of-mind destination for
international visitors. Wherever possible, local events have also been leveraged as drawcards to our
region and we’ve been building shoulder and peak season opportunities with our operators as we
move towards the highly anticipated 2022/23 summer season.
In the year ending June 2022, TBOP met the majority of our performance measures, including budget and
business targets. The total income and expenses were down on budget due to some MBIE funding being
deferred to the next financial year. We had a 3% surplus mostly due to six staff vacancies that were filled
around five months later than expected.
Of the 33 measures used to track TBOP’s progress over the past year, 23 were successfully achieved.
Seven indicators were unable to be achieved due to the impacts of COVID-19, and one measure was
not applicable due to extenuating circumstances. Two indicators were not achieved: the Safe 365
Index that measures TBOP’s health and safety processes temporarily decreased as several staff
vacated their roles and new staff required inductions and upskilling in this area, but this index is now
a key focus and is expected to lift; and TBOP’s waste footprint also increased slightly but measures
are being put in place to help counter this.
These results reflect the work of a dedicated and talented team. I want to thank our staff for their
mahi, whilst also acknowledging the vital support we receive from our council partners and other
stakeholders who enable us to do what we do. Noho ora mai.
We now have the opportunity to demonstrate how a well-networked and managed destination can
utilise tourism to provide positive environmental outcomes, resilient regional economies, and
improved Māori and community wellbeing. With the reopening of our international border and new
business norms continuing to evolve as we strive to move on from COVID, it’s a great time and a
privilege to work collectively to enrich our people and place through tourism.

Oscar Nathan
Tumuaki | General Manager
Tāpoi Te Moananui ā Toi | Tourism Bay of Plenty
30 June 2022
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Inaugural Western Bay of Plenty
Cycle Trails booklet produced and
digital version distributed

Reignited activity in the trade space:
upskilled travel sellers, developed
videos and itineraries, hosted famils

Launched Flavours of Plenty brand,
and forged ahead with our first
regional food festival

Secured TSRR funding from MBIE

Partnered with TECT and MBIE to
support 15 regional events

Won seven conferences: one
international and six domestic

Launched sustainbility programme
for visitor sector organisations at
Otawhiwhi Marae

Domestic campaigns achieved 2.3
million impressions and 421,000
complete video views
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In the YE June 2022, Te Moananui ā Toi | the Coastal Bay of Plenty was the fourth largest visitor
market based on spend via electronic card transactions throughout the year. This puts the region
behind Auckland, Christchurch, and Wellington but, notably, ahead of Hamilton & Waikato, and
Queenstown. While this only covers a portion of visitor spend (excluding pre-bookings, cash, and
online purchases), it is a significant result for our region and highlights the area’s continued appeal
to Kiwis.
Change in ANNUAL visitor spend in Te Moananui ā Toi | the Coastal Bay of Plenty
(compared to previous year)
27%

18%

8%
-3%

-3%

-52%
YE June 2021

YE June 2022

Domestic

International

Grand Total

Overall, in the YE June 2022 total visitor spend in Te Moananui ā Toi | the Coastal Bay of Plenty was
down 3% compared the YE June 2021. While domestic spend in the region has grown compared to
pre-COVID-19 levels, spending via this market in the YE June 2022 decreased by 3% compared to the
previous year. This is likely due to COVID-19 outbreaks through the year impacting travel and
potentially the lure of international destinations once borders opened.
The good news, however, is that we are starting to see a rise in spend by international visitors
following the international borders opening. The increase in April-June stands out, especially as this
typically is the shoulder and low season for visitation. Visitor spend in Te Moananui ā Toi | the
Coastal Bay of Plenty in May and June was up 13% and 28% respectively compared to in 2019 (i.e.,
pre-COVID-19). It’s likely that this was largely driven by reunions of family and friends after two
years of separation. The key international markets during these months were Australia, USA, and UK.
Change in MONTHLY visitor spend in Te Moananui ā Toi | the Coastal Bay of Plenty
(compared to same month of previous year)
35%

35%
21%
7%

18%
7%

4%

-21%
-29%

8%

13%
4%

6%

7%

7%

8%

-7% -7%
-14%

8%

8%

4%

-11% -10%

1%

-7%

-6%

-3%

-1%

-5%

3%

-4%

-20% -20%

-26% -26%

Jul-21

Aug-21

Sep-21

Oct-21

Nov-21
Domestic

Dec-21

Jan-22

International

Feb-22

Mar-22

Apr-22

May-22

Jun-22

Grand Total
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Change in TOTAL visitor spend and visitor numbers
(YE June 2022 cf. YE June 2021)
Coastal BOP

Waikato

Rotorua

Gisborne

Taupō

Ruapehu

-3%
-7%

-7%
-10%

-12%

-9%

-7% -7%
-12%

-14% -13%

-20%
Visitor spend

Visitor numbers

The good news is that while Te Moananui ā Toi | the Coastal Bay of Plenty experienced a decline in
both domestic visitor numbers and spending during the YE June 2022 (compared to the previous
year), this was a trend that was seen across many other destinations. During this period, the change
in visitor spend and visitor numbers in Te Moananui ā Toi | the Coastal Bay of Plenty compared
favourably with our Central North Island neighbours and with the national trend (total visitor spend
decreased by 7% nationally).

Proportion of visitor spend per
territorial authority area
(YE June 2022)

Tauranga City
Western Bay of Plenty District
Whakatane District

Source of all spend data: MarketView Tourism
Dashboard. Note that these data are based on
electronic card transactions only and exclude prebookings, online and cash purchases. As such, figures
should be read as approximates and treated with
caution.
Source of visitor number data: Data Ventures
Note that the two sources use different definitions of
‘visitors’ and therefore cannot be directly compared.
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Te Hā Tāpoi | The Love of Tourism 2021–2022 is TBOP’s Destination Management Plan (DMP) and
outlines our commitment to our role as a Destination Management Organisation. Considering the
balance of economic growth with the social, cultural, and environmental wellbeing of the
community underpins everything that TBOP does.
TBOP’s key achievements from the July 2021 to June 2022 financial year are highlighted in the
sections below.

Horticultural provenance is a key element of Te Moananui ā Toi | The Coastal Bay of Plenty’s DNA™
and our proposition and story needs to be elevated to appeal to potential and current visitors. Work
on this kaupapa continued at pace in the year ending June 2022, and included:
•

Our first Flavours of Plenty Festival, which was held 7-10 April 2022. Sixteen different events
were offered (which was slightly less than first planned, with larger events not being viable
given the COVID-19-related capacity limits at the time). A total of 826 tickets were sold (75%
of ticketed events) and the festival attracted approximately 1,800 people, with at least 13%
coming from outside the region. The festival also generated $972,000 of earned media.

•

Continuing to build the profile and reputation of the region as a food and produce
destination via foodie content and media partnerships. Stories appeared in NZ Herald,
Nourish, Kia Ora, and Cuisine, along with a 20-minute TV item on A NZ Food Story that
screened in New Zealand in June 2022.

•

In-region activations included a Flavours of the Bay event, organising a reception dinner for
the New Zealand Foreign Affairs and Trade Diplomatic Study Tour 2022, and our first
Matariki Dish Challenge featuring seven participating eateries.

•

Producing a new Tauranga CBD dining guide and five new stories to showcase local fine
dining, coffee roasteries, and bakeries.

•

Working collaboratively across Te Moananui ā Toi | The Coastal Bay of Plenty to create a
united food story. We held six meetups with food businesses from throughout the rohe
during the past year. A total of 444 stakeholders joined our industry database and 1,419
people joined the consumer database.
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Te Moananui ā Toi | the Coastal Bay of Plenty offers some of the most diverse and unique
landscapes for locals and visitors alike to get out and explore. A key challenge for us as a wider
region has been in coordinating a diverse network of cycle trails that showcase the region’s scenic
vistas, heritage sites of significance and waterways. The trails span different areas; are at varying
stages of consultation, development and/or completion; and some traverse multiple-owned land
parcels, council boundaries and/or iwi whenua.
As part of our focus in this area, TBOP has been working heavily to ascertain the current state of play
across these varied stakeholder interests to develop a regional narrative and promotional workplan
that pulls together this network as a rich tapestry of trail discovery across the region.
•

A key highlight this year was the coordination, creation, and delivery of a dedicated cycle
trails booklet for the Western Bay of Plenty District Council region. This is being expanded to
include selected Tauranga City cycle trails, with the updated version due for publication in
September 2022.

•

TBOP will continue to work with interested parties to identify opportunities to develop
further or propose products and experiences that could complement the various trails,
including partnering with relevant iwi/hapū on potential storytelling and signage elements
and interpretation.

•

As part of TBOP’s regenerative tourism focus, there has also been engagement with other
entities encouraging more locals and visitors to utilise cycle trails rather than relying on the
roading network.
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The Ministry of Business, Innovation and Employment released a Regional Events Fund to be used
over three years. TBOP successfully secured $865,000 via this funding and a further $200,000 by
collaborating with the Tauranga Energy Consumer Trust (TECT).
Working with a panel comprising representatives from TBOP, Tauranga City Council, Whakatāne
District Council, Western Bay of Plenty District Council and TECT, expressions of interest for the
funding were reviewed. Fifteen events across Te Moananui ā Toi | the Coastal Bay of Plenty
successfully secured funding and were awarded multi-year/multi-event funding. Events were
assessed on key factors such as the likelihood of generating a significant increase in visitation and
spend within Te Moananui ā Toi | the Coastal Bay of Plenty region and their alignment with one or
more of the region’s Place DNA™ elements.
Despite COVID-19 restrictions throughout the year, four REF-funded events were held successfully.
These were: Polo in the Bay, Mount Festival of Multisport, SUP Nationals, and the Flavours of Plenty
Festival. Events that were unable to go ahead have been postponed and the funding deferred to
support the event on the rescheduled dates.
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During the reporting period, we kept Bay of Plenty NZ brand activations in market through a series
of seasonal campaigns. To increase cut-through in an increasingly competitive landscape, we
licensed a L.A.B. music track and released new video content for our Sure to Make You Smile
campaign.
The summer 2021/22 campaign was quickly launched in December once the Auckland lockdown
ended to capitalise on Aucklanders’ pent-up desire to get away for a holiday. An autumn campaign
focusing on the caravan crowd and a winter activation highlighting hot pools, truffles, Matariki and
events was rolled out in the first half of 2022. Overall, our campaigns netted more than 2.3 million
impressions, 421k video views and 13k website visits.
We’ve also seen an 8% growth in our owned channels (social media and e-newsletter databases),
meaning we now regularly talk to an audience of 60,000 people about Bay of Plenty activities,
events, foodie spots and stories. Through campaign and organic (i.e., not related to paid marketing)
website traffic, the bayofplentynz.com website has seen more than half a million visitors in the last
financial year.

The new iteration of our Sure to Make You Smile digital marketing campaign, targeting domestic
visitors, was released during the reporting period. This campaign utilises a suite of fresh imagery,
video and marketing collateral that align with our Place DNA®, including a deeper Te Ao Māori
perspective, which is complemented by a ‘vibing’ soundtrack from chart-topping Kiwi favourites and
local band L.A.B. We rolled this out after the Auckland lockdown of 2021, and in autumn and winter
iterations.
We continued to grow the Bay’s reputation as a foodie destination with targeted media releases,
pitches, partnerships, and familiarisations. Highlights from this media programme include:
▪

A Bay of Plenty episode of A New Zealand Food Story, which aired on TV One on
Saturday, 4 June. This series will also appear on National Geographic Asia and the Middle
East, and further interest has been expressed in France and the USA. (This episode is
also available on TVNZ OnDemand.)

▪

The NZ Herald published an article titled “How the Bay of Plenty could be one of New
Zealand’s best food destinations”. This story directly resulted from our festival media
familiarisation programme and had an AVE (advertising value equivalent) of 70k.
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PR and media
During the reporting period, TBOP corporate commentary appeared in 205 online articles (with NZ
Herald, SunLive, Stuff, Scoop, and Voxy recording the highest number of articles, in that order).
These opportunities allowed us to help shape the local, national, and international conversation on
topics such as COVID-19, major events, tourism recovery, and cruise. The AVE for this publicity was
$9.61m.
Our LinkedIn audience has grown to 1,772 organic followers (as opposed to sponsored followers),
which is a 24% increase compared to the year before. More than a third of our followers are based
in the Bay of Plenty (36%), with Auckland (13%) and Waikato (5%) comprising the largest out-ofregion audiences. These regions are our main domestic target markets. We use this channel to
promote relevant news and events in our region and the mahi that Tourism Bay of Plenty is doing.
Our posts in the past year made just over 96,000 organic impressions, which reflected a significant
increase in engagement (728% increase in reactions and 1,167% increase in post shares) compared
to the previous year.
Travel stories
TBOP worked with travel journalists to promote the region in 18 national travel stories, gaining an
Advertising Value Equivalent (AVE) value of $1.33 million. This earned PR included accessible tourism
offerings, a heritage story that shone a light on The Elms, Pukehinahina battle sites, Clarence Hotel,
hidden gems in the Bay, a review of Paradise Beach Hotel and Trinity Wharf, and a story about the
Bay of Plenty as the best food destination. To view the dashboard for travel stories, please click here
and use the password ‘TBOP’.

The continuation of a successful monthly e-communications programme resulted in an average open
rate of 37% and 18,788 unique views of the locals’ pages on the bayofplentynz.com website.
Partnerships with local media outlets including, Bay of Plenty Times, Stuff, UNO magazine, Our Place
magazine and Sun Media, resulted in ten new tourism stories and advertising features highlighting
local tourism operators, specifically targeted to the local market.
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To assist visitors and to promote major events and natural landmarks, we produced four new
collateral pieces during the reporting period. These have been distributed through the Tauranga iSITE locations and other visitor hubs and channels. This included:
•

a detailed Bay of Plenty visitor map

•

a major event guide (this was distributed across New Zealand via the Visitor Point network)

•

a Tauranga CBD dining guide

•

a Western Bay of Plenty cycle trails booklet.

We created 22 new stories that covered tourism experiences, foodie hot spots and regional gems.
We also produced an entire hub on our website dedicated to the region’s accessible tourism
offerings and commissioned one story that has since appeared in Stuff. We worked alongside Kieran
Wall from Tauranga City Council, Cindy Clare from Waihī Beach Info and John Sligo from Parafed BOP
to produce this content. We also created a ‘Staying safe in the Bay’ page on our website with beach
safety tips.

During the reporting period, there were 580,013 page views on the bayofplentynz.com website. This
is a 3% increase from the previous year. New visitors increased 20% compared to the previous year.
The most popular pages (after the home page) were Tauranga, Mauao walking tracks, Mount
Maunganui, Waihī Beach, and COVID-19.
Two-thirds (65%) of our total web traffic is organic (i.e., not directly due to paid marketing). This is
an increase of 30% or 39,578 more people finding our content when looking for travel information
and inspiration compared with the same period last year.
This means people are either searching for us by name or by topics that interest them, suggesting
that the effort we are putting into our content strategy and storytelling is paying off. This also
demonstrates our strong domain authority and Search Engine Optimisation (SEO) results for Bay of
Plenty search terms.
We have also seen a 9% increase in e-newsletter sign-ups amongst these organic website visitors,
allowing us to continue sharing messages about the Bay via our owned communication channels.
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TBOP is rolling out a three-year programme (supported by Bay of Plenty Regional Council Toi Moana)
to educate operators about low carbon circular economies and to provide practical
recommendations for implementing measures to meet recommended guidelines.
The programme is called The Green Room | Te Rūma Kākāriki. It is customised, holistic, and based
on the New Zealand Tourism Sustainability Commitment (TSC), which covers economic, visitor,
community, and environmental sustainability.
Tourism Industry Aotearoa (TIA) won the bid to be the programme delivery partner, based on their
successful delivery of a similar programme in Wellington. That 12-week course has been refreshed
with a Coastal Bay of Plenty lens. Our first intake is now finished, with 17 Waihī Beach and Katikati
visitor industry organisations and TBOP successfully completing the course. The organisations have
all made many changes within their businesses, large and small. Some of the key outcomes included:
•

Nine businesses are measuring their carbon footprint and are working on how to reduce it.

•

Eight businesses are incorporating Tiaki messaging around care for people, place, and
culture into their communications with guests to encourage responsible behaviour.

•

Seven businesses are focussing on taking significant steps to reduce their waste through
reviewing supply chains and procurement processes.

•

Sustainable Waihī Beach is leading the charge to make Waihī Beach single-use cup and
container free (SUC-free). This will help reduce waste and provide a unique selling point for
the destination.

•

One of the participating organisations received a Qualmark Gold Sustainable Business Award
on their first time being assessed and attributed their success to what they had learnt
through The Green Room programme.
“A big contributor to this result was from what we had added to the Qualmark assessment
from what we had done from the Green Room project. Very stoked with our result
”–
Facebook post in The Green Room private group from a The Green Room participant.

The Green Room | Te Rūma Kākāriki launch event for Waihi Beach and Katikati participants at Otawhiwhi Marae.
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Given the reopening of the NZ borders, TBOP has been focused on preparing the region’s operators
for the next peak visitor season (summer 2022/23) and reconnecting with our trade partners to
increase visibility and drive visitation. The key markets currently being focused on include Australia,
the United States of America, the United Kingdom, and Europe. Activity has included:
▪

Facilitating trade ready workshops and one-to-one sessions to educate, update and refresh
our operators on what they need to be trade ready for the coming season.

▪

Updating, training, and refreshing travel sellers on what we have to offer and presenting
new products to New Zealand inbound operators and Australia, UK, European and North
American travel sellers.
Working closely with Tourism New Zealand to create virtual training videos and road trip
itineraries that will be loaded on newealand.com and used to promote our region globally.

▪
▪

Hosting a trade familiarisation (8-9 April 2022) aligned with our Flavours of Plenty Festival.
This enabled us to reconnect with our trade partners and update them on our region’s latest
foodie offerings. We received great feedback, resulting in two of our new operators being
added to regional itineraries.

There are currently 102 ship visits scheduled for the 2022/23 cruise season (note, this is subject to
change). TBOP is working closely with the Port of Tauranga, Tauranga City Council, Bay of Plenty
Regional Council Toi Moana, the New Zealand Cruise Association, local tourism operators, and the
community to ensure the manageable, staged return of cruise passengers, in accordance with our Te
Hā Tāpoi destination management plan. Research conducted with the Coastal Bay of Plenty
community during July-August 2022 indicates that 76% of residents are at least somewhat
supportive of the return of cruise with 55% being very supportive.
Local’s perceptions of the return of cruise

Notably, TBOP has facilitated a cruise workshop to provide a global, national, and regional update on
the cruise sector and we are conducting regular engagement with cruise operators to understand
their needs and discuss our plans, preparations, and progress to date leading up to this coming
season. We are working hard to ensure a high-quality visitor experience for cruise passengers and
considering how to achieve the best outcomes across the four wellbeing areas.
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We have been strengthening Tauranga’s position in the business events sector by promoting the
region and driving interest through updated collateral, partnering with a lead generation agency,
attendance at MEETINGS expo, involvement in the Tourism New Zealand Business Events roadshow,
and hosting key conference organisers and event managers. We’ve also worked on expanding our
network of local partners and strengthening key relationships with venues and other key businesses.
This mahi has resulted in seven new conferences won for the region, including one international
conference won in conjunction with Tourism New Zealand.
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We continue to maintain a presence in Mount Maunganui with ‘The POD’ to ensure the effective
promotion of activities and things to do in the area. Operators received free advertising in ‘The POD’,
which expires at the end of September 2022. We have launched new advertising packages starting
from 1 October 2022 that include options for all operators, to which the response has been positive.
Over the year, the i-SITE gained 1,938 new page followers on Facebook and 204 new followers on
Instagram. Over this period, our Facebook content reached more than 90k people and our Instagram
content reached 15k people. Social media content was designed to raise awareness of the i-SITE in
Tauranga and Mount Maunganui, and promote paid local activities and experiences, associated
deals, and local events and services.

We continue to work closely with new and existing operators to grow capability and prepare for the
summer season. Activity includes:
•

Including operators in media stories and social media posts and providing training to enable
operators to list and upload deals onto newzealand.com. This activity, alongside a more
dynamic and inclusive i-SITE approach, has helped support operators’ own marketing efforts.

•

Trade and business events workshops were held to ensure our operators are prepared for
the coming season.

TBOP was instrumental in enabling an experience development opportunity at Omanawa Falls. This
has seen the creation of a successful joint venture between Ngāti Hangarau and Qualmark Platinum
Award operators Kaitiaki Adventures.
This project will safely showcase the popular, but inherently dangerous, Omanawa Falls, and
facilitate the authentic storytelling of the area’s history, incorporating essential pioneering and
cultural lenses. This project is currently going through a final resource consenting phase. The
potential visitor experience is expected to align closely with our region’s Place DNA™ and appeal to
locals and visitors alike. This project will ultimately provide a safer and more secure visitor
experience of the area whilst also affording local hapū, Ngāti Hangarau, the ability to be kaitiaki and
to take up further training and job opportunities with Kaitiaki Adventures.

We are working in partnership with Tauranga City Council’s Māori development team on a cultural
intelligence app that will serve as the foundation of our ambassador programme. This will help
develop responsible and engaging hosts, will be a useful tool for our community, and will provide
another layer to the visitor experience. This project will then lead onto other major projects, such as
storytelling and wayfinding to share our regional history and stories.
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TBOP has continued its efforts to build stronger relationships with operators and provide meaningful
support throughout these challenging times. Our monthly ‘Office Open Hour’ gatherings continued
to be well attended. These provided an opportunity to engage in a more personal and informal chat
with TBOP team members. The relaxation of COVID-19-related restrictions has allowed for more inperson meetings, additional tourism experience familiarisations (TBOP team and trade famils) and
has meant more training workshops could be held.

TBOP has an ongoing commitment to building genuine partnerships with iwi and hapū ensuring we
honour Māori principles and values. TBOP has strengthened relationships with local iwi and hapū
through new connections and partnerships with Te Rangapū and Tauranga City Council’s Māori
development team.
Additionally, TBOP partnered with Te Whānau a Tauwhao to launch The Green Room | Te Rūma
Kākāriki at Otawhiwhi Marae. Te Whānau a Tauwhao representative, Reon Tuanau, spoke in support
of the kaupapa of the programme and provided the reo Māori translation of the programme name,
Te Rūma Kākāriki, which has now been adopted. This enabled connections to be formed between
the local hapū and the organisations taking part in the programme and highlighted the importance
of building relationships and partnering with mana whenua.
To ensure continued wider community engagement and leadership, TBOP is establishing steering
and industry groups to lead activities related to elements of our Place DNA™. The steering groups for
Horticultural Provenance and Ocean & Beaches are comprised of locals who are passionate about
these areas. TBOP is committed to ensuring this activity has locals at its heart to achieve positive
outcomes for the community and visitors through shared experiences.
The Flavours of Plenty group continues to grow and caters to local producers, restauranteurs,
artisans, and more than 400 local foodies. This group regularly engages in horticultural provenance
and the Flavours of Plenty Festival.
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TBOP connects with a range of stakeholders, actively builds relationships, works collaboratively on
projects of mutual interest, and participates in working groups. The below identifies TBOP’s key
relationships and outlines specific work projects of relevance.

TBOP is continuing to work collaboratively with the Tauranga City Council events team. We
attended, on average, one meeting per fortnight with the events team during the reporting period
and have been part of the City Events Strategic Plan and the City Brand working groups. TBOP and
Tauranga City Council have been working together on major event destination messaging, b-roll
videos, imagery, and promotion. TBOP also produced a major events guide, distributed via the
Visitor Point network across Aotearoa.
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Of the 33 performance indicators, 23 have been achieved. Seven indicators have been marked as
unable to be achieved due to COVID-19 impacts. One measure is not applicable due to extenuating
circumstances, and two were not achieved. Further details are provided below.

-

Given that the cruise market has not yet returned, we are unable to monitor or report on
visitor spending from this market.

-

Similarly, the Auckland lockdown last year has delayed the Qualmark assessment of the iSITE. This is now expected to take place in late August 2022.

-

COVID-19 restrictions and a change of TBOP leadership have resulted in fewer stakeholder
engagement hui than in previous years. That said, we are making significant progress in
building relationships and will continue to do so over the next six months.

-

Residents in Whakatāne and the Western Bay of Plenty are less satisfied with the impact of
tourism on their communities than in previous years. Research undertaken in July to August
2022 identified COVID-19 as the primary concern associated with the return of international
and cruise visitors.

-

The proportion of Kiwi and Australian travellers who are somewhat informed about the
region, consider the region to be highly appealing, and will probably or definitely visit in the
next 12 months has dropped compared to the scores for the previous year (YE March 2021).
We expect concerns around exposure to COVID-19 at least partly impact this, but also
worries around government-imposed travel restrictions if there is another outbreak
(especially for potential Australian visitors).

-

The Safe365 Index measures TBOP’s health and safety capability. Significant staff changes
and upskilling of new team members resulted in a reduced score. This is expected to be
corrected over the coming months with new processes already underway.

-

TBOP’s waste footprint has increased by 8% over the same period. Further recycling
initiatives, a goal of a single-use container free office, and a review of the product supply
chain will be conducted to help reduce waste produced by the organisation.

-

A different questionnaire was employed in the employee engagement survey undertaken in
May 2022 compared to previous years. Therefore, the results are not directly comparable.

22

Item 11.1 - Attachment 4

Page 157

Ordinary Council meeting Attachments

3 October 2022

The principal objective of Tāpoi Te Moananui ā Toi | Tourism Bay of Plenty is to promote the economic
welfare and development of the region and its community through marketing and management that
impacts the region as a visitor and tourist destination.

Charitable Trust

The Trust comprises a Board of up to eight Trustees who oversee the governance of the Trust, a
General Manager responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Trust and reporting to the Trustees,
and 18 other staff who support the General Manager in delivering the Trust's objectives. The Trustees
are appointed by the Tauranga City Council and the Western Bay of Plenty District Council.

Operating grants received from the Tauranga City Council, Western Bay of Plenty District Council and
Whakatāne District Council are the primary funding sources for the Trust. The Trust also earns revenue
from commissions on sales of local and domestic products.

▪

L. Cooney - Chairperson

▪

R. Browne – Deputy Chair

▪

G. Keel

▪

J. Hill

▪

C. Swallow

8 Wharf Street, Tauranga

HOBEC, Tauranga

ASB, Tauranga

Audit New Zealand

23

Item 11.1 - Attachment 4

Page 158

Ordinary Council meeting Attachments

3 October 2022

24

Item 11.1 - Attachment 4

Page 159

Ordinary Council meeting Attachments

3 October 2022

25

Item 11.1 - Attachment 4

Page 160

Ordinary Council meeting Attachments

3 October 2022

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

2022
Actual

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts of Funding - Tauranga District Council
Receipts of Funding - Western Bay of Plenty District Council
Receipts of Funding - Whakatāne District Council
Receipts from retail sales
Receipts from other revenue
Interest receipts
Dividend receipts
Interest payments
Payments to suppliers and employees
GST (net)
Net cash flow from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of loans
Receipts from sale of fixed assets
Payments to acquire fixed assets
Net cash flow from investing & financing activities
ADD OPENING BANK ACCOUNTS AND CASH
CLOSING BANK ACCOUNTS AND CASH

2021
Actual

2,354,721
232,000
84,000
10,386
1,324,147
3,424
1,000
0
-2,989,181
-307,186
713,311

2,319,529
258,994
84,000
7,411
1,781,852
2,219
1,164
-129
-3,234,518
-356,071
864,451

0
141
-24,769

-3,324
0
-39,778

-24,628
1,212,031
1,900,714

-43,103
390,683
1,212,031

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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Employee related costs
Wages, salaries, and annual leave are recorded as an expense as staff provide services and become entitled to
wages, salaries, and leave entitlements.
Performance payments are recorded when the employee is notified that the payment has been granted.
Superannuation contributions are recorded as an expense as staff provide services.
Advertising, marketing, administration and overhead costs
These are expensed when the related service has been received.
Lease expense
Operating leases
Lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Finance leases
At the commencement of the lease term, finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement
of financial position at the lower of the fair value of the leased item or the present value of the minimum
payments. The finance charge is charged to the surplus or deficit over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. The amount recognised as an asset
is depreciated over its useful life. The lease is fully depreciated over the lease term.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cheque or savings accounts, and deposits held at call with
banks.
Investments
Investments are shares, term deposits, bonds, units in unit trusts, or similar instruments held by the entity.
Debtors
Debtors are initially recorded at the amount owed. When it is likely the amount owed (or some portion) will not
be collected, a provision for impairment is recognised and the loss is recorded as a bad debt expense.
Inventory
Inventory held for sale on a commercial basis is valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost of
the inventory is determined using the weighted average method.
Property, plant, equipment
Property, plant, equipment is recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
For an asset to be sold, the asset is impaired if the market price for an equivalent asset falls below its carrying
amount.
For an asset to be used by the Trust, the asset is impaired if the value to the Trust in using the asset falls below
the carrying amount of the asset.
Depreciation is provided on a diminishing value basis on all property, plant and equipment, at rates that will writeoff the cost of the assets to their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives.
The useful lives and associated depreciation rates of major classes of assets have been estimated as follows:
Furniture and fittings (10% - 40%)
Computers and software (50% - 60%)
Buildings and leasehold improvements (10% - 25%)
Office equipment (8% - 67%)
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Intangible Assets
Website Development:
Website development costs are capitalised when it is probable that the expected economic benefits that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Furthermore,
the website must be shown to be capable of generating revenues, including direct revenues from enabling
orders to be placed.
Amortisation:
Website costs are amortised on a diminishing value basis over the asset's useful life. Amortisation begins when
the asset is available for use and ceases at the date when the asset is disposed of. The amortisation charge for
each year is included with depreciation and recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
The useful life and associated amortisation rate has been estimated as follows:
Website (50%)
Creditors and accrued expenses
Creditors and accrued expenses are recorded at their face value.
Employee Entitlements
A liability for employee costs payable is recognised when an employee has earned the entitlement.
These include salaries and wages accrued up to balance date and annual leave earned but not yet taken at
balance date, using current rates of pay.
Loans
Loans are recognised at the amount borrowed from the lender. Loan balances include any interest accrued at
year end that has not yet been paid.
Income Taxation
The Trust holds a tax exemption from the Inland Revenue Department in terms of secion CW40 of the Income
Tax Act 2007, as a local or regional promotional body.
Budget figures
The budget figures are derived from the Statement of Intent as approved by the Board at the beginning of the
financial year. The budget figures have been prepared in accordance with Tier 2 standards, using accounting
policies that are consistent with those adopted by the Board in preparing these financial statements. Note that
the classification of the expenses is different from the Statement of Intent as the employee costs are shown
separately in the accounts.
Cashflow
Operating activities have been presented in accordance with the direct method.
Equity
Equity is the councils interest in the Trust and is measured as the difference between total assets and total
liabilities.
Standards issued but not yet effective
PBE FRS 48 Service Performance Reporting, this will impact the entity from 1 July 2022 onwards but the entity
has not yet assessed the impact of this standard on the way the entity reports.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
2022
1

2

Other Revenue
Industry Contributions
Regional Events Funding
STAPP Funding
BOPRC Funding
Other Income

4

5

6

31,200
526,500
524,568
14,917
1,097,185

Cost of Sales
The write-down of inventory during the year was Nil (2021: Nil). The reversal of write-downs for the year was Nil (2021: Nil).
Opening Inventory
Purchases
Closing Inventory
Total Cost of Sales

3

24,006
347,694
398,704
60,000
69,496
899,900

2021

Operating and Marketing
Credit card charges
Events Marketing
Cruise Marketing and Operating
Consumer Marketing
Development & Research
General and Other Marketing

Administration and Overhead
Audit Fees
Cleaning & Security
Rent
Recruitment training & HR
Repairs & Maintenance
Vehicle
Subscriptions
IT expenses
Telephone
Electricity
Other Administration & Overhead

Employee Benefit Expenses
Salaries and wages
Employer superannuation contributions
Other employee related costs

Variance Budget to Actual
INCOME
Other Revenue (MBIE funding not yet spent carried forward to next financial year)

12,620
3,499
(9,410)
6,709

17,435
1,267
(12,620)
6,082

329
540,385
10,730
301,995
376,186
297,380
1,527,005

605
561,689
18,071
505,490
451,628
170,650
1,708,133

24,783
15,385
133,775
60,844
808
39,287
9,255
42,481
7,674
8,496
119,478
462,266

23,322
14,508
133,543
102,253
1,688
31,979
11,253
41,426
10,119
10,257
131,397
511,746

1,292,879
32,240
3,235
1,328,354

1,283,307
33,805
2,542
1,319,654

Actual
899,900

Budget Variance
1,757,977 - 858,077

EXPENDITURE
Operating & Marketing (MBIE funding due to be spent this year will now be spent in 2023)
Employee Benefit Expenses (Staff vacancies for part of year)

7

Taxation
The Trust holds confirmation of a tax exemption under section CW 40 of the Income Tax Act 2007

8

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cheque Accounts
Savings Accounts
Cash on Hand

9

Investments
Term Deposit ASB Bank 2.2% for 5 months

10

Debtors and Prepayments
Debtors
Accrued Income
GST
Prepayments

30
Debtors and prepayments from exchange transactions
Debtors and prepayments from non-exchange transactions
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1,527,005
1,328,354

2,064,087 - 537,082
1,698,000 - 369,646

65,901
1,633,913
900
1,700,714

34,743
976,388
900
1,012,031

200,000

200,000

36,395
63,500
4,340
104,235

3,318
49,303
23,889
76,510

54,932
49,303
104,235

27,207
49,303
76,510
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Name

12

3 October 2022

Cost

Accum Dep

1-Jul-20

Purchases

Depreciation

Disposals

Total Computers & Software

78,197

62,715

13,136

2,347

7,546

0

7,937

Total Furniture & Fittings

94,141

42,037

51,591

513

7,147

0

44,957

Total Leasehold Improvements

280,890

130,671

150,219

0

19,232

0

130,987

Total Office Equipment

114,552

83,816

16,033

982

6,007

2,508

8,499

Total

567,781

319,239

230,979

3,841

39,932

2,508

192,380

Intangible Assets
Name

Cost

Accum Dep

1-Jul-21

Purchases

Depreciation

Disposals

30-Jun-22

Website

117,482

46,962

70,520

0

35,260

0

35,260

Total

117,482

46,962

70,520

0

35,260

0

35,260

Name

Cost

Accum Dep

1-Jul-20

Purchases

Depreciation

Disposals

30-Jun-21

Website & CRM

117,482

12,598

62,988

41,897

34,364

0

70,520

Total

117,482

12,598

62,988

41,897

34,364

0

2022
13

Creditors and Accruals
Creditors
Revenue Received in Advance
Accrued Expenses
Funds received on behalf of tourism operators

Creditors and Accruals from exchange transactions
Creditors and Accruals from non-exchange transactions

14

Employee Benefit Liabilities
Accrued salaries and wages
Annual leave

15

Finance Lease:
There are currently no finance leases.

16

Capital and Operational Commitments and Operating Leases
Non-cancellable operating leases as lessee:
The Trust leases property, equipment and two vehicles in the normal course of its business.
The following amounts relate to rental 8 Wharf Street, rental 103 The Strand, VW vehicle lease,
Nissan vehicle lease and lease of Eftpos machines.
The future aggregate minimum lease payments to be paid under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:
Payable no later than one year
Later than one year, not later than five years
Later than five years

17

Contingent Liabilities
The Trust has no contingent liabilities

18

Related Party Transactions
The Trust received a significant amount of operating grants from the Councils to deliver its
objectives as specified in the Trust Deed.
Related party disclosures have not been made for transactions with related parties that are
within a normal supplier or client/recipient relationship and/or on terms and condition no more
or less favourable than those that it is reasonable to expect the Council and group would have
adopted in dealing with the party at arm's length in the same circumstances.

31

30-Jun-21

Key Management Personnel compensation
Trustees
Full-time equivalent members
Remuneration
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70,520

2021

257,360
1,141,229
39,184
39,183
1,476,956

167,491
687,627
22,173
48,147
925,438

1,476,956
1,476,956

925,438
925,438

84,440
93,108
177,548

95,151
82,185
177,336

130,192
15,862
146,054

131,065
141,626
272,691

6
75,000

6
69,375
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2022

2021

Senior Management Team including CEO
Full-time equivalent members
Remuneration

6
560,310

5
480,334

Total Full-time equivalent members
Total Remuneration

12
635,310

11
549,709

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Debtors & Other Receivables
Total Financial Assets

1,700,714
99,895
1,800,609

1,212,031
52,621
1,264,652

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Creditors & Other Payables
Revenue Received in Advance
Finance Leases
Total Financial Liabilities at Cost

335,727
1,141,229
0
1,476,956

237,809
687,627
0
925,436

Due to the difficulty in determining the full-time equivalent for Trustees, the full-time equivalent
figure is taken as the number of Trustees.
19

Donations
There were no donations paid.

20

Financial Instruments
Financial Instrument Categories

21

Events After Balance Date
There are no significant events post balance date.

22

Covid-19 impact disclosures
Management and the Trustees have considered the current and future potential effects on the business caused either directly or
indirectly by Covid-19.
The effect on the overall results for the year ended 30 June 2022 has been positive with extra funding received from TSRR and the
Regional Events Fund.
Although the borders have now opened to most tourists including cruise, future potential effects are speculative and unknown however
the Bay of Plenty is in the priviledged position to already attract mostly domestic tourists. Around 80% is domestic tourism visitor spend
and 20% international visitor spend (cruise less than 5% visitor spend) so we may see a lessor impact in the Bay of Plenty than in other
regions.
CRUISE
Cruise ships were banned in New Zealand on 14 March 2020 resulting in the loss of cruise income for this financial year.
Cruise ships will return to our region in the 2023 financial year.
TAURANGA ISITE
The Tauranga iSite has had reduced income due to the lack of cruise and other international visitors, the opening of the Australian
bubble has had no impact. The iSite is now closed on Sundays.
MARKETING
TSRR Funding of $1,000,000 was received in September 2021, $225,204 has been spent as per the criteria and the remaining
$774,796 will be spent in the 2023 financial year. Regional Events Funding of $1,038,695 was received in January 2021, $672,262
has been spent as per the criteria and the remaining $366,433 will be spent over the next two financial years.
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The activity outlined on the following page applies to the territorial boundaries covered by TBOP, as recognised by Statistics New Zealand, and covers the rateable areas of Tauranga City, Western Bay of Plenty District and Whakatāne District.
Status scale:

Achieved

Unable to achieve (COVID-19 Impacted)

Not Achieved

N/A*

*Note: N/A is used where that activity is no longer applicable due to elements outside of TBOP’s control.
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3 October 2022

Performance Measure

Measure trends in visitor spend
in Te Moananui ā Toi | the
Coastal Bay of Plenty.

Visitor spend

Tourism data expert Shane
Vuletich from FreshInfo deems
it imprudent to forecast or set
targets for future years at the
moment (February 2021), due
to the current levels of market
uncertainty.

Economic

Visitor numbers

Employment

Environmental

Environmental
impact

Breakdown

Baseline

2021-2022 Goal (June 2022)

Total visitor
spend

In the YE May 2021, total visitor
spend in the region was up 18%
compared to YE May 2020.

Monitor and report on changes
in visitor spend and use the
information to set new goals for
future years.

Domestic
visitor spend

In the YE May 2021, domestic
visitor spend in the region was
up 27% compared to YE May
2020.

Monitor and report on changes
in visitor spend and use the
information to set new goals for
future years.

International
visitor spend

In the YE May 2021,
international visitor spend in the
region was down 51% compared
to YE May 2020.

Monitor and report on changes
in visitor spend and use the
information to set new goals for
future years, dependent on
market conditions.

Cruise visitor
spend

No baseline result, as there was
no 2020-21 cruise season due to
travel restrictions associated
with COVID-19.

If the cruise market returns in
2021-2022 as expected, monitor
and report on changes in visitor
spend and use the information
to set new goals for future years.

Monitor trends in the number
of visitors to Te Moananui ā Toi
| the Coastal Bay of Plenty.

Te Moananui ā
Toi | the
Coastal Bay of
Plenty

Measure the number of jobs
provided by the tourism
industry.
This includes accommodation,
food and beverage services,
tourism activities, travel and
tour services, and transport
services.

Total number
of filled jobs in
select tourism
industries

Measuring the impact (both
positive and negative) of
tourism on the environment.

Te Moananui ā
Toi | the
Coastal Bay of
Plenty

Monitoring average number of
visitors each day per month and
reporting to stakeholders.

Monitor and report on visitor
numbers across the year.

As at April 2021, tourism
provides 7,440 jobs in Te
Moananui ā Toi | the Coastal Bay
of Plenty.

Monitor and report on the
number of jobs the tourism
industry provides and use the
information to set new goals for
future years.

Started to assess the impact of
tourism across the region via
ECO-destination certification
(50% complete) and in
conjunction with stakeholders.

Determine a framework for
measuring the impact of tourism
and regenerative tourism on the
environment and begin
monitoring.

June 2022 update

Status

Source

Achieved

Marketview
Tourism Dashboard

Achieved

Marketview
Tourism Dashboard

Achieved

Marketview
Tourism Dashboard

Unable to
achieve
(COVID-19
Impacted)

MBIE Tourism
Satellite Account

Achieved

Data Ventures
Tourism NZ Tool

Achieved

Inland Revenue’s
Employer Monthly
Schedule (EMS)
and payday filing

Achieved

Report to be
developed based
on framework

In the YE May 2022, total visitor spend in the region
was down 1.9% compared to YE May 2021.
In the YE June 2022, total visitor spend in the region
was down 2.5% compared to YE May 2021.
In the YE May 2022, domestic visitor spend in the
region was down 2.3% compared to YE May 2021.
In the YE June 2022, domestic visitor spend in the
region was down 3.1% compared to YE May 2021.
In the YE May 2022, international visitor spend in the
region was up 6.9% compared to YE May 2021.
In the YE June 2022, international visitor spend in the
region was up 8.4% compared to YE May 2021.

No update available. The cruise sector is scheduled to
return in October 2022 (but this is subject to change).

TBOP is tracking visitor numbers and uses daily
averages to construct monthly averages. This
information is then shared with key stakeholders.
The average number of visitors in the region per day
in the YE June 2022 was 28,000, this peaked at an
average of 46,000 visitors per day in December 2021.

Tourism provided an average of 7,680 jobs in Te
Moananui ā Toi | the Coastal Bay of Plenty each
month in the YE May 2022.
This is the latest information available at the time of writing
the report.

TBOP measured the carbon footprint of tourism in the
region as part of a joint project with Bay of Plenty
Regional Council Toi Moana and Rotorua Economic
Development. This is the baseline measure of the
environmental impact of tourism and the factors
considered to comprise the framework.
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Focus Area

Performance
Area
Reach of
engagement
with iwi and
hapū

3 October 2022

Performance Measure

Breakdown

Baseline

2021-2022 Goal (June 2022)

June 2022 update

Status

Source

Te Moananui ā
Toi | the
Coastal Bay of
Plenty

Relationships with 10 iwi and 11
hapū.

Two new relationships
developed with iwi and hapū per
year.

TBOP has strengthened relationships with local iwi
and hapū through new connections and partnerships
with Te Rangapū and Tauranga City Council’s Māori
development team. This has resulted in connections
with three new iwi and hapū.

Monitor the number of iwi and
hapū with whom TBOP engages.

Achieved

Simpleview CRM
system

TBOP

Internal assessment of quality of
relationships:
▪ 48% are classified as ‘strong’
▪ 24% are classified as
‘moderate’
▪ 29% are classified as ‘weak’

Develop a 360° review to
establish a new baseline.

Established a 360° review framework with
components including an internal review of
relationships and feedback direct from iwi and hapū.
Through that process, we identified a need to connect
more strongly with Tauranga Moana iwi and engaged
with Te Rangapū via Tauranga City Council’s Māori
development team.

Achieved

360° review

Achieved

Tauranga City
Council residents'
satisfaction survey
results

Unable to
achieve
(COVID-19
Impacted)

Western Bay of
Plenty residents'
satisfaction survey
results

Unable to
achieve
(COVID-19
Impacted)

Whakatāne District
Council residents'
satisfaction survey
results

Achieved

TBOP operator
satisfaction survey

Cultural
Quality of
engagement
with iwi and
hapū

Monitor the strength of TBOP's
relationships with iwi and hapū.

•

Social licence

Social

Measure resident’s sentiment
towards tourism. This is
measured by the percentage of
residents who agree that
tourism has a positive impact on
the community. Residents
provide a rating of 1 to 10,
where 1 is strongly disagree and
10 is strongly agree.

Tauranga City
residents

The score for the year to date
(2020-21) is 66% agree
(representing scores of 7 to 10).

Maintain or improve perceptions
of tourism’s impact on the
community.

Western Bay
of Plenty
District
residents

The score for the year ending
June 2021 is 72% agree
(representing scores of 6 to 10).

Maintain or improve perceptions
of tourism's impact on the
community.

Whakatāne
District
residents

The score for the year ending
June 2020 is 79% agree
(representing scores of 6 to 10).

Maintain or improve perceptions
of tourism's impact on the
community.

The YE June 2022 survey score shows that 65% of
residents agree that tourism positively impacts the
community (representing scores of 7 to 10). While this
is a decrease of 1% compared to the YE June 2021
result, as the change is within the margin of error of
the results, the scores are consistent, and therefore
the goal of maintaining perceptions has been met.
The score for the year ending June 2022 survey shows
that 67% of residents agree that tourism has a positive
impact on the community (representing scores of 6 to
10). This is a decline of 5% compared to the June 2021
result. Further research (August 2022) has identified
COVID-19 as a key concern associated with the return
of visitors.
The score of the year ending June 2022 survey shows
that 69%* of residents agree that tourism has a
positive impact on the community (representing
scores of 6 to 10). This is a decline of 10% compared
to the June 2020 result but down just 4% from the
June 2021 result of 73%. Further research (August
2022) has identified COVID-19 as a key concern
associated with the return of visitors.
*This is the draft score, with results to be confirmed but
unlikely to change much, if at all.

Operator social
licence

Measure industry operators'
satisfaction with Tourism Bay of
Plenty's activities.

Operators

No current baseline data is
available. First survey to be
undertaken in 2021-2022.

Maintain or improve operators'
satisfaction with TBOP's
activities.

Given the Omicron outbreak and staff shortages in the
first half of 2022, TBOP chose to connect with
operators through a more qualitative approach than a
survey would allow. Feedback on TBOP’s activities was
mixed, with key areas for improvement identified.
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Focus Area

Performance
Area

3 October 2022

Performance Measure

Stakeholder
engagement

Monitor stakeholder
engagement volume.

Leadership
Advisory Group

Hold Leadership Advisory Group
meetings.

Visitor
satisfaction

Visitor
experience
Potential visitor
perceptions

i-SITE user
experience

Measure visitor satisfaction
with their visit to Te Moananui
ā Toi | the Coastal Bay of
Plenty.

Breakdown

Baseline

2021-2022 Goal (June 2022)

June 2022 update

Status

Source

Stakeholders

Averaged 120 engagements with
key stakeholders per two-month
period from July - December
2020.

Achieve an average of 70
engagements with key
stakeholders per two-month
period.

The General Manager and Senior Leadership Team
achieved an average of 60 engagements with key
stakeholders per two-month period in the YE June
2022. Ability to engage was significantly impacted by
COVID-19 and TBOP staff changes (especially in the Jul
to Dec 2021 period).

Unable to
achieve
(COVID-19
Impacted)

Simpleview CRM
system

One meeting in the 2020-21 FY.

Hold three Leadership Advisory
Group meetings.

Three Leadership Advisory Group meetings were held
during the year.

Achieved

Simpleview CRM
system

Achieved

Visitor satisfaction
survey

Unable to
achieve
(COVID-19
Impacted)

Market Perceptions
research report by
Angus & Associates

Unable to
achieve
(COVID-19
Impacted)

Market Perceptions
research report by
Angus & Associates

Achieved

Customer Radar
feedback
dashboard

Total visitor
satisfaction

Sample: n=214
Error margin: +/-7%

Maintain or improve visitors'
satisfaction with their visit.

Most (85%) of visitors were satisfied with their last
visit to the region (July 2022). This is a change of -1%
compared with the previous reporting period, which is
within the margin of error and therefore the results
can be considered consistent.
Sample size: n=328
Error margin: +/-5%

New Zealand
market

23% of adult New Zealand
travellers are somewhat
informed about the region,
consider the region to be highly
appealing, and will probably or
definitely visit in the next 12
months (YE March 2021).

Maintain or improve propensity
to visit score.

Australia
market

16% of adult Australian travellers
are somewhat informed about
the region, consider the region
to be highly appealing, and will
probably or definitely visit in the
next 12 months (YE March
2021).

Maintain or improve propensity
to visit score.

Tauranga iSITE

Six responses to i-SITE users'
perceptions survey.

Monitor Net Promoter Score™
and set benchmarks for future
years.

Measure perceptions of Te
Moananui ā Toi | the Coastal
Bay of Plenty among the New
Zealand and Australia markets.

Measure i-SITE users'
perceptions of their experience.

86% of visitors are satisfied with
their last visit to the region (May
to April 2021).

18% of adult New Zealand travellers are somewhat
informed about the region, consider the region to be
highly appealing, and will probably or definitely visit in
the next 12 months (YE June 2022). This result
represents a decline of 5% compared to the last
reported result (YE March 2021) but is in line with the
regional benchmark of 16%. COVID-19 conditions and
travel restrictions have impacted the likelihood to
travel, and the return of international travel options is
likely to cause a short-medium term dip in domestic
travel.
12% of adult Australian travellers are somewhat
informed about the region, consider the region to be
highly appealing, and will probably or definitely visit in
the next 12 months (YE June 2022). This result
represents a decline of 4% compared to the last
reported result (YE March 2021) but is in line with the
regional benchmark of 10%. COVID-19 conditions and
travel restrictions have impacted travel likelihood to
travel.
The i-SITE achieved a Net Promoter Score of +79 for
the YE June 2022. This is a very good score.
Sample size: n=19
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Focus Area

Performance
Area

3 October 2022

Performance Measure

Baseline

2021-2022 Goal (June 2022)

June 2022 update
Employee Engagement score: 63% of employees are ‘happy’
or ‘very happy’ working at TBOP.

Employee
engagement

Measure organisational culture and
staff well-being.

Employee Engagement score: 76%
(April 2021)

Maintain or improve Employee
Engagement Score.

Living wage

Payment of the living wage (as a
minimum) to all permanent
employees.

All employees are being paid a
minimum of the living wage.

Payment of the living wage (as a
minimum) to all permanent
employees.

Payment of the living wage is paid to all permanent
employees.

TBOP team

May 2022 (Note change of method compared to previous years so
results are not directly comparable.)

Status

Source

N/A due to
change of
method
meaning
results are
not directly
comparable.

TBOP Employee
Engagement
Survey

Achieved

Financial records

Health and
Safety

Measure health and safety
capability of Tourism Bay of Plenty.

Safe365 Index of 79% across the ten
modules.

Safe365 Index of 80% across the ten
modules.

Safe365 index of 70% across the ten modules and working on
areas that need attention. Staffing changes and upskilling of
Not
new team members resulted in a temporary decrease, with
achieved
expectations that this will be corrected over the coming
months.

i-SITE Qualmark
status

Monitor the Qualmark status of
Tauranga i-SITE.

Achieved Qualmark Sustainable
Tourism Business Award with score
of 85.

Maintain or improve the Qualmark
Sustainable Tourism Business Award
score.

Yet to be re-assessed since baseline score. This is due to
delays caused by COVID-19 and lockdowns. Next assessment
is due in late August 2022.

Unable to
achieve
(COVID-19
Impacted)

Qualmark

Reduce carbon footprint across the
organisation by 10% and offset or
inset the rest.

Total TBOP carbon emissions in the YE June 2019 was 24.2
tonnes. This is the baseline year as it is pre-COVID and makes
more sense than COVID-impacted years given travel has
been restricted through this time.
Total TBOP carbon emissions for the YE June 2022 was 19.9
tonnes. This is down 18% on the baseline year exceeding the
goal of a 10% reduction. Emissions were offset through a
donation to the Sydenham Botanic Trust to help restore the
park.

Achieved

Carbon footprint
calculator

Reduce waste to landfill by 10%.

A Resource Wise programme audit took place in August
2021, and the results showed approximately 104kg of waste
going to landfill for the year to that date. The results for the
latest year (measured in August 2022) indicate
approximately 119kg of waste to landfill, an increase of 8%.
Further recycling efforts have been put in place to counter
this. A review of TBOP’s product supply chain will be
conducted in the next quarter to identify opportunities to
reduce waste output.

Not
achieved

Resource Wise
Business through
Tauranga City
Council

Regulations

Carbon
footprint

Measure TBOP's carbon output.

Measured carbon footprint and
identified opportunities for
reduction.

Safe365
assessment

Sustainability

Waste
management

Monitor TBOP's waste
management.

TBOP has a worm farm and
recycling bins.
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Focus Area

3 October 2022

Performance
Area

Performance Measure

Baseline

2021-2022 Goal (June 2022)

June 2022 update

Status

Source

Governance

Statutory reporting requirements.

Met statutory reporting
requirements for the 2020-2021
financial year.

Meet statutory reporting
requirements.

Achieved all requirements except requirement date for AGM
which was not achievable due to Audit NZ not completing
the audit until May 2022.

Achieved

Audit

Manage P&L budget and aim for
best effort cost recovery through
revenue growth opportunities and
cost management strategies.

Achieved

Variance of profit to budget for year
within 5% of total revenue.

Net result is ahead of budget at year end.

Achieved

TBOP Six Month
and Annual Reports

Code of Conduct compliance.

Achieved

Code of Conduct compliance.

All compliance adhered to.

Achieved

TBOP Six Month
and Annual Reports

Compliance and regulatory
obligations met.
Enterprise Risk Management Policy
adherence.

The Annual Report 2020-2021 received an excellent audit
result with no areas of concern.

Achieved

Audit

All policy adhered to.

Achieved

Board confirmation

Achieved

No surprises principle maintained.

Relationships maintained and no surprises during the year.

Achieved

Council's feedback

Achieved

Manage STAPP and TSRR funding to
MBIE and TBOP Board expectations.

Achieved as per report to MBIE.

Achieved

TBOP Six Month
and Annual Reports

Achieved

Manage Regional Events Fund
funding to MBIE and TBOP Board
expectations.

Achieved as per report to MBIE.

Achieved

TBOP Six Month
and Annual Reports

Governance
and finance
Finance

Compliance and regulatory
obligations met.
Enterprise Risk Management Policy
adherence.
Maintain good working
relationships with Tauranga City
Council staff and elected members,
observing the ‘no surprises’
principle.
Manage Strategic Tourism Assets
Protection Programme (STAPP) and
Tourism Support Recovery and ReSet (TSRR) funding.
Manage Regional Events Fund
funding.

Achieved
Achieved
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Message from the Chair
and Chief Executive

Ten years of LGFA

He karere mai i te Toihau
me te Tumuaki

We have broadened our product mix from initially providing only term lending to councils to now
encompassing short-dated lending, bespoke lending, Green, Social and Sustainable lending, CCO
lending and providing standby facilities.

LGFA was established in December 2011, and we commenced our borrowing and lending activities
in February 2012. Over the past decade we have grown our membership from the 18 foundation
councils to now providing lending services to 75 councils and one Council-controlled organisation
(CCO) having secured an estimated 80% market share of all council borrowing.

Today, LGFA is the largest issuer of NZD bonds after the New Zealand Government, the largest
bond issuer listed on the NZX, and our bonds are amongst the largest and most liquid New
Zealand-dollar debt instruments available for investors. In 2021 our credit rating from S&P Global
Ratings was raised from AA+ to AAA, which is the highest credit rating available and the same as
the New Zealand Government.
We would not have achieved this success over the past decade without the support of many
individuals and organisations, so we want to express our thanks to our many stakeholders.

2021-22 Financial and operational
performance
Total interest income for the financial year of $393.5
million increased 4.3% over the 2020-21 result of $377.2
million. Net operating profit of $10.7 million decreased
10.8% on the 2020-21 result of $12.0 million but was in
line with the 2019-20 result of $10.6 million..
Both net interest income and operating profit were
below the Statement of Intent (SOI) forecasts due to:
• a larger than expected liquid asset portfolio (LAP)
which, over the year, yielded lower returns than
our cost of borrowing (which finances our LAP
investments),
• the impact from market pricing in aggressive
tightening in monetary policy, as the increase in
yields on cash deposits held at the RBNZ did not
keep pace with the longer end of the yield curve
which sets the base rate for our cost of borrowing,
and
• our conservative approach to borrowing longer
than our term of lending to members, due to a
higher cost of borrowing in these longer terms.
Operating expenses at $7.93 million were $169k over
the SOI budget. Higher Approved Issuer Levy (AIL)
payments due to a increased levels of offshore
investor holdings relative to forecast, higher NZX
and legal fees associated with record levels of bond
issuance and lending and higher personnel costs
were partially offset by lower travel costs.
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Borrowing activity

Lending to the sector

LGFA issued a record $3.9 billion of bonds over the
financial year and outstandings now total $16.1 billion
(including $1.1 billion of treasury stock) across 11 bond
maturities ranging between 2023 to 2037. Bond issuance
was significantly higher than the historical average
annual issuance of $1.6 billion. The average term of our
bond issuance during the year at 6.2 years was shorter
than the prior year of 8.7 years; reflecting the more
challenging market conditions for issuance and closer
matching of council borrowing.

Over the past year, we added three new members
with Southland District, Waimate District and Otago
Regional Council joining. Total council membership
is now 75 out of the 78 councils in New Zealand. In
addition, Invercargill City Holdings, our first Council
Controlled Organisation (CCO), became a member
during the year.

Over the past year, the spreads on LGFA bonds
widened against both New Zealand Government
Bonds (NZGB) and swap. LGFA bond spreads to NZGB
widened between 12 bps (2023 bond) and 38 bps (2037
maturity) while LGFA bond spreads to swap ranged
between a 6 bps narrowing (2023 maturity) and a 21
bps widening (2037 maturity). This change was similar
to the spread movements on other high grade issuers
and also reflected the record amount of bond issuance
undertaken by LGFA during the year.
There was also a significant lift in yields over the
year, with outright yields rising between 217 bps (2037
maturity) and 305 bps (2024 maturity).

Long-dated lending to councils over the year was a
record $3.3 billion as councils refinanced their April
2022 loans and increased their borrowing to finance
infrastructure projects. Our estimated market share
of total council borrowing of 80% was in line with last
year’s result and remained high on an historical basis.
The average tenor of long-dated borrowing by councils
of 6.2 years over the 12-month period was shorter than
last year’s 6.9 years.
Short-dated lending for terms less than 12 months
continues to be well supported by councils. At June
2022, there were $478 million of short-term loans
outstanding to 31 councils, a 68% increase over last
year’s $287 million outstanding to 25 councils.

COVID-19 and the proposed Three Waters
Reform Programme
Over the year, the local government sector has
managed under the impact from COVID-19 and two
Central Government led initiatives relating to the
proposed Three Waters Reform Programme and
Future for Local Government Review.
The sector continues to display great resilience to the
impact from COVID-19 with very little financial impact.
Financial support from Central Government has
assisted the sector with the delivery of infrastructure
projects and enabled councils to increase their
capital expenditure programmes.
LGFA has been working with Central Government and
our members as they work through the proposed
Three Waters Reform Programme and its funding
and financing implications. Central Government
has introduced legislation to create four new Water
Service Entities (WSE) that will assume the ownership
and management of the three waters assets from 1
July 2024, including the debt and associated revenue
from the current 67 council providers.
We are awaiting further details of the proposed
WSEs before we consult with our stakeholders on any
potential involvement by LGFA going forward.
LGFA is also assisting the local government sectorled initiative in developing a Ratepayer Financing
Scheme which is being developed with the objective
of providing some financial relief options to
ratepayers.
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New products and initiatives
We continue to look to innovate with our products
for members and launched our Green, Social and
Sustainable (GSS) lending product in October 2021,
with the first GSS loans to Wellington City and Greater
Wellington Regional councils in December 2021.
We undertook our first loan to a CCO in July 2021, with a
second CCO member expected in the next six months.
We have increased the level of council standby
facilities by $137 million to $662 million at year end, with
the number of participating councils increasing by four
to 11.
The LGFA board and Shareholders Council have
established a Future Director programme to assist
the sector with developing governance capability.
Anita Furniss has been appointed to the position and
commences with LGFA on 1 July 2022.

3 October 2022

Increasing focus on sustainability
and stakeholder engagement
Sustainability plays an important part within the local
government sector and at LGFA. We have undertaken
several initiatives over the past year, including:
• The establishment of a Sustainability Committee to
advise the LGFA Board and management team on
sustainability issues. The Committee comprises four
external appointees and assists the LGFA Head of
Sustainability.
• Ongoing commitment to reducing our carbon
emissions and maintaining our CarbonNetZero
certification from Toitu Envirocare.
• Launch of our GSS lending product that offers a
lower borrowing margin for councils with eligible
projects. We have pre-approved borrowing for two
eligible projects totalling $407 million and have
made loans to date of $63 million.
• Paul Matthews, a student at Massey University,
reviewed how Councils are responding to climate
change and the implications for LGFA as part of an
internship he undertook with us.

LGFA Staff, from left: Neil Bain, Nick Howell,
Koshick Ranchhod, Jane Phelan, Mark Butcher,
Ariadne Clarke, Sumitha Kaluarachi.
Absent: Andrew Michl, Maya Ranzinger
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This annual report is prepared to meet the
requirements of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI)
Standards (core option).
We headlined sponsorship of the 2020 LGFA Taituara
Local Government Excellence Awards for the second
consecutive year, and the eighth year that we have
supported the awards. We were pleased that the
winner of the Supreme Award was the Te Hiku o
te Ika Revitalisation Project, a highly successful
collaboration between Far North District Council, the
Kaitaia Business Association, the five iwi of Far North’s
Te Hiku region and the wider community. The project
created employment in, and enhanced the vibrancy
of, three of New Zealand’s most deprived areas. Some
81 urban development, restoration and revitalisation
projects were identified and folded into the project.

10

Acknowledgments
The Agency’s work cannot be implemented without
the support of our staff, fellow directors, Shareholders
Council, New Zealand Debt Management (NZDM), the
Reserve Bank of NZ (RBNZ), and Central Government, all
whose efforts should be acknowledged. We believe the
Agency’s future remains positive and look forward to
working with all stakeholders in the year ahead.

Craig Stobo
Chair

Mark Butcher
Chief Executive

Celebrating 10 years of cost efficient financing for councils
Since incorporation in 2011, we have:
• issued a total of $21.7 billion bonds to market
• lent a total of $20.1 billion to councils and CCOs

LGFA Board of Directors, from left:
Philip Cory-Wright, John Avery, Craig Stobo,
Alan Adcock, Linda Robertson, Anthony Quirk,
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Performance highlights

Bonds issued over the
financial year

Total interest income

$3,900 $393.5

Ko ngā tino hua

million

million

Lending to members
over the financial year

Net operating profit

$3,228 $10.7
million

Total assets at 30 June 2022

$16,250
million

$13,174
million

$8,491
million

$8,835
million

$14,485
million

$16,250
million

Increase over 2021-22 year

11.1%

Decrease over 2021-22 year

Liquidity at 30 June 2022

$158 million

$10,382
million

million

4.3%

Cash

$1,491 million

Marketable securities

$462 million

$1,100 million
Treasury stock for repurchase

$1,300 million

Government committed
liquidity facility

Deposits

2017

2018

Shareholder funds
at 30 June 2022

$104.5

$53.9
million

$64.3
million

2019

$74.2
million

2020

$83.6
million

2021

$94.7
million

2022

$104.5
million

million
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Fully paid shares

Retained earnings

Borrower notes are
subordinated debt instruments
which LGFA may convert into
redeemable shares under
prescribed circumstances.

$25.0

$79.5

$283

million

2017

8

Borrower notes

2018

2019

2020

2021

million

million

2022
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Performance
against objectives
Ko ngā whakatutukinga
ki ngā whāinga

Primary objectives
LGFA will optimise the debt funding terms and
conditions for Participating Borrowers. Among other
things, this includes:
•	Providing interest cost savings relative to
alternative sources of financing;
•	Offering flexible short and long-term lending
products that meet Participating Borrowers’
borrowing requirements;
•	Delivering operational best practice and
efficiency for its lending services;
•	Ensuring certainty of access to debt markets,
subject always to operating in accordance with
sound business practice.

The statement of service performance details
LGFA’s performance against the objectives
and targets set out in the LGFA Statement
of Intent 2021-22 (SOI)

2021-22 performance objectives
The SOI sets out two primary performance
objectives and eight additional objectives
for the year ended 30 June 2022.

Additional objectives
LGFA will ensure its asset book remains at a
high standard by ensuring it understands each
Participating Borrower’s financial position, as well
as general issues confronting the Local Government
sector. Amongst other things, LGFA will:

LGFA has the following eight measurable and
achievable additional objectives which complement
the primary objective. Performance against these
objectives is reported annually.

•	Proactively monitor and review each Participating
Borrower’s financial position, including its
financial headroom under LGFA policies;

•	Maintain LGFA’s credit rating equal to the New
Zealand Government sovereign rating where both
entities are rated by the same Rating Agency.

•	Analyse finances at the Council group level where
appropriate and report to shareholders;

•	Provide at least 80% of aggregate long-term debt
funding to the Local Government sector.

•	Endeavour to meet each Participating Borrower
annually, including meeting with elected officials
as required, or if requested; and
•	Take a proactive role to enhance the financial
strength and depth of the local government debt
market and work with key central government
and local government stakeholders on sector and
individual council issues.

LGFA will:

•	Achieve the financial forecasts for net interest
income and operating expenses, including
provision for a shareholder dividend payment in
accordance with approved dividend policy.
•	Meet or exceed the Performance Targets.
•	Comply with the Health and Safety at Work Act
2015.
•	Comply with the Shareholder Foundation Polices
and the Board-approved Treasury Policy at all
times.
•	Assist the local government sector with significant
matters such as COVID -19 response and the
proposed Three Waters Reform Programme.
•	Improve sustainability outcomes within LGFA and
assist the local government sector in achieving
their sustainability and climate change objectives.
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Performance against primary objectives
This section sets out LGFA’s performance for the
year ended 30 June 2022 against the two primary
objectives set out in the 2021-22 SOI.
Primary objective 1: LGFA will optimise the debt
funding terms and conditions for Participating
Borrowers. Among other things, this includes:
Providing interest cost savings relative to alternative
sources of financing.
LGFA lending base margin was 15 bps for all
borrowing terms for the 2021-22 year, which covers our

operating costs and also provides for capital to grow
in line with increases in our balance sheet. There is an
additional credit margin added to the base margin
depending upon whether a council has a credit
rating or is a guarantor or non-guarantor of LGFA.
LGFA continues to borrow at very competitive spreads
compared to the AAA rated Sovereign, Supranational
and Agencies (SSA) issuers who borrow in the New
Zealand debt capital markets, the domestic banks
and Kainga Ora, our closest peer issuer.

Bank, SSA, Kainga Ora and LGFA NZD Curves – Spread to Swap (bps)
100

For LGFA to provide certainty of access to markets
for our council borrowers we need to have a vibrant
primary and secondary market in LGFA bonds. The
primary market is the new issuance market, and we
measure strength with participation by investors
at our tenders through bid-coverage ratios and
successful issuance yield ranges. The secondary
market is the trading of LGFA bonds following
issuance and a healthy market implies high turnover.
LGFA issued a record $3,900 million in bonds over the
year through nine tenders and two syndications.
There were 12 bill tenders over the year with $565
million of bills on issue at June 2022. Proceeds from
bill and bond issuances fund our lending to members,
with the balance invested in our liquid asset portfolio.

Take a proactive role to enhance the financial
strength and depth of the local government debt
market and work with key central government
and local government stakeholders on sector and
individual council issues.
Over the year, LGFA management met with
representatives from Reserve Bank of New Zealand,
Department of Internal Affairs, Office of the
Auditor General, Taituara, the New Zealand Debt
Management section of the Treasury (NZDM).
LGFA continue to assist the sector and advisers in
finding ways for LGFA to play a supporting role in
providing solutions to off balance sheet financing
for councils and are currently providing technical
input into the Cameron Partners proposed Ratepayer
Financing Scheme.

In October 2021, LGFA issued two new bonds, a May
2028 and May 2035, providing members with the
opportunity to extend their long-term borrowing.
The weighted average borrowing term by members
over the year was 6.2 years (excluding short-dated
borrowing).

80
60
40

LGFA maintains an Australian Medium-Term Notes
Programme which, to date, has not been used but
which provides additional flexibility if required under
future market conditions.

20
0

Ensuring certainty of access to debt markets, subject
always to operating in accordance with sound
business practice.

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

2029

2030

2031

2032

2033

2035

2037

-20
LGFA (AAA)

Kainga Ora (AAA)

We survey our members each year on their
satisfaction with LGFA and our August 2021
stakeholder survey returned a 99% positive response
to the question “How would you rate LGFA in adding
value to your borrowing requirements?”. We also
received a 98% positive response to the question
“How satisfied are you with the pricing that LGFA has
provided to your Council?”.
Offering flexible short and long-term lending
products that meet Participating Borrowers’
borrowing requirements.
Both short and long-term borrowing has been well
supported by our members:
•	At June 2022, $478 million short-term loans were
outstanding to 31 councils and CCOs, with loan
terms ranging between one month and 12 months.
•	Over the year, 66 members borrowed $3,228 million
in 292 new long-term loans, across 77 maturity
dates ranging between 2021 and 2037.
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SSA Average

Bank Average

•	Our Green Social and Sustainability (GSS) loan
product was formally launched in late 2021 with
Wellington City Council and Greater Wellington
Regional Council our inaugural borrowers under
the GSS programme.
•	Our first CCO member, Invercargill City Holdings,
undertook borrowing in July 2021.

Primary objective 2: LGFA will ensure its asset book
remains at a high standard by ensuring it understands
each Participating Borrower’s financial position,
as well as general issues confronting the Local
Government sector. Amongst other things, LGFA will:
Proactively monitor and review each Participating
Borrower’s financial position, including its financial
headroom under LGFA policies.
LGFA reviews all borrowers financial statements on
an annual basis and the agendas and management
reports on an ongoing basis for all councils and CCOs
on the LGFA borrower watch-list.

Standby facilities provided to councils increased by
$147 million over the year to total $662 million across 12
councils.

Borrowers are required to complete annual
compliance certificates by 30 November each year.
We have received compliance certificates from all
borrowers, and all remained compliant as at 30 June
2021.

Delivering operational best practice and efficiency
for its lending services.

Analyse finances at the Council group level where
appropriate and report to shareholders.

Over the year, the LGFA operations team successfully
settled 1,783 new trades and 11,474 cash flows in excess
of $36 billion.

All LGFA members are measured on a parent level
basis.

In the August 2021 stakeholder survey, respondents
recorded a 96% positive response to the question
“How satisfied are you with the LGFA settlement
process?”

Endeavour to visit each Participating Borrower
annually, including meeting with elected officials as
required, or if requested.
LGFA met with all council and CCO members over the
course of year. Where practical, we met in person
with members and held meetings virtually if required.
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Additional objectives

environmental and social projects in the New
Zealand local government sector; and

LGFA has the following seven measurable and
achievable additional objectives which complement
the primary objective. Performance against these
objectives is reported annually. LGFA will:

reduce mismatches between borrowing and lending
terms in our balance sheet. Over the year, there was
an unrealised gain on these swaps of $2.33 million.

Maintain LGFA’s credit rating equal to the New
Zealand Government sovereign rating where both
entities are rated by the same Rating Agency.

•	Issuance and on-lending costs at $2.829 million
were $0.092 million over budget. Higher issuance
and lending volumes than forecast resulted in
higher costs for NZX, legal and registry.

LGFA has an annual review process for our credit
ratings from Standard and Poor’s and Fitch Ratings
and meets with both agencies at least annually.
•	Standard and Poor’s (S&P). On 2 March 2022, S&P
affirmed our long-term local currency credit rating
of AAA and our long-term foreign currency credit
rating of AA+.
•	Fitch Ratings (Fitch). On 1 November 2021 Fitch
affirmed both our local currency credit rating of
AA+ (stable) and foreign currency credit rating of
AA (positive outlook).
Both S&P and Fitch ratings are the same as the New
Zealand Government.
Provide at least 80% of aggregate long-term debt
funding to the Local Government sector.
LGFA use the PwC Local Government Debt Report to
determine our market share. Our estimated market
share for the rolling twelve-month period to June 2022
was 80%. If we exclude Auckland Council borrowing of
$500 million in its own name over the past year in the
domestic market, then market share increases to 89%.
This compares to a historical average of 75% and our
market share remains high compared to our global
peers.
Over the year, three new councils became members
of LGFA, lifting total participating council members to
75. Otago Regional Council, Southland District Council
and Waimate District Council joined as guarantors.
In addition, Invercargill City Holdings Ltd became our
first CCO member bringing total council and CCO
membership to 76.
Achieve the financial forecasts for net interest
income and operating expenses, including provision
for a shareholder dividend payment in accordance
with approved dividend policy.
Net interest income (NII) for the year was $17.516
million, which was $0.569 million under budget, while
expenses of $7.933 million were $0.169 million over
budget. Net operating profit of $10.673 million was
$0.648 million under budget.
Included in the NII is the unrealised mark-tomarket movement in fixed rate swaps that are not
designated effective for hedge accounting purposes.
These swaps reduce exposure to fixed rate loans
made outside of the normal tender process and to
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Operating expenses for the year:

•	Other operating costs at $4.403 million were $0.014
million over budget.
•	Approved Issuer Levy (AIL) payments of $0.701
million were $0.063 million over budget. We pay AIL
on behalf of offshore investors at the time of semiannual coupon payment and offshore investor
holdings were just over our SOI forecast.

•	
Over the course of the year, we progressed
work on improving our sustainability outcomes,
which include reducing our carbon footprint and
implementing our Responsible Investment Policy.

Throughout the year, LGFA has been looking to
widen its sustainable finance options for members
by offering them the future opportunity to apply for
Climate Initiative Loans (CILs). The product is currently
under development but offering CIL’s will align to
LGFA’s aim of displaying leadership to the sector on
sustainable lending.

Performance Targets
Meet or exceed the Performance Targets

Performance measure

Comply with the Health and Safety at Work Act 2015.
LGFA has a Health and Safety Staff Committee and
reporting on health and safety issues is made to
the LGFA board on a regular basis by the Risk and
Compliance Manager. There were no health and
safety incidents during the year.
Comply with the Shareholder Foundation Polices and
the Board-approved Treasury Policy at all times.
There were no compliance breaches during the year.
Assist the local government sector with significant
matters such as COVID -19 response and the
proposed Three Waters Reform Programme.
LGFA continue to have ongoing dialogue with Central
Government on the proposed Three Waters reforms
and provided feedback regarding financing of the
proposed entities during and beyond the transition
period. We are waiting for clarification from Central
Government as to the role that LGFA could play, if any,
in providing financing.
Improve sustainability outcomes within LGFA and
assist the local government sector in achieving their
sustainability and climate change objectives.
LGFA continues to develop our processes with
regards to demonstrating commitment to social
and environmental responsibility and aims to be
a key contributor to the local government sector’s
investment in green projects and to support the
transition to a low-carbon society.

Result for the 12 month
period to 30 June 2022

LGFA total operating income for the period to June 2022 will
be greater than $19.1 million

$18.6 million.

Annual issuance and operating expenses (excluding AIL)
will be less than $7.2 million

$7.2 million.

Total nominal lending (short and long term) to
participating councils to be at least $13.294 billion

$14.019 billion.

Conduct an annual survey of councils and achieve 85%
satisfaction score as to the value added by LGFA to council
borrowing activities

August 2021 survey outcome
of 99.2 %

Meet all lending requests from PLAs

100%

Achieve 80% market share of all council borrowing in New
Zealand

80%

Review each PLA financial position, its headroom under
LGFA policies and arrange to meet each PLA at least
annually

All councils visited

No breaches of Treasury Policy, any regulatory or
legislative requirements including H&S

No breaches

Successfully refinance of existing loans to councils and
LGFA bond maturities as they fall due

100%

Maintain a credit rating equal to the New Zealand
Government rating where both entities are rated by the
same credit rating entity

AA+/AAA

Outcome

•	
In September 2021 we established our
Sustainability Committee, which followed
our appointment of Nick Howell as Head of
Sustainability in May 2021;
•	
In October 2021 we launched our Green, Social
and Sustainability Lending Programme which
offers funding to enable members to undertake
GSS projects that will help drive forward climate,

Performance against objectives LGFA Annual Report 2022 15
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About us

Establishment
The New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Ltd (LGFA)
specialises in financing the New Zealand local government
sector, the primary purpose being to provide more efficient
financing costs and diversified financing sources for New
Zealand local authorities. LGFA was established to raise debt
on behalf of local authorities on terms that are more favourable
to them than if they raised the debt directly.

Mō mātou

Credit rating at 30 June 2022
Incorporated on 1
December 2011 under
the Companies Act 1993

Enabled by Local
Government Borrowing
Act 2011

Ownership

45

million ordinary
shares on issue

20 million of which
remain uncalled

31

shareholders

Council-controlled
organisation
under the Local
Government Act 2002

80%
30 Councils

20%

Item 11.1 - Attachment 5

Fitch Ratings

Domestic Currency

Domestic Currency

AAA

Stable outlook

Foreign Currency AA+
Stable outlook

AA+

Stable outlook

Foreign Currency AA
Positive outlook

New Zealand
Government

Share ownership is restricted
to New Zealand Government
or councils.

16 LGFA Annual Report 2022 About us

S&P Global Ratings

Guarantee structure
All shareholder councils
are guarantors as well
as councils with total
borrowings over $20
million.

LGFA’s securities
obligations are
guaranteed by
council guarantors.

A council’s obligations
under the guarantee
is secured against rates
revenue

About us LGFA Annual Report 2022 17

Page 182

Ordinary Council meeting Attachments

Governance
overview

3 October 2022

Shareholders’ Council

LGFA Board

Page 52

Page 46

Bonds listed on NZX Debt
Market

31 Shareholders
30 Councils

80%
New Zealand
Government

20%

The LGFA Shareholders’ Council comprises five to ten
appointees from the Council Shareholders and the
New Zealand Government. The role of the Shareholders’
Council is to:

The LGFA Board is responsible for the strategic
direction and control of LGFA’s activities.
The Board guides and monitors the business
and affairs of LGFA, in accordance with the:

Review and report performance of LGFA and the Board;

• Local Government Act 2002;

Recommend to Shareholders as to the appointment, removal, replacement
and remuneration of directors;

• Local Government Borrowing Act 2011;

Recommend to Shareholders as to any changes to policies,
or the Statement of Intent (SOI), requiring their approval;

• LGFA’s Constitution;

Update Shareholders on LGFA matters and to coordinate Shareholders
on governance decisions.

• LGFA Annual Statement of Intent.

Issue of securities to the
public under the Financial
Markets Conduct Act and
regulated by Financial
Markets Authority

• Companies Act 1993;
• LGFA Shareholder Agreement;

Supervised by
independent trustee

The Board comprises five independent
directors and one non-independent director.

Our history

by financial year

Incorporated

Dec
2011

Commenced
bond issuance
February 2012

KangaNews NZ
Domestic Issuer of
the Year – 2012

INFINZ award
for Best Bond
issue of 2012

2013

2012

Transitioned to
Financial Markets
Conduct Act

Commenced
short-term lending
to councils

Commenced LGFA
Bill issuance

2017

Item 11.1 - Attachment 5

KangaNews.
NZ Domestic Bond
Deal of the Year

Inaugural
syndication ($1.0b)

2014

Future Director
programme launched

Reserve Bank adds
LGFA bonds to its Large
Scale Asset Purchase
programme. April 2020

2020

2019

2018

Record $3.90 billion bonds
issued in year

18 LGFA Annual Report 2022 About us

Bespoke
lending
introduced

2015

First LGFA bond not
matched to a New Zealand
Government bond maturity

2022

Implemented Treasury
Management System and
transitioned outsourced
services from NZDMO

LGFA Bonds
listed on NZX
November 2015

2016
Bond lending
facility established
October 2016

Inaugural
dividend of $1.5m
declared

Inaugural LGFA
Borrowers Forum

Commenced
lending to
Council-controlled
Organisations

Green, social and
sustainability
lending offered
to members

10 year
anniversary

10

Toitū ZeroCarbon
certification

AAA credit
rating achieved

2021
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LGFA bonds on issue

How we issue bonds
LGFA typically issues a new bond maturity via an initial syndication and then through
ongoing regular scheduled tenders.

Ko ngā pūtea taurewa
pūmau kua tukuna e te LGFA

•	Preferred bond tender sizes are between
NZ$150 million to NZ$200 million with at
least three maturities offered at each
tender.

•	Target issuance of NZ$1 billion plus per
series over time with a cap of $2.5 billion
billion per series to support market
liquidity.

•	LGFA bonds match NZ Government Bonds
where possible for maturity and coupon.

•	All bonds have been issued in New
Zealand dollar (NZD) to date, but have
capability to issue non-NZD bonds if
required.

•	Approved Issuer Levy is paid on behalf of
offshore holders.

•	All LGFA retail bonds are listed on the NZX.

$16,075

Our issuance history (NZ$ million, face value)

LGFA NZX-listed bonds on issue (NZ$ million, face value)
As 30 June 2022 : NZ$16,075 million

$13,680

Includes NZ$1,100 million treasury stock (refer note 16, page 75)

$1,930

$2,098

$1,779

$1,915

$1,851

$1,370

$1,462

$950

$1,390

$500

$830

$11,660
Bond issuance by year (including treasury stock)
Bond maturities

$9,335
$8,119

Total face value of retail bonds on issue
including $1,100m of treasury stock
– refer note 16, page 75

$6,840
$6,220
$4,955

$3,695
$3,305 $3,470

$2,475
$835

$4,100

$2,456
$1,640

$835

$1,635
$1,279
$1,220 $1,500 $1,265

Issued
Matured

-$240

-$1,240 -$980 -$1,450
-$1,705

-$1,015
Maturity
Coupon
NZX Code

-$1,450

Apr 2023 Apr 2024 Apr 2025 Apr 2026 Apr 2027 May 2028 Apr 2029 May 2031 Apr 2033 May 2035 Apr 2037
5.50%

2.25%

2.75%

1.50%

4.50%

2.25%

1.50%

2.25%

3.50%

3.00%

2.00%

LGF050

LGF100

LGF070

LGF120

LGF060

LGF150

LGF110

LGF140

LGF080

LGF160

LGF130

In addition to the retail bonds listed on the NZX, LGFA have $130 million of wholesale floating rate notes on
issue.

Financial year
Average tender size

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

209

182

153

188

141

143

137

188

182

191

188

5.3

6.6

7.0

7.9

8.1

8.3

6.1

6.6

6.9

8.7

5.5

(NZ$ million)
Average issuance term
(years)
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2021-22 issuance by maturity (NZ$ million, face value)

LGFA bond margins (basis points)

LGFA bond issuance by bond maturity over the 12-month period to 30 June 2022

LGFA bond margins against swap and New Zealand Government Bonds (NZGB)

Tenders
7 Jul 21

Apr 23 Apr 24 Apr 25 Apr 26 Apr 27 May 28 Apr 29 May 31 Apr 33 May 35 Apr 37
-

-

50

60

-

-

60

-

50

-

Total

-

220

12 Aug 21

90

-

50

-

45

-

-

80

-

-

-

265

8 Sep 21

-

50

-

40

-

-

40

-

40

-

-

170

10 Nov 21

-

70

-

-

50

-

-

-

-

-

30

150

12 Dec 21

-

-

50

50

50

-

-

-

-

-

-

150

2 Feb 22

-

60

-

-

-

60

60

40

-

-

-

220

9 Mar 22

-

60

-

-

60

-

30

-

30

-

-

180

11 May 22

80

-

-

-

60

-

-

40

-

-

-

180

8 Jun 22

-

-

60

-

-

60

-

40

-

-

-

160

170

240

210

150

265

120

190

200

120

-

30

2021/22
syndication

-

230

-

425

-

1,150

-

-

-

400

Total 2021/22
issuance

170

470

210

575

265

1,270

190

200

120

Prior issuance

1,660

1,528

1,469

1,240

1,486

-

1,172

650

Total bonds
excluding
Treasury Stock

1,830

1,998

1,679

1,815

1,751

1,270

1,362

850

Treasury stock

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

1,100

1,930

2,098

1,779

1,915

1,851

1,370

1,462

950

1,390

500

830

16,075

2021/22 tender
issuance

Apr 23

Apr 24

Apr 25

Apr 26

30 June 2021

Margin to swap

(1)

2

7

13

15

N/A

25

33

39

N/A

51

30 June 2022

(10)

(1)

5

16

19

28

33

40

49

62

70

9

3

2

(3)

(4)

N/A

(8)

(7)

(10)

N/A

(19)

Annual change

Margin to NZGB Apr 23

Apr 27 May 28 Apr 29

Apr 27 May 28 Apr 29

May 31

May 31

Apr 33 May 35

Apr 33 May 35

Apr 37

Apr 24

Apr 25

Apr 26

30 June 2021

22

26

31

36

40

N/A

43

44

43

N/A

Apr 37
44

30 June 2022

34

53

55

61

60

61

62

66

65

78

79

1,695

Annual change

(12)

(27)

(24)

(25)

(20)

N/A

(19)

(22)

(22)

N/A

(35)

-

2,205

400

30

3,900

LGFA bond margins to swap over NZGB over the 36 months
to 30 June 2022 (basis points)

1,170

-

700

11,075

80

1,290

400

730

14,975

Margin to swap

Total bonds
on issue

60

$1,105

$1,100

0
Jun 22

Mar 22

Dec 21

Sep 21

Jun 21

Mar 21

Dec 20

Sep 20

$220

$265

$170

$150

$150

$220

$180

$180

$160

LGFA is New Zealand’s largest:

$200
Jul 21

Aug 21

Sep 21

Oct 21

Nov 21

Dec 21

Feb 22

Mar 22

Apr 22

May 22

Jun 22

Tender

Synd

Tender

Synd

Tender

Tender

Tender

Tender

Synd

Tender

Tender

2.6x

1.8x

2.4x

N/A

2.6x

3.0x

2.6x

2.5x

N/A

4.3x

3.3x

1.71%

1.71%

1.80%

2.28%

2.31%

2.15%

2.22%

2.30%

2.76%

2.81%

2.87%

coverage ratio
Weighted

Jun 20

Average of all LGFA bonds outstanding: Secondary market levels as at end of each month taken from end
of month closing rate sheets published by NZ banks.

million

Tender

Mar 20

million

Dec 19

$3,900

Sep 19

Jun 19

2021-22
issuance

$200

40

20

2021-22 issuance by month (NZ$ million, face value)

Treasury
stock issued

Margin to NZGB

•	issuer of NZD bonds (excluding New Zealand
Government)
•

issuer of debt listed on the NZX

New bond maturities issued
in the year to June 2022
May 2028
2.25%

May 2035
3.00%

average yield
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LGFA bond holders by country of residence as at 31 March 2022

65.7%

New Zealand

32.4%

7.7%

4.8%

Japan

UK

4.0% US and Canada
1.5% Other
0.8% non-Japan Asia
0.7% Australia

LGFA bond holders by investor group as at 30 June 2022

Domestic institutional

14.8%

Europe

29.6%

Domestic banks

25.8%

9.5%

Offshore

RBNZ

2.7% Domestic retail

Largest issuers of NZD bonds by outstandings
excluding NZGB, as at 30 June 2022 (NZ$ billion)
16.3

LGFA (AAA)
8.0

Asian Development Bank (AAA)
Housing New Zealand Limited (AAA)

7.5

World Bank (AAA)

7.3
4.3

Bank of New Zealand/NAB (AA-)
Westpac Bank Group (AA-)

3.7

International Finance Corp (AAA)

3.2

Kommunalbanken (AAA)

3.2

ASB Bank/CBA Group (AA-)

2.5

Rentenbank (AAA)

2.4

LGFA estimate, based on aggregation of Bloomberg sourced data.

Right Tree, Right Place project
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Hawkes Bay Regional Council
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LGFA members

LGFA operates with the primary objective of optimising the debt
funding terms and conditions for its members.
Participating local authorities and Council-controlled organisations
are collectively referred to as LGFA members.

Ko ngā LGFA e noho
mema ana

Among other things this
includes:
•	
Providing savings in
annual interest costs
•	
Offering short and longterm borrowings with
flexible lending terms
•	
Enhancing the certainty
of debt markets
•	
Being the funder of choice
for New Zealand local
government.

To become a member of LGFA, a council or CCO is required
to complete a formal application. Following an application
for membership, LGFA management completes a review of
the prospective member’s financial position and its ability to
comply with LGFA’s financial covenants, which is considered
by the LGFA Board who approve all council memberships.
All member councils are required to complete a compliance
certificate each year which certifies that the council has
complied with LGFA’s financial covenants. In addition, LGFA
monitors all members’ annual reports, annual plans and long
term plans on an ongoing basis to ensure that the financial
forecasts are consistent with the LGFA financial covenants.

Total member borrowings at 30 June 2022
(NZ$ million)

Member type

Number of
councils

Amount
borrowed

% of total
borrowings

14,015

99.6%

Non guarantors

7

63

0.4%

Total

75

14,078

100%

Amount
borrowed

% of total
borrowings

Auckland Council

3,413

24.2%

Christchurch City Council

2,039

14.5%

Wellington City Council

967

6.9%

Tauranga City Council

649

4.6%

Hamilton City Council

633

4.5%

Greater Wellington Regional Council

576

4.1%

Rotorua District Council

288

2.0%

Hutt City Council

257

1.8%

Kapiti Coast District Council

256

1.8%

Hastings District Council

238

1.7%

4,762

33.8%

14,078

100%

Member

63 members
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40%

As at 30 June 2022

75

councils

1

council-controlled
organisation

were eligble to borrow from LGFA

of total loans

THE NUMBERS

68

Guarantors

Loans to Auckland
Council are limited
to a maximum of

30

member councils
are shareholders

68

member councils
were guarantors

Over the 12 months
to 30 June 2022

were issued to

across

with an average term of

$3,228

66

292

6.22

At 30 June 2022

were outstanding to

$478

31

million of long
term loans

million of short
term loans

members

members

individual term loans

Member councils are
required to comply
with LGFA financial
covenants at all times

average borrowing years

80%

LGFA’s estimated market share
of local government debt
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LGFA members by year of joining
North Island

Community housing project
Hastings District Council

South Island

2011-12

Auckland Council

Shareholder

2011-12

Christchurch City Council

Shareholder

2011-12

Bay of Plenty Regional Council

Shareholder

2011-12

Selwyn District Council

Shareholder

2011-12

Greater Wellington Regional
Council

Shareholder

2011-12

Tasman District Council

Shareholder

2011-12

Hamilton City Council

Shareholder

2012-13

Ashburton District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2011-12

Hastings District Council

Shareholder

2012-13

Grey District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2011-12

Masterton District Council

Shareholder

2012-13

Marlborough District Council

Shareholder

2011-12

New Plymouth District Council

Shareholder

2012-13

Nelson City Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2011-12

Otorohanga District Council

Shareholder

2012-13

Queenstown Lakes District
Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2011-12

South Taranaki District Council

Shareholder

2012-13

Timaru District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2011-12

Taupo District Council

Shareholder

2012-13

Waimakariri District Council

Shareholder

2011-12

Tauranga City Council

Shareholder

2013-14

Hurunui District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2011-12

Waipa District Council

Shareholder

2015-16

Buller District Council

Borrower

2011-12

Wellington City Council

Shareholder

2015-16

Canterbury Regional Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2011-12

Western Bay of Plenty District
Council

Shareholder

2015-16

Gore District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2011-12

Whangarei District Council

Shareholder

2017-18

Westland District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2012-13

Far North District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2018-19

Clutha District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2012-13

Gisborne District Council

Shareholder

2018-19

Invercargill City Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2012-13

Hauraki District Council

Shareholder

2018-19

Mackenzie District Council

Borrower

2012-13

Horowhenua District Council

Shareholder

2018-19

West Coast Regional Council

Borrower

2012-13

Hutt City Council

Shareholder

2019-20

Kaikoura District Council

Borrower

2012-13

Kapiti Coast District Council

Shareholder

2020-21

Central Otago District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2012-13

Manawatu District Council

Shareholder

2020-21

Waitaki District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2012-13

Matamata-Piako District
Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2021-22

Otago Regional Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2021-22

Southland District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2012-13

Palmerston North City Council

Shareholder

2021-22

Waimate District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2012-13

Rotorua District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2021-22

Invercargill City Holdings Ltd

2012-13

Thames-Coromandel District
Council

Shareholder

Council-controlled
organisation

2012-13

Waikato District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2012-13

Whakatane District Council

Shareholder

2012-13

Whanganui District Council

Shareholder

2013-14

Horizons District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2013-14

Upper Hutt City Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2014-15

Opotiki District Council

Borrower

2014-15

Porirua City Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2014-15

Tararua District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2015-16

Kaipara District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2015-16

South Wairarapa District
Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2016-17

Central Hawkes Bay District
Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2016-17

Northland Regional Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2016-17

Waitomo District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2017-18

Rangitikei District Council

Borrower

2017-18

Stratford District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2018-19

Hawkes Bay Regional Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2018-19

Ruapehu District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2018-19

Waikato Regional Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2018-19

Wairoa District Council

Borrower

2019-20

Taranaki Regional Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2019-20

Carterton District Council

Borrower

2020-21

Kawerau District Council

Borrower

2020-21

Napier City Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2020-21

South Waikato District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

2011-2012 (18)

2015-2016 (5)
2016-2017 (3)

2020-2021 (5)

2013-2014 (3)

2017-2018 (3)

2021-2022 (3)

2014-2015 (3)

2018-2019 (8)
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LGFA welcomes the following three councils who joined
as eligible borrowers in the year ended 30 June 2022

New member
Council-controlled
organisations

84%

loans to councils with

AA-

external rating or better

2019-2020 (3)

2012-2013 (21)
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New member councils

Three councils are not currently
members of LGFA. Dunedin City
Council, Chatham Islands Council
and Southland Regional Council.

LGFA assign internal credit
ratings for all councils,
including all councils without
external credit ratings.

75

of
New Zealand’s
78 councils
are approved
borrowers
as at 30 June 2022
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Loans to members outstanding (NZ$ million, nominal)

Borrowing by members (NZ$ million, nominal)

15,000

$14,078

$769

4,000

$12,067

12,000

$3,419

$10,869

3,000

$355

$9,311
9,000

$7,784

$907

$7,976
2,000

$551

$6,451
6,000

$1,530

$4,979

$3,228

$395

$2,446

$2,366

$735

$1,572
$1,325

1,000

$ 3,696

$1,494

$501

$285
$1,382

$1,152

$480
$1,113

$2,481

3,000

$819
Number
of members

$972

$850

18

Loans
Jun 12
outstanding

0
39

43

45

50

53

55

64

67

67

75

Jun 13

Jun 14

Jun 15

Jun 16

Jun 17

Jun 18

Jun 19

Jun 20

Jun 21

Jun 22

2012

Long term, from LGFA

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

From other sources

Community housing project
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Hastings District Council
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Sustainability at LGFA
Te toitūtanga kei te LGFA

The LGFA Statement of Intent (SOI) requires us to improve sustainability outcomes within LGFA
and assist the local government sector in achieving their sustainability and climate change
objectives.
This section sets out our management approach for LGFA’s environmental, social and
governance (ESG) risks and opportunities. LGFA is committed to improving sustainability
outcomes within the company, as well as assisting the local government sector achieve
their sustainability and climate change objectives within their communities.
This Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the Global Reporting Initiative
(GRI) Standards (core option).

Sustainability Committee
In 2021, LGFA established our Sustainability Committee to assist us to achieve our sustainability objectives.
The Committee is chaired by LGFA’s Head of Sustainability and comprises three employees and four independent
members.
The Committee’s purpose is to advise the Chief Executive and Board on sustainability issues within LGFA, across its
operating, borrowing and lending activities and includes providing input in our GSS lending programme. GSS loan
applications are reviewed by LGFA’s Sustainability Committee prior to approval, with approved loans monitored
for ongoing compliance.

3 October 2022

LGFA seeks to continuously improve sustainability outcomes
within the company as well as assisting the local government
sector in achieving their sustainability and climate change
objectives.
LGFA are committed to assist councils and council-controlled
organisations finance projects that promote environmental and
social wellbeing in New Zealand.

Our material issues
Material issues are those issues that reflect our significant economic,
environmental, and social impacts, or that substantively influence the
assessments and decisions of our stakeholders.
LGFA’s materiality issues were determined with the assistance of Proxima,
an independent sustainability consultancy. Over the past year, Proxima
has worked with the executive, directors and shareholders to update
the material issues relevant to our business and key stakeholders.
This year, LGFA’s material issues have been updated to reflect our
increasing focus on sustainability, with other material topics relatively
unchanged from 2021.

Our organisation

Responsible finance

Our environment

• Culture, ethics and governance
• Transparency and disclosure

• Deliver efficient and costeffective funding

• Green, social and sustainability
lending

• Health, safety and wellbeing

• Financial performance

• Responsible investment

• Diversity and inclusion

• Industry collaboration and
engagement

• Sustainable business practices

• Capability and development

• Best practice and influence

Independent members of the LGFA Sustainability Committee at 30 June 2022
Alison Howard
Erica Miles
Chris Thurston
David Woods
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Promoting environmental and social
stewardship

LGFA is New Zealand’s largest issuer after the New Zealand Government.
Our issuance and lending functions impact our stakeholders, our communities
and the environment.

Our stakeholders

Banks and financial
institutions

Investors

LGFA

Shareholders

Local Councils

New Zealand Local
Government Funding Agency
Te Pūtea Kāwanatanga ā-rohe

LGFA employees

Council controlled
organisations

Investment into infrastructure projects

LGFA is the predominant funder of
New Zealand’s local government
and their activities and projects
funded through our loans impact
across our communities and
environment. The impacts from
council activities funded via LGFA
will be either positive and negative
and, while we do not specify or
control the use of our proceeds
from our loans, we are increasingly
working with council members
and the sector on identifying
and progressing positive impact
projects for the environment and
our communities.
At the time of this report, we have
begun working with members
to better understand the
environmental footprint for each
council, as well as identifying
where they are undertaking
climate reduction initiatives. This
information will assist us with
developing future processes for
reporting on the extent of LGFA’s
financed emissions to members.

LGFA recognises the emerging risks for councils from climate change and
supports their commitment towards improving sustainable outcomes for
local communities. LGFA supports New Zealand’s contribution to meeting
the United Nations’ Sustainable Development Goals (UN SDGs) and will
work with member councils and council-controlled organisations (CCOs) on
financing projects to build towards a more sustainable and resilient society
As the primary lender to the local government sector, LGFA finances
members’ core investment into improving New Zealand’s infrastructure and
services to residents and visitors. By extension, these members’ investments
form an important element of LGFA’s sustainability context.

Green, social and sustainability lending
A commitment to assist councils and council-controlled organisations
finance projects that promote environmental and social wellbeing in New
Zealand
LGFA acknowledges the importance of financing projects that promote
environmental and social wellbeing in New Zealand, progress the United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals, and which fund eligible green
and/or social projects.
To assist our members finance sustainability projects, in 2022 we launched
our green, social and/or sustainability (GSS) lending programme across the
following ten green project categories and six social project categories:

Our impacts

Green Bond Categories

Social Project Categories

• Energy Efficiency

• Affordable Basic InfrastructureClean Water, Sewer, Transport

• Green Buildings
• Clean Transportation
• Sustainable Water and
Wastewater Management

• Access to Essential ServicesEducation, Healthcare
• Affordable Housing

• Renewable Energy

• Employment Generation

• Pollution Prevention and Control

• Food Security

• Sustainable Management of
Living Natural Resources and
Land Use

• Socioeconomic Advancement
and Empowerment

• Climate Change Adaptation

Infrastructure impacts

• Terrestrial and Aquatic
Biodiversity Conservation
• Circular Economy and Ecoefficient Products
Future generations
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Local natural environments

Local communities

Under the GSS programme, LGFA lends to councils and CCOs at a
discounted margin to incentivise them to undertake projects that help
drive forward climate, environmental and social projects across the New
Zealand local government sector.
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Following the launch of our GSS loan product, LGFA are pleased to welcome
Wellington City Council (WCC) and Greater Wellington Regional Council (GWRC)
as inaugural lenders under the GSS programme.

Tākina Wellington Convention
and Exhibition Centre
Wellington City Council
There was significant work required to investigate
the correct market for GSS lending; other options
investigated by Wellington City Council (WCC) were
not going to align well to its needs. Working with,
and issuing through, the LGFA provides benefit to the
local government sector in building up to scale; and
to WCC in getting this project funded in a way that
works with WCC’s balance sheet requirements.
Tākina Wellington Convention and Exhibition Centre,
the Capital’s largest infrastructure investment since
the Wellington Regional Stadium two decades ago,
will offer a powerful combination of facilities across
three floors and 18,000 sqm that will draw visitors to
Wellington to learn, meet and be inspired.
Being built to a 5 Green Star standard and rated
at more than 100% of NBS, Tākina will act as a post
event gathering point for the city. WCC are building
resilience to climate change and natural disaster
with various features including base isolation,
elevated floor level, standalone plug in power supply
and rain harvesting ability to ensure back up water

supply is available. By doing so, WCC are ensuring
the building can provide crucial post event support
to the local community. All this in addition to putting
Wellington on the map as a convention destination.
WCC declared a climate emergency June 2019
and have adopted Te Atakura (first to zero) carbon
strategy to ensure it is demonstrating commitment
to its climate response promise in everything they
do. Building up a green loan portfolio and aligning
GSS funding with a significant project, both in
construction and over the term of the loan/life of the
asset, demonstrates this commitment to its climate
response for current and future generations of
ratepayers.
GSS lending also provided WCC with marginally
cheaper funding to offset additional compliance
costs. Monitoring and complying with GSS loan
requirements does involve some additional overhead
and the 5 basis point reduction in funding costs goes
some way to covering these.

RiverLink Project
Greater Wellington Regional Council
RiverLink brings together a range of different flood
protection strategies to help protect the Hutt Valley
from a natural disaster by managing flood risk
and mitigating for climate change for the next 100
years. Borrowing under the LGFA’s ‘Climate Change
Adaptation’ category, the reduced cost of borrowing
on the GSS loan will provide important savings each
year over the asset’s life.

and deepen and widen the river channel to protect
Lower Hutt city centre from a one in 440-year flood.
As well as shielding the city, the flood protection will
enhance the ecological health of the waterway. By
making more space for the river it can create more
fish habitats, including pools and undercut banks
– places where trout, native eels and whitebait will
thrive.

The RiverLink Project is a partnership between
Greater Wellington Regional Council (GWRC), Hutt
City Council and Waka Kotahi NZ Transport Agency,
working together with Mana Whenua partners –
Ngāti Toa Rangatira and Taranaki Whānui ki te Upoko
o te Ika.

In August 2019, GWRC declared a climate emergency
and has since developed a programme of climate
action relating to corporate operations and regional
outcomes. The climate emergency declaration
encompasses everything GWRC are doing to
combat climate change, including emissions from
the Wellington region as a whole, and adapting to
the effects of climate change. For GWRC to reduce
its corporate carbon emissions, it has set the goal
to become carbon neutral by 2030. GWRC aim to
reduce net emissions by 40% by 30 June 2025, 100%
net reduction by 2030 and become carbon negative
by 2035.

Working collaboratively, the project encompasses
flood protection works within and around Te
Awa Kairangi Hutt River, the Making Places
Urban Development Plan, and Melling transport
improvements.
The flood protection works will upgrade the
stopbanks on either side of Te Awa Kairangi Hutt River
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Deliver efficient and cost-effective funding
LGFA was established with the
primary purpose of providing
more efficient financing costs
and diversified financing sources
for New Zealand local authorities.
A core objective is to raise debt
on behalf of local authorities on
terms that are more favourable
to them than if they raised the
debt directly.
By providing our members with
access to cost-effective and
efficient financing, LGFA supports
local government by financing
development and investment
into New Zealand’s local and
regional sectors for a resilient and
sustainable society.
A key indicator of satisfaction
with service and pricing to
members is LGFA’s estimated
overall market share for council
lending. Since our incorporation
in 2011, LGFA has firmly established
itself as the prime lender to the

local government sector, with a
current estimated market share of
80% of local government debt.
Over the 10 years we have been
in operation, LGFA has lent over
$19 billion to the local government
sector, with $14 billion in current
loans as at 30 June 2022. With
sector debt forecast to increase
to $37 billion by 2031, LGFA’s
lending services will continue
to assist New Zealand’s local
government sector to invest in
community infrastructure and
wellbeing.
Under the Local Government
Act 2002, councils’ are required
to manage finances prudently.
To assist councils, LGFA works
closely with our members
to encourage ongoing best
practice local government
financial management. LGFA’s
financial covenants for lenders
ensure prudent levels of debt

Industry collaboration and engagement
are maintained and our tiered
credit margins provide financial
incentives for members to seek
independent external credit
ratings.

One of LGFA’s core objectives is to take a proactive
role in enhancing the financial strength and depth
of local government debt market by working with
key central government and local government
stakeholders on sector and individual council issues.

Over the last seven years, there
has been an improving trend in
the underlying credit quality of
New Zealand’s council sector. As
at June 2022, 33 members had
current external credit ratings,
with 84% of all LGFA loans being
held by AA- rated councils and
CCOs or better.

Contributing to capital markets development to
enhance local government sector debt is a key role
for LGFA and we regularly meet with key industry
stakeholders, including the Reserve Bank of New
Zealand, Department of Internal Affairs, Office of the

Auditor General, Taituarā, Infrastructure New Zealand
and New Zealand Green Investment Finance. The
importance of capital investment in infrastructure has
been a focus over the past year, with LGFA actively
engaging with councils, CCOs, central Government
and investors in relation to the work being progressed
on the proposed three waters reform project.
This year, LGFA were again proud to be principal
sponsor for the 2022 Taituarā LGFA Local Government
Excellence Awards.

LGFA reports on its cost of
borrowing relative to other
issuers on a quarterly basis
to shareholders and in our
annual and half year reports.
LGFA surveys members on
its performance annually in
relation to business delivery and
satisfaction with pricing.

Best practice and influence
Delivering operational best practice and efficiency
across our issuance programme and lending services
is a key objective for LGFA.
Over recent years, LGFA has invested significant
resource in developing our risk management
framework to reflect financial markets best practice,
the objective being to ensure effective management
of our risks and compliance with LGFA’s governance
and legislative requirements.
Managing treasury risks is a critical component of
LGFA’s market operations and in 2021 we engaged
external consultants to assist in providing an
independent assessment of our treasury policies. The
Managing risk section of this report provides more
information on our risk management processes.
Over the course of the reporting year, LGFA
operations staff processed over 11,000 transactions
with total gross cash flows in excess of $36 billion
without error. Where possible, LGFA employ straightthrough processing to minimise operational risk
across our treasury operations.
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Improving our information technology control
environment to mitigate emerging risks from cyber
threats was another key focus over the past year,
with independent consultants engaged to review our
cyber control environment for compliance against
best practice cyber risk controls.

Responsible investment
LGFA utilises a liquid assets portfolio (LAP) to manage
its liquidity, refinancing and asset-liability mismatch
risks.
In 2021, we approved our Responsible Investment
Policy which commits to investing responsibly
by incorporating environmental, social and
governance (ESG) factors into its investment analysis
and decision-making processes relating to the
management of the LAP.

Far North District Council takes top spot in the 2022 LGFA Taituarā Local
Government Excellence Awards
We are delighted to announce that Far North District Council has won the 2022 LGFA Supreme Award
for its Te Hiku o te Ika Revitalisation Project.
Te Hiku o te Ika Revitalisation Project is highly successful collaboration between Far North District
Council, the Kaitaia Business Association, the five iwi of Far North’s Te Hiku region and the wider
community. Its purpose is to create employment in, and enhance the vibrancy of, three of New
Zealand’s most deprived areas. Some 81 urban development, restoration and revitalisation projects
were identified and folded into the project
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Our team

Sustainable business practices

Health, safety and wellbeing

LGFA is committed to reviewing internal processes to reduce our carbon emissions. In 2021, LGFA directors
committed to reducing our carbon emissions over time, with our target of cutting per employee emissions
by 30% by 2030, compared with a 2018/19 base year.

LGFA is committed to providing a safe and healthy
working environment for all employees and a
flexible workplace environment that promotes
increasing employee engagement, productivity
and enhancing recruitment and retention.
LGFA maintains policies on health and safety,
flexible working, diversity and employment which
outlines the company’s commitment to health,
safety and wellbeing.
Our Health and Safety Policy sets out the duty
of directors and staff under the Health and
Safety at Work Act 2015. A staff health and
safety committee has been established with
responsibility to continuously review health and
safety issues and ongoing compliance with the
Act, with reporting on health and safety issues at
each Board meeting.
LGFA provides staff with access to professional
support for general counselling services,
individual case management and on-going
monitoring of an employee’s progress to ensure the
assistance and treatment in meeting their needs.

Capability and development
LGFA is committed to ongoing education and
professional development for staff and directors
by funding professional development courses,
membership of professional bodies and attendances
at industry conferences. Over the last year,
sustainability and climate-related training was a key
focus with training completed in Climate Competency
for Boards, Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures Masterclass and New Zealand Green
Building Green Star training.
The Future Director programme was launched in
2021 by the LGFA board and Shareholder Council. The
programme aims to give young talented people from
within the Local Government sector with an interest in
corporate governance the opportunity to observe and
participate in Boardroom discussions for an 18-month
period. The Future Director attends all Board meetings,
but they have no voting rights and are not involved in
decision making. Anita Furniss was appointed as the
inaugural Future Director starting on 1 July 2022.

Diversity and inclusion
LGFA is committed to promoting a culture that supports both workplace diversity and inclusion within the
organisation.
Diversity at LGFA involves recognising and valuing the contribution that people can make because of their skills,
experience, background and differing perspectives. LGFA values employees by encouraging participation and
providing opportunities for its people to succeed.

Air travel represents the majority
of our carbon emissions. While air
travel is essential for our business,
we constantly review practical
options to reduce, including virtual
meetings. In 2022, we introduced
one virtual Board meeting as
well as a virtual attendance
option for our Shareholder day.
In 2022, we were able to resume
travel following lifting of Covid
restrictions, the reason our Scope
3 emissions increased over FY 21.

Emissions (tC)2e)
Total carbon
emissions

Variance (change %)

FY 22

FY 21

To FY 21

To Base
year

Scope 1

0.5

1.1

-55%

+10%

Scope 2

2.5

2.9

-14%

+45%

Scope 3

39.8

26.9

+48%

-69%

Total

42.8

30.9

+39%

-69%

Verified

Toitū Carbonzero certification

Kauri 2000

As part of our carbon reduction process, LGFA
achieved a Toitū CarbonZero certification
in 2021. The Toitū certification recognises the
processes LGFA has put in place to measure
our greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, as
well as management plans to reduce our
company’s emissions. Where LGFA are unable
to eliminate emissions, these are offset
through the purchase of high-impact carbon
credits from a Gold Standardcertified international project.

Kauri 2000 was established in 1999 as a
project to celebrate the start of the new
millennium by planting 2000 kauri on the
Coromandel Peninsula. To date the Trust has
planted over 55,000 trees and continues to
plant kauri throughout the Coromandel.
LGFA donates to Kauri 2000 on an annual
basis to assist the Trust with their planting
programme. In 2022, LGFA donated $4,000.

LGFA has formally adopted a Diversity Policy which applies to both LGFA employees and directors. Diversity
and inclusiveness at LGFA involves recognising the value of individual differences and managing them in the
workplace. Diversity in this context covers gender, age, ethnicity, cultural background, sexual orientation,
religious belief, disability, education and family responsibilities.
Each year, we complete a diversity review which is reported through to the Board and, when undertaking
recruitment, selection panels for interview are split by gender.
Appointments to the LGFA Board are made in accordance with our Constitution and the Shareholders Agreement.
2022
Female

2021
Male

Female

Board

Board

Staff

Staff

Board
Staff

Under 30 years

2022
30-50 years

Over 50 years

-

-

100%

Board

12%

22%

66%

Staff
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Male

Under 30 years

2021
30-50 years

Over 50 years

-

-

100%

12%

22%

66%

Climate-related disclosure framework
The Financial Sector (Climate-related Disclosures
and Other Matters) Amendment Act 2021 makes
it mandatory for climate reporting entities to
produce climate statements according to disclosure
standards currently being developed by the External
Reporting Board (XRB).
The XRB states reporting on climate change under
the Climate-related disclosures (CRD) will:
•	allow investors to make more informed decisions
about the climate-related risks and opportunities
facing entities and sectors into which they invest,
and

•	encourage entities to think about their strategic
choices in light of the risks and opportunities of
climate change, including the transition to a lowemissions future.
LGFA are currently developing our risk and reporting
frameworks to meet the forthcoming climate-related
disclosures being developed by the XRB. LGFA will be
required to report in compliance with the standards
for the financial year commencing 1 July 2023 and we
will provide an update on our development progress
in our 2023 Annual Report.
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Governance and culture
Te whakaruruhau me te ahurea

The LGFA Board is responsible for the strategic direction and
control of LGFA’s activities and is committed to ensuring LGFA
demonstrates ongoing commitment to strong and sound
corporate governance.

LGFA governance policies and documents
LGFA Constitution
Shareholders Agreement
Code of Ethics

Responsible Investment
Policy
Risk Management Policy

Board Charter

Internal Audit Charter

Audit and Risk Committee
Charter

Diversity Policy
Remuneration Policy

Treasury Policy

Responsible Investment
LGFA Foundation Policies

NZX Corporate Governance Best Practice Code
LGFA is a listed issuer on the NZX Debt Market and complies with the eight core principles underpinning the NZX
Corporate Governance Best Practice Code 2020.
LGFA considers that its governance practices have not materially differed from the NZX Code for the year ended 30
June 2022. Areas where LGFA has implemented alternative measures to the Code are as follows:

An issuer should establish a nomination committee to
recommend director appointments to the board.

The process for the nomination and remuneration of
directors is documented in the Constitution of New
Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited
and outlined on page 51.

An issuer should have a remuneration committee
which operates under a written charter.

Our values
Ō mātau uara
Our purpose
Benefiting local
communities through
delivering efficient
financing for local
government.

We act with integrity
E pono ana mātau
We are honest, transparent and
are committed to doing what is
best for our customers and our
company
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We are customer focused
E arotahi ana mātau ki te
kiritaki

We strive for excellence
E whakapau kaha mātau kia
hiranga te mahi

Our customers are our council
borrowers, investors, and all other
organisations that we deal with.
We listen to them and act in their
best interests to deliver results that
make a positive difference

We strive to excel by delivering
financial products and services
that are highly valued at least
cost while seeking continuous
improvement in everything we do.

We are innovative
He auaha mātau

We provide leadership
He kaiārahi mātau

To meet our ever-changing
customer requirements, we will
encourage innovation and provide
a diverse range of financial
products and services.

We are here for our stakeholders
in being strategically minded,
providing resilience and executing
our strategy. We embrace a highperformance culture and can be
relied upon to deliver results.
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Culture, ethics and governance
The LGFA Board is committed to ensuring LGFA demonstrates ongoing commitment to strong and sound
corporate governance, and that the conduct of both directors and staff at all times meets the high standards
required to reflect the company’s values and to protect its reputation.

Audit and Risk Committee
The LGFA Audit and Risk Committee is a committee of the Board.

LGFA’s required standards for conduct are defined in our Code of Ethics and is reflected throughout the
following key governance documents: The LGFA Constitution; Shareholders’ Agreement; Board Charter; Audit
and Risk Committee Charter; Internal Audit Charter; and the Diversity Policy.

The Audit and Risk Committee is governed by its own Charter which states that the purpose of the Committee
is to provide advice, assurance and observations to the Board relating to the effectiveness and adequacy of
internal control and risk management systems, processes and activities across LGFA. The Committee assists the
Board to fulfil its duties by considering, reviewing and monitoring:

Code of Ethics

• Risk management framework and processes;

LGFA has adopted a formal Code of Ethics,
incorporating its Conflicts of Interest and Code of
Conduct policies, which sets out the standards and
values that directors and employees are expected to
follow.
Impartiality and transparency in governance
and administration are essential to maintaining
the integrity of LGFA. Accordingly, our Conflicts
of Interest Policy provides guidance to directors
and employees in relation to actual and potential
conflicts of interest, including specific guidance on
managing potential conflicts that may arise for nonindependent directors. Directors and employees are
expected to avoid all actions, relationships and other
circumstances that may impact on their ability to
exercise their professional duties.
Our Code of Conduct Policy requires employees and
directors to maintain high standards of integrity
and conduct by clearly setting out standards for

expected behaviour. In addition, the policy sets out
LGFA’s commitment to employees to act in a fair and
reasonable manner, while providing a fair and safe
working environment.

Protected Disclosures and Whistle
Blowing
Our LGFA Protected Disclosures and Whistle Blowing
Policy outlines procedure, support and protection
to persons who disclose information which they
reasonably believe to be about serious wrong-doing
in or by LGFA.

Financial Products Trading Policy
Our LGFA Financial Products Trading Policy, which
applies to directors, employees and contractors,
details the policy and rules for dealing in listed debt
securities issued by LGFA and any other LGFA quoted
financial products.

• Shareholders’ agreement
• NZX listing rules
• Financial accounting standards
• Regulatory compliance
LGFA is committed to ensuring the highest standards
are maintained in financial reporting and disclosure
of all relevant information. Transparency in how
we operate is core to achieving our shareholders’
objectives as well as for our wider stakeholders
including investors, banks and other financial
intermediaries and the credit rating agencies.
As such, transparency in how we operate is reflected
in operating requirements outlined in our foundation
documents, including the LGFA Constitution,
Shareholders’ Agreement and Board Charter, as
well as Company policies on Continuous Disclosure,
Financial Products Trading, and Protected Disclosures
and Whistle Blowing.
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• Operations and effectiveness of the internal audit function;
• Preparation and audit of financial statements;
• Integrity of performance information, including financial reporting;
• Governance framework and process;
• Policies, processes and activities to ensure compliance with legislation, policies and procedures; and
• Statutory/regulatory disclosure and reporting and performance against Statement of Intent targets.
Audit and Risk Committee members are appointed by the Board. Membership comprises at least three
directors, the majority of whom must be independent.

Internal audit

External audit

LGFA has an internal audit function to provide
assurance that its risk management, governance and
internal controls are operating effectively.

The external audit of LGFA is conducted in
accordance with Section 14 of the Public Audit Act
2001, including the appointment of the external
auditors of LGFA by the Auditor-General.

The Audit and Risk Committee has responsibility for
oversight of the internal audit function, including:

Transparency and disclosure
Transparency and disclosure are essential
for shareholder, rating agencies and investor
confidence and codified through:

• Internal control environment and mechanisms;

LGFA demonstrates transparency through its annual
Statement of Intent (SOI) and quarterly reporting
to shareholders on its performance against the
objectives set out in the SOI.
The Audit and Risk Committee has responsibility to
provide assurance to the Board that due process
has been followed in the preparation and audit of
the financial statements and to ensure there are
appropriate processes and activities to ensure
compliance with relevant regulatory and statutory
requirements.

• Reviewing the Internal Audit Charter, the operations
of the internal audit and organisational structure of
the internal audit function;
• Approving the annual audit plan;
• Reviewing the effectiveness of the internal audit
function; and
• Meeting separately with the internal auditor
to discuss any matters that the Audit and Risk
Committee or Internal Audit considers should be
discussed privately.

The Audit and Risk Committee has responsibility
for all processes relating to the audit of financial
statements, including the setting of audit fees and
ensuring the independence and objectivity of the
auditors.
The external audit of LGFA is conducted in
accordance with a formal external audit plan which
is reviewed and approved by the Audit and Risk
Committee on an annual basis. The external auditor
attends LGFA’s Annual General Meeting.

LGFA has adopted a formal Continuous Disclosure
Policy, the requirements of which ensure that LGFA
meets the continuous disclosure requirements of the
NZX Listing Rules including the disclosure for material
environmental, social and governance (ESG) factors.
The GRI sustainability reporting standards are the most
widely adopted global standards for sustainability
reporting and this year’s annual report has been
prepared to meet the requirements of the Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI) Standards (core option).
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Our Board
The LGFA Board Charter sets out the roles and
responsibilities of the LGFA Board. The Charter states
that role of the Board is to ensure that LGFA achieves
its goals. Having regard to its role, the Board will direct,
and supervise the management of the business and
affairs of LGFA, including:

The directors of LGFA as at 30 June 2022

•e
 nsuring that LGFA’s goals are clearly established,
and that strategies are in place for achieving them;
•e
 stablishing policies for strengthening LGFA’s
performance;
•e
 nsuring strategies are in place for meeting
expectations set out in the current Statement of
Intent and monitoring performance against those
expectations, in particular LGFA’s primary objective of
optimising the debt funding terms and conditions for
participating local authorities;

Craig Stobo

Independent Chair

Craig has worked as a diplomat, economist,
investment banker and Chief Executive Officer of BT
Funds Management (NZ) Limited. He has completed
the Advanced Management Programme at Wharton
Business School in Philadelphia, authored reports
to the New Zealand Government on the Taxation of
Investment Income (which led to the PIE regime), and
the creation of New Zealand as a funds domicile.
He currently chairs the listed companies Precinct
Properties New Zealand Limited and AIG Insurance
(NZ Board). He has directorship and private equity
interests in financial services and other businesses.

Director
AIG Insurance NZ Limited
Appello Services Limited
Precinct Properties New Zealand Limited
NZ Windfarms

Alan has over 35 years’ experience in the financial
services and local government sectors at executive
level, with over twenty years in banking, insurance
and funds management followed by his current role
as General Manager Corporate / CFO at Whangarei
District Council.

Chief Financial Officer
Whangarei District Council

BA (Hons) Economics First Class, Otago; C.F.Inst.D
Associate Member CFA Society New Zealand

Director/Shareholder
Biomarine Group Limited
Elevation Capital Management Limited
Legend Terrace Limited
Saturn Portfolio Management Limited
SouthWest Trustees Limited
Managing Director/Shareholder
Stobo Group Limited

•m
 onitoring the performance of management;
•a
 ppointing the CEO, setting the terms of the CEO’s
employment contract and, where necessary,
terminating the CEO’s employment;
•d
 eciding on whatever steps are necessary to protect
LGFA’s financial position and the ability to meet its
debts and other obligations when they fall due, and
ensuring that such steps are taken;
•e
 nsuring that LGFA’s financial statements are true
and fair and otherwise conform with law;
•e
 nsuring that LGFA adheres to high standards of
ethics and corporate behaviour; and
•e
 nsuring that LGFA has appropriate risk
management/regulatory compliance policies in
place. In the normal course of events, day-today management of LGFA will be in the hands
of management. The Board will satisfy itself that
LGFA is achieving its goals, and engaging and
communicating with Shareholders Council; and

Alan Adcock

Non-Independent Director
Member Audit and Risk Committee

John was Managing Partner, then Chairman of
Hesketh Henry. He was a director of The Warehouse
Group Limited, several start-up businesses, a number
of CCOs, an industry cooperative ‘ITM’, Regional
Facilities Auckland Limited and Spider Tracks Limited.
He is currently a Trustee of the Royal New Zealand
Ballet.

Board composition
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His involvement with LGFA began in its initial planning
stage, as a representative of the ‘tight nine’ councils
that worked together to turn the concept into
reality in 2011. He was an inaugural member of the
Shareholders’ Council, which he chaired from 2014
before joining the Board in 2021.

B.Com, MBA (with Distinction)

•e
 ngaging and communicating with shareholders.

The LGFA Board comprises five independent
directors and one non-independent director. An
independent director is a director who, within five
years prior to appointment, was not an employee of
any shareholder, employee of a council-controlled
organisation owned by a shareholder, or a councillor
of any local authority which is a shareholder.

Director
Whangarei Waste Limited

Trustee
Royal New Zealand Ballet

John Avery

Independent Director
LLB, C.F.Inst.D

Governance and culture LGFA Annual Report 2022 47

Page 197

Ordinary Council meeting Attachments

Philip Cory-Wright

Independent Director
Member Audit and Risk Committee

3 October 2022

Philip is a solicitor of the High Court of New Zealand
and Victoria. He has worked as a corporate finance
adviser in New Zealand to the corporate sector on
debt and equity matters for more than 30 years. He
is currently a director of NZ Windfarms, Powerco,
Matariki Forests, South Port New Zealand and Papa
Rererangi I Puketapu (New Plymouth Airport). Philip
is also a strategic adviser to clients in the energy
and infrastructure sectors. He was a member of the
Local Government Infrastructure Expert Advisory
Group tasked with advising the Minister of Local
Government on improvements in local government
infrastructure efficiency.

Director
Matariki Forest Group Limited
Papa Rererangi i Puketapu (New Plymouth Airport)
(Chair)
NZ Wind Farms
Powerco Limited
South Port New Zealand Limited

BCA Hons (First Class), INFINZ (Fellow), M.Inst.D

Linda Robertson

Independent Director
Chair Audit and Risk Committee
B.Com, Dip Banking, INFINZ (Distinguished
Fellow),C.F.Inst.D, GAICD

Chair
New Plymouth PIF Guardians Limited
Waikato-Tainui Group Investment
Committee

Neil Bain
Chair
Central Hawkes Bay District Council,
Audit & Risk Committee

Anthony is an experienced financial services
sector professional with over thirty years executive
experience in the sector. He has a varied portfolio of
governance interests with an emphasis on areas that
improve or contribute to communities.

Independent Director
Member Audit and Risk Committee

Mark Butcher

Member
Guardians of New Zealand
Superannuation, Nominating Committee

LLB (Hons), BCA Business Management,
INFINZ (Cert), C.F.Inst.D

Anthony Quirk

Staff

He is a Fellow of the Institute of Finance Professionals
New Zealand (INFINZ) and is a former Chairman of
that organisation. He was previously Chair of the
Asset Management Advisory Board of the New
Zealand Exchange, Deputy Chair and Board member
of the New Zealand Society of Investment Analysts
and a previous member of the Financial Reporting
Standards Board of the New Zealand Society of
Accountants.

Non-Executive Director/Shareholder
Milford Asset Management Limited (and associated
subsidiaries)
Chair
Humanitix, New Zealand
Milford Foundation

Linda is professional company director with over
20 years governance experience, combined with
30 years senior financial management experience
having worked in both the banking and energy
sectors in New Zealand.

Chair
Central Lakes Trust and associated subsidiary
Central Otago District Council, Audit & Risk
Committee
Crown Irrigation Investments Limited

Linda holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree and
a Diploma in Banking. Linda is a Certified Treasury
Professional, a Distinguished Fellow of the Institute
of Finance Professionals New Zealand (INFINZ),
a Graduate Member of the Australian Institute
of Company Directors, a Certified Fellow of the
Institute of Directors in New Zealand and a Fellow
of Governance NZ.

Director
Alpine Energy Limited
Dunedin City Holdings Limited
Dunedin City Treasury Limited
Dunedin Railways Limited
Dunedin Stadium Property Limited
Kiwi Wealth Limited (and related entities).

Linda is currently chair of Crown Irrigation
Investments, Central Lakes Trust and Central Otago
District Council’s Audit and Risk Committee. She is a
director of Kiwi Wealth, Dunedin City Holdings and
Alpine Energy. Linda is also a member of the Capital
Markets Advisory Committee and the Risk and Audit
Committee of The Treasury.

Member
Office of the Auditor-General and Audit New Zealand,
Audit and Risk Committee
The Treasury, Capital Markets Advisory Committee
The Treasury, Risk and Audit Committee

Esk Street Steel Works
Invercargill City Council

Directors did not hold any interests in debt securities (including listed bonds) in the company as at 30 June 2022.
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Remuneration

Director tenure and meetings of the Board
Mike Timmer, non-independent Director, retired from the Board on 23 November 2021. Mike was appointed to the
LGFA Board on 24 November 2015 and served as a Director for 6 years.
Board meetings comprised 7 scheduled and 2 additonal.

Director

Date commenced
in office

Board meetings
held/attended

Audit and Risk
Committee held/
attended

Craig Stobo (Chair)

1 December 2011

9/9

-

Alan Adcock

23 November 2021

6/6

3/3

John Avery

1 December 2011

9/9

5/5

Philip Cory-Wright

1 December 2011

9/9

5/5

Anthony Quirk

21 November 2017

9/9

5/5

Linda Robertson

24 November 2015

9/9

5/5

Mike Timmer

24 November 2015

3/3

2/2

The remuneration of the Board reflects LGFA’s size and
complexity and the responsibilities, skills, performance
and experience of the directors. A specialist
independent adviser is used periodically to ensure the
remuneration is appropriate.
Board remuneration is determined by an Ordinary
Resolution of shareholders. The current board
remuneration was approved by shareholder resolution
at the Annual General Meeting on 23 November 2021.

Director annual fee breakdown
Position. Fees per annum

2022

2021

$108,000

$102,000

Audit and Risk
Committee Chair

$67,000

$63,000

Director / ARC Member

$63,000

$59,000

Director

$60,000

$57,000

Board Chair

The remuneration of the CEO is determined by
the Board and is reviewed annually taking into
consideration the scope and complexity of the position
with reference to the remuneration of CEOs of similar
organisations. A specialist independent adviser is used
periodically to ensure the remuneration is appropriate.
The CEO remuneration package comprises a fixed
cash component of $572,900 per annum as at 30 June
2022 ($556,200, 2021) and an at-risk short-term incentive
of the fixed cash component. The short-term incentive
payment is made annually at the Board’s discretion
subject to the CEO and LGFA meeting a range of
specific performance objectives for the respective
financial year.

Chief Executive remuneration
Per annum

2022

2021

$572,900

$556,200

-

-

$572,400

$556,200

Pay for Performance STI

$85,935

$83,430

Kiwisaver Employer
Contribution

$26,245

$25,400

Total remuneration

$685,080

$665,030

Salary
Taxable benefits

Board performance review

Indemnities and insurance

The Board has an annual formal self-assessment to
assess director, Board and committee performance.
In addition, Board performance is reviewed by
external consultants on a periodic basis.

Under LGFA’s constitution, LGFA indemnifies directors
for potential liabilities and costs they may incur
for acts of omission in their capacity as directors.
LGFA has arranged directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance covering directors and management
acting on behalf of the company. Cover is for
damages, judgements, fines, penalties, legal costs
awarded and defence costs arising from wrongful
acts committed while acting for LGFA. The types of
acts that are not covered are dishonest, fraudulent,
malicious acts, or omissions, wilful breach of statute
or regulation, or duty to LGFA, improper use of
information to the detriment of LGFA, or breach of
professional duty.

Nomination of Directors
Director nominations can only be made by a
shareholder by written notice to LGFA and the
Shareholders’ Council, with not more than three
months, nor less than two months before a meeting
of shareholders. All valid nominations are required to
be sent by LGFA to all persons entitled to attend the
meeting.

Retirement and re-election of Directors
Directors are appointed to the Board by an Ordinary
Resolution of shareholders. A Director must not hold
office (without re-election) past the third annual
meeting of the Company following the Director’s
appointment or three years, whichever is longer.
A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.
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Director
Craig Stobo

2022
$108,000

Alan Adcock1

$36,750

John Avery

$60,000

Philip Cory-Wright

$63,000

Anthony Quirk

$63,000

Linda Robertson

$67,000

Mike Timmer2

$26,250

Total

$424,000

1. Alan Adcock was appointed as director on
23 November 2021.
2. Mike Timmer retired as director on 23 November 2021.

Subtotal

Staff remuneration
Total remuneration

2022

$150,000 to $159,999

2

$200,000 to $209,999

1

$250,000 to $259,999

1

$330,000 to $339,999

1

$340,000 to $349,999

1

$680,000 to $689,999

1

Total staff receiving
$100,000 or more

7
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Shareholders
Foundation documents
The LGFA Constitution and the Shareholders Agreement are foundation
documents.
The Constitution defines the rights and the exercise of powers of
shareholders, the acquisition and redemption of company shares,
proceedings of shareholder meetings, voting at meetings and the right to
demand polls, shareholder proposals and review of management.
The Shareholders Agreement is an agreement between LGFA and its
shareholders which clearly defines LGFA’s business, its objectives, the
role of the Board, the establishment of the Shareholders Council and the
approval rights of the shareholders.

LGFA Shareholders Council
The LGFA Shareholders Council comprises five to ten appointees from the
Council Shareholders and the New Zealand Government. The role of the
Shareholders Council comprises the following:
• Review and report performance of LGFA and the Board;
• Recommendations to shareholders as to the appointment, removal,
replacement and remuneration of directors;
• Recommendations to shareholders as to any changes to policies, or the
Statement of Intent (SOI), requiring their approval;
• Update shareholders on LGFA matters and to coordinate shareholders on
governance decisions.

Members of the Shareholders Council as at 30 June 2022
Kumaren Perumal (Chair)
Bay of Plenty Regional Council
Shahlaa Al-Tiay
The Treasury
Steve Ballard
Christchurch City Council
John Bishop
Auckland Council
David Bryant
Hamilton City Council
Joy Buckingham
New Plymouth District Council
Mike Drummond (Deputy Chair)
Tasman District Council
James Graham
Western Bay of Plenty District Council
Sarah Houston-Eastergaard
Wellington City Council
Kathryn Sharplin
Tauranga City Council
James Stratford
Department of Internal Affairs

Stead Street stopbank
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Managing risk
Ko te whakahaere tūraru

An effective risk management framework
is a critical component of LGFA’s business
structure for managing the company’s
exposure to business and treasury risks
arising from its business operations of raising
and on-lending funds to local councils and
approved council-controlled organisations.

LGFA risk register
The LGFA risk register is a key component of
the company’s risk management framework.
The key objective of the LGFA risk register is
to ensure that the company assesses the
inherent risks faced by the business on an
ongoing basis.
The risk register:

•	Identifies the inherent risks that LGFA is
exposed to when conducting its core
business activities;

•	Assesses the likelihood and potential
impact of the inherent risks on the
business;

•	Describes the internal control framework
and management processes for
managing and mitigating the identified
inherent risks;

•	Provides commentary on internal audit
The objective of LGFA’s risk management function
is to ensure that effective controls and frameworks
are implemented to manage risks effectively and in
compliance with LGFA’s governance and legislative
requirements. The risk management function ensures
that LGFA can achieve its objectives, as set out in the
Statement of Intent, within the risk appetite of the
company’s shareholders and Board.

LGFA adopts the three lines of defence model to ensure
that essential risk management functions adopt
a systematic approach that reflects industry best
practice:

The objective of LGFA’s risk management framework
is to ensure that the organisation operates within
shareholder and Board-approved risk limits. LGFA’s
approach to risk management is based on the
following core elements:

•	The second line of defence ensures that the

•	The LGFA Board oversees the risk appetite of the
organisation and ensures that it is consistent with
the constitution and shareholders agreement.

•	The risk appetite is reflected in policies approved
by the Board and Audit and Risk Committee.

•	LGFA management implements policies and
controls to ensure that all relevant risks are
identified, monitored, measured and managed
effectively.

•	The Internal Audit (IA) and risk and compliance
functions provide assurance to both the Board and
the Audit and Risk Committee on the performance
of internal controls and risk management systems.

•	The first line of defence establishes risk ownership
within the company and is represented by its
operational risk and control processes. LGFA
managers are responsible for identifying controls,
maintaining effective controls and mitigating risks.
operational risk and control processes are actively
and appropriately managed by processes such as
the regular review of risk reports and compliance
monitoring against the risk management
framework.

•	The third line of defence is the independent
assurance provided by both the internal and
external audit functions which review and
highlight control weaknesses and inefficiencies to
management and the Board.

Treasury risk management
LGFA finances itself through domestic and international
wholesale and retail debt capital markets, with the
funds raised on-lent to members. LGFA activities are
governed by the Local Government Borrowing Act 2011,
the Local Government Act 2002, and the Companies
Act 1993. In addition, the company is required to comply
with Foundation Policies outlined in the Shareholders
Agreement. Any change to the Foundation Policies
require shareholders consent.
LGFA’s risk management uses an approved risk
identification and assessment framework to actively
monitor and manage all treasury and financial risks
by applying best practice risk management principles,
processes and practices.
LGFA has treasury exposures arising from its normal
business activities that principally relate to the raising
and on-lending of funds. LGFA manages treasury
exposures under a Board-approved Treasury Policy, the
objectives for which are to:

•	Effectively manage treasury risks, within approved

coverage of the identified inherent risks;
and

•	Provides an overall inherent and residual
risk assessment and compares these to
approved risk appetite settings and risk
tolerance ranges
The risk register is reviewed monthly by
management and at each meeting of the
Audit and Risk Committee.

•	Minimise operational risk by maintaining
adequate internal controls, systems and staffing
competencies.

•	Provide timely reporting to the Board with
meaningful and accurate reporting of interest rate
exposures, liquidity, asset and liability maturity,
funding, counterparty credit, performance and
policy compliance.
Specific treasury exposures relate to liquidity, interest
rate/market risk, foreign exchange, counterparty
credit, operational and lending risks.

compliance limits, to protect LGFA’s capital position
and Net Interest Margin over time.

•	Fund members in the most cost effective manner
and in accordance with LGFA’s operating principles,
values and objectives.

•	Protect LGFA’s assets and prevent unauthorised
transactions.

•	Promote professional expertise of financial and
management control to all external parties.
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Liquidity risk is the potential
inability to meet financial
obligations when they become
due, under normal or abnormal/
stressed operating conditions.

Liquidity risk is managed using a forecast cashflow
approach measured over a 90-day period. LGFA is
required to maintain sufficient liquidity (comprising a
government standby facility, and holdings of cash and liquid
investments) to support six months of funding commitments.

Interest rate risk is the risk that
financial assets may re-price/
mature at a different time and/
or by a different amount than
financial liabilities.

Interest rate / market risk is managed using Value at Risk
(VaR) and Partial Differential Hedge (PDH) limits to mitigate
the potential change in value of the balance sheet due to
changes in interest rates.

•	
Value at Risk calculates the potential amount a portfolio
could be expected to lose, 5% of the time, over a given
time period. It is calculated using historical changes in
underlying risk variables and applying those changes
to the current portfolio.

VaR is measured over a daily time horizon with a
95% confidence interval. A daily 95% VaR exposure of
$1 million means that there is a 5% chance that the
portfolio could potentially lose more than $1 million
over the next business day.

•	
Partial Differential Hedge measures the sensitivity
of a portfolio to a one basis point change in
underlying interest rates. For example, a PDH of
NZD$100,000 means that the portfolio value will
increase by NZD$100,000 for a one basis point fall
in interest rates.
In addition, LGFA also undertakes scenario analysis
to model the potential effect of changing market
environments on the balance sheet.

Counterparty credit risk

Foreign currency risk

Operational risk

Counterparty credit risk is the
risk of financial loss arising from
a counterparty defaulting on
an investment, security and/or
financial instrument where LGFA is
a holder or party.

Counterparty credit risk is managed through counterparty
limits for investments. These limits are determined as a
function of the term of investment, liquidity and credit
quality of the counterparty (as measured by a recognised
credit rating).

Counterparty risk on derivative contracts is mitigated
by transacting all derivative trades through the
Treasury (New Zealand Debt Management) as the
counterparty.

Foreign currency risk is the risk of
an adverse change in the fair value
of a financial instrument due to a
change in foreign exchange rates.

Exposure to foreign currency risk could exist if LGFA accesses
foreign capital markets for funding purposes. To date,
all funding has been sourced through the New Zealand
domestic currency.

Foreign exchange risk would be managed through
a requirement to fully hedge back to floating rate
New Zealand dollar the full amount and term of all
foreign currency funding and cash flows.

Operational risk, with respect to
treasury management, is the risk
of financial and/or reputation
loss arising from human error,
fraud, negligent behaviour,
system failures and inadequate
procedures and controls.

Operational risk is managed using internal controls and
procedures across operational functions. Segregation of
duties between staff members who have the authority to
enter transactions with external counterparties and the
staff who control, check and confirm such transactions
is a cornerstone internal control principle.

Financial instruments are not entered into if the
systems, operations and internal controls do not
satisfactorily support the measurement, management
and reporting of the risks associated with the
instrument.

Investment is restricted to approved financial
instruments listed in the Treasury Policy.

New Library
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Lending risk is the risk of financial loss that
could occur from lending funds to councils
or council-controlled organisations.

LGFA provides debt funding to New Zealand local
government councils and council-controlled
organisations, subject to board approval.

On 30 June 2020, a Special General Meeting of Shareholders
approved a change to the Net Debt/ Total Revenue
covenant contained within the Foundation Policy Covenants.
For the financial year ended June 2020 a covenant limit of
250% applied. This increased to 300% for the June 2021 and
June 2022 years and then reduces by 5% for each of the
subsequent years until 280% applies from the June 2026 year.

The LGFA Board have ultimate discretion on approving
members.
All member organisations that borrow from LGFA:

•	Provide debenture security in relation to their

equal to all interest and financing
costs less interest income for the
relevant period.

•	
Annual rates income is defined
as the amount equal to the
total revenue from any funding
mechanism authorised by the
Local Government (Rating) Act 2002
together with any revenue received
from other local governments for
services provided and for which the
other local governments rate.

•	Net debt is defined as total consolidated debt less liquid

borrowing from LGFA and related obligations, and
(if relevant), equity commitment liabilities to LGFA
and (if relevant) guarantee liabilities to a security
trustee approved for LGFA’s creditors.

financial assets and investments.

•	Total revenue is defined as cash earnings from rates,

	Where LGFA is the only lender to a council controlled
organisation, a general security arrangement (GSA)
might be used in place of a debenture security.

•	Are required to become a party to a deed of

government grants and subsidies, user charges, interest,
dividends, financial and other revenue and excludes
non-government capital contributions, eg. developer
contributions and vested assets.

•	Borrowers with a long-term credit rating of ‘A’ equivalent
or higher can have bespoke financial covenants that
exceed the foundation policy covenants only with the
approval of an Ordinary Resolution of shareholders.

guarantee and an equity commitment deed if the
principal amount of their borrowings is at any time
equal to, or greater than, NZD 20 million.

•

Liquidity is defined as external
debt plus committed loan facilities
plus liquid investments divided by
external debt.

•	Any Board or Ordinary Resolution approval of bespoke

•	Issue securities (bonds/floating rate notes/

financial covenants will only be provided after a robust
credit analysis and any approval must also include
bespoke reporting and monitoring arrangements.

commercial paper) to LGFA (ie. not enter into facility
arrangements).

•	Comply with their own internal borrowing policies.

•	Non-compliance with the financial covenants will either

•	Comply with the financial covenants outlined in the

preclude a member council from borrowing from the
LGFA or, in the case of existing council borrowers’, trigger
an event of review. An event of default will occur when
(among other things) a council fails to meet an interest
or principal payment (subject to grace periods). An event
of default will enable the LGFA to accelerate a council’s
repayment of loans.

table below, provided that:

•	
Unrated borrowers or borrowers with a long-term
credit rating lower than ‘A’ equivalent can have
bespoke financial covenants that exceed the:

		•	Lending policy covenants outlined in the
following table only with the approval of the
Board;

•	Financial covenants are measured on a parent council

		•	Foundation policy covenants outlined in the

only basis, not consolidated group, unless requested by
a parent council and approved by the LGFA Board.

following table only with the approval of an
Ordinary Resolution of shareholders.
Financial covenant

•	
Net interest is defined as the amount

Lending policy covenants

Foundation policy covenants

Unrated councils

Rated councils

Net debt/ total revenue

<175%

<280%*

Net interest / total revenue

<20%

<20%

Net interest/ annual rates income

<25%

<30%

Liquidity

>110%

>110%

* From June 2026, refer description above.
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Statement of changes
in equity

Statement of comprehensive income

Statement of changes in equity

For the year ended ended 30 June 2022 in $000s

For the year ended 30 June 2022 in $000s

Statement of comprehensive
income
Note

2022

2021

Interest income

393,507

377,222

Interest expense

375,991

357,685

Net interest income

4

17,516

19,537

Other operating income

5

1,090

184

18,606

19,721

7,933

7,714

Net operating profit

10,673

12,007

Total comprehensive income

10,673

12,007

Total operating income
Operating expenses

6

Note

Share
capital

Retained
earnings

Total equity

25,000

58,616

83,616

Net operating profit

12,007

12,007

Total comprehensive income for the year

12,007

12,007

-

-

(879)

(879)

69,743

94,743

Net operating profit

10,673

10,673

Total comprehensive income for the year

10,673

10,673

-

-

(857)

(857)

79,560

104,560

Equity as at 30 June 2020

Transactions with owners
Dividend paid on 6 September 2019
Equity as at 30 June 2021

25,000

Transactions with owners
Dividend paid on 4 September 2020
Equity as at 30 June 2022

28

25,000

These statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
Due to rounding, numbers presented in the financial statements and associated notes may not add up
precisely to the reported totals.
The Board of Directors of the New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited authorised these
statements for issue on 29 August 2022.
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Craig Stobo, Director
Board Chair

Director’s declaration

Linda Robertson, Director
Chair, Audit and Risk Committee
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Statement of financial position

Statement of cash flows

As at 30 June 2022 in $000s

For the year ended 30 June 2022 in $000s

Statement of financial
position
Note

2022

2021

Statement of cash
flows
Note

2022

2021

(1,972,398)

(1,127,002)

(445,533)

(437,257)

(5,141)

(2,100)

Interest paid on borrower notes

(1,063)

(3,918)

(1,067)

(674)

191,228

153,340

Assets

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Financial assets

Cash applied to loans

Receivables

11

12

360

43,587

158,033

391,835

76

-

Marketable securities

1,491,148

768,453

Interest paid on bond repurchases

Deposits

462,866

654,961

Interest received from loans
Interest received from cash & cash equivalents

3,234

909

Interest received from marketable securities

14,108

12,059

Interest received from deposits

7,360

6,555

251,708

288,127

1,090

184

(7,752)

(7,470)

(1,964,224)

(1,117,249)

(734,412)

(194,125)

192,800

(155,612)

(541,613)

(349,737)

2,229,503

1,951,673

Cash proceeds (outflows) from bills issued

(46,822)

(37,397)

Cash proceeds (outflows) from bond repurchases

(35,987)

(134,838)

57,246

42,760

(857)

(878)

68,952

(128,326)

2,272,036

1,692,994

(233,801)

226,009

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Bank overdraft at beginning of year

391,835

165,826

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Bank overdraft at end of year

158,033

391,835

Cash and bank balances
Cash pledged as collateral

Derivatives in gain

10

94,767

559,635

Loans

12

14,041,908

12,065,668

Non-financial assets
Prepayments
Other assets

13

Total assets

852

683

156

345

16,250,167

14,485,167

25,000

25,000

79,560

69,744

104,560

94,744

Equity
Share capital

27

Retained earnings
Total equity
Liabilities

Interest paid on bonds issued
Interest paid on bills issued

Net interest on derivatives
Cash proceeds from provision of standby facilities
Payments to suppliers and employees
Net cash flow from operating activities

31

Cashflow from Investing Activities
Purchase of marketable securities
(Purchase)/maturity of deposits
Net Cashflow from Investing Activities
Cashflow from Financing Activities

Financial liabilities
Payables and provisions

14

45,066

40,900

Bills

15

562,803

609,624

Bond repurchases

16

31,671

110,220

Derivatives in loss

10

1,206,175

187,098

Bonds

17

14,015,862

13,217,759

Borrower notes

18

283,180

224,281

Cash proceeds from bonds issued

Cash proceeds from borrower notes
Dividends paid
Cash applied to derivatives
Net Cashflow from Financing Activities

17

Non-financial liabilities
Other liabilities

19

850

539

Total liabilities

16,145,607

14,390,422

Total equity and liabilities

16,250,167

14,485,167

These statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash

These statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
Notes to the financial statements
1. Reporting entity
The New Zealand Local Government Funding
Agency Limited (LGFA) is a company registered
under the Companies Act 1993 and is subject to the
requirements of the Local Government Act 2002.
LGFA is controlled by participating local authorities
and is a council-controlled organisation as defined
under section 6 of the Local Government Act 2002.
LGFA is a limited liability company incorporated and
domiciled in New Zealand.
The primary objective of LGFA is to optimise the
debt funding terms and conditions for participating
borrowers.
The registered address of LGFA is Level 8, City
Chambers, 142 Featherston Street, Wellington Central,
Wellington 6011.
The financial statements are as at and for the year
ended 30 June 2022.

unless separately identified. The functional currency
of LGFA is New Zealand dollars.
Foreign currency conversions
Transactions denominated in foreign currency are
translated into New Zealand dollars using exchange
rates applied on the trade date of the transaction.
Changes in accounting policies
LGFA does not consider any standards or
interpretations in issue but not yet effective to have a
significant impact on its financial statements.
Financial instruments
Financial assets
Financial assets, other than derivatives, are
recognised initially at fair value plus transaction
costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.

These financial statements were authorised for issue
by the Directors on 29 August 2022.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
bank accounts and deposits with an original maturity
of no more than three months.

2. Statement of compliance

Cash provided by LGFA as security for financial
arrangements remains a financial asset of LGFA and
is recognised as cash pledged as collateral in the
Statement of Financial Position, separate from cash
and cash equivalents

LGFA is an FMC reporting entity under the Financial
Markets Conduct Act 2013 (FMCA). These financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with
that Act and the Financial Reporting Act 2013. LGFA’s
bonds are quoted on the NZX Debt Market.
LGFA is a profit orientated entity as defined under the
New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS).
The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (NZ GAAP) and they comply with
NZ IFRS and other applicable Financial Reporting
Standard, as appropriate for Tier 1 for-profit
entities. The financial statements also comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

3. Basis of preparation
Measurement base
The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis modified by the revaluation of
certain assets and liabilities.
The financial statements are prepared on an accrual
basis.
Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in New
Zealand dollars rounded to the nearest thousand,
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Purchases and sales of all financial assets are
accounted for at trade date.
At each balance date, an expected credit loss
assessment is performed for all financial assets and
is calculated as either:
•	Credit losses that may arise from default events
that are possible within the next 12 months, where
no significant increase in credit risk has arisen
since acquisition of the asset, or
•	Credit losses that may arise from default events
that are possible over the expected life of the
financial asset, where a significant increase in
credit risk has arisen since acquisition of the asset.
Impairment losses on financial assets will ordinarily
be recognised on initial recognition as a 12-month
expected loss allowance and move to a lifetime
expected loss allowance if there is a significant
deterioration in credit risk since acquisition.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities, other than derivatives, are
recognised initially at fair value less transaction costs
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method.

Derivatives

Expenses

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
both initially and subsequently at fair value. They
are reported as either assets or liabilities depending
on whether the derivative is in a net gain or net loss
position respectively.

Expenses are recognised in the period to which they
relate.

Fair value hedge
Where a derivative qualifies as a hedge of the
exposure to changes in fair value of an asset or
liability (fair value hedge) any gain or loss on the
derivative is recognised in profit and loss together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged
asset or liability.
The carrying amount of the hedged item is adjusted
by the fair value gain or loss on the hedged item in
respect of the risk being hedged. Effective parts of
the hedge are recognised in the same area of profit
and loss as the hedged item.
Other assets
Property, plant and equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are initially
recorded at cost.
Depreciation is charged on a straight-line basis at
rates calculated to allocate the cost or valuation of
an item of property, plant and equipment, less any
estimated residual value, over its remaining useful life.
Intangible assets
Intangible assets comprise software and project
costs incurred for the implementation of the treasury
management system. Capitalised computer software
costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of the software (three to seven
years). Costs associated with maintaining computer
software are recognised as expenses.

Interest expense
Interest expense is accrued using the effective
interest rate method.
The effective interest rate exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability to that liability’s
net carrying amount. The method applies this rate
to the principal outstanding to determine interest
expense each period.
Income tax
LGFA is exempt from income tax under Section 14 of
the Local Government Borrowing Act 2011.
Goods and services tax
All items in the financial statements are presented
exclusive of goods and service tax (GST), except for
receivables and payables, which are presented on a
GST-inclusive basis. Where GST is not recoverable as
input tax, then it is recognised as part of the related
asset or expense.
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable
to, the IRD is included as part of receivables or
payables in the statement of financial position.
The net GST paid to, or received from the IRD,
including the GST relating to investing and financing
activities, is classified as a net operating cash flow in
the statement of cash flows.
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed
exclusive of GST.
Segment reporting
LGFA operates in one segment being funding of
participating borrowers in New Zealand.

Other liabilities

Judgements and estimations

Employee entitlements

The preparation of these financial statements
requires judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts. For example, the fair value of financial
instruments depends critically on judgements
regarding future cash flows, including inflation
assumptions and the risk-free discount rate.

Employee entitlements to salaries and wages, annual
leave and other similar benefits are recognised in the
profit and loss when they accrue to employees.
Revenue
Interest income
Interest income is accrued using the effective interest
rate method.
The effective interest rate exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount. The method applies this rate to the principal
outstanding to determine interest income each
period.

The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Actual results may differ from
these estimates and these estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Where these judgements significantly affect the
amounts recognised in the financial statements they
are described in the following notes.
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The financial statements as at 30 June 2022 include
estimates and judgements of the potential impact
of COVID-19 and the proposed Three Waters Reform
Programme on LGFA’s financial position and
performance. Whilst there has been no material
impact on the estimates and judgements at the date

3 October 2022

these financial statements are authorised, it is noted
that there is significant uncertainty with regards
to the medium and long-term effects of COVID-19,
as well as the outcome of Three Waters Reform
Programme on the local government sector.

6. Operating expenses
Issuance and on-lending expenses are those costs that are incurred as a necessary expense to facilitate the
ongoing issuance of LGFA debt securities.
For the year ended 30 June in $000s

2022

2021

Approved issuer levy 1

701

1,055

Rating agency fees

654

633

NZDM facility fee

672

567

Legal fees - issuance

508

477

NZX

715

637

Trustee fees

108

100

Regulatory, registry, other fees

174

207

3,531

3,676

Information technology

807

725

Consultants

208

152

Directors fees

424

399

Insurance

90

85

Legal fees

137

185

309

355

110

108

-

-

2,317

2,030

4,403

4,038

7,933

7,714

Issuance and on-lending expenses

Revenue and expenditure
4. Net interest income
For the year ended ended 30 June in $000s

2022

2021

Interest income
Cash and cash equivalents

3,527

922

14,827

4,181

7,854

6,080

Derivatives

140,956

212,759

Loans

226,342

153,280

-

-

393,507

377,222

Marketable securities
Deposits

Fair value hedge ineffectiveness
Total interest income
Interest expense
Bills
Bond repurchase transactions
Lease liability
Bonds
Borrower notes
Total interest expense

Net interest income

5,141

2,100

1,084

398

7

13

366,044

353,005

3,715

2,168

375,991

357,685

17,516

19,537

Other operating expenses

Other expenses
Auditors’ remuneration
Statutory audit
Advisory services
Personnel

Total operating expenses

1.	The amount of Approved Issuer Levy is a function of the number of the offshore holders of certain LGFA bond
maturities.

5. Other operating income
As at 30 June 2022, LGFA had provided credit standby facilities totalling $662 million to selected councils.
As at balance date, there were no drawdowns outstanding under the facilities.
For the year ended 30 June in $000s

2022

2021

Standby facilities fee income

1,090

184

Total other operating income

1,090

184
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Financial instruments
7. Financial instruments accounting policy
Financial instruments recognised in the statement of
financial position at amortised cost.
Fair values of financial instruments not recognised in
the statement of financial position at fair value are
determined for note disclosure as follows:
Cash and bank, trade and other receivables, trade
and other payables
The carrying value of cash and bank, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables approximate
their fair value as they are short-term instruments.
Cash pledged as collateral
LGFA enters into derivative financial instruments for
hedging purpose which may require LGFA to post
collateral as security with counterparties.
In line with standard industry practice, collateral is
provided for derivative transactions in accordance
with Credit Support Annexes (CSAs). LGFA’s practice
is to annex each CSA to the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association (ISDA) Master Agreement it
has with derivative counterparties.
LGFA is required to pledge cash deposits at call
in order to meet its obligations under the CSAs for
derivative positions. The pledged assets will be
returned to LGFA when the underlying transaction
is terminated, but in the event of default the
counterparty is entitled to apply the collateral in
order to settle the outstanding liability.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

Marketable securities and bonds
The fair value of bonds and marketable securities are
determined using the quoted price for the instrument.

The following table shows the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, together with the carrying
amounts shown in the statement of financial position.
As at 30 June 2022 in $000s

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

Financial assets
at amortised
cost

Financial assets
measured at
fair value in
accordance with
NZ IFRS 9

Fair value

Receivables

-

360

-

360

Cash and bank balances

-

158,033

-

158,033

Cash pledged as collateral

-

76

-

76

Marketable securities

-

1,491,148

-

1,597,633

Deposits

-

462,866

-

462,859

Derivatives

-

-

94,767

94,767

Loans to local government

-

14,041,908

-

14,188,283

-

16,154,392

94,767

16,502,012

45,066

-

-

45,066

562,803

-

-

562,498

31,671

-

-

31,671

-

-

1,206,175

1,206,175

14,015,862

-

-

14,028,971

283,180

-

-

276,085

14,938,582

-

1,206,175

16,150,466

Deposits
The fair value for deposits is determined using a
discounted cash flow analysis. The interest rates used
to discount the estimated cash flows are based on
current market interest rates.
Loans
The fair value of loans is determined using a
discounted cash flow analysis. The interest rates
used to discount the estimated cash flows are
based on LGFA bond yields at the reporting date
plus an appropriate credit spread to reflect the
counterparty’s credit risk.
Leases
The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using LGFA’s incremental borrowing rate, with the
corresponding right-of-use asset recognised as an
equal amount.
Borrower notes
The fair value of borrower notes is determined using a
discounted cash flow analysis. The interest rates used
to discount the estimated cash flows are based on
LGFA bond yields at the reporting date.

Financial assets

Financial liabilities
Payables and provisions
Bills
Bond repurchases
Derivatives
Bonds
Borrower notes
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As at 30 June 2021 in $000s

3 October 2022

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

Financial assets
at amortised
cost

Financial assets
measured at
fair value in
accordance with
NZ IFRS 9

Fair value

LGFA is exposed to interest rate risk from its borrowing, lending and investment activities and uses interest rate
swaps to manage this risk. For hedge accounting purposes, LGFA has designated these swaps in fair value
relationships to its fixed rate borrowings, loans and investments.
The following table shows the gain or loss on the hedging instrument and the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk for fair value hedge relationships.

Financial assets
Receivables

-

360

-

360

Cash and bank balances

-

158,033

-

158,033

Cash pledged as collateral

-

76

-

76

Marketable securities

-

1,491,148

-

1,597,633

Deposits

-

462,866

-

462,859

Derivatives

-

-

94,767

94,767

Loans

-

14,041,908

-

14,188,283

-

16,154,392

94,767

16,502,012

Bills

45,066

-

-

45,066

562,803

-

-

562,498

31,671

-

-

31,671

-

-

1,206,175

1,206,175

14,015,862

-

-

14,028,971

283,180

-

-

276,085

14,938,582

-

1,206,175

16,150,466

Bond repurchases
Derivatives
Bonds
Borrower notes

Derivative financial instruments are the only
instruments recognised in the statement of financial
position at fair value.
Derivative financial instruments are valued under
level 2 of the following hierarchy.
Level 1 – Quoted market prices: Fair value based on
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.
Level 2 – Valuation techniques using observable
market inputs: Fair value based on a valuation
technique using other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived
from prices).
Level 3 – Valuation techniques using significant
non-observable market inputs: Fair value based on
a valuation technique using inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).
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Hedged items attributable to the hedged risk
Hedging instruments – interest rate swaps
Ineffectiveness recognised in profit or loss from fair value hedges

2022
Gain/(loss)

2021
Gain/(loss)

(1,304,237)

(680,122)

1,304,237

680,122

-

-

The gains or losses on the hedging instrument (interest rate swaps) and the hedged item (bonds, loans and
investments) are mapped to the same fair value account. For this reason, the statement of comprehensive
income will only report any ineffectiveness arising from the fair value hedge.

NZ IAS 32: Financial Instruments Presentation allows financial assets and liabilities to be offset only when there is
a current legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and there is an intention either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
LGFA does not offset any amounts.
The following table shows the amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement that are not offset in the statement of financial position.
As at 30 June 2022 in $000s

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is
determined using a discounted cash flow analysis.
Interest rates represent the most significant
assumption used in valuing derivative financial
instruments. The interest rates used to discount
estimated cash flows are based on the New Zealand
dollar swap curves at the reporting date.

Derivative assets Derivative liabilities

Gross amounts

94,767

1,206,175

Amounts offset

-

-

94,767

(94,767)

-

-

(94,767)

(94,767)

Collateral

-

(76)

Net amount

-

1,111,332

Carrying amounts

8. Derivative financial instruments
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As at 30 June in $000s

10. Offsetting

Financial liabilities
Payables and provisions

9. Hedge accounting

Amounts that don’t qualify for offsetting
Financial assets & liabilities

As at 30 June 2021 in $000s

Derivative assets Derivative liabilities

Gross amounts

559,635

187,098

Amounts offset

-

-

559,635

187,098

-

-

(187,098)

(187,098)

-

-

372,536

-

Carrying amounts
Amounts that don’t qualify for offsetting
Financial assets & liabilities
Collateral
Net amount
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11. Receivables

As at 30 June in $000s

As at 30 June in $000s

2022

2021

Bond repurchases to be received

-

42,578

Borrower notes to be received

-

1,000

Trade debtors

360

9

Total receivables

360

43,587

12. Loans
As at 30 June in $000s

Ashburton District Council
Auckland Council
Bay of Plenty Regional Council
Buller District Council

Loans

12,048

78,898

2021
Short-term
loans
10,011

60,723

-

3,413,415

-

3,303,915

25,651

167,941

25,428

155,995

-

20,015

-

20,005

75,214

4,003

59,133

-

14,762

-

-

Central Hawkes Bay District Council

2,024

20,107

-

20,107

Central Otago District Council

5,024

-

-

-

Christchurch City Council

2,017

2,036,724

14,533

1,951,017

Clutha District Council

5,532

32,394

2,004

16,042

-

71,822

-

51,702

Carterton District Council

Far North District Council
Gisborne District Council
Gore District Council
Greater Wellington Regional Council

-

86,095

-

68,774

6,035

29,631

6,011

26,563

-

576,343

-

450,945

3,980

26,717

3,995

21,642

Hamilton City Council

-

633,049

-

481,019

Hastings District Council

-

237,990

-

205,357

Hauraki District Council

-

43,212

-

44,101

Hawkes Bay Regional Council

-

37,992

-

18,868

Horizons Regional Council

11,984

49,771

11,991

37,194

Horowhenua District Council

11,001

127,395

16,000

92,178

Hurunui District Council

8,033

30,147

8,002

30,062

-

256,607

-

201,225

Invercargill City Council

12,845

68,725

-

68,666

Invercargill City Holdings Ltd

22,076

68,354

-

-

Kaikoura District Council

-

5,331

-

5,014

Kaipara District Council

-

44,229

-

44,088

Grey District Council

Hutt City Council

Kapiti Coast District Council

-

256,128

-

230,366

Mackenzie District Council

10,002

-

-

-

Manawatu District Council

11,559

77,725

11,522

72,681

Marlborough District Council

37,325

100,289

30,226

73,136

Masterton District Council

-

50,260

-

48,609

Matamata-Piako District Council

-

38,191

-

26,567
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Loans

Loans

-

140,581

-

90,146
169,999

New Plymouth District Council

-

170,350

-

-

14,147

-

14,147

Opotiki District Council

-

7,073

-

8,600

66,715

48,443

-

-

Otorohanga District Council

Otago Regional Council

-

4,028

-

-

Palmerston North City Council

-

187,872

-

152,314

-

172,335

-

141,794

50,275

241,015

25,030

130,333

Queenstown Lakes District Council
Loans

2021
Short-term
loans

Northland Regional Council

Porirua City Council
2022
Short-term
loans

4,018

Canterbury Regional Council

Nelson City Council

2022
Short-term
loans

-

19,157

-

3,020

Rotorua District Council

Rangitikei District Council

43,112

245,298

12,823

215,034

Ruapehu District Council

8,020

29,557

8,005

21,474

-

75,343

-

60,129

South Taranaki District Council

-

112,566

-

95,210

South Waikato District Council

4,874

34,171

8,987

15,030

Selwyn District Council

Southland District Council

-

16,899

-

-

South Wairarapa District Council

-

26,537

-

24,520

6,027

26,299

-

22,271

-

14,587

4,999

-

Stratford District Council
Taranaki Regional Council
Tararua District Council

-

51,244

-

44,100

Tasman District Council

24,193

198,190

27,037

152,035

Taupo District Council

-

125,522

-

125,177

Tauranga City Council

-

648,528

-

516,688

Thames-Coromandel District Council
Timaru District Council

-

73,365

-

61,145

28,724

136,516

22,529

117,181

Upper Hutt City Council

-

91,421

-

65,153

Waikato District Council

-

95,454

-

80,189

Waikato Regional Council

-

25,120

-

32,082

Waimakariri District Council

-

170,903

-

170,506

25,530

124,377

8,000

90,123

-

10,062

-

8,041

Waitaki District Council

4,491

20,583

2,498

12,523

Waitomo District Council

4,017

24,092

4,003

30,045
792,505

Waipa District Council
Wairoa District Council

Wellington City Council

-

967,101

-

3,761

6,616

2,001

6,610

Western Bay Of Plenty District Council

-

70,366

-

70,154

Westland District Council

-

29,933

-

21,858

West Coast Regional Council

Whakatane District Council

-

86,396

-

77,203

Whanganui District Council

7,523

99,522

7,507

94,289

Whangarei District Council

9,972

182,813

9,993

162,296

-

(36,332)

-

(1,091)

478,385

13,563,522

287,140

11,778,528

Fair value hedge adjustment

As at 30 June 2022, $2,286 million of loans are due to mature within 12 months. This comprises all short-term loans
and $1,807 million of loans.
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13. Other assets

As at 30 June 2021 in $000’s

Face value

Unamortised
premium

Accrued
interest

Total

7 July 2021

20,000

(1)

-

19,999

15 July 2021

110,000

(13)

-

109,987

5 August 2021

25,000

(8)

-

24,992

11 August 2021

80,000

(29)

-

79,971

1.	Intangible assets comprise acquired and internally developed software costs incurred on the implementation
of LGFA’s treasury management system.

10 September 2021

75,000

(46)

-

74,954

17 September 2021

150,000

(95)

-

149,905

14. Payables and provisions

6 October 2021

20,000

(20)

-

19,980

14 October 2021

55,000

(57)

-

54,943

10 November 2021

50,000

(73)

-

49,927

8 December 2021

25,000

(34)

-

24,966

610,000

(376)

-

609,624

As at 30 June in $000s

2022

2021

-

154

Right-of-use lease asset

156

190

Total other assets

156

345

Intangible assets1

As at 30 June in $000s

2022

2021

44,000

40,000

800

658

Credit provision

161

193

Other provisions

105

49

45,066

40,900

Loans to be advanced
Trade creditors

Total receivables

15. Bills
As at 30 June 2022 in $000’s

Face value

Unamortised
premium

Accrued
interest

Total

7 July 2022

15,000

(4)

-

14,996

13 July 2022

70,000

(30)

-

69,970

19 July 2022

35,000

(33)

-

34,967

4 August 2022

25,000

(33)

-

24,967

10 August 2022

80,000

(167)

-

79,833

19 August 2022

20,000

(60)

-

19,940

30 August 2022

50,000

(201)

-

49,799

9 September 2022

68,000

(296)

-

67,704

14 September 2022

100,000

(538)

-

99,462

19 September 2022

27,000

(120)

-

26,880

6 October 2022

25,000

(148)

-

24,852

9 November 2022

25,000

(238)

-

24,762

7 December 2022

25,000

(329)

-

24,671

565,000

(2,197)

-

562,803
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16. Treasury stock and bond repurchases
Periodically, LGFA subscribes for LGFA bonds as part of its tender process and holds these bonds as treasury
stock. LGFA bonds held by LGFA as treasury stock are derecognised at the time of issue and no liability is
recognised in the statement of financial position. As at 30 June 2022, 1,100 million of LFGA bonds had been
subscribed as treasury stock.
LGFA makes these treasury stock bonds available to banks authorised as its tender counterparties to borrow
under short-term repurchase transactions. The objective of the bond lending facility is to assist with improving
secondary market liquidity in LGFA bonds. Bonds lent to counterparties are disclosed as a separate stock
lending liability on the face of the statement of financial position.
As at 30 June in $000s

2022

2021

15 April 2023

-

32,887

15 April 2024

1,456

-

15 April 2025

6,773

-

15 April 2026

5,395

-

20 April 2029

7,390

33,810

14 April 2033

4,566

38,957

15 May 2035

818

-

15 April 2037

5,272

4,566

31,671

110,220
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17. Bonds

18. Borrower notes

Bonds on issue do not include $1,100 million (2021: $1,000) face value of issued LGFA bonds subscribed by LGFA and
held as treasury stock. Refer Note 16: Treasury stock and bond repurchase transactions.

Borrower notes are subordinated debt instruments which are required to be held by each local authority
that borrows from LGFA in an amount equal to a fixed percentage of the aggregate borrowings by that local
authority. The fixed percentage is 2.5% for loans issued from 1 July 2020. Prior to this date, the fixed percentage
was 1.6%.

As at 30 June 2022
in $000’s

Face Value

Unamortised
premium

Accrued
interest

Fair value
hedge
adjustment

Total

LGFA may convert borrower notes into redeemable shares if it has made calls for all unpaid capital to be paid in
full and the LGFA Board determines it is still at risk of imminent default.

Fixed interest bonds

19. Other liabilities

15 April 2023

1,830,000

25,117

21,175

15 April 2024

1,998,000

5,625

9,458

15 April 2025

1,679,000

(13,379)

9,714

15 April 2026

1,815,000

(31,599)

5,728

15 April 2027

1,751,000

85,460

16,577

15 May 2028

1,270,000

(53,384)

3,650

20 April 2029

1,362,000

(21,893)

4,019

15 May 2031

850,000

(19,801)

2,443

14 April 2033

1,290,000

43,486

9,622

15 May 2035

400,000

2,166

1,533

15 April 2037

730,000

(12,837)

3,072

14,975,000

8,962

86,989

(1,185,774)

13,885,177

130,000

(7)

692

-

130,684

15,105,000

8,955

87,681

(1,185,774)

14,015,862

Face Value

Unamortised
premium

Accrued
interest

Fair value
hedge
adjustment

Total

Total fixed interest

As at 30 June in $000s

Total
As at 30 June 2021
in $000’s

Lease liability

156

190

Accruals

694

349

Total receivables

850

539

2022

2021

Less than one year

66

111

Between one and five years

90

79

156

190

As at 30 June in $000s

Fixed interest bonds
14 April 2022

1,605,000

15,527

9,406

15 April 2023

1,660,000

46,296

19,208

15 April 2024

1,528,000

17,466

7,233

15 April 2025

1,469,000

(20,190)

8,499

15 April 2026

1,240,000

6,911

3,913

15 April 2027

1,486,000

82,140

14,068

20 April 2029

1,172,000

(10,512)

3,458

15 May 2031

650,000

(4,966)

1,868

14 April 2033

1,170,000

37,817

8,727

15 April 2037

700,000

(8,443)

2,945

12,680,000

162,045

79,326

166,138

13,087,509

130,000

(33)

283

-

130,250

12,810,000

162,012

79,610

166,138

13,217,759

Total fixed interest

Year ended
2021

20. Operating leases

Floating rate notes
14 October 2022

Year ended
2022

Total non-cancellable operating leases

Risk management
21. Financial risk management

22. Market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for
carrying out the business of LGFA in accordance with
risk management policies, including those relating to
investing, lending, borrowing and treasury activities.
The use of financial instruments exposes LGFA to
financial risks, the most significant being market
risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. The exposure and
management of these risks is outlined below.

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices
will affect LGFA’s income or value of financial
instruments. The most significant market risk which
LGFA is exposed to is interest rate risk. LGFA has no
significant exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Floating rate notes
14 October 2022
Total
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Interest rate sensitivity

23. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows or the fair value of financial instruments will decrease because
of a change in market interest rates. LGFA is exposed to interest rate risk through its interest-bearing financial
assets and liabilities.
Interest rate risk is managed using Value at Risk (VaR) and Partial Differential Hedge (PDH) limits to mitigate
the potential change in value of the balance sheet due to changes in interest rates. PDH risk measures the
sensitivity of a portfolio to a one basis point change in underlying interest rates, whereas VaR measures the
expected loss for a given period with a given confidence.

Changes in interest rates impact the fair value of fixed rate assets and liabilities, cash flows on floating rate
assets and liabilities, and the fair value and cash flows of interest rate swaps. A change of 100 basis points in
interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/(decreased) profit or loss and equity by the amounts
shown in the following table. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.
For the period ending 30 June in $000s

Face value

Less than 6
months

6 months 1 year

1-2 years

2-5 years

Over 5
years

Financial assets
Cash and bank Balances

100 bps
increase
$000s

100 bps
decrease
$000s

-

-

-

-

518,112

(529,330)

558,172

(571,857)

(517,469)

528,667

(557,130)

570,782

Marketable securities
Deposits

643

(664)

1,042

(1,075)

Loans

Variable rate assets

115,784

(115,784)

100,661

(100,661)

158,033

-

-

-

-

1,503,175

533,296

401,624

174,200

394,055

-

461,649

441,649

20,000

-

-

-

13,975,845

11,652,617

327,675

266,900

976,700

751,953

Financial liabilities
Bills

Variable rate liabilities

(3,541)

3,541

(3,093)

3,093

Bond repurchases

(124,063)

124,063

(105,568)

105,568

Derivatives

(11,820)

11,820

(7,999)

7,999

Bonds
Borrower notes
Total

As at 30 June 2021 in $000s

-

-

-

(31,653)

(31,653)

-

-

-

-

-

(12,419,250)

1,583,750

1,645,500

3,895,200

5,294,800

(15,105,000)

(130,000)

(1,830,000)

(1,998,000)

(5,245,000)

(5,902,000)

(270,059)

(223,289)

(4,574)

(5,557)

(19,932)

(16,707)

24. Credit risk

126,991

(583,597)

498,476

83,044

1,023

128,046

Face value

Less than 6
months

6 months 1 year

1-2 years

2-5 years

Over 5
years

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a counterparty
to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations. LGFA is exposed to credit risk through its
lending and investing activities.

391,835

-

-

-

-

Marketable securities

765,762

317,070

50,272

182,261

216,159

-

Deposits

654,331

509,331

145,000

-

-

-

11,999,282

10,252,377

138,782

252,500

606,100

749,523

(610,000)

(610,000)

-

-

-

-

(67,640)

(67,640)

-

-

-

-

-

(10,924,750)

1,448,000

1,463,750

3,486,000

4,527,000

(12,810,000)

(130,000)

(1,605,000)

(1,660,000)

(4,237,000)

(5,178,000)

(212,750)

(180,164)

(1,982)

(4,406)

(11,382)

(14,815)

110,820

(441,941)

175,071

234,105

59,877

83,708

Financial liabilities

Derivatives
Bonds
Borrower notes
Total
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis

-

391,835

Bond repurchases

Derivative financial instruments

(565,000)

Cash and bank Balances

Bills

Fixed rate assets

(565,000)

Financial assets

Loans

Fair value sensitivity analysis

Fixed rate liabilities
158,033

2021
100 bps
decrease
$000s

The table below indicates the earliest period in which the interest-bearing financial instruments reprice.
As at 30 June 2022 in $000s

2022
100 bps
increase
$000s

Derivative financial instruments

Credit risk associated with lending activities is
managed by requiring local authorities that borrow
from LGFA to meet specific credit lending criteria and
to provide security against the borrowing. The LGFA’s
credit risk framework restricts credit exposures to
specific counterparties.
Credit risk associated with investing activities,
excluding on-lending, is managed by only investing
with New Zealand Government Agencies or
counterparties that meet a minimum credit rating of
A (Standard & Poor’s equivalent). The LGFA’s credit risk
framework limits concentrations of credit risk for any
single counterparty.
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26. Contractual cash flows of financial instruments.

Exposure to credit risk
LGFA monitors the concentration of credit risk by the type of counterparty. The following table shows the
carrying value and maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date, before taking account of collateral
or other credit enhancements, for significant counterparty types.
As at 30 June 2022 in $000s

NZ
government
agencies

NZ local
authorities

NZ
registered
banks

Other
counterparties

Fair Value
hedge
adjustment

Total
carrying
value

Receivables

-

Cash and bank balances

156,331

Cash pledged as collateral

-

-

360

360

1,702

-

158,033

76

76

More
Total
than 5 contractual
years cash flows

Total
carrying
value

On
demand

Up to 3
months

3 months
to 1 year

1 year to
5 years

360

-

-

-

-

360

360

158,033

-

-

-

-

158,033

158,033

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances
Cash pledged as collateral

76

-

-

-

-

76

76

Marketable securities

-

199,206

473,654

834,261

-

1,507,122

1,491,148

239,937

29,235

331,290

890,687

1,491,148

Deposits

-

322,580

142,572

-

-

465,151

462,866

-

-

377,463

85,403

462,866

Loans

-

405,638

2,296,504

7,921,322

5,316,424

15,939,887

14,041,908

(1,111,408)

-

-

-

(1,111,408)

-

14,041,908

-

-

14,041,908

(45,066)

-

-

-

-

(45,066)

(45,066)

(715,064)

14,071,143

710,455

976,450

-

15,042,984

Bills

-

(490,000)

(75,000)

-

-

(565,000)

(562,803)

Bond repurchases

-

(31,681)

-

-

-

(31,681)

(31,671)

NZ
government
agencies

NZ local
authorities

NZ
registered
banks

Other
counterparties

Fair Value
hedge
adjustment

Total
carrying
value

Bonds

-

(807)

(2,398,906)

(8,336,675)

(6,560,835)

(17,297,223)

(14,015,862)

Borrower notes

-

(2,194)

(32,788)

(149,518)

(135,615)

(320,116)

(283,180)

Derivatives

-

(74,548)

58,917

(198,031)

(180,497)

(394,159)

(1,111,408)

113,403

328,192

464,952

71,359

(1,560,523)

(582,617)

104,403

On
demand

Up to 3
months

3 months
to 1 year

1 year to
5 years

More
Total
than 5 contractual
years cash flows

Total
carrying
value

Marketable securities
Deposits
Derivatives
Loans

Financial assets
Receivables

-

1,000

42,578

9

388,960

-

2,875

-

-

391,836

Marketable securities

-

14,006

159,250

602,115

(6,917)

768,453

Deposits

-

-

524,839

130,122

-

654,961

372,536

-

-

-

-

372,536

-

12,066,760

-

-

(1,091)

12,065,668

761,497

12,081,765

729,542

732,246

(8,008)

14,297,042

Cash and bank balances

Derivatives
Loans

Collateral and credit enhancements
LGFA holds collateral against borrowings from local
authorities in the form of debenture securities and
guarantees.
Credit quality of financial assets
All financial assets are neither past due nor impaired.
The carrying value of the financial assets is expected
to be recoverable.
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Financial liabilities
Payables and provisions

43,587

25. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that LGFA will encounter
difficulty in meeting the obligations of its financial
liabilities. LGFA manages liquidity risk by holding cash
and a portfolio of liquid assets to meet obligations
when they fall due. LGFA is required by policy to
maintain sufficient liquidity (comprising a committed
liquidity facility and holdings of cash and liquid
investments) to meet all operating and funding
commitments over a rolling 12-month period.
The Treasury (New Zealand Debt Management)
provides a committed liquidity facility that LGFA can
draw upon to meet any exceptional and temporary
liquidity shortfall. As at 30 June 2022, the undrawn
committed liquidity facility was $1,300 million (2021: $500
million). The facility is due to expire in December 2031.
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As at 30 June 2022
in $000s

Receivables

Financial assets

As at 30 June 2021 in $000s

The following table shows the contractual cash flows associated with financial assets and liabilities.

As at 30 June 2021
in $000s

Financial assets
Receivables

43,587

-

-

-

-

43,587

43,587

391,835

-

-

-

-

391,835

391,835

Marketable securities

-

157,779

119,844

515,213

-

792,836

768,453

Deposits

-

249,627

407,175

-

-

656,802

654,961

Loans

-

194,635

1,675,752

6,285,605

4,573,829

12,729,822

12,065,668

(40,900)

-

-

-

-

(40,900)

(40,900)

Bills

-

(460,000)

(150,000)

-

-

(610,000)

(609,624)

Bond repurchases

-

(110,222)

-

-

-

(110,222)

(110,220)

Bonds

-

(331)

(1,988,835)

(6,999,417)

(5,811,385)

(14,799,968)

(13,217,759)

Borrower notes

-

(782)

(23,588)

(112,839)

(97,506)

(234,715)

(224,281)

Derivatives

-

(23,311)

266,446

574,114

351,867

1,169,116

372,536

394,522

7,395

306,794

262,676

(983,195)

(11,808)

94,256

Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities
Payables and provisions
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Capital and dividends
27. Share capital
As at 30 June 2022, LGFA had 45 million ordinary shares on issue, 20 million of which remain uncalled.
All ordinary shares rank equally with one vote attached to each ordinary share. Ordinary shares have a face
value of $1 per share.

29. Capital management

30. Dividend

LGFA’s capital is equity, which comprises share
capital and retained earnings. The objective of
managing LGFA’s equity is to ensure LGFA achieves
its goals and objectives for which it has been
established, whilst remaining a going concern.

LGFA paid a dividend of $856,500 on 3 September 2021,
being $0.03426 per paid up share (2021: $878,500 on 4
September 2020, being $0.03514 per paid up share).

31. Capital commitments
As at 30 June 2022, there are no capital commitments.

28. Shareholder information

Other Notes

Registered holders of equity securities as at 30 June

2022

Minister of Finance and Minister for Local Government

5,000,000

11.1%

5,000,000

11.1%

Auckland Council

3,731,960

8.3%

3,731,960

8.3%

Christchurch City Council

3,731,960

8.3%

3,731,960

8.3%

Hamilton City Council

3,731,960

8.3%

3,731,960

8.3%

Bay of Plenty Regional Council

3,731,958

8.3%

3,731,958

8.3%

Greater Wellington Regional Council

3,731,958

8.3%

3,731,958

8.3%

Tasman District Council

3,731,958

8.3%

3,731,958

8.3%

Tauranga City Council

3,731,958

8.3%

3,731,958

8.3%

Wellington City Council

3,731,958

8.3%

3,731,958

8.3%

Western Bay of Plenty District Council

3,731,958

8.3%

3,731,958

8.3%

Whangarei District Council

1,492,784

3.3%

1,492,784

746,392

1.7%

746,392

400,000

0.9%

400,000

0.9%

373,196

0.8%

373,196

0.8%

Gisborne District Council

200,000

0.4%

200,000

0.4%

Hauraki District Council

200,000

0.4%

200,000

0.4%

33. Contingencies

Horowhenua District Council

200,000

0.4%

200,000

0.4%

There are no contingent liabilities at balance date.

Hutt City Council

200,000

0.4%

200,000

0.4%

Kapiti Coast District Council

200,000

0.4%

200,000

0.4%

34. Related parties

Manawatu District Council

200,000

0.4%

200,000

0.4%

Identity of related parties

Masterton District Council

200,000

0.4%

200,000

0.4%

New Plymouth District Council

200,000

0.4%

200,000

0.4%

LGFA is related to the local authorities set out in the
Shareholder Information in note 28.

Otorohanga District Council

200,000

0.4%

200,000

0.4%

Palmerston North City Council

200,000

0.4%

200,000

0.4%

South Taranaki District Council

200,000

0.4%

200,000

0.4%

Taupo District Council

200,000

0.4%

200,000

0.4%

Thames-Coromandel District Council

200,000

0.4%

200,000

0.4%

Waimakariri District Council

200,000

0.4%

200,000

0.4%

Waipa District Council

200,000

0.4%

200,000

0.4%

Whakatane District Council

200,000

0.4%

200,000

0.4%

Whanganui District Council

200,000

0.4%

200,000

0.4%

45,000,000

100%

45,000,000

100%

Hastings District Council
Marlborough District Council
Selwyn District Council
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32. Reconciliation of net profit to net cash flow from operating activities
For the year ended 30 June in $000s

2022

2021

10,673

12,007

(1,972,398)

(1,127,002)

(2,527)

(2,347)

Net change in trade debtors and receivables

(148)

105

3.3%

Net change in prepayments

(169)

(41)

1.7%

Net change in accruals

345

29

(1,964,224)

(1,117,249)

Net profit/(loss) for the period
Cash applied to loans
Non-cash adjustments
Amortisation and depreciation
Working capital movements

Net Cash From Operating Activities

LGFA operates under an annual Statement of Intent
that sets out the intentions and expectations for LGFA’s
operations and lending to participating borrowers.
Shareholding local authorities, and non-shareholder
local authorities who borrow more than $20 million,
are required to enter into a guarantee when they join
or participate in LGFA. The guarantee is in respect of
the payment obligations of other guaranteeing local
authorities to the LGFA (cross guarantee) and of the
LGFA itself.
Related party transactions
LGFA was established for the purpose of raising funds
from the market to lend to participating borrowers.
The lending to individual members is disclosed in note

12, and interest income recognised on this lending is
shown in the statement of comprehensive income.
The purchase of LGFA borrower notes by participating
borrowers. Refer note 18.
As at 30 June 2022, Alan Adcock was a nonindependent director of LGFA and was also employed
by Whangarei District Council (WDC) as Chief
Financial Officer. WDC borrowed from LGFA during the
financial year on the same terms and conditions as
any other council borrower.
The Treasury (New Zealand Debt Management)
provides LGFA with a committed credit facility and is
LGFA’s derivatives counterparty.
Transactions with key management personnel:
Salaries $1,016,801 (2021: $989,100)
Fees paid to directors are disclosed in operating
expenses in Note 6.

35. Subsequent events
On 29 August 2022, the Directors of LGFA declared
a dividend of $1,217,500 ($0.0487 per paid up share).
Subsequent to balance date, LGFA has issued $400
million in bonds.
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Auditor’s report
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE READERS OF NEW ZEALAND LOCAL GOVERNMENT FUNDING AGENCY LIMITED’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND PERFORMANCE INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
The Auditor-General is the auditor of New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited (the company).
The Auditor-General has appointed me, David Gates, using the staff and resources of KPMG, to carry out the
audit of the financial statements and performance information of the company on his behalf.
Opinion
We have audited:
•	the financial statements of the company on pages 60 to 83, that comprise the statement of financial position
as at 30 June 2022, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year ended on that date and the notes to the financial statements that include accounting
policies and other explanatory information; and
•	the performance information of the company on pages 10 to 15.
In our opinion:
•	the financial statements of the company on pages 60 to 83:
•	present fairly, in all material respects:
		 - its financial position as at 30 June 2022 and
		 - its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended; and
comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand in accordance with New Zealand
Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS); and
the performance information of the company on pages 10 to 15 presents fairly, in all material respects, the
company’s actual performance compared against the performance targets and other measures by which
performance was judged in relation to the company’s objectives for the year ended 30 June 2022.
Our audit was completed on 29 August 2022. This is the date at which our opinion is expressed.
The basis for our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the Board of Directors
and our responsibilities relating to the financial statements and the performance information, we comment on
other information, and we explain our independence.
Basis for our opinion
We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate the
Professional and Ethical Standards and the International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) issued by the
New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Responsibilities of the auditor section of our report.
We have fulfilled our responsibilities in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

procedures to address those matters in order that the readers as a body may better understand the process
by which we arrived at our audit opinion. Our procedures were undertaken in the context of and solely for the
purpose of our statutory audit opinion on the financial statements as a whole and we do not express discrete
opinions on separate elements of the financial statements.
The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Existence and impairment of loans
Refer to Note 12 to the Financial Statements.

Our audit procedures included:

The loans LGFA has provided to local government
make up over 86% of total assets. The loans are
recognised at amortised cost and the nature of the
counterparties is such that we do not consider these
loans to be at high risk of significant misstatement.
However, based on their materiality, and the
judgement involved in assessing the credit worthiness
of counterparties they are considered to be the area
which had the greatest effect on our overall audit
strategy and allocation of resources in planning and
completing our audit.

-	
understanding the processes in place to assess
borrowers and to record loan transactions. This
included evaluating the control environment in
place at LGFA.

-	
agreeing the 30 June 2022 loan balances to
external confirmations received from NZ Clear.

-	
assessing the borrowers’ compliance with financial
covenants.
We did not identify any material differences in
relation to the existence or impairment of loans.

Application of hedge accounting
Refer to Note 9 of the Financial Statements.

Our audit procedures included:

LGFA enters into derivatives (interest rate swaps) to
manage interest rate risk related to issuing fixed rate
borrowings, loans and investments. Fair value hedge
accounting is applied where specific requirements are
met around documentation of the hedge relationship
and the relationship is demonstrated as being an
effective hedge. Hedge accounting is complex,
particularly in the area of whether the requirements
(both initial and ongoing) for its application are met.
Should the requirements for hedge accounting not be
met, LGFA could experience significant volatility in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income from changes in
the fair value of the derivatives.

-	
reviewing LGFA’s accounting policies related to

Due to the size of the derivative positions and the
complexity of hedge accounting we consider this to
be a key audit matter.

financial instruments.

-	
agreeing the terms of the derivatives to the
confirmation provided by the derivative
counterparty.

-	
using our treasury valuation specialists we
independently recalculated the fair value of all of
the derivatives recorded by LGFA.

-	
ensuring the hedge documentation supporting
the application of hedge accounting was in
accordance with NZ IFRS 9 and the disclosures
made in the financial statements were
appropriate.

-	
determining that management’s hedge
effectiveness calculations were correctly
performed using appropriate source information.
We did not identify any material differences in
relation to the application of hedge accounting.

Materiality
The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. Materiality helped us to determine the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both individually
and on the financial statements as a whole. The materiality for the financial statements as a whole was set
at $120 million determined with reference to a benchmark of company Total Assets. We chose the benchmark
because, in our view, this is a key measure of the company’s performance. In addition, we also assess whether
other matters that come to our attention during the audit would in our judgement change or influence the
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person (‘qualitative’ materiality).
Key Audit Matters

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the financial statements and the performance information
The Board of Directors is responsible on behalf of the company for preparing financial statements that are fairly
presented and that comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand in accordance with
NZ IFRS and IFRS. The Board of Directors is also responsible for preparing the performance information for the
company.
The Board of Directors is responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable it to
prepare financial statements and performance information that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements in the current period. We summarise below those matters and our key audit
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In preparing the financial statements and the performance information, the Board of Directors is responsible
on behalf of the company for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Board of
Directors is also responsible for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting, unless the Board of Directors intends to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors’ responsibilities arise from the Local Government Act 2002 and the Financial Markets
Conduct Act 2013.
Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements and the performance information
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements and the
performance information, as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit carried out in
accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts or disclosures, and can arise from fraud or error.
Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the decisions of readers, taken on the basis of these financial statements and the performance
information.
For the budget information reported in the financial statements and the performance information, our
procedures were limited to checking that the information agreed to the company’s statement of intent.
We did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication of the financial statements and
the performance information.
As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. Also:
•	We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and the performance
information, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
•	We obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the company’s internal control.
•	We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

3 October 2022

Other Information
The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included on pages 4 to 9, 16 to 59 and 88 to 93 but does not include the financial statements and the
performance information, and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements and the performance information does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of audit opinion or assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements and the performance information, our responsibility is
to read the other information. In doing so, we consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements and the performance information or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on our work, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
Independence
We are independent of the company in accordance with the independence requirements of the AuditorGeneral’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate the independence requirements of Professional and Ethical
Standard 1: International Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the New Zealand Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board.
For the year ended 30 June 2022 and subsequently, the Chair of the company’s Audit and Risk Committee is a
member of the Auditor-General’s Audit and Risk Committee. The Auditor-General’s Audit and Risk Committee
is regulated by a Charter that specifies that it should not assume any management functions. There are
appropriate safeguards to reduce any threat to auditor independence, as the member of the Auditor-General’s
Audit and Risk Committee does not assume any management functions as part of their oversight role of the
audit of the company.
Other than the audit, and the relationship with the Auditor-General’s Audit and Risk Committee, we have no
relationship with, or interests in, the company.

David Gates
KPMG
On behalf of the Auditor-General
Wellington, New Zealand

•	We evaluate the appropriateness of the reported performance information within the company’s framework
for reporting its performance.
•	We conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by the Board of
Directors and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements and the performance information or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as
a going concern.
•	We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements and the performance
information, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements and the performance
information represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
Our responsibilities arise from the Public Audit Act 2001.
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Other disclosures

Directory

He whākitanga anō

Rārangi tauwaea

Donations

Earnings per security

Postal address

Office hours

General enquiries

Earnings per $1,000 of bonds on issue as at
30 June 2022 is $0.71 (2021: $0.87).

P.O. Box 5704, Lambton Quay
Wellington 6145

Monday – Friday, 9am to 5pm
Except Public Holidays

lgfa@lgfa.co.nz

Amount per security of final dividends

Net tangible assets per $1,000 of listed bonds as at
30 June 2022 is $6.92 (2021: $6.86).

Not applicable

0.06

50,000 to 99,999

187

20.2

$13,047,000

0.08

100,000 to 499,999

193

20.9

$37,135,000

0.23

500,000 to 999,999

36

3.9

$24,218,000

0.15

1,000,000 to 9,999,999,999,999

84

9.1

$15,990,334,000

99.47

925

100.0

$16,075,000,000

100.00
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$10,266,000
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Bra
n

sto
mh

425
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10,000 to 49,999

Total

Holding
Quantity %
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Holding Quantity
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Auckland
Level 5
Walker Wayland Centre
53 Fort Street
Auckland 1010

tE

Gor
e

St L
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n

Gor
e St

Holder
Count

Level 8
City Chambers
142 Featherston Street
Wellington 6011
(entrance on Johnston Street)

St

Joh

the

Registered office

gT
ay
lor

Fea

Wellington

Lam
bto
nQ
bto
uay
nQ
uay

Wa
rin

Spread of Quoted Security holders
Holding Range

firstname.lastname@lgfa.co.nz

Cu

Net Tangible Assets

Staff e-mail addresses

Phone +64 4 974 6530

Lam

A donation of $4,000 was made to Kauri 2000 for
the year ended 30 June 2022.

Fort St

53 Fort Street

Whakarewarewa Forest Loop (Great Ride)
Rotorua Lakes Council
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GRI Index

The GRI Standards are the world’s most widely used sustainability reporting standard.
This is the second year LGFA has prepared its annual report in compliance with the GRI Standards.
The following index is based on the GRI core option.

Kuputohu GRI
Disclosure title

Disclosure title

Reference/Disclosure

Reference/Disclosure

102-50. Reporting period

1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022

102-51. Date of most recent report

2022 Annual Report

102-52. Reporting cycle

Annual

102-53. Contact point for questions regarding the report

lgfa@lgfa.org.nz

102-54. Claims of reporting in accordance with the GRI Standards

The report has been prepared
in accordance with the GRI
standards: core option

102-1. Name of the organisation

Page 17

102-2. Activities, brands, products and services

Pages 17-26

102-3. Location of headquarters

Page 89

102-4. Location of operations

Page 89

102-5. Ownership and legal form

Pages 16, 64

102-55. GRI content index

Pages 90-91

102-6. Markets served

Pages 4-7, 10-15, 16-25

102-56. External assurance

None

102-7. Scale of the organisation

Pages 4-7, 16-31, 62

Cost effective funding

Pages 4-7, 10-15, 27

102-8. Information on employees and other workers

Pages 40, 50-51

Culture, ethics and governance

Pages 32-41, 42-52.

102-9. Supply chain

Pages 16-25, 34

Transparency and disclosure

Pages 4-7, 32-41, 42-52, 54-59

102-10. Significant changes to the organization and its supply chain

None

Environmental and social impact of lending

Pages 4-7, 32-41

102-11. Precautionary Principle or approach

Page 32

Health & safety and wellbeing

Pages 11, 14-15, 32-41.

102-12. External initiatives

Pages 42-43

Collaboration and local engagement

Pages 4-7, 13, 32-41

102-13. Membership of Associations

Financial Service Providers
Register

Financial markets best practice and influence

Pages 4-7, 10-15, 42-52

Diversity and inclusion

Pages 4-7, 40

102-14. Statement from senior decision-maker

Pages 4-7

Capability and development

Pages 4-7, 40

102-16. Values, principles, standards, and norms
of behaviour

Pages 42-52

Carbon footprint

Pages 32-41

102-18. Overview of Governance Structure

Pages 18-19, 32

102-40. List of stakeholder groups

Pages 4-7, 10-15, 26-31, 52

102-41. Collective bargaining agreements

None

102-42. Identifying and selecting stakeholders

Pages 33

102-43. Approach to stakeholder engagement

Pages 33-41

102-44. Key topics and concerns raised

Page 33

102-45. Entities included in the consolidated financial statements

Page 64

102-46. Defining report content and topic Boundaries

Page 33

102-47. List of material topics

Pages 32-45

102-48. Restatements of information

None

102-49. Changes in reporting

None

Emissions
305-1 Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions

Page 41

305-2 Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions.

Page 41

305-3 Other indirect (Scope 3) GHG emissions.

Page 41

Health and Safety and Wellbeing
403-1 Occupational health and safety management system

Page 40

403-9 Work-related injuries

Pages 14-15

403-10 Work-related ill health

Pages 14-15

Diversity and Inclusion
405-1 Diversity of governance bodies and employees
Capability and Development
404-2 Programs for upgrading employee skills and transition
assistance programs
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Local Government
Borrowing Act 2011

Act that established LGFA

Multi Issuer Deed
(MID)

Over arching borrowing document - accession of councils and CCOs, reps and
warranties, financial covenants, BN conversion

NII

Net interest income

Non Guarantor

Any member council that is not a guarantor. Non-Guarantor member councils
cannot borrow more than $20m

NZD (also NZ$)

New Zealand Dollar

NZDM

New Zealand Debt Management of the Treasury - our contact point for our Crown
Liquidity Facility and derivative swap counterparty

AIL

Approved Issuer Levy

Annual Plans

Annual budgets issued by councils ahead of their June financial year end

NZDM Facility

Bespoke Lending

Any lending to a council with a maturity date that does not match an LGFA bond
maturity dated

Crown Liquidity Facility where we can drawdown up to $1.5 billion of emergency
funding (subject to certain conditions)

NZGB

New Zealand Government Bonds

bps

basis points (100 basis points equals one percentage).

PDH

Partial Differential Hedge

CCO

Council Controlled Organisation

S&P

Standard and Poor’s

CCTO

Council Controlled Trading Organisation

CIL

Climate Initiative Loans

Shareholders
Agreement

Board, Shareholder Council appointments, sale of shares, voting rights and
Foundation policies

Coverage Ratio

In a tender the amount of bids received divided by the amount of bonds on offer.
The higher the Bod Coverage ratio the more demand there is

SOI

Statement of Intent

Spread to NZGB

The basis point difference between LGFA Bonds and NZ Government Bonds.
Investors will often use the spread the gauge when LGFA bonds are trading at a
premium or discount

Spread to Swap

The basis point difference between LGFA Bonds and the swaps curve. The spread
is often used as a proxy to gauge if LGFA bonds are being issued at a discount or
premium

SSA

Supra and Sub Sovereign Agency issuers- same as Supras - they issue Kauri bonds
in NZD. Examples are World Bank, Asian Development Bank, Kommunalbanken (LGFA
Norway equivalent)

Swap

Interest rate derivative instruments transacted with the NZDM to hedge the balance
sheet and convert fixed rate borrowing into floating rate exposures.

Syndication

The LGFA issues LGFA Bonds by Syndication normally twice a year, if market
conditions are favourable. Syndications provide diversity to the LGFA funding
program, by offering an alternative funding tool to the scheduled bond tenders.

ESG

Environmental, social and governance

Financial
Covenants

Four financial covenants that council must adhere to Debt/Revenue, Interest
Expense to Rates Revenue, Interest Expense to Total Revenue, Liquidity. Annual
attestation and if in breach then can be an event of repayment of loans.

Fitch

Credit rating agency who rates LGFA and a small number of councils

Foundation Policy
Covenants

Within Shareholder Agreement - any changes require shareholder approval. Now
mainly the financial covenants.

GHG

Greenhouse gas

GRI

Global Reporting Initiative

GSS

Green, Social and Sustainability New Zealand

GSA

General security arrangement

Guarantee and
Indemnity Deed

Joint and Several Guarantee with a side agreement that pro ratas the council
guarantors obligations to that of proportionate share of rates revenue

Taituara

Formerly Society of Local Government Managers (SOLGM)

TCFD

Task Force on Climate Related Financial Disclosures

Guarantor

Any council shareholder or any council who borrows more than $20m is required to
sign the Guarantee and Indemnity Deed.

Tender

The LGFA issues LGFA Bonds and Bills to the market in scheduled tenders, typically
every six weeks of the financial year.

IA

Internal audit

UN SDG

United Nations’ Sustainable Development Goals

INFINZ

Institute of Finance Professionals

VaR

Value at risk

LAP

Liquid Assets Portfolio

WSE

Water service entities

LGFA Bills

Short dated securities (less than 1 year) issued by LGFA

LGFA Bonds

Fixed rate coupon bonds issued by LGFA with maturities between 2022 and 2037.
Issued via tenders or syndication

Local Government
Act 2002

Overarching legislation for Councils, CCOs and CCTOs
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29 August 2022
Dear Shareholder

LGFA 2022 Annual Report
The LGFA Annual Report for the 12-month period to 30 June 2022 is now available from the LGFA
website: LGFA 2022 Annual Report
We are pleased to highlight another strong year for LGFA that included several achievements.
1.

We reached our 10-year milestone during the financial year
Over the 10-year period since LGFA was established in December 2021, we have grown our
membership from 18 foundation councils to 75 councils and one CCO, lent $20.1 billion to
members and issued $21.7 billion of bonds. We have broadened our product mix to include
short-dated lending, bespoke lending, Green Social Sustainable lending, CCO lending and
standby facilities. LGFA is now the largest issuer of NZD bonds after the New Zealand
Government and the largest bond issuer listed on the NZX. We also received an upgrade to
our credit rating to the highest possible rating of AAA in 2021.

2.

We made longer dated borrowing options available to an increased number of council
borrowers
At 30 June 2022, LGFA had loans outstanding of $14.08 billion, an increase of $1.98 billion
over the past year, with the longest dated loans out to 15 years (2037). Over the 12 months,
we approved three new councils and one CCO member, lifting total members to 76. Over the
past year, LGFA provided 80% of the sector borrowing and we are appreciative of the
ongoing support from our borrowing members.

3.

New products and increasing focus on sustainability
We undertook our first loan to a CCO (Invercargill City Holdings Limited) and launched a
Green, Social and Sustainable Loan (GSS) product during the year. We subsequently made
two GSS loans during the year and further loans are in the pipeline. We established a
Sustainability Committee and are progressing towards fulfilling our Climate Related
Disclosure reporting obligations in 2024.
We established a Future Director programme to help grow governance capability within the
sector and appointed Anita Furniss to this new position, effective 1 July 2022.

4.

A strong financial position has ensured a dividend payment of 4.87% for shareholders
The financial strength of LGFA has been enhanced with a strong net operating profit of $10.7
million for the 2021/22 year, with total assets of $16.25 billion and shareholder equity of
$104.6 million as at 30 June 2022. A $1,217,500 dividend has been declared by the LGFA
Board for the year ended 30 June 2022 and a dividend notice will be sent to you shortly. The
dividend rate is $0.0487 per paid up share and will be paid to you on Friday 2 September.
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Our Annual General Meeting (AGM) will be held on Wednesday 23 November 2022 in Wellington
(with a virtual attendance option). We will send out a Notice of AGM by Friday 30 September 2022.
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any comments or questions.
Kind regards

Mark Butcher
Chief Executive
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Executive Summary
This Parking Management Plan (the plan) has been developed for Tauranga City Council (TCC) for an area of
central Tauranga shown in Figure 1. The plan provides clear and justified parking management
recommendations for the next six years that will help TCC manage its public parking resources in a way that is
aligned with the councils’ strategic objectives. This work supports the long-term plan for parking which will be
included in the Tauranga City Centre Refresh.

Figure 1: Tauranga Central City Parking Management Plan Study Area
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The development of this plan involved:
•

reviewing related strategic documents such as the Parking Strategy and Regional Mode Shift Plan

•

discussions with key stakeholders such as Tauranga City Mainstreet Organisation, Priority One
and Tauranga Primary School

•

comprehensive data analysis to provide a picture of current parking supply and use

•

developing parking management approaches for the plan area

The scope of this plan covers time limits, priced parking and mobility parking for on-street parking and TCC
managed off-street parking within the plan area. The plan area has been split into six management areas, as
shown in Figure 1, based on land use activities and demand for different types of parking.
In mid-2020, in response to disruption caused by the Covid pandemic, on-street parking in the Tauranga City
Centre was made free of charge but subject to a two-hour time limit. This was intended to be temporary and
be replaced by the recommendations of this plan.
Strategic context
TCC recently adopted the Tauranga Parking Strategy which sets out the national policy direction and how it
relates to parking supply and management in Tauranga. It identifies five strategic outcomes:
•
•
•
•
•

Improving vibrant centres and access to centres
Enabling a multimodal transport system
Enabling a more attractive and compact urban form
Supporting access for all
Ensuring value for money and best use of resources.

The National Policy Statement on Urban Development has required councils to allow for greater density
around town centres and remove minimum parking requirements from local planning rules. The
recommendations outlined in this plan will allow TCC to proactively manage their parking resources in
anticipation of density and increased parking demand.
The City Centre Strategy Refresh is currently being developed and will set out what changes are necessary to
revitalise the Tauranga City Centre. The recommendations in this plan are intended to support these longerterm goals.
Parking supply and use
There are over 5,000 car parking spaces within the plan area, with over 3,000 spaces located on the street and
nearly 2,000 in off-street car parks. These parking spaces are currently managed by a variety of methods,
including parking fees, time limits, leased spaces, residents only parking, and there are almost 1,400
unrestricted spaces. The on-street supply is expected to decrease as space is allocated to support public
transport, cycling and street upgrades.
Key observations from the data analysis of the survey information are:
•
•
•

Parking in the City Centre Core area is highly utilised with several off-street car parks reaching near
100% at peak times.
A large proportion of parking across the plan area is being used for long-stay parking
Unrestricted parking across the plan area is highly utilised during busy times.

Stakeholder input
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During the development of this plan discussions were held with several key stakeholders such as Tauranga City
Mainstreet Organisation, Priority One and Tauranga Primary School. There was overall concern at the decline
of the Tauranga City Centre but divergent views on the cause of this. Some felt that parking was the reason
that the city centre was not performing well. Others acknowledged the need for better alternative transport
options and better management of parking to support access for short-term visitors. Some stated that more
all-day parking was needed as public transport in Tauranga didn’t work for many people. This feedback has
informed the recommendations made in the plan.
Recommendations
The recommendations are separated into short term (0-3 years) and medium term (3-6 years) actions, and
these will support achieving the strategic outcomes in the parking strategy. Improved parking enforcement is
needed to support the recommendations of this plan and ensure that parking is being used for the purposes
that it is intended. TCC is making use of technology to help with this shift and the plan provides further
guidance on this.
Key recommendations are provided in the map below, and a summary of recommendations by management
area are in the table below.

5
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New priced
parking in City
Centre Fringe

Extend ‘no parking on berms’
restriction throughout the
plan area
Implement a programme to
manage car parks public road
used and managed by
adjacent
landowners/occupiers

Transition
residents only car
parks to general
parking

Monitor parking
use to ensure it is
not over-used by
commuters

Retain existing
time limts and add
these new ones

Figure 2: Map of key recommendations
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Type

Summary
On-street priced
parking

Recommendations
• Implement priced parking in City Centre Core and City
Centre Fringe
• Remove all time limits except P5 restrictions.
• Invest returns from on-street parking fees into public realm
improvements

Residential
Fringe

• Retain existing time limits
• Apply new P120 time limits as outlined in Figure 2
• Use mobile LPR camera vehicles to enforce these restrictions

Off-street car
parks

• Amend pricing structure to prioritise short-stay parking and
reflect the cost of providing the parking
• Investigate improving amenity and feelings of safety in
parking buildings

Short Term

Area specific

Recreation
reserve land

• Monitor parking to ensure the land is being used by people
using the recreation reserve not commuters.

Appropriated
On- Street car
parks

• Regularise parking spaces on public land that have been
appropriated by adjacent businesses

Residents only
parking

• Review any formal arrangements establishing the car parks
on First Avenue as ‘residents only car parks’ with the view to
phasing these out

Mobility Parking

• Establish additional mobility car parks in the area between
Durham Street and Cameron Road on Elizabeth Street, and
on St Johns Road and the eastern part of 11th Avenue in the
11th Ave Commercial area

Technology

• Investigate using LPR camera systems linked to Pay By Plate
payments in the large surface off-street car parks.
• Procure another LPR camera mobile enforcement system
• Promote use of parking apps and QR codes

Area wide
parking
management

• New parking meters purchased should be smaller and
cashless
Data collection
and reporting

• Conduct parking occupancy survey 6 months after
implementing changes and annually thereafter.
• Work with parking suppliers to get access to data and
aggregate to provide up to date view of utilisation and
compliance

Parking on berms

• Extend no parking on berms throughout the plan area

7
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Area specific

City Centre Core

• Convert long-stay parking in off-street car parks into shortstay parking, as on-street parking is removed.

Off-street car
parks

• Incrementally adjust pricing of off-street car parks to recover
a greater proportion of parking costs.
• Phase out lease parking.

Plan Area

• Monitor parking occupancy annually and adjust prices to
achieve 85%.
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1

Introduction

This Parking Management Plan (“this plan”) has been developed for Tauranga City Council (TCC) for an area of
the Tauranga City Centre as shown in Figure 1 below. The plan provides clear and justified parking
management recommendations for the next six years that will help TCC manage its public parking resources in
a way that is aligned with the councils’ strategic objectives. The long-term plan for parking will be included in
the Tauranga City Centre Refresh.
TCC recently developed a Parking Strategy that provides guidance on the management of Council-owned and
controlled parking spaces. This plan supports the broader strategic planning framework for Tauranga including
the Regional Mode Shift Plan1. This Parking Management Plan is aligned to direction set in the Parking
Strategy which has five strategic outcomes:
•
•
•
•
•

Improving vibrant centres and access to centres
Enabling a multimodal transport system
Enabling a more attractive and compact urban form
Supporting access for all
Ensuring value for money and best use of resources.

In mid-2020, in response to disruption caused by the Covid pandemic, on-street parking in the Tauranga City
Centre was made free but subject to a two-hour time limit. This was intended to be temporary and be
replaced by the recommendations of this plan.
This plan covers on-street parking and TCC operated off-street parking within the plan area shown in the map
in Figure 1. The plan area has been split into six management areas, as shown in Figure 1, based on land use
activities and demand for different types of parking. A description of each Parking management area is
provided in Table 1-1 below. The scope of the parking covered in these areas are time limits, priced parking
and mobility parking.
Table 1-1: Parking management areas for the Parking Management Plan
Parking Management Area

1

Description

City Centre Core

This is the core commercial area of the city centre and
also includes the University of Waikato Campus. Onstreet pay parking was operating across this area prior to
the 2020 free parking trial. This area also includes all the
public car parking buildings and many of the public offstreet surface level car parks.

City Centre Fringe

This area forms a fringe around the City Centre Core. The
area includes motels/hotels, restaurants, light industry,
offices, the District Court, health services, car sales yards,
and terraced housing / apartment buildings.
On-street parking is currently a mixture of time restricted
and unrestricted parking on-street.

Refer to the Regional Mode Shift Plan: Bay of Plenty at https://www.nzta.govt.nz/assets/resources/keeping-cities-moving/BoP-regional-mode-shift-plans.pdf
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Residential Fringe

This is mostly the residential fringe areas around the
commercial parts of the plan area. It is distinguished from
the other management areas as there is less importance
on providing for short-stay shoppers parking, with the
needs of the residential land uses being more important.
The parking is most unrestricted however there are some
time limits.

School

This covers on-street parking around Tauranga Primary
School. There are special parking restrictions applied to
some of the car parks in this area to specifically provide
for the access requirements of the school.
The analysis in this plan bundles the School Management
Area into the Residential Fringe Management Area as the
characteristics of these areas are comparable.

11th Avenue Commercial

This management area covers a portion of the distinct
commercial hub situated around the intersection of 11th
Avenue and Cameron Road. This commercial area is
remote from the main core commercial area.

Public Recreational Reserves

This area includes the parking in and around Memorial
Park. This is not a land-use activity that is typically
covered by parking management plans because of
different legislative requirements under the Reserves Act
1977. Activities in these reserves are typically planned
through reserve management plans.
However, recommendations are provided for how TCC
might be able to support appropriate use of the
recreation reserves.
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Figure 1: Tauranga City Centre Parking Management Plan Area
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1.1

Methodology

The development of this plan followed the methodology shown below.
1.

2.

3.

4.

Information gathering
o

Collect local projects, plans, policies, and strategies that relate to parking in the plan area,
including District Plan zones and policies.

o

Collect data detailing the supply and use of parking in the plan area. Additional parking
occupancy surveys were undertaken by TCC during the development of the plan.

o

Collect parking infringement data.

o

Site visit to Tauranga to observe parking in the plan area.

Discussions with key stakeholders
o

Meeting with the Tauranga School, Priority One, the city centre strategy project team and
Mainstreet Tauranga to understand their involvement and views on parking in Tauranga
centre.

o

Summarise the issues and points raised by each key stakeholder.

Data Analysis
o

Analysis of various data sources and production of maps and graphs to show parking
supply, parking occupancy, duration of stay, mobility parking coverage, and infringements
for parking within the plan area.

o

Geo-coding individual on-street car parks, off-street facilities, and parking buildings within
the plan area.

o

Evaluation of the resource cost of TCC managed parking in the plan area.

Develop Parking Management Plan
o

Develop parking management approaches in response to the observations shown in the
data analysis and stakeholder meetings.

o

Develop parking management recommendations for short and medium term in the plan
area.
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2

Background Context

There are a variety of elements that affect parking management and need to be considered when developing
a plan. This section provides background context for a range of these including zoning and current land use,
stakeholder feedback, and current parking management methods. We also discuss the current supply of public
parking spaces within the study area and the associated cost to the community of providing this.

2.1

City centre land zoning and activities

The city centre supports a wide range of different land use activities each of which can generate a different
type of parking demand. Understanding these different demands is essential to provide effective parking
management that will meet Tauranga’s strategic outcomes.
The District Plan zones the central area generally from McLean Street in the north, Second Avenue in the
south, Cameron Road in the west, and Devonport Road and The Strand in the east as City Centre Business.
There is Commercial Business zoned land along Cameron Road south of the city centre, as is the land that
supports the businesses around the intersection of Cameron Road and Eleventh Avenue. Outside these
commercially zoned areas the land is zoned for residential uses or is zoned for open space uses. Planned
residential densities in the area range from a minimum 325m2 / dwelling in the Suburban Residential zone,
through a minimum of 50m2 / dwelling in the Commercial zone, to the City Centre zone where there is no limit
on residential density. A map of the land use zoning is included in Appendix A.
The range of activities established in the area are summarised below:
•

•

•

•

Residential: The fringe areas in the northern and southern ends, and mid-section of the study area are
predominantly low- and medium-density housing which is typical of these areas’ Suburban Residential
zoning.
Commercial: There are two clusters of commercial and retail activity – the main city centre area and a
group of shops and businesses around the intersection of Cameron Road and Eleventh Ave. These two
areas have a mix of large format and regular retail, hospitality businesses, light industrial uses,
shopping malls and office buildings.
Education: The University of Waikato Tauranga Campus is in the middle of the city centre and
Tauranga Primary School is situated between Fifth and Sixth Avenue. Note that as University Students
are adults and able to drive and travel on public transport reasonably, much the same as other city
workers and visitors, the university campus is not designated as a “school” zone in this plan.
Public open space: The Tauranga Domain and Robbins Park are in the northern part of the area,
Graham Park and Memorial Park are in the southern part of the area, Glasgow Street Esplanade
Reserve runs along the western edge of the area, and Herries Park and the Waterfront Playground are
located on the western edge of the area.

The variety of different land use activities have different access requirements, so may want parking at different
times and for different durations. Also, the various people using the car parking may value the parking
differently, depending on how flexible they are and on whether they have alternative options they can use for
travelling or accessing the services or activities.
Table 2-1 summarises the main potential public parking users in the city centre study area and provides a
general description of the type of parking they may want.
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Table 2-1: Summary of different parking users in the city centre
Land use

User summary

Typical Parking Demand

Residential

People who live in the city centre
study area and own a car.

Long-term parking including overnight (24/7 access).

Commercial /
Retail

People living outside the city centre
who travel by car for shopping /
services.

Short-term parking with easy access to stores for
shoppers (short-stay parking).

Commercial /
Retail

Delivery – bulk goods

Dedicated loading zones.

Commercial /
Retail

Employees who travel by car to go
to work.

All-day parking for workers (long-stay parking).

Educational

Children going to school and older
students attending university.

Pick-up / drop-off space for students driven by their
parents.
Pick-up / drop-off space for students arriving by
school bus.
All-day, low-cost parking for university students.

All land uses

Mobility impaired people

Dedicated car parking spaces that are appropriately
designed and located in convenient locations. Parking
may be required for longer periods than other users.

All land uses2

Delivery - courier

Dedicated loading zones or standard car parks in
convenient locations.

All land uses3

Trades and Services

If parking is not possible on-site - standard car parks
in convenient locations.

All land uses

Motorbike riders

Bike parking spaces in appropriate locations.

2.2

Public parking supply and current management

Within the study area there are approximately 5,163 public car parks. These include both on and off-street
spaces. The basic makeup of these car parks is summarised in Table 2-2 below. These spaces are subject to
several different restrictions which are discussed later in this section.

2
3

except public open space
except public open space
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Table 2-2: Public car park stock
Proposed
Management
Zone

City Centre
Core

City Centre
Fringe

Residential
Fringe (incl.
School)

11th Ave
Commercial

Total

On-street

906

1,070

692

462

3,130

Off-street

1,577

124

180

0

1,881

Total

2,483

1,194

872

462

5,011

Note: Recreation Reserves are planned and managed by the TCC Parks Team so the car parks in the Recreation Reserve
Zone are not included in this table.

Parking in the city centre is managed by a variety of methods, including parking fees, time limits, leasing
parking, residents only parking, and provision of unrestricted parking. Prior to August 2020, on-street paid
parking was focused around the city centre core area between McLean Street, Second Avenue, Cameron Road,
and the harbour to the east.
In response to the Covid-19 pandemic, TCC trialled a two-hours free parking initiative in the city centre. The
trial began in August 2020 and sought to stimulate economic activity in the city centre. Maps showing the
previous on-street paid parking area and the free parking area are included in Appendix B.
Commissioners, acting in place of TCC’s elected members, decided to end the trial and reinstate paid parking
in February 2022 because there was no compelling evidence to suggest that subsidising parking was
contributing to increased economic activity, and because the parking subsidy was too costly to the
community.
Paying for parking in areas of high demand aligns with the Tauranga Parking Strategy, which recognises:
•
•
•

The high cost to the community in providing free car parking
The opportunity to encourage parking turn over using pay parking
The nature of kerbside space being a public asset, in contrast to car parking which is a private good in
economic terms.

A map showing the current restrictions applying to on-street parking and surface level off-street parking
across the whole plan area is included in Appendix C. A more detailed table listing all the public parking and
the restrictions applying to the parking is also included in a table in Appendix C.

2.2.1 General supply and management observations
Within the plan area there are several different types of parking that are supplied and managed by TCC. This
includes space that is leased, provided with a time limit or managed with a fee, and unrestricted parking. There
are also areas being used informally for parking such as public reserves or berms – an activity which is outside
the intended land use and requires management. In addition, there are indications that areas of public land
have been developed by adjacent businesses to appear as though they are privately owned car parks which
will need to be addressed by TCC.
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Leased, reserved, time limited, and unrestricted parking
Tauranga City Council has a large portfolio of leased parking along with a significant amount of parking that is
either managed for commuters or is unrestricted. Only a proportion of the total parking stock is used
specifically for short-stay users such as shoppers, people accessing other professional services, or other visitors
to the city centre area.
The chart in Figure 2 summarises the amount of, and type of parking provided by TCC in each of the
management areas. This shows that a significant proportion of the public parking stock is effectively
unavailable to short term visitors to the city centre because it is either:
•
•
•

Leased
Managed for long-stay users like commuters by way of a flat fee for all day use, or
Available for long-stay users because of the absence of any restriction on the parking.

This indicates that in circumstances where there is high demand for short-stay parking, there is potential to
convert some of the current supply to short term parking, either by using time limits, or by using hourly rate
pay parking.

Figure 2: Leased, long-stay, and short-stay parking proportions

Use of recreation reserves for non-accessory car parking
Non-accessory parking is car parking that does not support a principal use, such as parking under an
apartment building or shopping centre. Some non-accessory public parking facilities have been established on
land in the plan area gazetted for use as recreational reserve under the Reserves Act 1977. For example, the
Cliff Road car parks are either entirely or partially on recreation reserve land.
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Use of these areas of land for non-accessory car parking is inconsistent with the obligations TCC has with
respect to the Reserves Act4.
There is also information to suggest parking activity in recreation reserves like Memorial Reserve is associated
with commuters who work in the area rather than people visiting and using the reserve. Tauranga City Council
is also obliged under the Reserves Act to manage any parking on land gazetted as recreation reserve for the
purpose of providing access for people to use the reserve rather than for use by commuters working on other
sites5.

Non-accessory
parking on
recreation
reserve land

Non-accessory
parking on an
area of closed
road

Figure 3: Aerial image of Cliff Road car parks with Recreation Reserve highlighted

Car parks on public road used and managed by adjacent landowners / occupiers
There are a significant number of formed car parks, around 90, in the area that are located on public road but
have been developed to appear as though they are privately owned car parks. These seem to be managed by
the adjacent property owners or occupiers, who may also control access to the car parks. Some of these car
parks have signs erected stating the car parks are for customer use only. Examples are shown in Figure 4

Refer to Section 16(8) of the Reserves Act 1977 - When classified under this section, each reserve shall be held and administered for the purpose or purposes for which it is classified and
for no other purpose.
5
Refer to sections 16 and 17 of the Reserves act 1977.
4

21

Item 11.4 - Attachment 1

Page 245

Ordinary Council meeting Attachments

3 October 2022

Tauranga Central City Parking Management Plan
Final

below and a full map showing the location of car parks known to fall into this category is included in Appendix
C.
Some of these car park areas are subject to occupation licenses, e.g., areas of parking on the western end of
Second Avenue that are licensed to the adjacent engineering firms, but many are not regularised in this way.
The parking bylaw does not address this circumstance even though there are issues to do with public access
and private use of public land.

Parking on
Public Street
Managed by
Private Property
Owners /
Occupiers

Figure 4: Example of parking on public streets managed by private property owners / occupiers

Car parking on berms and local purpose reserves
A significant amount of parking activity within the plan area has been occurring on street berms behind the
formed kerb line. Tauranga City Council has been addressing this issue and there have been updates to the
parking bylaw that extend areas subject to the “No Parking Behind Kerb” restriction.
Based on aerial photographs we have estimated the number of cars parked on berms at busy times in each of
the management areas amount to around:
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Management Area

# Cars

City Centre Core

2

City Centre Fringe

83

Residential Fringe

90

School

10

11th Avenue Commercial

65

Total

250

It was also observed that some of the berm parking is also spilling over into an area of local purpose reserve
north of the Dive Crescent Car Park at number 50 Dive Crescent (around 20 cars) – see Figure 5 below. The
local purpose reserve has been set aside for use as passive open space, and there is relatively poor pedestrian
infrastructure serving the site, potentially contributing to safety risks for people parking in this area. Therefore,
this plan recommends TCC does not allow parking on this area.

Informal parking
on local purpose
reserve and berm

Figure 5: Informal parking on local purpose reserve

2.3

Resource cost of parking

The Parking Strategy identifies that the cost of providing public car parking can be substantial and that most
parking spaces in Tauranga are subsidised by ratepayers. Subsidised car parking can be a barrier to reducing
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car dependency and achieving mode shift, which area goals of the Bay of Plenty Regional Mode Shift Plan 6
and are one of the challenges being addressed by the parking strategy7. One of the important measures in
terms of mode shift is the cost of public transport compared to parking, because where all day parking fees
are comparable or cheaper than public transport fares there is limited incentive for people to choose the bus
over a private car for their local trips. Within the Tauranga urban area, a standard bus fare is $3.40 one way, so
$6.80 for a round trip.
The strategy also notes that information on the cost of supplying parking can provide insights on whether
current parking fees are covering the costs of supplying the parking, and whether parking is the best of use
the space.
The resource cost of a car park is the cost of providing a parking space, and is comprised of the land cost,
maintenance cost, and enforcement costs. This section discusses the results of an assessment of the resource
cost of parking in different parts of the plan area across different types of parking – surface level off-street
parking, parking in a five-level building format, and on-street parking. It identifies the cost of providing
different types of parking spaces, on a daily basis, in different areas of the city centre. It also demonstrates the
aggregate cost to TCC of providing this parking.
More details on how the resource cost calculation was conducted are included in Appendix D.

2.3.1 Daily and annual cost of providing parking
The results of this assessment in terms of a daily cost of providing a parking space are summarised in Figure 6
below.
This provides a point of reference for valuing on-street car parking in terms of accommodating the parking in
an alternative off-street location, or in terms of comparing the value of the car park relative to private parking
resources. It also provides a reference point to assess the relative level of parking fees against the cost to the
community of providing car parking in an area.

Refer to section 10.3 of the Regional Mode Shift Plan: Bay of Plenty, September 2020: . https://www.nzta.govt.nz/assets/resources/keeping-cities-moving/BoP-regional-mode-shiftplans.pdf
7
Refer to section 6.4 of the Tauranga Parking Strategy: https://www.tauranga.govt.nz/Portals/0/data/council/strategies/files/parking-strategy/parking-strategy.pdf
6
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Resource Costs / Carparking Space / Day
$20

$19.70

$18
$16
$14
$11.40

$12

$12.00
$10.80

$10.00

$9.50

$10
$8.40
$8

$8.20
$7.20

$7.90
$6.60
$5.90

$6
$4
$2
$City Centre Core

City Centre Fringe
Surface

Residential Fringe

Building

11th Ave Shops

On-street

Figure 6: Resource cost / car park space / day by management area and parking format
As well as providing a point of reference, the chart in Figure 6 shows interesting patterns with respect to the
format parking is provided in and its relative cost in different areas. For example:
•

•

In most of the plan area, the cost to provide off-street surface car parking is greater than the cost to
provide parking in a building format, which in turn is greater than the cost to provide on-street car
parking. However, in the City Centre Core area the cost to provide parking in a building is the least
costly format.
Off-street surface car parks are much more expensive to provide than on-street car parks or parking
buildings in the City Centre Core as well as any form of parking in the rest of the plan area.

These patterns reflect the relatively high cost of land in the City Centre Core area and imply that from a
resource allocation perspective, provision of surface level off-street parking in the City Centre Core area is very
costly, and the provision of on-street car parking in the City Centre Core area is more costly than providing it
in a building format.
The monthly and annual cost of providing parking in the different formats is summarised in the following
table. This provides an indication of the fees needed to recover the cost of providing a car park.
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Car park
Format
Surface
City Centre Core

City Centre Fringe

Residential Fringe

11th Ave
Commercial

Monthly Cost /
Car Park
$600

Annual Cost /
Car Park
$7,201

Building

$303

$3,642

On street

$346

$4,155

Surface

$364

$4,369

Building

$256

$3,075

On street

$220

$2,638

Surface

$329

$3,951

Building

$249

$2,992

On street

$201

$2,414

Surface

$287

$3,452

Building

$241

$2,892

On street

$179

$2,146

2.3.2 Aggregate resource cost of parking
Using the assessed cost per car parking space in different areas, it is possible to calculate a general overall cost
to the community of providing the current parking stock within the management area. The results of this
assessment are summarised in Table 2-3 and Figure 7 below.
Table 2-3: Aggregate Resource Cost Summary
Parking Area

City Centre Core
City Centre Fringe
Res Fringe (incl. School)
11th Ave Commercial
Grand Total

Number of
Parking
Spaces
2483
1194
872
462
5,011

Daily Cost / Car
Park
$9.98 - $19.73
$7.23 - $11.97
$6.61 - $10.83
$5.88

Aggregate
Resource Cost
(daily)
$30,765
$9,218
$6,525
$2,717
$49,224

Aggregate
Resource Cost
(annual)
$11,229,048
$3,364,538
$2,381,654
$991,614
$17,966,854

The blue bars in Figure 7 show the overall community resource investment in public parking, and the orange
dots show the overall number of car park spaces the investment produces. The difference between the cost of
resources and the number of car parks in the respective areas is an effect of both the parking format and the
different land values, with less expensive land resulting in lower resource costs, parking buildings reducing the
land requirement for each car park, and on-street car parking using less land for access and manoeuvring than
other parking formats.
For example, the chart shows that it is much more resource efficient to provide car parks in a building format
in the City Centre Core area and is relatively resource efficient to provide on-street car parks in the City Centre
Fringe, Residential Fringe, and the 11th Avenue Commercial areas.
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Aggregate Parking Resource Costs
$14,000

1400
$11,988
1200
$10,313

$10,000

1000
$8,463
$7,733

$8,000

800

$6,000

600
$4,577

$4,000

400
$2,717

$2,000

$1,949

$1,484

Number of Parking Spaces

Resource Cost / Day (365 Days)

$12,000

200

$-

0
Surface

On-street

City Centre Fringe

Surface

On-street

Residential Fringe
(including Tauranga
Primary School)

Buildings

Surface

On-street

City Centre Core

On-street
11th Ave
Commercial

Figure 7: Aggregate parking resource cost per day

2.3.3 Resource cost vs. cost recovery
The overall cost of providing parking can be considered against costs being recovered from parking fees and
leases, which in combination and prior to the free parking trial was around $4,000,000 per year8. This indicates
that, in terms of the value of resources the community is investing in car parking over the whole plan area,
around 22% was being recovered prior to the free parking trial. If we consider this against the smaller area of
the City Centre Core and City Centre Fringe, this amounts to around 27% of the costs for parking provision in
these areas being recovered.
The difference between the cost of resources the community is investing in parking, e.g., the cost of land,
construction and maintenance, and staff, and the costs recovered from users through parking fees has a
variety of implications. Below are some of the impacts of having a cost of providing parking that exceeds the
revenue generated from the use of the public resource:

8

1.

Subsidy for car drivers: It is a measure of a significant subsidy for car drivers that incentivises the use
of private car for trips that might otherwise be taken using other modes.

2.

Poor return on investment: It represents a poor return on investment for the community, and the
resources might otherwise be used for more valuable investments, e.g., activities that provide for
public good, rather than private good, such as public realm improvements, or for activities that reduce
car-dependency such as walking, cycling and public transport improvements.

Based on our interpretation of figures provided by Tauranga City Council staff.
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3.

Exaggerating demand: It demonstrates that current car parking demand levels in the city centre are
exaggerated, as they reflect demand for a heavily subsidised resource. If alternative access options are
available, it is expected that car parking demand would reduce significantly if the parking fees more
closely reflected the cost of providing parking.

4.

Inefficient land allocation: From a land use efficiency perspective, there is likely to be too much land
allocated to providing public parking in the city centre, and this over-allocation of public land to
provide for what is a private good may be constraining TCC’s ability to provide the desired activities
that have a higher public good component, e.g., public realm amenity improvements, public transport
infrastructure improvements, and walking and cycling level of service improvements.

2.3.4 Hypothetical cost recovery fee structure
Considering the difference between the resource cost of provision and the returns from the parking resource,
a scenario was investigated where the parking fee regime in place might generate revenue sufficient to cover
the cost of provision. This provides a general picture of the parking fee levels, the extent of pay parking areas,
and the utilisation levels that would be needed to cover the cost to the community of providing parking in the
study area.
Hypothetically, based on an assumption of paid parking operating for nine hours per day except weekends
and public holidays, and utilisation levels of 65% on average throughout the period paid parking was
operating, fees would need to be set at around the following levels to cover the cost of the resources currently
invested in public parking:
Table 2-4: Hypothetical resource cost recovery fee structure
Parking Area

Typology
Building

Fee /
hour
$2.50

#Parking
Spaces
1148

Daily
Revenue
$16,790

Annual
Revenue
$4,197,375

City Centre Core

Surface

$5.00

429

$12,548

$3,137,063

On-street

$4.00

906

$21,200

$5,300,100

Surface

$2.00

124

$1,451

$362,700

On-street

$2.00

1070

$12,519

$3,129,750

Residential Fringe*

On-street

$1.00

692

$4,048

$1,012,050

11th Ave Commercial

On-street

$1.00

462

$2,703

$675,675

4831

$71,259

$17,814,713

City Centre Fringe

Total

NB: The Cliff Road off-street car parks have been excluded from this calculation.

The cost to the community of establishing and maintaining car parking is not the only consideration when
deciding on appropriate parking management measures, but it provides a useful baseline to assess the
proportion of car park use that occurs because of free or subsidised parking, and if specific parking
management measures are justified. Therefore, the resource cost evaluation informs the discussion in Section
0 and the recommendations in Section 5 below.

2.4

Stakeholder feedback

City centre development and parking was discussed with representatives of two stakeholder organisations –
Tauranga City Mainstreet Organisation, Priority One, and Tauranga Primary School. These stakeholder groups
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were engaged because of their broad representation and their ongoing interaction with TCC on parking
management initiatives.
The main points raised in the discussions are summarised below and arranged under general topic headings:
City centre activity
•
There has been a downturn in activity in the city centre due to Covid, lack of tourists and out of town
mall development.
•
However, there is a lot of development currently happening and this has stimulated some positivity
about the future.
Long term commuter vs. short term shopper parking
•
The downturn in commercial activity has left car parks available for workers, and now there are too
many commuters taking up parking spaces that could be used by shoppers.
•
There is a need for more effective monitoring and enforcement to prevent long-stay parking in onstreet car parks.
•
There is disappointment around the failure of the Transport Hub that would have created options to
increase the amount of short stay parking in the existing council parking buildings.
•
Students often park at Memorial Park, and parking in residential streets is seen as a problem.
Access to the city centre and parking fees
•
A balance between paid parking and economic viability of the city centre is needed - balancing
economic viability with turnover and adjusting this over time to avoid bad impacts.
•
There is a need to consider overall access rather than just parking - public transport is not currently a
viable alternative to the private car.
•
Parking fees need to be aligned with high quality public transport - frequent and reliable buses.
•
Free parking is seen as a lever so the city centre retail can compete with out-of-town shopping malls.
•
The two-hour time limit for on-street parking in the city centre is a problem – some customers want to
stay longer but can’t.
•
Parking revenues should stay with parking to improve the service, and any profits should be reinvested into the city centre public realm.
Parking supply / availability
•
Parking is slowly being removed but not replaced.
•
Real time information signs work well for directing people to available parking spaces, and more are
needed.
•
Parking close to the centres of activity is important – people still want to park outside the place they
are going.
•
Adequate mobility parking needs to be provided.
•
Adjusting how parking is provided could create additional kerbside space for amenity improvements –
e.g., Napier and their linear park.
•
Parking constraints are seen as a barrier to attracting new businesses to the area.
•
A better outcome could be achieved if there were a greater number of smaller car parking buildings
spread more widely around the edges of the city centre.
•
Parking was seen as a very important part of the transport system in Tauranga, especially due to low
development densities not supporting public transport, and the geography and the presence of the
port making alternative modes difficult.
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•

Revitalisation in the city centre will require consideration of appropriate parking facilities for
commercial vehicle such as trades and utilities.

Parking Management
•
There is a need to improve the parking use information base through council doing more regular
surveys – this can inform better decision making by TCC.
•
Tauranga City Council could divest its off-street parking assets and be involved with on-street parking
only – ratepayers’ money shouldn’t be spent on things the private sector can do more efficiently.
•
There is potential for parking smartphone apps to enable more flexibility in parking management and
more efficient use of parking resources.
•
There is an unpleasant environment in the existing parking buildings so people do not feel safe and
do not use them as much as they might if there was a nicer environment.
•
Stakeholders indicated that there seems to be confusion about what is happening with parking and
that the public see parking as an issue that is unsurmountable and continues to get worse in the city
centre.
Converting street space for other uses
•
There were differing views about the balance between land used for parking and land used for other
amenities. Some feedback suggested that the city centre needs amenity improvements but also needs
to maintain the parking stock and that the current balance between parking and other space in the
public realm seems appropriate. Others felt that the dominance of cars creates unpleasant street
environments.
•
The participants were sceptical that the current government vision to have more trips use alternative
modes would happen in the short or medium term.
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3

Use of Public Parking in the Plan Area

To ensure that the recommendations in this plan have the best chance at being effective in achieving the goals
outlined in the strategy, it is important to understand how public parking is being used in the plan area. This
section details the collection, analysis, and interpretation of information about parking in and around
Tauranga’s central city.

3.1

Information collection and limitations

Data about the way public parking is used in the plan area was gathered from the following sources:
•
•
•
•
•

Parking ticketing data for the off-street pay parking facilities
Payment machine data from on-street car parks
Vehicle mounted camera survey data from May 6, 7 and 8 2022 - ≈three hourly intervals
Vehicle mounted camera survey data from March 15, 16 and 17 2021 - ≈two and a half hourly
intervals (part of the plan area)
2018 survey data reported on in WSP Opus Parking Occupancy and Survey Reports – May and
November9

The data used in this management plan was collated from several sources, including one-off surveys and aerial
photographs. This provides a challenge when creating a reliable data picture, as the information comes from
snapshots, from which we can only infer patterns. Furthermore, the Covid 19 pandemic influences how and
when people travel, so this needs to be considered when interpreting the survey data collected during the
pandemic.
No specific mobility parking or motorbike parking usage data was available, meaning no insight can be
gleaned about the occupancy, use across day, or use across the week of this type of parking.
A note on parking surveys: The occupancy information calculated from the license plate surveys
conducted in March and May 2022 is inconsistent with feedback provided from stakeholders and council
staff that there are not many unoccupied car parks in the City Centre Core and Fringe at peak times. The
underestimation of occupancy may be due to several factors, including:
• Car parks that are unavailable for public use, such as in areas under construction
• Obscured license plates (either by street furniture or other vehicles) not being counted
MRCagney are happy to discuss this issue with TCC as accurate data is essential for proper analysis to take
place.
While this collated data provides as complete a picture of the parking behaviour and patterns as is possible
given the available information, it should be used in conjunction with ongoing data collection to ensure that
parking in Tauranga city centre is managed appropriately.

9

Tauranga City Council Traffic Data Collection: Parking Occupancy and Turnover Report, May 2018, WSP/OPUS dated 22/02/2019
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3.2

Weekday use across the plan area

Figure 8 shows the busiest weekday time for the public parking in the four main management areas, based on
the May 2022 survey.
Notably, the survey data shows that at the busiest time in the City Centre Core, around 80% of the public car
parks were occupied. In other words, there were around 530 vacant car parks during busy times. This can be
compared to the level of use quoted by the parking strategy as being ideal in commercial centre locations, of
85% utilisation, or around 260 vacant car parks.
This demonstrates that if spatial considerations set aside, at busy times the car parking resource in the City
Centre Core area is generally well utilised and there is capacity to accommodate additional short-stay visitor
parking, even if the level of leased parking is also maintained.
A similar observation can be made about the City Centre Fringe area. This area experiences higher use during
busy time, with close to 80% of car parks full. This level of use is approaching the parking strategy ideal level,
and there would be around 250 car parks vacant during busy periods.
It is noted that the utilisation levels observed during the May 2022 survey for the City Centre Core area are
around 10% lower than the utilisation levels reported in the WSP/OPUS May 2018 parking occupancy report.
This difference is unexpected because at the time the May 2018 occupancy survey was done paid parking was
still in place for on-street parking in the City Centre Core area, but during the May 2022 survey on-street
parking was free.
Note - excludes all leased parking

Figure 8: Maximum occupancy of public parking across the plan area*
*Off-street data is from the 2022 aerial, not separated by period, for all off-street car parks except Spring
Street and Elizabeth Street.
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Figure 9 shows the average occupancy of on-street parking across the six total surveyed periods on Thursday
5th and Friday 6th May 2022, for each of the four management areas. Of the four management areas, the 11th
Avenue Shops had the lowest level of use across the three periods with an average of around 50% of car parks
used. The City Centre Core had the highest average occupancy of about 60%.
The average occupancy levels for the City Centre Core area observed during the May 2022 survey are
comparable to the occupancy levels reported in the WSP/OPUS May 2018 parking occupancy report.

Figure 9: Average weekday occupancy of on-street parking across four management areas*
*Off-street data is from the 2022 aerial, not separated by period, for all off-street car parks except Spring Street and
Elizabeth Street.

Generally, when the peak occupancy is compared to the average occupancy it shows the difference between
the two is relatively small, with the 11th Ave Commercial area having the largest difference. It is typical in
centres with high levels of retail activity to see a pronounced peak shopping period between 11:00 am and
2:00 pm, exhibiting higher utilisation from an influx of short-stay retail visitors through the middle of the day.
However, the relatively small difference between the peak and average occupancy in the plan area indicates a
high proportion of long-stay car parking is occurring, subduing the midday peak that might otherwise be
shown.

3.3

Weekday spatial variation

This section investigates the spatial variations in parking use within the management plan area in more detail,
relating this to the four management areas shown in Figure 1.
The chart in Figure 10 below shows the use of car parks averaged across two weekdays from the 2022 survey
for each survey period and for each management area. Except for the City Centre Fringe area, the period with
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the highest utilisation was 11.00am-2.00pm for all the management areas, with lower utilisation either side of
this. In the case of the City Centre Fringe area, the earlier 8.00am-10.00am survey period showed levels of use
as high as the 11.00am-2.00pm. Relatively high occupancy levels between 8:00 am and 10:00 am indicate a
high proportion of long-stay parking activity where employees will arrive early and stay all day, or where
residents are parking on the street during the day. This long-stay parking activity can be considered a
‘baseload’ of parking activity, with retail and other short-stay activity happening on top of the baseload.
Figure 10 also shows that the Residential Fringe and City Centre Core areas experience relatively high demand
early in the day and this demand is sustained through until around 2:30 pm, indicating relatively high levels of
long-stay parking. This is not surprising given the higher proportion of car parks without restrictions in the
Residential Fringe area, making these car parks attractive to commuters who are willing to walk to their
workplace.
Conversely, a characteristic shopper’s peak period of use can be seen for the 11th Ave Commercial area
between 11.00am and 2.00pm.

Figure 10: Average weekday parking space occupancy by area and time*
*Contains off-street parking data for Elizabeth Street Parking Building and Spring Street Parking Building for all periods.
Off-street occupancy data for other areas are taken from the aerial, and only contribute to the 11am – 2pm survey period.

It is also useful to consider the relative parking volumes, and the chart in Figure 11 shows this relationship.
Whilst this data confirms the early demand over much of the area, it also shows the relative scale of parking
activity occurring during the day.
Note, this survey information does not tell us about the turnover rate of the parking in the different
management areas and only represents a snapshot in time. For example, we are unable to determine within
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each survey period how many vehicles have parked in each management area across the two-hour period, we
can only determine how many were parked there at the time of the survey.

Figure 11: Weekday parking volumes by area
The following table shows the on-street car park vacancy levels at average peak times on a weekday,
indicating that the parking resource across the whole area are well utilised, with the parking resource within
the City Centre Core area being the most highly utilised.
Table 3-1: Commercial areas on-street parking availability levels during peak recorded period
Precinct
City Centre Core

Total Car Parks

Peak Period Vacant
Car Parks

Proportion of
Vacant Car Parks

838

164

20%

1005

238

23%

11th Ave
Commercial

477

164

Residential Fringe

795

231

29%

3,115

797

26%

City Centre Fringe

Total

34%

In general terms, the utilisation charts indicate that on a typical weekday over 50% of the public parking
resource in the area is used for long-stay parking activity, around 10% is used for short-stay parking activity
(with this short-stay activity peaking between 10:00 am and 2:00 pm), and at least 30% of the overall public car
park stock is available at any time during the day.
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Peak and average parking use across the plan area are illustrated in Figure 12 and Figure 13 respectively. The
areas of parking coloured red represent car parking that is utilised above the ideal level (>90%), whereas those
in orange represent an optimum parking utilisation of 80% - 90%.

3.3.1 Public parking patterns
Several distinct patterns of parking activity show up in the peak period map. Below are some notable patterns
from the analysis of the survey data:
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

•

The 2022 survey data indicates that the on-street parking resource in the City Centre Core area is
generally well utilised (up to 80%-90% occupied) during busy periods.
The Elizabeth Street and Spring Street Car Parks are under-used (40%-60% occupied) during busy
periods.
Unrestricted parking across the plan area is highly utilised during busy times, with many areas being
over-used (90%-100%), e.g., Park St, Cliff Rd, Selwyn St, Glasgow St, Edgecumbe Rd, and most of the
Avenues. This can be seen in Figure 14 below, which shows the peak use and time limited car parks
The Masonic, TV3 Rooftop, and Dive Crescent off-street car parks are over used during peak times.
The Northern Reclamation and Hamilton Street North Side off-street car parks are used at ideal levels
(80%-90%) during busy periods.
The time restricted car parks around the 11th Ave Commercial area are well used during busy times.
The average occupancy map shows that some of the unrestricted parking in the Avenues is full all day,
and there is sustained relatively high demand in the Cliff Road / Park Street area even outside busy
times. This indicates a high proportion of commuter parking in these areas, or a high proportion of
residents parking on the street.
The Elizabeth Street and Spring Street parking buildings are under-used when considered over the
period of the day.
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Figure 12: Weekday parking peak period occupancy
*Note: Utilisation figures exclude leased parking areas.
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Figure 13: Weekday average occupancy
*Note: Utilisation figures exclude leased parking areas.
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Figure 14: Weekday parking peak period occupancy / Time Limits
*Note: Utilisation figures exclude leased parking areas.
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3.3.2 Use of berm and recreation reserve for parking
As well as the surveyed parking activity there is a significant amount of parking occurring on berms within the
study area. Observations from aerial photographs indicate that the number of cars parked on the berm during
the middle of the day is around 250. These are distributed mostly in the southern part of the plan area, around
the Glasgow Street area, and on the northern part of Dive Crescent. A map showing the distribution of berm
parking observed from aerial photography is included in Appendix C.
As mentioned in Section 2.2.1, some non-accessory public parking facilities have been established on
recreational reserve land at the Cliff Road car parks. In total, around 130 car parks are on reserve land in this
area. An estimate of the utilisation levels of these car parks indicates that they are around 80% occupied at
busy times, which means there are around 100 cars parked in these spaces.
Based on observation made during a visit to the areas, some commuter parking (around 60 cars) is likely to be
occurring on the northern part of Memorial Park.
As also mentioned in Section 2.2.1, there are around 20 cars parked during busy times on the local purpose
(passive open space) reserve at number 50 Dive Crescent. These cars sit behind the cars parked on the berm in
this location.
If these car parks are to be removed from the Dive Crescent Car Parks, and berm parking is prohibited
throughout the plan area, and the TCC Reserves Management Team decide to manage the parking in
Memorial Reserve to ensure car parks are available for park users, and TCC decides to prevent parking
occurring on the passive open space reserve at number 50 Dive Crescent, then the demand equivalent to
around 430 car parks would be re-distributed within the surrounding area or across different travel modes,
and more people may choose to live proximate to the area to avoid the need to travel by car. It is important
to note that this type of demand can be redistributed across the existing car parking stock but in a more
efficient way, e.g., through carpooling or car sharing, or it can be redistributed in a way that does not involve
the need for car parks, e.g., through people changing their travels habits to use public transport or walking or
cycling, and changing travel habits can be assisted by people choosing to change where they live or work.
To help visualise the scale of redistributed demand the following charts in Figure 15 and Figure 16 have been
produced.
This additional pressure on the public parking resources in the plan area implies that if the berm and reserve
parking matters were addressed without changing or implementing other parking management measures
such as implementing time limits or parking fees, parking may be over-used in some of the area and a lack of
availability may result in significant levels of non-compliance with parking restrictions, and a poor parking
experience for the parking users.
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Figure 15: Imagined redistribution of parking activity

Figure 16: Imagined changes in occupancy levels
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3.4

Weekday use of off-street car parks

Most of the off-street car parks in the plan area are located in the City Centre Core area, where over 60% of
the public parking (1,577 car parks) is provided off-street, across three parking buildings and seven surface car
parks. There are two surface car parks providing a total of 125 car parks in the City Centre Fringe area at 4 and
26 Dive Crescent, and the Cliff Road car parks are the only other off-street car parks in the plan area. Overall,
there are around 1,880 off-street car parks and around 660 of these (35%) are leased and are therefore not
available for general public use.
Figure 18 and Figure 17 below show the peak use levels and the parking volumes respectively of the off-street
car parks that have car parks available for general use, i.e., non-leased car parks. These charts show occupancy
of the parking facilities on October 20th, 2020 (Tuesday). This date was chosen because aerial photography form
around midday was available for that day so occupancy levels in the off-street surface car parks could be observed.

Figure 17: Off-street parking facility - peak period occupancy
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Figure 18: Parking facility - number of parked cars at busy times

3.4.1 Weekday duration of stay
Although there are limitations on the conclusions that can be drawn from the survey data in terms of overall
duration of stay across the off-street parking resource, an indication of the proportion of parking users who
are long-stay users can be seen for the Elizabeth and Spring Street parking buildings. The chart included in
Figure 19 below shows this in terms of the relative number of long-stay users versus the number of short stay
users arriving at different times of the day for the Elizabeth Street Car Park. A very similar pattern can be seen
with the Spring Street Car Park, with long stay users arriving earlier in the day, and a relatively small proportion
of short-stay users entering the car parks.
Figure 20 shows the overall proportion of long stay parking occurring in both the Elizabeth Street and Spring
Street parking buildings.
This information indicates that during busy times, of the 592 car parks available for casual use across the two
car park buildings, around 325 are being used for long-stay parking (>4hrs), around 140 are being used for
short stay parking, and around 130 car parks are vacant.
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Figure 19: Proportion of long-stay parking activity by time of day - Elizabeth Street Parking Building

Figure 20: Daily proportion of long-stay parking activity - Parking Buildings

3.5

Motorbike parking

Tauranga City provides on-street parking for motorbikes, identified either by a parking restriction pole or
yellow markings on the ground. General parking spaces can also be used by motorcycles. Dedicated
motorcycle parking provides encourages travel by the more space efficient mode and can also be placed in
leftover kerbside space not large enough for car parking.
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The occupancy survey did not capture data about the motorbike parking; therefore, no conclusions can be
reached about the occupancy of the motorbike parking.
The highest concentration of on-street motorbike parking is in the City Centre Core area, with few dedicated
motorcycle parks outside this management zone. A map showing the distribution of motorbike parking is
included in Appendix C.

3.6

Infringements

Infringements can be an indication of the suitability of the parking management measures in an area. High
levels of infringement can, for example, indicate time limits are too short for the activities that visitors want to
do, or in the case of pay and display parking can indicate the impracticalities of having to estimate the amount
of time needed to undertake activities.
In the case of Tauranga City Centre, infringement information shows that the number of infringement tickets
issued per year more than doubled between 2019 and 2021 (refer to Figure 21 below). Most of this increase is
due to overstaying a time limit, which is consistent with the implementation of a two-hour time limit on car
parking in the City Centre Core and City Centre Fringe areas at the same time paid parking was removed from
these areas.
Although the increase in infringement may indicate an overly restrictive time limit for visitors to businesses in
the area, it may also indicate employees are using the on-street parking in the area for long-stay parking,
notwithstanding that they may receive an infringement ticket from time to time, because the cost of the
tickets is comparable or less costly than paying for parking in a long-stay parking facility. Figure 23 below
shows that on the dates surveyed (5 th May-7th May 2022) up to 250 cars were seen parked in the City Centre
Core area over a span of more than two hours on the same day. This is consistent with commentary from
businesses in the area.

Figure 21: Parking infringement comparison
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Figure 22: Hotspots of infringements
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Violations of 2 hour parking
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0
Thursday

Friday

Cars at multiple locations (<2 hours)

Cars at multiple locations (>=2 hours)

Saturday
Cars at a single location (>=2 hours)

Figure 23: Number of cars surveyed in the CBD at risk of violating two hour parking limit

3.7

Mobility parking

The Tauranga City Infrastructure Development Code (DS-4 Transportation Network) refers to Australian
Standard 2890.1 (AS 2890.1) for the design of parking spaces. The New Zealand Building Code Clause D1
Access Routes also refers to the New Zealand Standard 4121 (NZS 4121) for guidance on acceptable solutions
for mobility car parks. NZS 4121 states, “where car parking is provided by the local authority and not by the
building owner then the required spaces shall be near the site or building and shall be connected to the site or
building by an accessible route”. Table 3-2 provides guidance from NZS 4121 on the number of mobility car
parks to provide.
Table 3-2: Accessible car park requirements
Total Number of Car Parks

Number of Accessible Car Park Spaces

1-20

Not less than 1

21-50

Not less than 2

For every additional 50 car parks or part of a car
park

Not less than 1

Approximately 65 mobility parking spaces are provided within the study area public car parking stock. Mobility
parking spaces are supplied at both on- and off-street locations. If the above standard is applied to all TCC
provided car parks in these areas, around 104 mobility car parks would be needed. However, the NZS 4121
standard appears to be applicable to ancillary parking provided by a local authority, rather than general on-
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street parking. Furthermore, many premises in the plan area provide on-site parking that also includes mobility
parking.

48

Item 11.4 - Attachment 1

Page 272

Ordinary Council meeting Attachments

3 October 2022

Tauranga Central City Parking Management Plan
Final

To assess the existing public mobility parking coverage, general proximity to activities in the plan area was
assessed.
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Figure 24 shows a map of this assessment, with 75 metres used as a measure of convenience for mobility car
park users.
This map shows some gaps in the mobility parking coverage, for Example, between Durham Street and
Cameron Road on Elizabeth Street, and on St Johns Road and the eastern part of 11th Avenue in the 11th Ave
Commercial area.
Gaps in coverage shown in this type of map may not be significant if private accessory car parking in the area
provide mobility car parks. However, if in the coverage gaps there are commercial or community activities that
do not have on-site parking, then the provision of mobility car parking to fill the gaps may be appropriate.

50

Item 11.4 - Attachment 1

Page 274

Ordinary Council meeting Attachments

3 October 2022

Tauranga Central City Parking Management Plan
Final

Figure 24: Mobility parking coverage

51

Item 11.4 - Attachment 1

Page 275

Ordinary Council meeting Attachments

3 October 2022

Tauranga Central City Parking Management Plan
Final

3.8

Weekend use of car parking

The map in Figure 25 illustrates the parking utilisation levels observed during the May 2022 survey of the area
(Saturday 7 May). This shows a relatively low demand for car parks across the area, and no issues in terms of
over-use of car parking in any of the areas.
Overall, there is plenty of available parking in plan area in the weekends. The parking buildings in the City
Centre Core area seem to be poorly used during the weekends. This could be seen as an opportunity to
encourage people to use the parking buildings to free up availability within the on-street parking resources so
that these can be used for other activities, e.g., markets or festival etc.
Figure 26 and Figure 25 show the level of use of the parking buildings during Saturday 7 May 2022. These
show comparable levels of low occupancy, but also show a clear midday shoppers’ peak period of occupancy
between around 10.00am and 2.00pm. This midday shoppers peak indicates a relatively high proportion of
short-stay parking on weekends when considered against the weekday parking activity in the parking
buildings (refer to section 3.4.1), where a much higher proportion of car parks are being used for long stay
parking.
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Figure 25: Weekend peak period parking occupancy
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Figure 26: Elizabeth Off street Parking Buildings Weekend Use Profile
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4

Applying the Strategy to the plan area

This section examines how the direction and management options from the parking strategy could be applied
to the plan area. The strategy identifies five core outcomes which provide the basis for this plan:
•
•
•
•
•

Improving vibrant centres and access to centres
Enabling a multimodal transport system
Enabling a more attractive and compact urban form
Supporting access for all
Ensuring value for money and best use of resources.

This section discusses how the strategy can be applied to the plan area across the following aspects:
•
•
•
•

Occupancy and turnover within the parking management areas
Commentary on how informal parking could be addressed (recreational reserves, berms, and
appropriated public land)
Managing special typologies such as mobility parking or allocated residential parking spaces
Implementation including monitoring and enforcement, parking technology and data collection.

The commentary in this section is intended to provide context and support the recommendations made in
section 5.

4.1

Managing parking occupancy and turnover in parking
management areas

The parking strategy promotes an 85% occupancy level for public car parks in the city centre (commercial
area), so that car parks are well used but car drivers can find a space relatively easily. This level of availability
helps to reduce congestion, provided it is distributed across the public parking resources in the area. Refer to
section 7.1 of the parking strategy for explanation on this aspect.
The parking strategy also prioritises short-stay parking, e.g., for visitors and business customers, over long-stay
parking for workers or residents throughout the plan area. Methods for prioritising short-stay parking include
implementing time limits or pricing parking at a level that achieves good turnover of vehicles. Pricing parking
is a more effective tool to achieve parking turnover than a rigid time limit. This is because it allows the user
flexibility and reduces the chance of a parking infringement which can be a negative experience of the visit.
The context outlined in section 2 and the observations made in section 3 indicate that:
•
•
•
•
•

Use of the car parks in the commercial parts of the plan area, i.e., the City Centre Core, City Centre
Fringe and 11th Ave Commercial does not exceed 85% during busy times.
There is a large proportion of long-stay parking occurring across the plan area, with a relatively small
proportion of the parking stock being used for short-stay parking.
There are hot-spots of high parking use, many of these extending throughout the day, that generally
align with the unrestricted parking resources in the plan area.
The car parking buildings and Devonport Road off-street car park are under-used, and the Dive
Crescent, Masonic, and TV3 Rooftop off-street car parks are over-used.
Providing off-street surface car parking in the City Centre Core area is very costly for the community.
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•

•

There is a significant amount of parking occurring on berms and in reserves, and if parking in these
areas is prevented the flow-on effect will likely be to increase parking use of the formal car parks in
the area.
Even ignoring the effect of the free parking trial in the City Centre Core area, a relatively small
proportion of the cost of providing car parking in the plan area is being recovered through user fees.

This situation implies an approach of prioritising on-street parking in the commercial areas through hourly
fees would be prudent. Fees for long-stay parking users should also cover the cost of providing the car parks,
for example, any leased parking rates should be set at a cost recovery level, which is higher than the current
level of fees. Fees for commuter parking in the Residential Fringe area can also be considered, albeit that
these should be set lower than the long-stay parking fees for the commercial areas to reflect the lower
resource cost of providing these car parks, and the less convenient location.
This approach is supported when the outcomes of the parking strategy are considered (refer to section 5 of
the parking strategy), e.g., to support mode shift and investment in public transport and active mode
infrastructure, and to make sure that council parking fees cover the cost of providing parking.
These management measures would encourage changes in how people travel to the City Centre to encourage
more efficient use of the existing parking resources, e.g., through carpooling or car sharing, and to reduce the
need for car parks through people choosing different modes of travel like public transport or walking or
cycling. The measures would also promote the land use changes needed to achieve the broader objectives of
the community to create denser and more walkable urban environments, as people choose to change where
they are living or working so that alternative modes of transport are accessible to them.

4.1.1 City Centre Core
The on-street parking resources in these areas tend to be perceived as the most convenient for visitors as they
are located immediately outside the premises people want to visit, and the survey information shows that offstreet parking resources available for short-stay use are less well utilised than the on-street parking resources
in these areas.
Given the convenience value of the on-street car parks in this area on-street parking should be priced, and the
price should be set at a higher rate than the off-street car parks in the area. An incremental pricing system
where visitors pay a low price for the first hour, but comparatively more for additional hours will also
encourage turnover of users as well as maintaining availability.
For example, if on-street car parking is priced at $3.00/hour for the first two hours and $5.00/hour for
subsequent time (with no time limit), then off-street parking could be priced at $1.50/hour for the first two
hours and $2.50/hour for subsequent time. This would mean that if someone wants to long-stay in a parking
building a full eight-hour day would cost $18, which is marginally higher fee level required to recover the cost
of providing parking10.

4.1.2 City Centre Fringe
The City Centre Fringe area is within easy walking distance of the City Centre and therefore experiences high
parking demand. Parking in this area currently has a range of different time limits although much of it is

10

Assuming free parking on weekends and public holidays, and around 65% average occupancy during weekdays.
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unrestricted. This area is zoned for commercial and mixed use and will likely intensify over time with more
residential density. This will increase the demand for on-street parking in this area.
The on-street car parking in the City Centre Fringe area could be priced at the same level as the off-street car
parks in the City Centre Core area, and the off-street car parks in the City Centre Fringe area could be priced at
a lower level again to reflect the less convenient location of these car parks.

4.1.3 Residential Fringe
Parking utilisation in unrestricted areas of the Residential Fringe is high throughout the day, indicating use by
commuters preventing short-stay users from accessing the parking. Existing time limits in the Residential
Fringe appear to be working well and should be retained. However additional time limits along parts of streets
that have high utilisation would ensure that a proportion of the parking is available for short stay users.
Another option for addressing the demand for long-stay parking in this area is to price parking. Pricing could
be applied across a smaller time window such as 10am – 4pm to reduce the impact on residents and make it
easier to enforce. This method has the benefit of providing revenue to cover the cost of providing,
maintaining, and managing the parking, while also acting as an incentive for people to either use parking
more efficiently or to travel by alternative modes such as public transport, walking or cycling. In this way it
would also support successful investment in better public transport and walking and cycling infrastructure.
This may be controversial with residents and would require public engagement.
For example, a user fee of $1.00/hour would cover most of the resource cost of providing the car parks if the
car parks continued to be well utilised following the implementation of the parking fees.
User fees could be implemented in part of the area, e.g., in the areas north of Seventh Avenue, closest to the
city centre. This is the area most likely to intensify and where parking demand is likely to increase. It may be a
good approach to introduce pricing early to mitigate future impacts and while there are fewer people to
consult with. in this scenario time limits could still be used in areas from Seventh Avenue south which is further
from the city centre.

4.1.4 Tauranga Primary School
Use of the car parks in the School management area is relatively low, likely reflecting the time limit restrictions
on much of the parking in this area – Arundel Street and Fifth Avenue have time limit restrictions along at least
one full side of the street. However, Sixth Avenue has only three car parks with P120 restrictions and nine car
parks with P5 restrictions during school drop off/pick up times and showed a relatively high occupancy level
during the survey (up to 60% occupied).
Given the high proportion of unrestricted car parks along this stretch of Sixth Avenue and the likely increase in
demand for long-stay parking in the area, it could be expected that utilisation of the unrestricted car parks will
increase once other management measure are implemented. Therefore, it would be prudent to extend time
restrictions along the full length of one side of Sixth Avenue in the School management area.

4.1.5 11th Avenue commercial
Parking in this area was generally well utilised during the survey but not over-utilised, although Norris Street
between Ninth and Tenth Avenues appeared to be a hot spot with relatively high levels of utilisation
throughout the day, and significant amounts of berm parking were also observed in this area.
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Pricing parking around this group of shops could be considered to support the use of alternative transport
modes and to recover the cost of providing the parking. However, the study area only includes part of the
shopping area and an initiative to charge a fee for using parking in this area should be considered and
implemented in a comprehensive manner, i.e., through a plan that covers the whole of the distinct shopping
area and its surrounding fringe, including the public off-street car park at 116 Eleventh Avenue which is
outside the study area.

4.1.6 Off-street parking facilities
The information in sections 2 and 3 shows that most of the off-street car parks in the plan area are either
leased or used for long-stay parking, and occupancy of the parking provided for casual short-stay users is
relatively low with plenty of availability for short-stay parking.
Around 30% of the off-street parking stock is leased and the fees for these leased car parks are set at a level
that does not recover the cost of providing the car parks. For example, the fee for a leased car park in the
Elizabeth Street car park building is $230/month for a covered car park, but the cost to the community of
providing the car park is around $300/month. The fee for a leased car park in a surface off-street car park (e.g.,
Devonport Road or 21 Durham Street) in the City Centre Core area is $210/month, but the cost to the
community of providing the car park is around $600/month. Ideally lease parking should be phased out over
time as it:
•

Locks in driving behaviour as customers have pre-paid their parking for the month.

•

Prioritises long-stay parking (commuter) over short-stay parking.

•

Lowers the overall market price of parking and makes public transport less competitive.

•

Have higher admin costs than daily parking using limited council financial resources that could be
put to better use.

Ways to phase out lease parking include:
•

Close the scheme to new applicants - Closing lease scheme to any new applicants would
provide a sinking cap on lease numbers. This action could be progressed early. It would not
impact existing lease holders so unlikely to cause major controversy. Poses some equity
considerations as existing leaseholders would be eligible for benefits that are not open to others.

•

Price leases at a premium - Lease holders currently get a discounted price compared to casual
users. A premium would reflect the fact that a lease guarantees the holder a space and restricts
other customers from accessing the space. This would make leases more expensive than casual
rates and make leases less attractive.

•

Unallocated spaces - Rather than lease holders getting exclusive access to a particular space the
approach could be changed to an unallocated space model. This is a much more efficient way of
managing parking and normally reduces the total number of spaces that need to be allocated to
lease parkers.

•

Tighten eligibility criteria - Eligibility criteria could be changed to restrict which types of
vehicles are eligible to obtain leases. Eligibility criteria could be linked to broader objectives like
emissions reduction and road safety. This would likely reduce the overall lease numbers.

•

Ring-fence surplus revenue - Surplus revenue from parking leases can be ring-fenced to fund
infrastructure and services for public transport and active transport or other public goods like
public realm enhancements.

•

Top-up card - Leases offer the customer convenience of not having to pay for parking each day,
however they lock in driving as the customer has pre-paid for parking for the month. An
alternative is to offer a top-up card or account where the customer swipes (or number plate
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recorded on entry), and their card is debited the daily amount. This offers customer convenience
without locking in driving.
Also, the fees for casual long-stay users of surface car parks are generally set at a level that does not recover
the cost of providing the car parks, for example, the cost to park all day at the Dive Crescent car park is $6/day
but the cost to the community of providing the car park is around $12/day. Flat fee all day parking should be a
lower priority than short-stay hourly fee parking, but if there is capacity to provide flat fee all day paring within
the parking stock, the parking fee should reflect the cost to the community of providing the parking.
Short-stay parking should be prioritised over long-stay parking at the off-street parking sites in the City Centre
Core area especially, and short-stay parking should be priced at a lower level than adjacent on-street parking
to disincentivise cruising for on-street parking and reflect the perception that these car parks are less
conveniently located, and to reflect the lower resource cost of providing car parking in a building format in the
City Centre Core.
If a lack of short-stay parking does develop over time, reducing long-stay parking can take a phased approach
and should be coordinated with other changes, such as public transport improvements and projects that
involve reallocation of on-street parking to other purposes. Reducing long-stay parking can occur through
cancelling parking leases, increasing the price of all-day parking, optimising the TCC vehicle fleet, and
removing parking from TCC employment contracts. These measures could free up over 1,000 parking spaces
for short-term use, mainly around the City Centre Core and City centre Fringe areas.

4.1.7 Weekend Parking
The pattern of use of parking resources on weekends does not indicate that there is an over-use of car parking
resources anywhere in the plan area, and levels of use indicate that there is no need to use time limits or
parking fees to manage demand.
Although there are other reasons that generally support the use of parking fees in the City Centre, e.g., to
support shifts in travel behaviour to public transport and active transport modes, or to contribute to
recovering the costs of providing car parking, imposing measures when activity levels are so low may
undermine the economic vitality of the City Centre in the short term.
Therefore, the best approach for weekend parking would be to monitor parking activity on a regular basis and
implement parking management measures when general levels of activity increase, i.e., to achieve parking
occupancy levels of 85% if parking becomes over-used.

4.2

Informal Parking Activity

The work undertaken for this report has shown that there are three areas where informal parking is occurring
in formats that impact the ability of TCC to manage overall supply effectively. This includes parking on
recreation reserves, on berms within the plan area and locations where public land appears to have been
appropriated for management by adjacent businesses.

4.2.1 Parking on recreation reserve and local purpose reserve land
As described in section 2.2.1, some people are parking in local parks such as Memorial Reserve to avoid onstreet parking restrictions which reduces the effectiveness of these management measures. This is also
highlighted as an issue in the parking strategy in section 7.1. In addition to the parking management issues
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created by this informal parking, the use of land gazetted as recreation reserve under the Reserves Act for
non-accessory car parking is inconsistent with TCC obligations under the Reserves Act.
As discussed in section 2.2.1, the Cliff Road off-street car parks have been established either entirely or partly
on land gazetted as recreation reserve under the Reserves Act. These car parks should be closed, or at least
those portions of the car parks situated on recreation reserve land, and the reserve land reinstated to provide
for its legislated purpose.
Also, parking management measures applied to public car parks in the plan area may result in changes in
parking activity in recreation reserves like Memorial Reserve, e.g., people may attempt to park in reserves to
avoid new time limits or parking fees on the street and in parking buildings. Parking in recreation reserves is
to enable access for people visiting and using the reserve, and this might be done through and reserve
management plan process rather than through this parking management plan11. In practice this would mean
being more pro-active in the management of parking in reserves if there is evidence parking is not being used
for its intended purpose, e.g., by implementing time limits for some or all of the parking and monitoring and
enforcing the limits to discourage the use of the car parks for long-stay commuter parking.
Parking management measures applied to public car parks in the plan area may also result in more likelihood
of parking happening on passive open space reserve like that at number 50 Dive Crescent. This aspect should
also be monitored and addressed through management measures.

4.2.2 Parking on berms
The Parking Strategy addresses the issue of berm parking in Section 7.6, outlining that parking on berms can
reduce the amenity benefits these areas provide for other street users, residents, and visitors to the area, and
outlines that parking management measures will be more effective in circumstances where drivers are not able
to park behind the kerb line and avoid any restrictions applying to the on-street formed car parks. Berm
parking can also result in adverse effects on ecological systems and the quality of the environment in general,
e.g., water and soil quality, and ecological benefits berm areas can have.
Therefore, this plan recommends the “No Parking Behind Kerb” restriction is extended through the whole plan
area.

4.2.3 Privately managed parking spaces on public streets
In several locations in the plan area there are parking spaces on public land that appear to be integrated into
private developments. These need to be regularised to ensure that the overall parking supply is managed
efficiently in the plan area.
This could occur through a staged process, starting with engagement with property owners and occupiers, and
signalling TCC’s intent to actively manage the car parks. This could involve several different approaches
depending on the context of the street and surround in land uses, for example:
•

11

On streets where time limits or pay parking is implemented there could be signage and access to the
parking to make it clear the car parks are public and are for public use.

Note that parking in recreation reserves falls outside the scope of the TCC parking bylaw.
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•

•

•

4.3

In some contexts, it may be appropriate to lease car parks to adjacent private property owners, or
consider an encroachment license e.g., in a circumstance where it is not practical for members of the
public to access the car parks.
In some circumstance the street may be redesigned to support land use intensification in the city
centre area, in line with TCC’s Street Design Guide, and the land may be repurposed for other uses
such as public amenities or other types of transport infrastructure.
In areas where there is low utilisation of public car parking, it may be appropriate to maintain the
current management system until development or increased activity happens in the surrounding area.

Special parking typologies

In addition to managing effective supply and utilisation within the discrete parking management areas, there
are specific parking typologies that warrant their own consideration such as the provision of mobility parking
and allocated residential parking spaces.

4.3.1 Mobility parking
The parking strategy establishes mobility parking as one of the highest priorities for kerbside space allocation.
The strategy indicates that where a mobility parking space has high occupancy rates, adjacent general car
parking spaces should be retrofitted to mobility car parking spaces.
Although the utilisation levels of the mobility car parks in the area have not been surveyed specifically, the
analysis in section 3.7 shows that there is good coverage of mobility car parks in the area, but there seems to
be some gaps in the area between Durham Street and Cameron Road on Elizabeth Street, and on St Johns
Road and the eastern part of 11th Avenue in the 11th Ave Commercial area. These areas include commercial
activities without accessory parking and therefore mobility parking spaces should be established to
conveniently service these areas.

4.3.2 Allocated residential parking spaces
The parking strategy outlines that prioritising public parking for residents is not equitable because it
potentially restricts the best use of the space at any given time.
There are six car parks at the eastern end of First Avenue allocated for residential use only. This restriction
relates to two properties along the foreshore area without practical vehicle access.
Minimum parking requirements have been removed from the district plan, and developments with less
parking than has typically been required, or with no parking at all, are starting to appear in the city centre area.
In this environment there is less rationale to ensure the owners / occupiers of the dwellings have dedicated
access to car parks, and it is questionable whether it is still an appropriate use of public land to allocate this for
exclusive private use.
Therefore, this arrangement should be reviewed and the exclusive right to use the car parks could be subject
to a legacy clause in the parking bylaw so that any right for exclusive use of a car public car park is cancelled
at the time a property changes ownership. Also, consider as a transitionary measure, the property owners that
have exclusive use of the car parks should be subject to a fee for the use of the parking spaces, e.g., an annual
lease that covers the resource cost of providing the parking.
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Figure 27: First Avenue allocated car parks for residents’ exclusive use

4.4

Tools to support implementation

There are a variety of tools that are needed to support the effective implementation of the parking
management techniques already described in this section. These include monitoring and enforcement, parking
technologies, and good quality data collection.

4.4.1 Monitoring and enforcement
The parking strategy sets out the importance of monitoring and enforcement to support implementation of
parking management plans. Strong monitoring and enforcement processes:
•
•

•
•

Ensure parking is being used as intended e.g., time limits are being adhered to and paid parking is
being paid for.
Help TCC understand how parking is being used. This helps TCC to address any problems that are
arising, e.g., under or over utilisation, lack of short-stay parking, lack of mobility parking or mobility
parking in the wrong place etc.
Support a responsive approach to parking management in a changing environment, which is
important in an area undergoing transformation due to land use intensification.
Ensure parking is not occurring on other parts of the street network, like berms and berms, so that
these areas can provide amenity benefits for other street users, residents, and visitors to the area, and
so that adverse effects on ecological systems and the quality of the environment can be avoided.
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As noted in section 4.2.1, monitoring and enforcement also assists TCC with meeting its obligations under
other legislation like the Reserves Act, ensuring that recreation reserves are providing the benefits to the
community they are intended to.

4.4.2 Smart parking technologies
The parking strategy highlights the opportunities of smart parking technologies to support parking
management plans. There have been significant advancements in parking technology in recent years that have
offered operational efficiencies to parking operators and convenience to customers. However, because of the
range of technologies it can be difficult to know what to invest in. It is important to understand the problems
that exist and how technology can help to address these. Below are some parking technologies that can
improve parking operations and offer customer benefits.

4.4.2.1 Licence plate recognition (LPR) operated off-street car parks
Several cities are adopting the use of Pay by Plate and LPR camera technology for management of off-street
car parks. There are systems that detect when a motorist hasn’t paid or has overstayed and record the
necessary evidence and send that to a council enforcement system. Alternatively, these cameras can be linked
to a barrier arm which only allows vehicles to exit if parking has been paid. These cameras also determine live
parking availability which can be displayed on a sign or website and used for data analysis and evidence to
support price changes.

4.4.2.2 LPR camera enforcement
TCC is currently using an LPR camera system for enforcing the time restrictions in the city centre. LPR systems
can create operational efficiencies as a much larger enforcement area can be covered by the same number of
staff. These cameras are very accurate and can enforce time restricted parking and paid parking if customers
are paying with their licence plate. These systems can be used to collect parking occupancy information. It is
understood that TCC currently uses one mobile LPR camera enforcement system and is looking to purchase
another one.

4.4.2.3 Paying for parking
Parking machines are the traditional method for allowing customers to pay for parking. TCC currently has Pay
by Plate parking meters which is the easiest system for councils to manage and is more customer friendly.
Customers could also pay for parking using the PayMyPark phone app. Parking meters are expensive to
purchase and maintain and add to footpath clutter. Incentivising parking payments through the smartphone
app is a much cheaper way to operate paid parking. A simple way to incentivise app payments is to remove
the surcharge for using the app.
There are cheaper parking meters on the market that are cashless and don’t use tickets. These meters don’t
require the strengthening and security to protect cash. These parking meters are also easier to maintain and
more reliable as they don’t have coin hoppers and ticket dispensers which are also the most common point of
failure.
Parking technology is also being embraced by the private parking operators. There are shared technology
platforms that allow surplus private parking capacity to be shared on the open market. This results in a more
efficient use of the total parking supply in a centre and reduces the overall parking needed. For customers, it is
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more convenient to limit the number of parking technologies (especially apps and accounts) needed to park in
the city. Therefore, efforts to work with private parking providers will be beneficial to customers.

4.4.3 Data collection and storage
The parking strategy sets out the importance of reliable survey data in preparing parking management plans.
In order to monitor the effectiveness of this parking management plan, and to understand how use of parking
in the city may be changing, it is important to regularly monitor how parking is being used.
Decisions on parking should be guided by policy and informed by data. Parking generates a lot of useful data
that should be collected and utilised to develop a robust evidence base for making decisions. There are
existing data sources from parking machines, parking payment apps, infringement ticketing systems and traffic
counting systems. As parking management is part of an integrated transport management approach, it is also
useful to collect other data sources such as transport mode share trends, land-use changes and consumer
spending.
A data analysis and visualisation tool such as Microsoft Power BI is a useful way to understand data and track
key metrics for parking. These tools can utilise many different data sources including real-time live feeds and
display a useful dashboard for operational staff and managers to get an accurate picture of parking. Other
non-parking data can also be tracked and analysed to gain an understanding of macro-trends occurring in
visitation and spending in Tauranga city centre.

4.4.4 Implementation and ongoing management costs
Implementing new paid parking areas can be expensive as it requires purchasing additional payment
machines. TCC needs to ensure that parking revenues cover the costs of providing the paid parking. The
installation and capital costs can be spread across five years before renewals may be needed. The costs of
implementing new paid parking include:
•
•
•
•

Costs of purchasing and maintaining parking machines
Costs for establishing new areas in a parking payment app
Project costs for installing new paid parking including staff time and communications and
engagement.
Signs and road markings

However, encouraging parking app payment is a much cheaper method of paid parking, as mentioned in
section 4.4.2. Every effort should be made to incentive parking app payments. Parking meters will still be
required for people without a smartphone (or not willing to use an app), however parking meters can be
thinned out to reflect the shift to app-based payments. New paid parking areas could be setup by thinning out
meters in existing areas removing the need to purchase new parking machines. In the fringe residential or
mixed-use streets meters can be spread out to every 100 – 150 meters. There is also a virtual parking meter
available from TCC’s meter provider where a sticker with a QR code can be located on signs to allow for phone
payments.
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5

Recommendations

The recommendations in this section have been developed to align with the five strategic outcomes identified
in the recently adopted Parking Strategy:
•
•
•
•
•

Improving vibrant centres and access to centres
Enabling a multimodal transport system
Enabling a more attractive and compact urban form
Supporting access for all
Ensuring value for money and best use of resources.

The recommendations draw on the management approach outlined in the parking strategy, the evidence
collected to create a baseline of existing use in the plan area, and the broader context of the plan area
including stakeholder feedback.
This approach allows recommendations that are evidence based, support the broader strategic planning
framework for Tauranga while also reflecting current conditions to support desired outcomes.
This section contains short-term (0 – 3 years) and medium-term (3 – 6 years) recommendations for parking
management within the plan area. These recommendations are supported by commentary in Section 0.
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New priced
parking in City
Centre Fringe

Extend ‘no parking on berms’
restriction throughout the
plan area
Implement a programme to
manage car parks public road
used and managed by
adjacent
landowners/occupiers
Transition
residents only car
parks to general
parking

Monitor parking
use to ensure it is
not over-used by
commuters

Retain existing
time limts and add
these new ones

Figure 28: Map of key recommendations
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5.1

Short-term (0-3 years)

Below are the short-term recommendations for TCC managed parking in the study area. These are initial steps
that can be taken within the three-year time frame that TCC can implement relatively quickly and easily and
will support the implementation of the medium-term recommendations.

5.1.1 On-street priced parking
Recommendations for on-street parking in the City Centre Core and City Centre Fringe:
1.

Implement priced parking in the City Centre Core and City Centre Fringe as per Table 5-1 below.

2.

Remove all time limits except P5 restrictions. Offer a ten-minute grace period on all priced
parking spaces to allow convenience for short stays.

3.

Monetary surpluses from on-street car parking fees should be invested in public realm
improvements within the City Centre Core and City Centre Fringe areas.

Table 5-1: CCC and CCF Priced parking areas recommended fees and operating times
Area

Fee

Time

City Centre Core

$3.00 per hour for 1-2
hours

$5.00 per hour for more
than 2 hours

8:00am-6:00pm Mon-Sat

City Centre Fringe

$1.50 per hour for 1 – 2
hours

$2.50 per hour for more
than 2 hours

8:00am-6:00pm Mon-Fri

Notes: There is no need for time limits as the price of parking can encourage the turnover of vehicles and ensure
parking is available for people to use - goal of achieving around 85% occupancy during busy times.

5.1.2 Parking management in TCC off-street car parks
Recommendations for the off-street car park area as follows:
4.

The proposed rates in Table 5-2 show how parking fees can be set to prioritise short-stay parking
over long-stay parking and reflect the cost to the community of providing the car parking. Figure
29 shows the location of the off-street parking facilities.

5.

Transition away from lease parking. Section 4.1.6 contains various ways this can be achieved.
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Table 5-2: Recommended rates for TCC off-street car parks – partial cost recovery

Parking Buildings
City Centre Core
Surface Car Parks
Durham Street TV3 Car Park*
City Centre Fringe

Surface Car Parks

Residential Fringe

Surface Car Parks

Recommended Rates
Lease – Uncovered: $252/month
Lease – Covered: $276/month
Lease – Basement: $348/month
Casual:
$2.50/hr
Lease - $276/month
Casual - $2.50/hr
Lease: $320/month
Casual: $2.50/hr
Lease: $180/month
Casual: $1.50 / hr
Casual: $1.50/hr

Total for 2
Hours

Total for 9
hours

$5.00

$22.50

$5.00

$22.50

$5.00

$22.50

$3.00

$13.50

$3.00

$13.50

* Durham Street – TV3 Car Park is a two-level parking building, so has an estimated resource cost that sits
between a surface car park and the larger parking building in the area. This is reflected in the lease fee for this
facility.
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Figure 29: Recommended Car Park Pricing
6.

Investigate ways to improve amenity and the feeling of safety at parking buildings.
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5.1.3 Parking management on-street in residential fringe
Recommendations for the parking management in the Residential Fringe area:
7.

Apply P120 time limits between 8am and 6pm, Monday to Friday on the sections of street
outlined in Figure 28

8.

Use mobile LPR camera vehicles to enforce these restrictions.

5.1.4 Recreation reserve land
9.

Monitor parking on recreation reserves to ensure the land is used to provide access for people
using the recreation reserve. If monitoring indicates a significant amount of parking is being used
by commuters rather than people using the reserve, coordinate with the TCC reserves
management team to update the reserve management plan in accordance with the requirements
of the Reserves Act 1977. This may require time restrictions to deter all-day commuters.

5.1.5 Technology
Recommendations for the use of technology for parking management are:
10.

Investigate using LPR camera systems linked to Pay By Plate payments in the large surface offstreet car parks.

11.

Procure another LPR camera mobile enforcement system.

12.

Reduce the number of parking meters to enable these meters to be used in new priced parking
areas. At the same time, promote the use of the PayMyPark app and utilise the “virtual meter” QR
code system offered by ITSL.

13.

Any purchase of new parking meters should be smaller and cheaper cashless meters. Remove 50c
surcharge for credit cards to make transition more palatable for the public.

More information to support these recommendations is in Section 4.4.2 above.

5.1.6 Regular data collection and reporting
Recommendations for data collection and reporting are:
14.

Six months after the implementation of the parking changes detailed in 5.1.1, 5.1.2 and 5.1.3,
complete another parking occupancy survey to understand changes in parking behaviour and
monitor the performance of the management measures.

15.

Undertake annual surveys following the first six-month survey to do the same.

16.

Work with parking suppliers to get access to data. Aggregate these data sources within Power BI
system and set up dashboards to enable a clear picture of parking use and compliance across the
city.
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More information to support these recommendations is in Section 4.4.3 above.

5.1.7 Car parks on public roads used and managed by adjacent
landowners/occupiers
Recommendations for managing issues of private landowners claiming public parking on the road are:
17.

Plan and implement a process to regularise parking spaces on public land that have been
appropriated by the adjacent property owners/occupiers.

Note: Section 4.2.3 outlines a suggested staged process to implement this recommendation.

5.1.8 Car parking on berms
18.

Extend no parking on berms / berms restriction throughout the plan area.

Note: updates to the Land Transport Act currently being worked on by the Government are expected
to ease the process of regulating parking on berms.

5.1.9 Residents only parking
Recommendations for residents only parking are:
19.

Review any formal arrangements establishing the car parks on First Avenue as ‘residents only car
parks’ with the view to phase-out the residents only restrictions by:
a.

establishing a legacy clause in the parking bylaw so that any right for exclusive use of the
public car parks is cancelled at the time a property changes ownership, and

b. consider the practicality of a transitionary measure, where the property owners that have
exclusive use of the car parks are subject to a fee for the use of the parking spaces, e.g., an
annual lease or encroachment license that recovers the resource cost of providing the car
parks.

5.1.10 Mobility parking
20.

5.2

Establish additional mobility car parks in the area between Durham Street and Cameron Road on
Elizabeth Street, and on St Johns Road and the eastern part of 11th Avenue in the 11th Ave
Commercial area.

Medium-term (3-6 years)

Below are the medium-term recommendations for three to six years for TCC managed parking in the study
area. These recommendations are supported by further commentary in Section4.
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5.2.1 Incrementally transition long-stay parking to short-stay parking
21.

As on-street car parking is removed from the City Centre Core as part of street upgrades and
public transport and cycle projects, all-day parking in off-street car parks should be converted to
short-stay to offset this loss. Public messaging should be that there will be no loss in the amount
of short-term parking in the city centre as it is just being moved from on-street to off-street.

22.

Phase out lease parking.

5.2.2 Monitor occupancy levels and adjust pricing / time limits
23.

Continue to monitor parking occupancy to understand changes in parking behaviour and the
performance of the management measures. Adjust prices of parking up or down to achieve 85%
occupancy across a management area during busy times, in line with the direction set in the
Parking Strategy.

24.

Incrementally adjust the pricing of off-street parking facilities to recover a greater proportion of
the costs of providing the parking. As a guide, Table 5-3 represents a fee structure based on the
estimated cost of providing the parking. This is based on land values in 2022 and should be
updated to reflect any changes in land values if it is used as a guide in the future.

Table 5-3: Recommended rates for TCC off-street car parks - full cost recovery

Parking Buildings
City Centre Core
Surface Car Parks
Durham Street TV3 Car Park*
City Centre Fringe

Surface Car Parks

Residential Fringe

Surface Car Parks

Recommended Rates
Lease – Uncovered: $280/month
Lease – Covered: $300/month
Lease – Basement: $360/month
Casual:
1-2 hrs: $1.50/hr
>2 hrs: $2.50
Lease - $600/month
Casual - $5.00/hr
Lease: $420/month
Casual: $5.00/hr
Lease: $360/month
Casual: $3.00 / hr
Casual
1-2 hrs: $1.50/hr
>2 hrs: $2.50

Total for 2
Hours

Total for 9
hours

$3

$20.50

$10

$45

$10

$45

$6

$27

$3

$20.50

* Durham Street – TV3 Car Park is a two-level parking building, so has an estimated resource cost that sits
between a surface car park and the larger parking building in the area. This is reflected in the lease fee for this
facility.
**Note: These fees are based on a full cost recovery approach and reflect the relative costs of providing
parking in different formats and different locations within the plan area, equivalent to recovering the costs of
providing parking assuming casual car parks are around 65% utilised across the day.
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25.

5.3

If parking demand increases in the Residential Fringe area and remaining unrestricted parking
areas become over-used, implement time limits across wider areas on the on-street car parks, and
consider implementing priced parking in very busy streets.

Long-term

A separate piece of work is currently being undertaken to plan the integration of land use and transport in the
plan area. This is being done with the view of encouraging transformation of the area to accommodate a more
balanced transport network that will support a high density and higher quality urban environment. The shortand medium-term recommendations outlined above are intended to manage demand for parking and
encourage a shift in the way people travel in and around the plan area to support this long-term
transformation.
Therefore, long-term management measures may involve continued demand management through setting
parking fees at a higher rate and/or across broader parts of the plan area, may involve the re-allocation of land
from parking to other higher value uses, greater reliance on the private sector to provide parking resources,
and may also involve the provision of parking or encouraging the use of parking that is provided in more
efficient formats such as parking buildings.
These long-term parking management measures will need to be defined once the strategic planning is
progressed and some of the transformational changes are implemented within the plan area.
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Appendix A City Centre Area Land Use Zoning
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Appendix B Historic Parking Management Maps
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Appendix C Parking Stock and Current Restrictions
Summary of capacity, price, parking types etc in table form
Car Park Name

Capacity

Pricing

Resource Cost

- Type of car parks (e.g. lease, short stay
etc.)
21 Durham Street
Leased

$210 (per month)
40

4 Wharf Street Car Park
Public

Free
26

45 Cliff Road Car Park
Pay and Display

$5 per day
108

$789

$513

$1,169

Cliff Road Car Park
Leased
Pay and Display

10
72

Unknown
$5 per day

$779

26
65

$210 (per month)
$2.50 per hour

$1,795

31

$128 (per month)

$1,484

124

$6 per day

$1,484

58
43

$230 (per month)
$2.50 per hour

$798

Devonport Road (IRD Car Park)
Leased
Pay and Display
4 Dive Crescent Car Park
Leased
26 Dive Crescent Car Park
Pay and Display
Durham Street – TV3 Car Park
Leased
Pay and Display
Elizabeth Street Parking Building
Leased
Pay and Display

278
342

Uncovered: $210 (per
month)
Covered: $230 (per month)

$6,186

$2.50 per hour
Hamilton Street North Side Car Park
Pay and Display

$2.50 per hour
60

$1,184

C-1
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Car Park Name

Capacity

Pricing

Resource Cost

- Type of car parks (e.g. lease, short stay
etc.)
Spring Street Parking Building
Leased
Pay and Display

203
250

Uncovered: $210 (per
month)
Covered: $230 (per month)

$4,470

Basement: $290 (per month)
$2 per hour
The Strand Northern Reclamation Car Park

180

$2.50

16

Free

13
3
3

$2.50 per hour

Pay and Display
The Strand South
Leased

$3,551

$316

Willow St Masonic Car Park
Pay and Display
Leased
Mobility

$316
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Tauranga city centre access map (January 2020)
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Map of parking restrictions
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Map of car parks managed as though they are private.
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Map of cars parked on berm areas.
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Appendix D Resource Cost Calculation Details
The resource cost assessment uses a ‘first principles’ approach taken in the National Guidelines for
Transportation System Management in Australia to assess the resource cost of parking.12 This includes the
costs to purchase land for parking (or the cost of capital where land is already in Council ownership), costs to
construct parking facilities, and costs to maintain and operate parking spaces.
Assumed parameters
The table below shows an example of the calculated resource cost of a parking space for surface parking, a
five-level parking building, and for on-street parking in the City Centre Core area. The surface and building
assessment is based on off-street parking scenarios, i.e., the area required for a car park includes manoeuvring
area required to access the space. This provides a point of reference for valuing on-street car parking in terms
of accommodating the parking in an alternative off-street location, or in terms of comparing the value of the
car park relative to private parking resources.
However, on-street car parking, depending on its format and the function of the street, can be provided with a
lesser amount of manoeuvring space, so it could be reasoned that applying the resource cost assessment for
off-street car parking to on-street car parking resources would likely over-estimate the resource cost of the
parking. Therefore, a conservative approach has been taken and the assessment of the resource cost for onstreet car parking is based on a lower land requirements per car park, as shown in the table below.
An example of parameters used in the resource cost calculation
Area

City Centre Core

Carpark Type

Surface

Building (5
level)

On-street

Land area / Car Park (m2)

28.0

5.6

15.0

land cost ($/m2)

$3,905

$3,905

$3,905

Land Cost / Car Park

$109,343

$21,869

$58,576

Construction ($ / Car Park)

$2,338

$22,160

$2,338

Annual OPEX / Car Park

$500

$1,000

$500

Establishment cost / Car Park

$111,680

$44,029

$60,914

Annualised construction cost / Car Park $6,701

$2,642

$3,655

Annual Cost / Car Park

$7,201

$3,642

$4,155

Daily Cost / Car Park (365 days)

$19.73

$9.98

$11.38

Land Value Assumptions
To obtain a generalised land value for the purpose of calculating the resource cost of parking for each of the
management areas, the land value from the council rating valuations was used. A representative set of

12

Refer to Volume 4, Section 6.5 of the National Guidelines for Transportation System Management in Australia, Australian Transport Council 2006.
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properties were selected and the average per square metre value of land for each of these properties was
calculated. The following tables show the properties selected for each management area.

Residential Fringe
Site
Land Use
11 MISSION STREET Residential
20 MISSION STREET Residential
18 MARSH STREET Retail
3 EDGECUMBE ROAD
Residential
18 EDGECUMBE ROAD
Residential
64 SIXTH AVENUE Residential
34 SEVENTH AVENUEResidential
1 SIXTH AVENUE
Residential
402 CAMERON ROAD
Auto mechanics
17 EIGHTH AVENUE Residential
395 CAMERON ROAD
Food retail
6 NINTH AVENUE Retail
345 DEVONPORT ROAD
Residential
Avr

2018
LV/m2
661.34
1,101.40
838.05
1,288.85
958.5
1,017.79
616.69
1,688.74
1,758.66
962.15
1,765.26
1,032.99
1,037.55
1,132.92

2021
LV/m2
1,875.00
2,424.00
1,212.00
1,956.00
1,789.00
1,492.00
1,131.00
3,002.00
2,683.00
1,777.00
2,685.00
1,667.00
1,927.00
1,970.77

11th Ave Shops
Site
Land Use
476 CAMERON ROAD
Supermarket
13 ST JOHN STREET Trade retail
503 CAMERON ROAD
Retail
524 Cammeron Road
37A Norris Street
80 St John Street
12 Tenth Ave
83 Eleventh Ave
64 Ninth Ave
159 Eleventh Ave
Avr

2018
2021
LV/m2
LV/m2
804.9
1167
798.65
1159
1610.67
2342
2340
1534
1168
1340
1743
1160
2783
1673
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Appendix E Weekday Use of Off-street Car Parks Detail
Appendix E documents the information available about weekday use of off-street car parks in the study area
of Tauranga City Centre.
Occupancy information was only available for two of the 13 off-street car parks: Spring Street parking building
and Elizabeth Street parking building. For these two off-street car parks, occupancy surveys were carried out at
three times during the day for the three days from Saturday 5th to Monday 7th March 2022.
For the other 11 off-street car parks, to get an indication of occupancy we conducted a survey using aerial
imagery. Three different aerial images were used:
•
LINZ Bay of Plenty 0.1m Urban Aerial Photos (2020)
•
MAPI – Tauranga City Council 2022 Aerial
•
LINZ Tauranga 0.1m Urban Aerial Photos (Tue 21/03/2017)
Each aerial image appears to be from around midday, and on-street occupancy appears relatively similar
indicating the aerial images were likely taken at similar times of day. The number of cars parked at each car
park has been used to inform occupancy rates of these car parks.

Spring Street parking building
The Spring Street car park is owned by Tauranga City and operated by Care Park. It has five levels and access
from both Spring Street and Durham Street.
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Fees for the car park start at $2 for the first hour and increase in increments of $1 or $2 per hour up to a
maximum of $14 for 8+ hours on Monday to Friday for entries between 6am-3pm. Outside of these hours and
days, parking is free. Leases are available for both uncovered and covered parking spaces for $210 and $230
per month respectively.
The number of parking spaces allocated for each use is shown below.
Type of parking in the Spring Street parking building
Parking type

Spaces

Casual parking

250

Lease parking

203

Total

453

Weekday use of the car park is shown in the following chart.

Utilisation of Spring Street parking building

Elizabeth Street parking building
The Elizabeth Street parking building is owned by Tauranga City but operated by Care Park. It has five levels
and access from both Elizabeth Street and First Avenue.
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Fees for the car park start at $2 for the first hour and increase in increments of $1 or $2 per hour up to a
maximum of $14 for 8+ hours on Monday to Friday for entries between 6am-3pm. Outside of these hours and
days, parking is free. Leases are available for both uncovered and covered parking spaces for $210 and $230
per month respectively.
The number of parking spaces allocated for each use is shown below.
Type of parking in the Elizabeth Street parking building
Parking type
Casual parking

Spaces
342

Lease parking

278

Total

620

Weekday use of the car park is shown in the following chart. The chart shows for the three periods surveyed
on March 7th 2022, the occupancy of public and leased parking was below 40% and above 20%. In all three
periods, leased parking had a slightly lower occupancy than public parking.
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Utilisation of Elizabeth Street parking building
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Hamilton Street (Number 36) car park
The Hamilton Street car park is a surface car park operated by Tauranga City Council with a single combined
entry and exit on Hamilton Street. This car park sits behind the Tauranga library and city council building.
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This car park is a free short-term car park and time restrictions of P180 or P30 apply between 9am – 3pm,
Monday to Friday. In total there are 60 car parks with a mix of lease, mobility parking and casual parking. The
number of parking spaces allocated for each use is shown below.
Type of parking in the Hamilton Street car park
Parking type
Mobility parking
Casual parking
Lease parking
Total

Spaces
3
50
7
60

Willow Street Masonic car park
The Willow Street Masonic car park is a surface car park operated by Tauranga City Council with a single
combined entry and exit on Willow Street. This car park has pedestrian access through to The Strand.
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This car park is a free short-term car park and a P120 time restriction applies between 9am – 3pm, Monday to
Friday. In total there are 19 car parks with a mix of lease, mobility parking and casual parking. The number of
parking spaces allocated for each use is shown below.
Type of parking in the Willow Street Masonic car park
Parking type

Spaces

Mobility parking

3

Casual parking

3

Lease parking

13

Total

19

Durham Street - TV3 rooftop car park
The Durham Street – TV3 rooftop car park is managed by Care Park and has two levels. The top level is
intended to be used as short-term casual parking, while the bottom level is lease only parking. Entrance to the
top level is via Hamilton Street, while the bottom level is access via Durham Street.
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Fees for the car park are $2.50 per hour for the casual parking with time restrictions applying from 9am-3pm,
Monday to Friday. Leases on the bottom level are $230 per month. The number of parking spaces allocated for
each use is shown below.
Table 5-4 Type of parking in the Durham Street car park
Parking type
Casual parking
Lease parking
Total

Spaces
58
43
101

Devonport Road (IRD car park)
The Devonport Road car park is a surface car park operated by Tauranga City Council with a single combined
entry and exit on Elizabeth Street. This car park sits behind the Bay of Plenty Regional Council building.
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This car park is a free short-term car park and a P180 time restriction applies between 9am – 3pm, Monday to
Friday. In total there are 91 car parks with a mix of lease and casual parking. The number of parking spaces
allocated for each use is shown below.
Type of parking in the Devonport Road car park
Parking type

Spaces

Casual parking

26

Lease parking

65

Total

91

4 Dive Crescent car park
The 4 Dive Crescent Number car park is a surface level car park operated by Care Park. All the car parks are
lease car parks and access is from Dive Crescent.
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Leases cost $128 per month. The number of parking spaces is shown below.
Type of parking in the 4 Dive Crescent car park
Parking type

Spaces

Lease parking

31

Total

31

26 Dive Crescent car park
The 26 Dive Crescent car park is a large surface car park with two access points on Dive Crescent. The car park
is operated by TCC and is intended as an all-day car park.
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Time restrictions apply from 9am – 3pm, Monday to Friday and parking costs $6 per day. The number of
parking spaces is shown below.
Type of parking in the 26 Dive Crescent car park
Parking type

Spaces

Casual parking

124

Total

124

The Strand Northern Reclamation car park
The Strand Northern Reclamation car park is another large all-day surface car park operated by TCC. Access is
off Dive Crescent at the northern end of the car park, and direct pedestrian access to The Strand and Tauranga
waterfront is provided for.
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Fees for the car park are $2.50 per hour up to a maximum of $10. There is mobility parking and casual parking.
The number of parking spaces allocated for each use is shown below.
Type of parking in the Strand Northern Reclamation car park
Parking type
Mobility parking

Spaces
4

Casual parking

176

Total

180

21 Durham Street car park
The 21 Durham Street car park is a surface level car park owned and operated by Care Park for lease parking.
Entry is provided from Durham Street and exit is onto Hamilton Street.
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Leases for the car park are $210 per month. The number of parking spaces is shown below.
Type of parking in the 21 Durham Street car park
Parking type

Spaces

Lease parking

40

Total

40

4 Wharf Street car park
The 4 Wharf Street car park is a surface level car park on the waterfront side of the railway line beside The
Strand. The car park is accessed via an entrance and exit off The Strand at the intersection of Wharf Street.
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Parking at this car park is free and while unclear it is assumed to have P120 time restrictions like the on-street
parking in the area. The number of parking spaces is shown below.
Type of parking in the 4 Wharf Street car park
Parking type

Spaces

Casual parking

26

Total

26

Cliff Road Car Park
The Cliff Road car park is a surface level car park operated by TCC for all-day parking. Access is provided off
Cliff Road. Part of this car park is on reserve land.
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Fees for the car park are $5 per day. Based on aerial imagery it appears some parking spaces are reserved,
however, no information on the restrictions or fees for these was available. The number of parking spaces
allocated for each use is shown below.
Type of parking in the Cliff Road car park
Parking type
Casual parking

Spaces
62

Lease parking

10

Total

72

45 Cliff Road car park
The 45 Cliff Road car park is a surface level car park operated by TCC for all-day parking. Access is provided off
Cliff Road. Most of this car park is on reserve land.
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Fees for the car park are $5 per day. The number of parking spaces allocated for casual parking is shown
below.
Type of parking in the 45 Cliff Road car park
Parking type

Spaces

Casual parking

108

Total

108
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